
The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

Call to order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Presentation: National Public Works Week Proclamation

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not

scheduled on the agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. 
If appropriate, the item will be referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.) 

1. Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless

removed from the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled

will be considered at the end of the agenda.) 

A. Approval of Meeting Minutes

May 51 2015 — Regular Meeting
Members present: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, and Vasquez

Reference: Susan Garcia, City Clerk
Recommendation: Approve Minutes

B. City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands

Reference: Cathy Till, Finance Director

Recommendation: Ratify Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All ordinances on the Agenda

Reference: James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this

agenda; ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title
only

D. Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape
Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015-2016

The City Council will consider a resolution approving the levy and collection of
assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance

Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

E. on -Call Restoration Services Agreements

The City Council will consider a resolution approving professional services

agreements with Restoration Management Company and 911 Restoration of

San Diego for on- call restoration services. 

Reference: Mike James, Public Works Director
v ate- mm m. , ur r. ^ vnm x nmr x' au- u a xmm rmr ^ mmn • Wir, ... » rex r. Pr P wmW mm, ••.^ YNY  . 10, . m . IVW4 •• 0. d• a •• 



2. Draft Fiscal Year 201 5- 201 6 Budgets for the city of Lemon Grove, Roadway Lighting
District, Sanitation District, and Successor Agency

The City Council, Roadway Lighting District Board, Sanitation District Board, and

Successor agency Board will review draft budgets for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016. 

Reference: Graham Mitchell, city Manager & Cathy Till, Finance Director

Recommendation: Provide Feedback

3. Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 48 and 18. 08 of the Lemon Grove Municipal

Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual

The City Council will consider conducting a second reading, by title only, and

adopting Ordinance No. 428, an ordinance amending Chapter 8.48 ( Stormwater

Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) 
of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove Best

Management Practices Manual. This ordinance is responsive to Regional Water

Quality Control Board Order No. R9- 2013- 0001 and Order No. R9- 2015- 0001. 

Reference: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Conduct Second Reading by Title only and Adopt ordinance

4. Ordinance No. 427 Approving Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 Amending the Zoning
District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) for properties

on the South Side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway
The City Council will consider conducting a second reading, by title only, and

adopting Ordinance No. 427, an ordinance approving Zoning Amendment ZA150- 
0001 amending the zoning district from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential
Medium/ High ( RMH) for properties on the South Side of Broadway between 8305

Broadway and 8373 Broadway. 

Reference: Carol Dick, community Services Director
Recommendation: conduct Second Reading by Title only and Adopt ordinance

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City. 
GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

53232. 3. (d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative
body.) 

Department Director Reports ( Non -Action Items) 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5: conference with Labor Negotiators

Agency Designated Representative: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Employee organization: Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Appointment
Title: city Manager

Adiournment

complianceIna with Disabilitiesprovide
requirespecialaccommodations for persons who s, participate

meetingsini Council. If you requirei

619) 825- 3800 or email i to the meeting. ll agenda packet i

availableic review at City Hall. 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency
May 5, 2015

Call to order

Members present: Mary Sessom, George Gastil, Jerry Jones, Jennifer Mendoza, and Racquel Vasquez. 

Members absent: None. 

City Staff present: Graham Mitchell, City Manager; Carol Dick, Development Services Director; Daryn

Drum, Division Fire Chief; Susan Garcia, City Clerk; James P. Lough, City Attorney; Mike James, 

Public Works Director; Lt. May, Sheriffs Department; Tamara O' Neal, Interim City Engineer; Rick

Sitta, Fire Chief; Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst, and Cathleen Till, Finance Director. 

Public Comment

Teresa Rosiak Proffit reported on her daughter' s kidnapping and return. She urged the City
Council to hire additional Sheriff' s Deputies. 

Bob Jones commented the City' s water usage for landscaping and the possibility of wells to
provide water. 

Stephen Browne commented on a recent incident in his neighborhood. He also reported on the

Sheriffs response and believes that the City should hire more Sheriff' s Deputies. 

1 Consent Calendar

A. Approval of City Council Minutes
April 21, 2015 Regular Meeting

B. Ratification of Payment Demands

C. Waive Full Text Reading of All ordinances and Resolutions on the Agenda
D. Claim Denial

E. Award Contract for Traffic Signal and Communications Systems Maintenance, 

Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Services

Action: Motion by Councilmember Gastil, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez to
approve the Consent Calendar passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2015- 3328: Resolution of theCity Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California I Awarding a Contract for Traffic Signal and Communication System Maintenance, 
Emergency Repairs, and Related Construction Service



2. Resolution Approving Limitations on the Two -Year EDCO Corporation Rate
Schedule

Graham Mitchell reported that EDCC provides solid waste disposal services for City residents
under a franchise granted by the City Council. EDCC has been operating under the same City
Council -approved rate ceiling since 2013. 

The purpose of this agenda item is to present a resolution that approves a new two- year EDCC
Rate Ceiling for Fiscal Years 2015- 16 and 2016- 17. 

Earlier this year, staff met with EDCC staff regarding a request to increase the maximum waste
collection and recycling rates from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. In summary, EDCC

requests that the basic residential service rate increases from $ 20. 44 to $ 21. 10 per month and

basic commercial service rate increases from $ 102. 74 to $ 106. 74 per month. 

Various cost factors have impacted the solid waste industry, including EDCC. These costs

include landfill tipping fees, cost of fuel and labor, and the loss in offsetting revenue from the
sale of recycled materials. 

Public Speaker( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to

adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 120' 15- 3329: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Authorizing an Amendment to the Franchise Agreement with EDCC Corporation to
Grant an Amended Maximum Rate Limitation

3. California Home Financing Authority

Graham Mitchell stated that in 2013, the City began participation in the HERO, PACE, and

Figtree PACE programs. Staff presents a third program for City Council consideration that
provides property owners a third option with a different financing mechanism. 

California Home Finance Authority ( CHF), which is in the process of formally changing its name
to Golden State Finance Authority, is a joint exercise of powers authority ( the Authority JPA). 
CHF has established two Property Assessed Clean Energy ( PACE) financing programs for
residential, commercial, industrial and agricultural properties to address high up -front costs for
property owners who wish to improve their properties through installation of measures that will
generate renewable energy or reduce their energy and water use. CHF contracts with Ygrene

Energy Fund CA LLC ( Ygrene) to serve as the program administrator and to operate the Ygrene

Works for the California PACE financing program. 

To participate in the CHF PACE programs, the City must become an Associate Member of CHF. 
Associate membership requires no dues or other costs to the City. 

Public S e, ke r( s) 

There were no requests from the public to speak



Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez to adopt
the resolutions passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 20' 15- 333' 1: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California" Consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City' s Jurisdiction in the California
Home Finance Authority Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1 ( Clean Energy) to Finance

Renewable Energy Improvements, Energy Efficiency and Water Conservation Improvements
and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure and Approving Associate Membership in the Joint
Exercise of Powers Authority Related Thereto

Resolution No. 12015- 3332: ;Resolution of the City Council of the City Of Lemon Grove, 
California' Consenting to Inclusion of Properties within the City' s Jurisdiction in the California
Home Finance Authority, Program to Finance Renewable Energy Generation, Energy and
Water Efficiency Improvements and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure and Approving
Associate Membership in the Joint Exercise of Powers Authority Related Thereto

4 Public Hearing to Consider General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 and Zoning
Amendment ZA150- 0001 ( Request to Amend the General Plan Land Use

Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Medium/ High

Residential Density and to Amend the Zoning District from General Commercial
GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) on the South Side of Broadway between

8305 Broadway and 8373 Broadway) 

Carol Dick explained that the project consists of amending the General Plan Land Use
Designation of properties between and including 8305 and 8373 Broadway from Transportation
and Retail Commercial to Medium/ High Density Residential and amending the Zoning District
from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH). This project was initiated by
the City to address existing nonconforming uses and to promote the conversion of existing
nonconforming uses to the predominant existing residential uses in the area. 

The properties are located in an area surrounded by transportation uses, Broadway, SR94, 

SR125, commercial and residential uses. The area was significantly affected by the design and
construction of SR125. Several single family residential properties were identified with the
transportation land use designations because it was thought that the properties would be used

for the construction of the freeway. Those properties were not used or taken and the land use

designation modification from Transportation to Residential Medium/ High is part of this request. 

The background information from the 1996 General Plan process identifies several existing land
uses along the south side of Broadway from SR125 to the east City boundary consisting of
commercial, residential and light industrial/ warehouse land use designations. The existing
development has remained essentially the same in this area with the exception of the
construction of a mini -storage facility. The project area is approximately 7. 2 acres and involves
10 legal lots. 

With the recent listing for sale and marketing of the auto repair lot, City staff believes there is an
opportunity to pursue more compatible land use designations in this area. The auto repair

business ( composed of eight businesses) has been the subject of numerous complaints from

neighbors located both in the City of Lemon Grove and the County of San Diego. 

Public Speaker( s) 

Lin Martin, agent for the property owner, expressed his support for the proposed zoning
amendment. 



Action: Motion by Councilmember Gastil, seconded by Councilmember Mendoza, to

close the public hearing and adopt the resolution passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Resolution No. 2015- 3330: Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, 
California Approving General Plan Amendment GPA15-0001 Amending the General Plan Land
Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Residential Medium/ High

Density for Ten Properties Located on the South Side of Broadway as Shown on Exhibit A

Action: Motion by Councilmember Mendoza, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez, to

introduce ordinance No. 427 and conduct the first reading by title only passed, by the
following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Ordinance No. 427: An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California

Approving Zoning Amendment ZA15- 0001 Amending the Zoning District from General
Commercial ( GC) To Medium/ High Residential, Lemon Grove, California

5. Draft Fiscal Year 2015-2016 General Fund and General Reserve Fund Budget

Cathy Till reported that For FY 2014--15, staff anticipates that the City will generate $ 12. 1 million

in combined revenue and interfund transfers and will expend $ 11. 3 million generating a

surplus of approximately $ 737, 200, which is significantly more than the surplus projected in the
FY 2014- 15 mid -year budget ($ 358, 600). 

The budget anticipates revenues to be 2 percent more in FY 2015-- 16 than FY 2014--15, an

increase of approximately $ 242, 600. The proposed budget also shows an increase in the

expenditure plan of $ 467, 700 over FY 2014- 15. 

The presented draft budget results in a surplus of $512, 100 in FY 2015- 16, increasing the
General Fund balance from $ 2, 394, 700 to $ 2, 906, 800. 

General Fund revenue is anticipated to increase from the mid -year budget of $ 11. 6 million to

12. 1 million. This is an increase of approximately $ 423, 900. The primary reasons for the
increase are sales tax (+$ 376, 000) and development fees (+$ 108, 000), partially offset by a
decrease in property tax (-$ 92, 300) due to a higher delinquency factor than was used in the
mid -year budget. Other smaller variances, both positive and negative, make up the difference
between the mid -year budget and the anticipated budget. 

Of the major revenue sources, sales tax revenue has experienced the most fluctuation over the
past ten years. In FY 2015- 16, staff projects that the City will collect $ 5. 40 million in sales tax. 

That is approximately $ 715, 000 more than the high of $ 4. 68 million that the City collected in FY
2006- 07. It should be noted that approximately $ 200,000 of this is a one-time true up payment
due to the wind down of the " Triple Flip" program. Property tax has been steadily increasing
since the low of $ 1. 82 million in FY 2010- 11, and is projected to be $ 2. 23 million in FY 2015- 16. 

Vehicle license fees have also increased at an average rate of 1 percent since FY 2005- 06. 

In FY 2015- 16, overall General Fund revenues are projected to be $ 11. 8 million dollars, which is

an all- time high for the City, exceeding pre -recession revenues by approximately $ 281, 200

Revenue is expected to increase by $ 264,400 in FY 2015- 16 over anticipated FY 2014- 15

revenue. 

0



Sales tax is projected to grow by $ 324, 000, or 6. 4 percent, due to a one- time payment of

approximately $ 200, 000 ( due to the scheduled termination of the " Triple Flip" program) as well

as continued strong sales in the auto and construction sectors. One of staff' s concerns for the

future, given the City' s reliance on these two predominant sources of revenue, is the potential

that at least one of these sectors will flatten out or even decrease. It is already projected that
sales tax will decrease approximately $ 200, 000 in FY 2016- 17 due to the end of the " Triple Flip" 
program. Property tax is projected to grow at a rate of 4. 2 percent, or $ 89, 900, in FY 2015- 16. 

Development fees are expected to decrease by $ 145, 000, but this could change depending on
building activity in FY 2015- 16. Other revenue sources reflect small variances between FY

2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16. 

The proposed budget shows an increase in the expenditure plan of $ 467, 700. Staff costs

increased by $ 131, 300 due to the two new positions created in FY 2014- 15 and step increases. 

Services and supplies increased $ 209, 400, which is due primarily to increases in the City
Manager, Fire and Public Works departments. 

In addition, contractual obligations increased $ 94, 200 primarily driven by an increase in the
Sheriffs Department' s contract. 

Public Speaker( s) 
Brenda Hammond commented on law enforcement and the prisoner release program. 

Teresa Rosiak Proffit commented on city Council' s law enforcement discussion. 

After the discussion, the City Council directed staff to prepare a revised budget for City council
consideration at the June

2nd

meeting. 

6. Planning Commission

Graham Mitchell explained that on January 20, 2015, staff presented an agenda item entitled

Planning commission Analysis." This agenda item followed up on a similar November 4, 2014

item. During the January
20th

report, staff addressed four specific questions asked during the
November

4th

meeting: 

What are the alternative ways to solicit community input on a project? 

How can we engage citizens proactively? 

If the Planning commission were dissolved, how would that be implemented? 

What would be the impact on the city Council agenda schedule? 

Staff also included information on appeals, potential unintended consequences of items

addressed in the report, and information about project streamlining. 

At the conclusion of the January
20th

discussion, a motion passed directing staff to solicit input
from former and current Planning Commissioners and former Councilmembers and to present

one or two alternatives to the current Planning Commission. The plan was to rely on City
Council comments and input received from former Councilmembers and former and current

Planning Commissioners. 

Staff determined that the most effective way to solicit opinions of former Planning
Commissioners and former Councilmembers was through a questionnaire. The questionnaire

allowed respondents to answer the same questions and to spend time needed to answer

thoroughly. The questionnaire also allows the city Council to see the responses first- hand, 
rather than a summary of verbal interviews conducted by staff. 

Councilmember Mendoza provided a report on Planning Commissions throughout the State. 



Action: Motion by Mayor Sessom, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to follow the staff
report proposal on page 5 to repurpose the Planning Commission, ensuring that public
participation is protected and enhanced, and to establish an implementation schedule

passed, by the following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, 

Noes, Mendoza, Vasquez

7. Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 18. 08 and 8. 48 of the Lemon Grove
Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices
BMP) Manual

Malik Tamimi stated that on May 8, 2013, the Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) 
adopted Order No. R9- 2015- 0001 ( Permit). The Permit went into effect on June 27, 2013 and

requires that the City develop a Jurisdictional Runoff Management Program ( JRMP) no later

than June 27, 2015. The development of the JRMP requires an update to City Municipal Code
Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation and Grading) and Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and
Discharge Control). A Lemon Grove Best Management Practices Manual was developed in

support of the JRMP and for reference in the aforementioned chapters. The recommended
updates to the ordinance; as required by the Permit, are consistent with updates being made by
other cities in the County. 

Action: Motion by Councilmember Jones, seconded by Councilmember Gastil, to

introduce Ordinance No. 428 and conduct the first reading by title only passed, by the
following vote: 

Ayes: Sessom, Gastil, Jones, Mendoza, Vasquez

Ordinance No. 428: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California

Amending Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08

Excavation And Grading) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon
Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual

City Council oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the
City. ( GC 53232. 3 ( d)) 

Councilmember Jones reported on meetings at SANDAL, Lemon Grove Clean- up Day, 
Congresswoman Davis' art competition, the Chamber Legislative Committee, and his

participation in the District Attorney' s Citizens Academy. 

Councilmember Mendoza reported on Lemon Grove Clean- up Day, a Thrive Lemon Grove

meeting, and a meeting with seniors at St. John of the Cross Plaza. 

Mayor Pro Tem Vasquez attended a Heartland Training Facility Authority meeting, 
Congresswoman Davis' art competition, La Maestra' s Community Health Center' s

25th

Anniversary, and a LAFCO meeting. 

Closed Session

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957. 6: Conference with Labor Negotiators

Agency Designated Representative: Graham Mitchell, City Manager
Employee Organization: Local 2728 of the International Association of Firefighters

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957: Public Employee Performance Evaluation
Title: City Manager



Closed Session Report: No reportable action was taken. 

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation

District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor

Agency the meeting was adjourned at 9: 30 p. m. 

Susan Garcia, City Clerk



City of Lemon Grove De mands Summary

Approved as Submitted: 

Cathleen' 111111, IFiinaince Director

IFor, Council Meeting: 05/ 1. 9/ 15

ACID/ a IP Checks 04/ 22/ 15- 05/ 06/ 15 RMEM

MMEM

Total Dernainds 3.85#290,28

CKIRCK

CHECIK NO INVOICE iNn VENDOR NAME CHIECK DA"I' li" Description 1NV1D110E, XM10, 1UN" F AMOUINT

ACI I IMarl,5 Callpers Supplerrenital Incorne 457 04/ 22/ 2015 457 Plain 3/ 4/ 15- 3/ 31/ 1.5 1.' 4, 549,, 4 I1. 4,549.04

ACH IMar15 Wex Inc, 04/ 29/ 2,015 Fuel -, IMar" 15 Fire Dept, 784 78 784 78

A0 I Alpir28 15 US Treasury 04/ 30/ 2015 Federal Taxes 4/ 28/ 1. 5 24, 094, 81 24, 094. 811. 

AG Aj::PrN' 15 El rnjployrneirft Development 13elpt, 04/ 30/ 2,01,5 State Taxes 4/ 28/ 1. 5 6, 416119 16, 416319

III.... I Kayls Per' s Health 05/ 04/ 2,015 Health linsurainice - May' 14 52, 407. 54 52, 40" 7, 54

ACH 276741.964 US Bank Equipment ftnoince 05/ 04/ 2,015 Defilbrilla-Coir Lease -Conor act IPayirrient 5/ 11/ 15 1.
x,
563 39 1, 1663 30

AC11 I Apr 1. 5 N-liarima Merchant Services 05104/ 2015 Merchant Fees  Alpir" 15 1, 7315 1 G 1, 736,116

ACI I Apr 15 Authorlze. Net 05/ 04/ 2015 Merchant Fees lin- Store & Online .- Alpir' 15 47 49 47,49

ACII I Alpir 1.5 Blueffin Payment Systems 05/ 04/ 2015 Merchant Stateirnent Fee -. Alpr'.15 9, 95 9. 195

3,71„4 PI) P1,50- 0001 County of San Diego 04/ 29/ 2015 PDIP150- 000.1. Broadway I ofts - CEQA 5501: 00

37. 1. 5 38551 A Aaron Lock & IKey 04/ 29/ 2015 IRe Key Fire Staticin Offices 242 00, 24Z 0o

3 '1716 B8701. A -Pot Rentals 04/ 29/ 20:1. 5 Poirtal:nle Restroom IR, enital 4/ g/ 1. 5- 5/ 7/ 15 11. 32 20 1.32 20

Y717 8107 Air"rek 04/ 29/ 20'.15 City Hall Duct Cleaning 4, 2510. 00 4,,2501100

37.18 Alpr29 1.5 Airyneiricaini AsIphalt & Concrete, Uric 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business 11 ic Renewal Oveirlpyrnt/ Arneirican Asphalt 44. 100 44. 00

37. 1,97/.1/ 15- 6/ 30/ 1,6 American Public WorksAssociation 04/ 29/ 2015 AP WA Memhership Dues- Bell, James 7/ 1./ 1,5 6/ 30/ 16 4108, 00 408, 1010

3720, 1. 000675 AutoZone, Inc 04/ 29/ 201.5 Battery - Hustler Mower 35 5,21 3', x., 5;2. 

3„721. 608768 9 BY' s Ii einitalls 04/ 29/ 2,015 Propane 26.' 4 216, 46

372,2 Uri .3/ 1/ 15 Burkett, Teirry 04/ 29/ 2,015 Uniform Allowance Burkett 3/ 15/ 1. 5 333. 33 33333

3, 23 May' 15 California I) ental Network Inc 04/ 29/ 2015 Deinital Insurance Ma7' J.5 10, ' i 3 7E',00

37, 24 ACSERC- 2/ 15 City of Chula Vista 04/ 29/ 2015 After Hours Calls- 02/ 15/ 15 1. 5u 783, 28

ACSEIRC 3/ 2.16 After Houirs Calls- 03/ 26/ 15 195 82

ACSERC- 3/ 28 After Hours Calls 03/ 28/ 15 1. 

ACKIRC 3/ 31 After Hou irs Ca IIs,,,. 3/ 31/ 1. 5 195 ,, 82

2, 115” 1. 3066 City of El Cajon 04/ 29/ 2015 Overtime Refirn1buir- seirnent Sirnylie 3/ 14/ 15 1. 29027 111, 290. 2”? 

1726 2325 Clark Telecom & Electric Iric 04/ 29/ 201.5 Street I.Jght Repairs- Mar" 15 544314 2, 0; 7i 20

2326 Street 11 ' glht Maintenance- Mar"13 111. 3 x. 33

2327 Street 11 ight Repairs - IPolle Knock Down 2/ 1. 5/ 1. 5 1, 35! 3, 53

37, 27 Ajpr29 1. 5 Co' s Traffic Controll, firic 04/ 2,9/ 203. 5 Refund/ Busliness I ic IRene wall Overpyrnt/ Co' s" firaffic 76, 1010 716. 010, 

3 )l 2 B CA71.909 County of 0 -Wastewater Managerneinit 04/ 29/ 2015 Trans1portation & CapiW Replacement Charges- IFY13- 14 5, 854 00 5, 9,54, 100

372. 3 201502497 Courity of San l') iego/ Ass essoir/ flecoirdeir/ Clo 04/ 29/ 20' 1. 5 Recording Services- IMair" 115 6, 00 6, 010

373' 10 Apr19 15 Cox Comirnuinications 04/ 29/ 2015 Phone Service 2873 Skyline 4/ 19/ 1. 5 5/ 1.8/ 15 209. 14 201914



3 X3: 111. 11" 5 203 DMV 04/ 29/ 2015 Off Highway Veh Registration - Green Sticker -' 09 Kawk 52, 00 52.. 00

3732 4/ 13- 16/ 15 Esgil Corporation 04/ 29/ 2015 75% Building Fees- 4/ 13/ 15- 4/ 16/ 15 5, 537. 73 37, 157. 99

4/ 20- 23/ 15 75% Building Fees- 4/ 20/ 15- 4/ 23/ 15 31, 620026

3733 51221 Ew Truck & Equipment Co Inc,, 04/ 29/ 2015 Vehicle Repairs - LGPW# 32 446, 99 446.99

3734 Apr29 15 Ideal Plumbing & Heating 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business Lic Renewal Overpyrnt/ ldeal Plurribing 40, 00 4000

3735 Apr29 15 Lemon Grove Health Associates, LLC 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business Lic Renewal Overpymt/ LG Health Associates 28400 284,00

3736 r2915 Mc Allister Institute for Train 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Bus License Exempt/ McAlister Institute 40000 40. 00

3737 Apr29 15 Mt Vernon Lemon Grove LLC 04/ 29/ 2015 R a fu nd/ De p os 1 t/ MtVe rnon- LG/ 701 2 & 7024 Mt Vernon 675. 05 675- 005

3738 1 X614092 Neogov Finance 04/ 29/ 2015 Job Announcement - Administrative Analyst 1/ 30/ 15 175. 00 350. 00

INVI4476 Job Announcement - P/ T Engineering 3/ 25/ 15 175-000

3739 5144142 Omega Industrial Supply Inc.. 04/ 29/ 2015 and Sanitizer, Heavy Duty Hand Towels 87931 879. 31

3740 118225 Orange Commercial Credit- Best Tire 04/ 29/ 2015 Flat Repair 15. 00 15x00

3741 Jul- Dec14 Ott, Manie 04/ 29/ 2015 REISSUE- Retiree Health Benefits- July 2014 December 2014 830. 22 830 22

3742 Apr29 15 Pacific Home Works 04/ 29/ 2015 Ref u nd/ B usi n ess LIC Re newa I Ove rpy m t/ Pa ci fi c Horne Wo rks 50.00 50. 00

3743 3010205743 Parkhouse Tire Inc 04/ 29/ 2015 Vehicle Repairs - Tr k4 32 314. 20 48083

3010205824 Vehicle Repairs - Trk$l 32 166,63

3744 65414 Penske Ford 04/ 29/ 2015 Oil & Filter Change -' 14 Ford F550 47, 40 47-40

3745 Apr' 15 PLIC- SBD Grand Island 04/ 29/ 2015 Dental Insurance - Apr' 15 4, 196. 32 4, 19632

3746 Apr29 15 Quality Home Renovators 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business Lic Renewal Overpyrnt/ Quality Home Renovators 4600 46„ 00

3747 30460505 RCP Block & Brick, Inc, 04/ 29/ 2015 Concrete Mix 8®4 41

3748 L0401201 SD Sports Medicine and Family Health Cent 04/ 29/ 2015 Medical Examinations 1, 720000 1, 720,00

3749 0252852 SCS Engineers 04/ 29/ 2015 Soil Excavation, Transportation & Disposal - Main St Prop- ar' 15 10, 46750 10, 467. 50

3750 Apr24 15 SDG& E 04/ 29/ 2015 3225 Olive- 3/ 23/ 15- 4/ 22/ 15 72, 07 372. 88

Apr24 15 35001/ 2 Main 3/ 23/ 15- 4/ 22/ 15 236485

Apr24 15 8119 Broadway- 3/ 23/ 15- 4/ 22/ 15 63, 96

3 ' 51 FSA# 1 2014 Sessom, Mary 04/ 29/ 2015 FSA# 1 2014 Reimbursement - Sessorn 4/ 15/ 15 579. 48 579.48

3752 Apr15 Standard Insurance Company 04/ 29/ 2015 Long Term Disability Insurance - Apr' 15 1, 735, 58 1, 7.35 58

3 7: 53 281. 0 T- an Traffic Supply 04/ 29/ 2015 Stop Legend - El Prado/ San Pasqual, White Paint 674. 08 674x08

3'754 Apr29 15 Thamer, Daoud 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Diversion Deposit / Thamer, Daoud/ CD5- 0016 1, 25000 1, 25000

3755 Apr29 15 The Giant Hamburger 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business Lic Renewal Overpymt/ The Giant Hamburger 13, 00 13, 00

3756 Apr29 15 Vanselow, Lisa 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ 2 Dog Licenses anselo r, Lisa 70-000 70, 00

1757 9743872085 Verizon Wireless 04/ 29/ 2015 City Phone Charges 3/ 13/ 15- 4/ 12/ 15 61115 613, 15

37"5'8 70730842 Vulcan Materials 04/ 29/ 2015 Asphalt 1053 4 828, 07

70733373 Asphalt 8856

70738691 Asphalt 150- 083

70738692 Asphalt 187, 21

70742633 Asphalt 77. 39

70747323 Asphalt 12802

70749783 Asphalt 9022

3715119 Apr29 15 Walter Anderson Plumbing, Inc. 04/ 29/ 2015 Refund/ Business Lic Renewal Overpymt/ Walter Anderson Plum bing1910u1010 9000

3. 6601 751. 198, 271. Waxle Sanitary Supply 04/ 29/ 2015 Cleaning Supplies 2P. 1, 43 08 2, 14308

3761. FSA# 1 2015 Wilson, Christopher 04/ 29/ 2015 FSANI 2015 Reimbursement - Wilson 4/ 22/ 15 245, 416 343, 54

Uni- 4/ 3/ 15 Uniform Allowance - Wilson 4/ 3/ 15 98 078



37,62

716 3

17164

3765

3766

3767

3768

3769

3770

3771.. 

3772

om

3774

3775

3776

3-77-7

3778

55383 Aritheirin Blue Cross EAP 05/ 06/ 20.1. 5 Employee A ,sista nc IPirograrn May' 15 165 ,,00 165, 00

Alpir,2215 AT& T 05/ 06/ 2015 AT& T High Speed Internet Max Plus 4/ 23/ 15- 5/ 22/ 15 74.00 74.00

Ajpr29' 15 Cox Communications 05/ 06/ 2015 Co mrn u n Ity Ce nter 11 intern et Svc 4/ 30/ 15- 5/ 29/ 1, 5 75. 00 2, 92639

Alpir- 291. 5 Peg Circuit Svc 4/ 30/ 1. 5- 5/ 29/ 1, 5 2, 851, 39

4/ 27- 30/ 15 Esgil Coir poiratloin 05/ 06/ 2015 75% Building Fees,,, 4/ 27/ 15- 4/ 30/ 15 30, 902. 01 30, 902. 01

Ajpr27 1.5 Helix Water District 05/ 06/ 2015 Water Services 2/ 25/ 15 4/ 27/ 15 14, 71,142, 14, 71.142

19841 IHeirzog Contracting Corp,, 05/ 06/ 201- 5 Ceintrall Ave Extra Work - Install 5 " T" y1pe " E" Traffic Loops 5, 400, 00 5, 40000

43 Janazz, LILC 05/ 06/ 2015 Com1puterMalin teinance- 4/ 6/ 15, 4/ 7/ 15 375. 00 1, 759, 96

4 7 Coirnputeir Malimiteinance - 4/ 14/ 15, 4/ 15/ 15 475, 00

48 Computer Maintenance 4/ 20/ 15, 4/ 22/ 1.5 609. 96

50 Computer Maintenance 4/ 27/ 15 300, 00

1, 87852 Ninyo & Moore 05/ 06/ 2015 Valencia finspection thru Mar 201.5- San Altos 6,97050 6, 970 50

1, 31.8- 003 Precision Concrete Cutfimig 05/ 06/ 201.5 Shaved Concrete Community Center IFir,oint Entrance 375, 00 375x00

4708 IRalpIdScale Inc. 05/ G5/ 2015 Virtual 1-- iosting 4/ 30/ 15 1, 666, 63 1, 666.63

180617 SD East County Charn1ber of Commerce 05/ 06/ 2 : I,5 IFiirst 1:: r-iday Breakfast Event - Couricillimernber Mendoza 20, 00 1. 40x00

18061. 8 First Friday Breakfast Charn1ber 11 laison J Jones, May - Dec 20: 15 12 00

5610004458 Siemens Industry Inc. 05/ 06/ 2,01. 5 Traffic Signal Maiintenaince Mar' 15 1, 221, 00 2, 115 09

5620004454 Traffic Respoinse Call Outs - Mar' 15 89309

IMay5 15 Sout1hierin State Insurance, lirm, 05/ 06/ 203. 5 IRefund/ Bus 11 ic RinwIl overpyrnt/ So State Insuiraroc e 163.00 1. 6100

May5 1. 5 The Good I ife Tatoo Sho 1p 05/ 06/ 2015 Refund/ Bus 11 ic IRrnw Il Overlpyrnt/ Good Life Tattoo 84,,00 84. 00

7925151- 3 Tirugreen I andcare 05/ 06/ 2015 11 aindscalpe Maintenairme Alpr415 9, 44-7. 00 9, 44-7,00

4201.50379 Underground Service Alert 05/ 06/ 2015 New "T' icket Charges - Alpir".1- 5) 67, 50 67x50

Alpr28 15 Va n ta ge lPoi int T' ra insfer Age irits- 45 7 05/ 06/ 2011. 5 ICMA Deferred Compensation IRay Period Eriidiriig 4/ 28/ 1. 5 28037 28037

261, 59,81. 261, 653. 81



LEMON GROVE ;CITY COUNCIL' 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date May 19, 2015

Dept. : Public Work

Item Title: :: Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower

Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving the levy and collection of assessments within

the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal

Year 2015- 2016 and directing the city Clerk to file the levy with the county of San Diego

Auditor and controller on or before August 10, 2015. 

Item Summary: 

The Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 was created in

September 1997, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972. The

District includes 45 properties. 

The engineer' s report was presented and approved by the City Council on September 2, 1997. In

order to pay for maintenance of the landscaped areas, the assessment may be adjusted annually
by the greater of 3 percent or the percentage increase of the Consumer Price Index ( CPI), within a

maximum cap of $335 per parcel. 

Staff recommends a 3 percent increase in the assessment for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016. The staff

report ( Attachment A) details the reasons and the proposed budget for the Wildflower Landscape
Maintenance Assessment District. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The FY 2015- 2016 budget anticipates revenues of $ 9, 204 and expenditures totaling $ 7, 700. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

IEJ Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution

Negative Declaration

I Mitigated Negative Declaration

10 Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 
r - 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 1. D

Mtg. Date Mav 19, 2915
u

Item Title: Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower

Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016

Staff Contact: Mike James, Public Works Director

Discussion: 

On September 2, 1997, the City Council created the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape

Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 ( District), pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping
and Lighting Act of 1972. At that meeting, an engineer' s report detailed the need for an

assessment in order to pay for the maintenance of the landscaped areas. The District includes

46 properties located along both sides of Gold Lake Road, Blue Lake court, Long Lake court, 

and Green Lake court. 

Each year, the city council may increase the annual assessment by the greater of 3 percent or
the percentage increase of the consumer Price Index ( CPI), with a maximum cap of $335 per

parcel. As reported in March 2015 by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor

and Statistics, the CPI for All Urban consumers in the San Diego area increased by 1. 3% 

during the prior 12 months. 

As established in Fiscal Year 2014- 2015 ( FY 2014- 15), District staff recommends building the
District' s reserve fund up to its established goal of $ 11, 550. This goal equals one year of

District total expenditures plus 40 percent of operational expenditures anticipated in one- year. 

The benefits of establishing this reserve account will accomplish two goals: 1) It will prevent

any cost overruns or property assessment defaults from negatively impacting the city's General
Fund budget; 2) It will establish a reserve balance that would adequately fund any unforeseen
major infrastructure repairs or utility cost increases during the year. 

For the reasons detailed above, staff recommends a 3 percent increase in the assessment from

194.23 to $ 200. 04 during FY 2015--16, which equals the greater of 3 percent or the percentage

increase of the CPI. The following District budget was prepared to reflect staff' s

recommendation. 



Attachment A

FY 2015- 16 Budget Descriptions Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 5, 000

Revenue

Annual Assessment Revenue 9,200

Expenditure

Salaries -- Regular 3, 900) 

Benefits 1, 000) 

Contract Services 1, 700) 

SDG& E 1 Helix Water 1, 000) 

Transfer to City for Admin & operations 100) 

Ending Fund Balance

f .. 

6,500

At the end o................................... FY 2015- 16, staff anticipates a surplus of $ 1, 500, which will increase the fund
balance to $ 6, 500. The District will meet its reserve goal of $ 11, 550 in four years if the District

continues to experience similar surpluses. 

Staff will continue to monitor the fiscal stability of the District each year, paying close attention to
the expenditures made and the need to adjust the annual assessment in order to safeguard the
District' s fiscal health. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the city council adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving the levy
and collection of assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance

Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 and directing the city clerk to file the levy
with the county of San Diego Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2015. 

ME



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2915 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS WITH THE LEMON

GROVE WILDFLOWER LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 97- 1 FOR

FISCAL YEAR 2915-2916

WHEREAS, on September 2, 1997, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 1805, 

declaring the results of a property owner protest proceeding held in the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscaping Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 ( District); and

WHEREAS, the engineer' s report for the District, approved by Resolution No. 1804, on

file with the City Clerk, gives a full and detailed description of the proposed assessments upon

assessable lots and parcels of land within the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the assessment against parcels of land
with the District for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2015 and ending June 30, 2016, to

pay the expenses of operating, maintaining and servicing landscaping and appurtenant facilities
located within public places in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a 3 percent increase in the annual

assessment will be needed for Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that th6 City Council of the City of Lemon

Grove, California :hereby: 

1. Sets the assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2013- 2014 in the Lemon Grove Wildflower

Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 at $ 200.05 per parcel; and

2. Directs the City Clerk to file the levy with the County of San Diego Auditor and

Controller on or before August 10, 2015. 

5M



LEMON GROVE (CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 1. E

Mtg. Date M 19', 2,0#1
Dept. lic Works, 

Item Title: " On -Call Restoration Services Agreements; 

Staff Contact: ; Mike James, Public Works Director

Recommendation: 

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving professional services agreements

Attachment B — Exhibit 1 and 2) with Restoration Management Company and 911

Restoration of San Diego for on- call restoration services in the City of Lemon Grove. 

Item Summary: 

In order to adequately manage emergencies that arrive involving the City' s infrastructure, 

professional restoration management companies are recommended to be pre- screened and on- 

call. Staff proposes entering into agreements for on- call restoration services with two companies: 

Restoration Management Company and 911 Restoration of San Diego. 

The staff report ( Attachment A) details the procurement process, qualifications, and special

services provided by both companies. 1. 

Fiscal Impact: 

The amount currently allocated for restoration services in the FY 2015-2016 General Fund and

Sanitation District budgets are $ 10, 000 and $ 20,000, respectively; no additional funding is

requested at this time. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

None Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Resolution

Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting

1- 



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE ICITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT

Item No. 11. E

Mtg. Date IMay 19, 2015

Item Title: On -Call Restoration Services Agreement

Staff Contact: * Mike James, Public Works Director

Background: 

The City of Lemon Grove maintains over 74, 000 square feet of facilities, 67 miles of sewer main

lines, and one lift station in the City. In most instances, when an emergency occurs that

requires restoration services ( e. g. sewer overflow or a water leak in a City -owned building) the

City mitigates the problem by declaring an emergency per the City' s purchase policy and calls a
local company for repairs. Rather than relying on the nearest company that may or may not
have the most applicable experience to respond, staff recommends establishing a pre -qualified
list of companies that have the knowledge, skills and abilities to address each emergency as it
arises. An on- call restoration services program should include: 

24 hours, 7 days a week response capabilities, 

Professionally trained staff, 

Ability to prepare timely and accurate reports, 

Local office in San Diego County, and

A single point of contact for all calls for service. 

The primary purpose of establishing an on- call list is to pre -qualify companies to perform a

series of activities. This will minimize response times, establish cost estimates in advance of

events occurring, and minimize paperwork to be completed when an unforeseen event occurs. 

Historically, the City has not created an on- call restoration services list but rather relied on City
staff and various restoration contractors to perform emergency spill mitigation activities as they
occurred throughout the City. During Fiscal Year 2014-2015, funds were allocated to manage

restoration services as needed within City maintained areas from the Sanitation District

20,000) and the City' s Facilities Division ($ 10, 000). During this period, no funds were

expended by the Sanitation District or the City for said services. 

The remaining portion of this staff report details the procurement process and qualifications

provided by each contractor. 

Discussion: 

On October 20, 2014, the City advertised a request for qualifications ( RFQ) for professional

restoration services firms in order to establish an on- call list. The City advertised the RFQ

through the eBidboard and through the City' s website. Two companies responded to the RFQ

with statements Restoration Management Company ( RMC) and 911 Restoration of San Diego

911 Restoration). The scope of work included projects like fire & smoke damage restoration, 

environmental services, and specialty services such as complete content restoration and

electronic restoration. 

3- 



Attachment A

Staff evaluated both statements, performed reference checks, and concluded that both RMC
and 911 Restoration met the requirements stated in the RFQ. 

Qualifications and Special Services of RMC

RMC has been in business since 1985. It currently has 11 offices located throughout the State
of California, with a local office in San Diego. It employees 275 employees that specialize in the

following areas: 

Fire & Smoke Damage Restoration

o Corrosion Control

o Equipment Protection

o Structural Cleaning
o HVAC Cleaning
o odor & Soot Removal

Water Damage Restoration

o Water Removal

o Structural Drying
o Desiccant Dehumidification

o Thermal Imaging Analysis

Specialty Services
o Complete Content Restoration

o Electronic Restoration

o Vital Document Recovery
o Secure Site Services

Abatement

o Asbestos/ lead removal

o Mold Removal

o Controlled Demolition

Climate Control

o Temporary Power
o Temporary HVAC

In San Diego County, RMC has recently worked with the cities of San Diego, National City, La

Mesa, and the Grossmont Unified School District. RMC has worked with the City of Lemon
Grove to mitigate a sewer line pipe collapse at the Senior Center. RMC has numerous

certifications and affiliations with professional associations that staff believes qualify it to

manage any type of restoration need that the City may encounter. 

Qualifications and Special Services of 911 Restoration

911 Restoration was established in 2007. It is a complete restoration company specializing in

professional cleanup and repair from water, smoke and mold damage. Currently employing 10

staff members, 911 Restoration is a Federal and State certified small business that is based out
of San Diego. Services provided by 911 Restoration include: 

Water Extraction and Structure Drying, 

in



Attachment A

Mold Remediation, 

Smoke and Fire Damage, 

Board Up Services, 
odor Control, 

Air Duct Cleaning, and

Restoration and Reconstruction to Pre -Loss Condition, 

911 Restoration has recently worked for the following government and commercial entities: 

National Training Center Fort Irwin, United States Department of Veteran Affairs - Los Angeles

Hospital, United State Coast Guard Base Alameda, Fashion Valley Mall, and Best Buy. 911

Restoration has certifications and affiliations with professional associations that staff believes

qualify it to manage any type of restoration need that the City may encounter. 

Key Points of the Agreement

The proposed contract will allow the City to receive: 

A three year agreement with established costs for services, 

2417 availability for emergency call outs, and

Free consulting services regarding restoration activities or questions that City staff may
have. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving
agreements ( Attachment B — Exhibit 1 and 2) with Restoration Management Company and
911 Restoration for on- call restoration services in the City of Lemon Grove. 

Attachment A - 5- 



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2015 - 

RESOLUTION OF THE: CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING AGREEMENTS WITH RESTORATION MANAGEMENT COMPANY AND 911

RESTORATION OF SAN DIEGO FOR ON- CALL RESTORATION SERVICES

1N THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

WHEREAS, the City maintains over 74, 000 square feet of facilities, 67 miles of sewer

main lines, and one lift station; and

WHEREAS, the City has not formally adopted an on- call restoration services program

but rather relied on City staff and professional contractors to perform as needed restoration

services; and

WHEREAS, an on- call restoration services response program is essential for ensuring a
timely, safe and professional response to any emergency or routine restoration call for service; 
and

WHEREAS, Restoration Management Company and 911 Restoration of San Diego have

agreed to the professional agreement terms as presented in ( Exhibit 'I and 2); and

WHEREAS, staff believes that both Restoration Management Company and 911

Restoration of San Diego provide special services and maintain a professional training standard
that can manage any restoration service need required by the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon

Grove, California hereby: 

1. Approves an agreement ( Exhibit 1) with Restoration Management Company for on- 
call restoration services in the City of Lemon Grove; and

2. Approves an agreement ( Exhibit 2) with 911 Restoration of San Diego for on- call

restoration services in the City of Lemon Grove; and

3. Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute and manage all contractual

documents. 

7ma, 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND

RESTORATION MANAGEMENT COMPANY

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, 

by and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the " CITY"), and

RESTORATION MANAGEMENT COMPANY, a professional restoration company ( the

CONTRACTOR"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide on- call

restoration management services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is qualified by
experience and ability to perform the services desired by the CITY, and the CONTRACTOR is

willing to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS

FOLLOWS

1. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to engage

the CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter
set forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein. 

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will be

performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the CONTRACTOR. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform routine and

emergency mitigation and restoration services as needed. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all work related to this agreement

and shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized in advance

by the CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall appear at meetings as needed to keep staff advised of
the progress on any project. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time

to time reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under
this Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith

and confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the

compensation associated with said change in services. In accordance with the City's Purchase
Policy, no single project will exceed $ 30, 000 without prior authorization from the City council. 

3. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. The community
Services Superintendent and Public Works Superintendent are hereby designated as Project

Coordinators for the CITY and will monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement. The

CONTRACTOR shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR. 

thereby is designated as the Project Director for the

CONTRACTOR. 

4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT, The compensation for the

CONTRACTOR shall be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings

shall include labor classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The

total cost for all work described on pages 9- 12 shall not exceed thirty thousand dollars and zero
cents ($ 30,000. 00) ( the Base amount) without prior written authorization from the City Council. 
Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty (30) days from receipt

of invoice, provided that work is accomplished consistent with the scope of work as determined

by and in the sole discretion of the CITY. 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all documents, papers, employee time

sheets, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make

such materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement

and for three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by

the CITY and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested. r

5. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. This agreement will expire on June 30, 2018. If

a project runs past the expiration date, the work will continue until all work has been completed

by the CONTRACTOR and accepted by the CITY. 

6. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. The Memoranda, Reports, 

Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR

for this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with
respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or

any phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the

right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared

under this agreement, except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which

authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of

the CITY, execute any further document(s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer. 

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, assign, 

transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR' S written work

product for the CITY' s purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives and disclaims any
residual rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual
property and artistic works. 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications

prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under Section 14
but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to
the CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was

expressly agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the performance of this

Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or

joint venturers with one another. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR' S

employees are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or

privileges of the CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemploy- 
ment, or workers' compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONTRACTOR and the

CONTRACTOR' S employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement
to the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and

competence of the CONTRACTOR and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY. 

Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as
many employees, or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the proper
and efficient performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR with its

subcontractor( s) shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this

Agreement. 

8. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any
control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR's employees

except as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR expressly agrees not to represent that the

CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR' s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner

agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its

agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that
the CONTRACTOR' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this

Agreement. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAIN, The CONTRACTOR, in the performance

of the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes
and regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON

GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement. 

19. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that it

has all licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally
required to practice its profession. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that the

CONTRACTOR shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of
this Agreement, any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR
to practice its profession.. 

11. STAN DARD OF CARE. 

A. The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall

perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members
of the CONTRACTOR' S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in

11- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

similar locations. The CONTRACTOR shall take all special precautions necessary to protect

the CONTRACTOR' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the
nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the

CONTRACTOR warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five ( 5) years

preceding, been debarred by a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or

litigation proceedings concerning the CONTRACTOR' s professional performance or the

furnishing of materials or services relating thereto. 
C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique products, 

treatments, processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the
CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, 

when no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the

CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, 
materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are

reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence
under this sub -paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased
costs that result from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable
substitute within a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, 
when not specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. 

12. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, 
religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical

condition. The CONTRACTOR will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed
without regard to their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, 

national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include but not be

limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment

advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for

training, including apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places

available to employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting
forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to
the CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the CONTRACTOR to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall treat all such information
as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its
own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The

foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that ( i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of
the CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is

already in the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) 

has been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by a third party, but only to
the extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third
party; or ( v) is disclosed according to law or court order. 

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or

other results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the
prior written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall

comply with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation. 

12- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this

condition, pursuant to the provisions of Section 14. 

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 

recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and

subcontractors in the performance of services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR' S duty to
indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to
persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence
or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. 

CONTRACTOR' s indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this Agreement. The CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any payment, attorney' s
fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the

CITY 's self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the

purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of
this Agreement. 

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION., The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the

provisions of the Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Acts of the State of California, 
the applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the California Government Code and all

amendments thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts or laws applicable; and shall

indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its officers, and employees from and against all

claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and judgments of every nature and

description, including reasonable attorney' s fees and defense costs presented, brought or

recovered against the CITY or its officers, employees, or volunteers, for or on account of any
liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by reason of any work to be performed by
the CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. 

15. INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase

and maintain, and shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies: 
El A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum

limits of $1, 000,000 per occurrence. 

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during
the performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000,000 combined single

limit per accident. Such automobile insurance shall include non -owned vehicles. 

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000

combined single limit per occurrence, covering all bodily injury and property damage arising out
of its operation under this Agreement. 

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR' s employees. 
E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers, 

employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to

any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written notice

to the CITY of cancellation or material change. 

F. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker' s compensation policies, 
shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. 

M



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

G. If required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than

occurrence" form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years

after expiration of the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement. 

H. Any aggregate insurance limits must apply solely to this Agreement. 
1. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a

current policy holder's alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII

according to the current Best' s Ivey Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is
approved by the CITY. 

J. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that

these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY. 
If the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all
times during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided

herein. 

17. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from
any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the

representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then

in that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of- 
court settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable
costs and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

For purposes of determining who is to be considered the prevailing party, it is stipulated
that attorney's fees incurred in the prosecution or defense of the action or suit shall not be

considered in determining the amount of the judgment or award. Attorney' s fees to the

prevailing party if other than the CITY shall, in addition, be limited to the amount of attorney' s
fees incurred by the CITY in its prosecution or defense of the action, irrespective of the actual

amount of attorney' s fees incurred by the prevailing party. 
18. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, 

or the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego, 
California, in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration

Association ( the "AAA"). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 

19. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by
the CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30 -day' s written notice to the
CONTRACTOR. During said 30 -day period the CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in

accordance with this Agreement. The Contractor may terminate this agreement upon thirty (30) 

days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its obligations
under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices. 

B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the

event of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City' s satisfaction within a
ten ( 10) day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONTRACTOR in

connection with the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to

perform services as directed by the CITY. 
C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of

Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein. 

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps, 

Drawings, Pians, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR, whether

paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and

the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work

14- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages
caused the CITY by the CONTRACTOR' s breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written
material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6. 

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: 
1) the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR; ( 2) a reorganization of the

CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business

name or change in business status of the CONTRACTOR. 

20. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder

shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express

or the like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or

sent by ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally
delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by
overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed

by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the

State of California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like

facility regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by telegraph or

cable, when delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or ( v) if given by telex, 
telecopy, facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other

communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons: 

To the CITY: City of Lemon Grove
Public Works Department

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945- 1701

To the CONTRACTOR: Restoration Management Company
8340 Camino Santa Fe. Unit A

San Diego, CA 92121

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in

this Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, 

demand, request or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other

communication sent by cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty- 
eight ( 48) hours by letter mailed or delivered as specified in this Section. 

21. ,CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS. 

During the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not perform services of any kind for
any person or entity whose interest's conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON

GROVE. The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or

material for the project in which the CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either

direct or indirect, without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONTRACTOR shall at all

times comply with the terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest
Code. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official

position to influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the

CONTRACTOR has a financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The

CONTRACTOR represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require
it to disqualify itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY. 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

R If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of
the Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE conflict of Interest Code. 

Specifically, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

1. Go to www.fppc. ca.gov

2. Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

3. Completely fill out the form
4. Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or

expenses the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the

CONTRACTOR. 

22. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this

Agreement is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date

shall automatically be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a

Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday. 
B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the

same instrument. 

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this

Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, 

and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or
any provision hereof. 

D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the

execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or

obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 
E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby

incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes. 
F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
G. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not

operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 
H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the State of California. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations

and communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as

to the subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. 

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to

the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal

bargaining strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and

negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the

opportunity to consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors

as such party has deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this
Agreement, ( iv) each party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this

Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and



Attachment B — Exhibit 1

the rendering of such advice, and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, 
or any portions hereof, or any amendments hereto. 



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date
and year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE RESTORATION MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Corporation — signatures of two corporate

officers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole proprietorship — one signature) 

By. 
Graham Mitchell

City Manager
Title) 

Date) 

By. 
James Lough

Citv Attornev
Title) 

Date) 

18- 

By. 
Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name) 

Title) 

Date) 



11V-1111 MI

calculations are based on an 8 hour workday, Monday through Friday. All hours worked beyond 8 hours

Mon-daiy. through Friday will be considered overtime. Overtime hours will be calculated at 1. 5 times the regular rate, All

hours wo* ed on Saturday will be considered overtime for the first 8 hours and double time thereafter,, Sundayand

II will bec6l,, t,,J ted,4121jr1l" Atoie!L''! T# 41, f," se I'lled Lite, 

mobjjlzatlkanorj n, fee a r e luention - — ------- 

ded 10LIN. www

bet il, sgq( o,; s 9 Lo w) 43I , , d, 0. ij 11 CIO

Thir,; Schedule of F".,. s islsiubjeI ILS ch-airige wifiriout n1I 1:: o. caWomiers, u1nider an -aginnuaU agireprTileinil, lKirty I days w16fien inotiicwiillQ be providect, 

5W



Attachment B - Exhibit 1

JRestoration

aMana,:
gewei

Equipment Li!60111r
MOO 0

WNNkIIN@Irrinrinrinrinilrii "    fYl TNSfrlllr^-. ""®; IIJIN® 

I

6.. '. WYMM u'uuw' Wu wwuw wuwwvwguku m

i

wmwmro riM ' Nnf/ NnIIMM .... ...... YIYIYIYIYwfRfRfRfRf@9' dHYPoWrWWN Y1YNYlYIYIYIYIYlYlY1 V• ugI4XYWIAWN) 

PON,i

Dll
r

wyµ, uaWrW maae , 

Y

ryrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry

AC - 1 Ton
unu mmmn ! w./ A f NM9YMW. .... ...,... ....

uwwww i ' Auu

xmDA ' 
nw w w

S12,6,0
n w w wNNNAMY, 

Radio- 2 w .......... ...... 
ffff , 

r0
HIW rjvr , 

wwwww

DA 27. 50 Pallet Jack sA« 
mmr I

Airless 5praver
m' rr. 

DA fl 45. 00 Power Cable - 5(l' 
wwww.. mmmm - 

DA
mm- wpMef... f msW rf

3. 0o' 

floor, r stWrrr) 
m mm  , . mm mm

DA 95, 00
61' rEI

Power Cable - Tail
mmmmrmmmm  , 

DA
f WWW  

4. 00

RArrmeRrv, t.rlA Nr Vlomw .......•, mniMM' „•,„•,„•, w mm m•* 

DA
r. w.. r W. ivfJ« n, a; a; mar hhwy;•---=---•°' 

3250
ire

Power, D[ tribi,,O'Jori B)= 
xmmn,...., mn. nmm mmmmmmmmmmmmm,.. m: 

DA

Blower., Industrial - 400x0 CFM DA 300, 00 re / Eajr ' W mfier w

DA 13ilo0
A.. _ 

N tN IIS  1 r l

4 

DA 1W2.50 

Rmmmmmm,,,, 

Pressurizede rzeld Stearn Meaner DA 5',04) 

O,, f ' e"60i, . .
Y Y... ry ............ 

40.00 Pum Sprayer
mm. ......... 

DA 5.00 »
rr

Compressor
WmmmllmJ JSwµwyupvvvvYYYY_ row ... 

rrmfifYWIWmm'+" w Ln DA

uu'
mvvvvrta wuua „ ww: w.. y(. Ww 38.

55 , wmw  
J Sander - 

4 1/ 2" w/ NEPA attachmentf
DA

f , 
f

tm

mm

rl ifw m
rtrvs, ''

tr, E 0f 1 R1' t'r 
r  ..... 

IDA

85. 00 r
Saw - 

Circular fSkilsaw) ww  ,
w-.. , w , w w .. ..... >bm....... DA

f fffffffff

12-

101 r11i1!

Pir
t 2( 01 t" 240t` ll am - - , 
DA

125. 00 , m
Saw - 

Reciprocatinq ( Sawzall mmmmmmmm .......
mmm  DA

15. 00 Dehumidifier

Desiccant 150 00 ...  .. 
DA

m . 
mm mm, 125

00 0
5aw

Specialty r aw -.Y . 
r i

D wywall [

Kett) 
wwww - 

ffh# j DA fIfIPWWW, 
3 ,,

00 mmmm... ,
mNmN,  1 ' , ,

m 1° f r, r 11te 1600
dnYmmrmmmmrm FN; 4ruuru Y 9.. mdr iwmww' w' w. wvmu' Y+ Y

w' m' m'xwimwuwuwwww, w, uww .... ,-,.. .. ^•. uu

DA
i; n mm mmmmmm m aFINIrNlNPI19HIrYD1 WNW

3750 Soda Blasting Machine
w'ruuwmmwmueuw' rwwwwwwwwwiww

DA
1-1-1-1-1-1-1-1 w» w». YYMmm 

48U0

ti',  r 1'  1 
r

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm nwrvwvN s1

DA
M. mm 

g50.
mmm ... rmrD ,r

Submersible Pump 2" 
µummmmsmmmnnmrnmmmmnnmmmmnnmrnnmrmrrnnmrnnmrm-r.

µ DA 1#31.

42 Dehumidifier - Desiccant 5000 DA 1.550. 00 Submersible Pump 3/ 4" DA 35.

00 DA 9. 00
Floor

r
Stripper). NNYNYNrv,

Y„ 
Dmmm .... 

N.. 250.
ao mmmmmrm

r i , Heat DA 174.

53

LTerminator mal
Foager w. wwwww w w ... m M 

M  DA 11ort
tmmmElectric Drillri Cardless l m... a --- 

mmmmmmmmm  . DA 12. 00 Ther ail Imac o  mere Thermal _ 
r I rvrvr. rvrr N> HI wwN N..

wwwwwwummWww DA A 225,.

00 DA 4.85.00p B DA 15.

00 rblr`' 
Card fwrmmwrNNNNNNNNNNN/ NNNrvwrarr9/ Ylwr r MEWs, au, c ermvrer rrardrti. uaa^ w mvwvevv rwJ'+ mua m. mmrmwm mm

wrvwwrvN
DA r>vNWJN} Iu

O",.. 300 Tool Box - Hiia, h
Tech mma7 wwwwirrcmmrrr

maraaaaarraaamuuuurrrww;vxsw su..ur mmrtmrturdau n.wu w»u: c

rwwwvvunrr
DA rt rurrrtrw

u 55.
00 m' mn

iai

IDIDmmm. 

r I", I tt t
Ito mm : MdpvMrnrWNNnV( MMdw, : ,,. ,. »   r:ws.' r '

a
Auwwv muwu nrt' smm'

m Turbo Vent f48"
1 mrvriuii eawwin' uw., n wwwwwwwwwwwwwwrvwx' wm'.. i uuuuuu m mmmFM

m
DA mnmmmmmnm m mmimt mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm 4mPoPPP 

W

mmmm
DA mm..:` 

WHI
R

f Turbo Ment (
Mini) mmmm. »» rrvry > If rooWw, o

M  
1 11ffld"

W DA 80.

00
DA I1-=---•--_ '

n 150.
00

www - Ultra
SonicA nmmmmnNfHhmif( INNWYNIIrlfWIJWIAm' Nl4„ weuww ^•^ u  p

umwi- 350.
00 wwm I,

ir0IlY1M yyyirywwurv uwraus. mwrmuwwmwwu. w' mmm wwwmnmmvnnmm , , iw W-» mmm a--•® r msmmmsmmb nmmmmmmmrm mn iONNNNY+

W Extraction unit - Truck Mount DA 540. 00 1n er Pole 18- 24ft DA t 
50

wwwwwwwww . _ r tlIottr`
r WN; Dr..fuwpumwuvuvuwyµrgrywwwwwwwwww nnmmmmmimmmmmmmnnn mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmAnnmmmmmmmmmmmmrvrnmmmmmmmmmmmmmmnnnnmmmmmmnnnmrmmrvnvwwWi("("( NIP

DADA
n---/ Ifffffffrlwvrvry l

V

IW

vim. uuuYl JWw` wPlluxvwxnuwwww ww. wWWWdW` nmvwwmNINNN." ww'. vuew.. vmuuu. m, ;' rmm  ry
rvrvJ. nmm mmrmmm rr rye remmmrrzmmmmnymdia* 

t 
u a, vr '.. 

tnWcl° ar 36 .. _, 
W ffimufffWXW NWHfYWH/ 1f19ifW// YJ/ WlNY11rWUkv' uwuwuJ 4YWw' m' w'. YwNw .' yw awwuu+uwwiw' wwwwowumu wmww

DA
uw Tlw XrW% Wrmmmmmnrmmrm

42. 00
mmmmmmmmnmmmmxNlNmnnra

Vacuum. NEPA
mwrwuuwuuuuuu mmMMM, f __. 

DA
TWBilII1rD91YH Rf'' Y. 

Plex Duct 6" 12" X 25' 
n. nmu. mmmm., ffi-, , mm , mm mmmmmmn   mmnmm,. 

DA
miri,=+.w... m. w., 

35: 00 rrrtHI f' 
mmmrnwNNrurawareeNNN wwwwwwNf, HIacrwilninininininwmwa' ww' r«««... w www ..... . 

DA 20,00

FlOx Dtict 14" rmm20'!' X 25' A! DA
M mmmmmW rt $ 

62. 00 
mm mm

vacuum LJ.ar ah„ t ..
ww MMRWrvW W;, m. mm m  ........-

mm mm 

DA
N 

9, 0

vnXmmmmnmmv rmmn f +<b. cao YNwwwm mii' Yi. rrr r w' 

DA
vm ffw^. SwNUNNNIu vWr b' aaPrTaawFW4} S. WWM P/ NJ

15.00 later Collector
IIIUNPN/ AIA1/ ONYY f1YY3/ I YNwmuu Nllw wnwiwramNDHIrY1J19HINWAYJL WwwwwwaWW:.. y iI

DA, 
muu. auuwuuuw µyyMlY^ J WIWNWV• wwe

S
e

3. 50
um u mimmmvmm........ 

Generator _ Portable DA 79.00 IA 1 2110
m. wmmwmmmmwwwnwwNM11MIM::..... WKWl0Yf0f1NNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNN9» IMiHIliHlkYklkiHlkY ,. .. .. .... ".: ru

56KWN N N 

01A, 
CP

x. NUNUNmmwuua. W. ur yuuwwww imnmmim mmmwmmm',. 

388. 00'Cenerator

WDYI ANNNNN

f mmmmm. " 

PommmmomYN^ D^ llmm mrym^ rmm^" IMr. I. 

tr p If t1f
L.- wwwmm .. mmm W A '. r»»»»»».. RPNnnMWWmm rrw

DA 6. 00' 
r,, .,rr,m, w

Dump Truck
ieuuuu „, , OflOff? WlH9N LNH8 .. m mmvwm Yu. : 

DA 250m00

nl
rmm

tI tit r D tl A... 2`.« 00 I forklift - 5000 lbW DA$ 2dd
t"tafl'id Gfftld

lir
DA 12. 50 vii W i° urMkr , 1   . A

w mmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

0. 00160- 00
r

jI ° lehrl tt "' 

mr. mr. mr A

DA

mm» 

375 00
mm  

m _ 

9  iMovin Truck 24
mwwwww mmmm f f N

5 00

HVAC Collector 5000
rv11 HIrYN iNrNNUYDYDYUIYVA 1WN1^, N^W. m' Nmwwwwuwwwwwwwwwuwwwmmmmuu umimwmxmn mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmvrvuvmmm.n rrsmm nnn rrronrrMX v

DA
wwwwwwrvWh' 6( L

225. 00
u

Passenger Van
4Wrv uNUNuury» yurywl ull..._ ...... mmmm. mmmmmmmmm rvi',' .. , vvvnyi Ngymuwuw

A
wFrrN « rrrrm4f rxUwuwuwuuuuuuuuwu

160,,00
arvrvrvrviwlry

mil

t tty rr-fi,t

mwNrn6mmmmmmmmnmmrmrKmtr
ir

NWW A A mmmmmmvm . rvremmi+ tin mnr. .. ewnuwwuawiwummwwwwwuwu . wmw+ vw., w.¢ w ramiMl, Memmm wmu' w' mwrwwwwm' mumamr wwwaa

230. 05
wrKWWswwu Vl

Service Van 
mmr,, 

iiW m. mn> h farfimr3vf„ 

DA
M

75.00DA

w 

R, ffm mr

mrDA
Tractor ( Semi) 

mmmmmm

DA

Ladder - A Frame A x5. 00 Trailer ( 14') 
mmmr.. 

DA 3+3. 00

Llp p^ ru.' Y r1rJ x( m mfi mmm WM
w fam.. 

A
rRnw mmm

10, 00
rv,,,,»,. m.„» Y», r w+,,, 

Trailer ( Flatbed) 
atavramuwdurw.4WlrYfr uruwv.uwmwum __. __.  . m mmmm.m. m.m ufrrrr Wurawwrvrlww nA« R

DA
hmw»>« Irrrrr,,.„ r. 

355.00
wwwwwwwwwwwwwwmmww

uNrvmm

Maiiiorn,ete r
uuu riwwww. uuummmmmm mmmmmm uuu / W,fY1W ........ 4ffi, f/ANININWiN% NWfXINf9WINNIWINH'++' R?; 4+,+'^ 

DA
uYPfPfPfPfJJIdJIJJIIJIYJIIJrWrYry> lMf :. mmm' mm' mneiww

S
o w o

20,,,00
uoww. wwa'ww uwwwww

1.

u..uu'

igI
Trailer 153' Restoration

iy1p.
mmJm1m mmmmmmmmmmmmmmnmmmmmmmmmn 6R

DA 525. 00

tec aiwe Air 1 Air Scrubber - 2000
f

DA

wpr/r 

2 00 tifltvm Vehicle r' F150J254 E150I250] DA 85 O[} 

500 DA 72, 50
r, 

rn ) Nater D as lJnit 14Box Truck'::. DA 95-00
f

Ozone Generator
mmmm. .

Generator
mm mm mmmm., mm,- w a ar mm' m' nm mm mir  w Rwu rm

DA
rr n r 

2OF3

20- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 2
AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AND

911 RESTORATION OF SAN DIEGO

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by
and between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the "CITY"), and 911

RESTORATION OF SAN DIEGO, a professional restoration company ( the "CONTRACTOR"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONTRACTOR to provide on- call

restoration management services. 

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONTRACTOR is qualified by
experience and ability to perform the services desired by the CITY, and the CONTRACTOR is

willing to perform such services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS

FOLLOWS: 

23. ENGAGEMENT OF CONTRACTOR. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the
CONTRACTOR and the CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set

forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein. 

The CONTRACTOR represents that all services required hereunder will be

performed directly by the CONTRACTOR or under direct supervision of the CONTRACTOR. 

24. SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONTRACTOR will perform routine and

emergency mitigation and restoration services as needed. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for all work related to this agreement and

shall not rely on personnel of the CITY for such services, except as authorized in advance by the
CITY. The CONTRACTOR shall appear at meetings as needed to keep staff advised of the
progress on any project. 

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONTRACTOR, from time to

time reduce or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this
Agreement. Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONTRACTOR agree to meet in good faith and

confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation

associated with said change in services. In accordance with the City' s Purchase Policy, no single

project will exceed $ 30, 000 without prior authorization from the City council. 



Attachment B — Exhibit 2

25. PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION. The Community Services

Superintendent and Public, Works Superintendent are hereby designated as Project Coordinators

for the CITY and will; monitor the progress and execution of this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR

shall assign a single Project Director to provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the
progress and execution of this Agreement for the CONTRACTOR. 

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm........................--- thereby is designated as the Project Director for the

CONTRACTOR. 

26. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT. The compensation for the CONTRACTOR

shall be based on monthly billings covering actual work performed. Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and also materials, if any. The total cost for all work

described on pages 9- 12 shall not exceed thirty thousand dollars and zero cents ($ 30,000.00) ( the

Base amount) without prior written authorization from the City Council. Monthly invoices will be

processed for payment and remitted within thirty ( 30) days from receipt of invoice, provided that

work is accomplished consistent with the scope of work as determined by and in the sole discretion
of the CITY. 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all documents, papers, employee time sheets, 

accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such materials

available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for three ( 3) 

years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the CITY and for

furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested. 

27. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT. This agreement will expire on June 30, 2018. If a

project runs past the expiration date, the work will continue until all work has been completed by
the CONTRACTOR and accepted by the CITY. 

28. DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIPP _OF DOCUMENTS,,. The Memoranda, Reports, 

Maps, Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR for

this Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with

respect to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or any
phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement. 

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONTRACTOR hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONTRACTOR thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right

to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under this

agreement, except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which authorization

shall not be unreasonably withheld. The CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of the CITY, execute

any further document( s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and disclaimer. 

22- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 2

The CONTRACTOR agrees that the CITY may use, reuse, alter, reproduce, modify, assign, 

transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONTRACTOR' s written work product

for the CITY's purposes, and the CONTRACTOR expressly waives and disclaims any residual
rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual property and
artistic works. 

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications

prepared by the CONTRACTOR shall relieve the CONTRACTOR from liability under Section 14

but only with respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to the
CITY should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was expressly
agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed. 

29. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Both parties hereto in the performance of this

Agreement will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or

joint venturers with one another. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the CONTRACTOR' S employees

are employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or privileges of the

CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemployment, or workers' 

compensation insurance. 

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONTRACTOR and the

CONTRACTOR' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement to
the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence

of the CONTRACTOR and its employees. Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein may be
assigned by the CONTRACTOR without the prior written consent of the CITY. Nothing herein

contained is intended to prevent the CONTRACTOR from employing or hiring as many employees, 
or subcontractors, as the CONTRACTOR may deem necessary for the proper and efficient

performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONTRACTOR with its subcontractor( s) shall

require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this Agreement. 

30. CONTROL. Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any

control over the conduct of the CONTRACTOR or any of the CONTRACTOR' s employees except
as herein set forth, and the CONTRACTOR expressly agrees not to represent that the

CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR' s agents, servants, or employees are in any manner

agents, servants or employees of the CITY, it being understood that the CONTRACTOR, its

agents, servants, and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent contractors and that the
CONTRACTOR' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this Agreement. 

31. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW. The CONTRACTOR, in the performance of

the services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes and
regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, 

whether now in force or subsequently enacted. The CONTRACTOR, and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement. 

32. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that it has

all licenses permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to

practice its profession. The CONTRACTOR represents and covenants that the CONTRACTOR

shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, any

23- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 2

license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONTRACTOR to practice its
profession. 

33. STANDARD OF CARE. 

A. The CONTRACTOR, in performing any services under this Agreement, shall

perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of
the CONTRACTOR' S trade or profession currently practicing under similar conditions and in similar
locations. The CONTRACTOR shall take all special precautions necessary to protect the

CONTRACTOR' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm arising out of the nature
of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site. 

B. Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this agreement, the CONTRACTOR
warrants to the CITY that it is not now, nor has it for the five ( 5) years preceding, been debarred by
a governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or litigation proceedings concerning
the CONTRACTOR' s professional performance or the furnishing of materials or services relating
thereto. 

C. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for identifying any unique products, treatments, 
processes or materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the

CONTRACTOR has been retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, when

no time is specified, then within a commercially reasonable time. Accordingly, unless the

CONTRACTOR has notified the CITY otherwise, the CONTRACTOR warrants that all products, 

materials, processes or treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are

reasonably commercially available. Any failure by the CONTRACTOR to use due diligence under
this sub -paragraph will render the CONTRACTOR liable to the CITY for any increased costs that

result from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable substitute within
a price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, when not specified, 

then within a commercially reasonable time. 

34. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS. The CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate

against any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, religion, 

sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition. The

CONTRACTOR will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed without regard to
their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, 

physical handicap, or medical condition. Such action shall include but not be limited to the

following: employment, upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including
apprenticeship. The CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees

and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting forth the provisions of this
non- discrimination clause. 

35. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. The CITY may from time to time communicate to the
CONTRACTOR certain confidential information to enable the CONTRACTOR to effectively perform
the services to be provided herein. The CONTRACTOR shall treat all such information as

confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the CITY. 
The CONTRACTOR shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its own

organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The foregoing
obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information that ( i) has
been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of the

24- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 2
CONTRACTOR, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is already in
the possession of the CONTRACTOR without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) has been or is

hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONTRACTOR by a third party, but only to the extent that the
use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party; or ( v) is disclosed

according to law or court order. 

The CONTRACTOR shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or other

results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the prior

written consent of the CITY. In its performance hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with
all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other property of

any other person, firm or corporation. 

CONTRACTOR shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this condition, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 14. 

36. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, 
defend, and hold harmless the CITY, and its officers, officials, agents and employees from any and
all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 

recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and subcontractors in

the performance of services under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR' s duty to indemnify under this
section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to

property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct

by the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees. CONTRACTOR' s

indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of this Agreement. The

CITY AND CONTRACTOR expressly agree that any payment, attorney' s fees, costs or expense

CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY ' s self-administered

workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section, and

that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement. 

37. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the

provisions of the Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Acts of the State of California, the

applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the California Government Code and all amendments

thereto; and all similar state or Federal acts or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold

harmless the CITY and its officers, and employees from and against all claims, demands, 

payments, suits, actions, proceedings and judgments of every nature and description, including
reasonable attorney' s fees and defense costs presented, brought or recovered against the CITY or

its officers, employees, or volunteers, for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which
may be incurred by reason of any work to be performed by the CONTRACTOR under this

Agreement. 

38. INSURANCE. The CONTRACTOR, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase and

maintain, and shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this agreement, the following insurance policies: 
A. If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum limits

of $ 1, 000,000 per occurrence. 

25- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 2

B. Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during the
performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit per
accident. Such automobile insurance shall include non -owned vehicles. 

C. Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000,000 combined
single limit per occurrence, covering all bodily injury and property damage arising out of its

operation under this Agreement. 

D. Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONTRACTOR' s employees. 
E. The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its officers, 

employees, and volunteers, so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute to any
loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice to the

CITY of cancellation or material change. 
F. Said policies, except for the professional liability and worker' s compensation policies, 

shall name the CITY and its officers, agents and employees as additional insureds. 
G. If required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than " occurrence" 

form, the CONTRACTOR shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years after expiration of
the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement. 

H. Any aggregate insurance limits must apply solely to this Agreement. 
1. Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a current

policy holder' s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII according to the
current Best's Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is approved by the
CITY. 

J. This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that

these insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY. If

the CONTRACTOR does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all times
during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the requisite
insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided herein. 

39. LEGAL FEES. If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from
any breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the

representations and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then in
that event, the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out-of-court
settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable costs

and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

For purposes of determining who is to be considered the prevailing party, it is stipulated that

attorney' s fees incurred in the prosecution or defense of the action or suit shall not be considered
in determining the amount of the judgment or award. Attorney' s fees to the prevailing party if other
than the CITY shall, in addition, be limited to the amount of attorney' s fees incurred by the CITY in
its prosecution or defense of the action, irrespective of the actual amount of attorney' s fees

incurred by the prevailing party. 
40. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION. If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or

the breach thereof, the parties agree first to try, in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual

negotiation between the principles, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego, 
California, in accordance with the commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration

Association ( the "AAA"). The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties. 

26- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 2
41. TERMINATION. A. This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the

CITY. Termination without cause shall be effective only upon 30 -day's written notice to the

CONTRACTOR. During said 30 -day period the CONTRACTOR shall perform all services in

accordance with this Agreement. The Contractor may terminate this agreement upon thirty ( 30) 

days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the City of its obligations

under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices. 
B. This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the event

of a material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the City' s satisfaction within a ten ( 10) 

day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONTRACTOR in connection with the
formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to perform services as

directed by the CITY. 
C. Termination with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of

Termination to the CONTRACTOR as provided for herein. 

D. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda Reports, Maps, 

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR, whether

paper or electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and

the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work

satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the

Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, and less any damages

caused the CITY by the CONTRACTOR' s breach, if any. Thereafter, ownership of said written

material shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6. 

E. The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: ( 1) 

the filing of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONTRACTOR; ( 2) a reorganization of the

CONTRACTOR for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business

name or change in business status of the CONTRACTOR. 

42. NOTICES. All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall

be in writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express or the

like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or sent by
ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or telegraphed or cabled; or delivered or sent by telex, telecopy, 
facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon the earlier of ( i) if personally delivered, the

date of delivery to the address of the person to receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by overnight mail, 
the business day following its deposit in such overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed by registered, 

certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days ( ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the State of

California) after the date of deposit in a post office, mailbox, mail chute, or other like facility
regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by telegraph or cable, when

delivered to the telegraph company with charges prepaid, or ( v) if given by telex, telecopy, 
facsimile or fax, when sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other communication

delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons: 

To the CITY: City of Lemon Grove
Public works Department

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945- 1701

To the CONTRACTOR: 911 Restoration of San Diego

4174 Sorrento Valley Boulevard, Suite H

San Diego, CA 92121



Attachment B - Exhibit 2

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in this
Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed address
of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, demand, request

or communication sent. Any notice, request, demand, direction or other communication sent by
cable, telex, telecopy, facsimile or fax must be confirmed within forty-eight ( 48) hours by letter

mailed or delivered as specified in this Section. 

43. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS. During
the term of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall not perform services of any kind for any
person or entity whose interest' s conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE. 

The CONTRACTOR also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or material for the
project in which the CONTRACTOR has a material financial interest, either direct or indirect, 

without first notifying the CITY of that fact. The CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with the
terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest Code. The

CONTRACTOR shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official position to influence

in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONTRACTOR has a financial interest
as defined in Government Code Section 87103. The CONTRACTOR represents that it has no

knowledge of any financial interests that would require it to disqualify itself from any matter on

which it might perform services for the CITY. 

If checked, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code. Specifically, the

CONTRACTOR shall: 

1. Go to www. fppc. ca. gov

2. Download the Form 700: Statement of Economic Interests

3. Completely fill out the form
4. Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed contracts. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or expenses

the CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the CONTRACTOR. 

44. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
A. Computation of Time Periods. If any date or time period provided for in this Agreement

is or ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date shall

automatically be extended until 5:00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a Saturday, 
Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday. 

B. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the same

instrument. 

C. Captions. Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this

Agreement are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, 

and shall not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or any
provision hereof. 

28- 



Attachment B - Exhibit 2
D. No Obligations to Third Parties. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the

execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or

obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto. 
E. Exhibits and Schedules. The Exhibits and schedules attached hereto are hereby

incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes. 
F. Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto. 
C. Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not

operate as a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof. 
H. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance

with the laws of the state of California. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations and

communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as to the

subject matter hereof. No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by either party
hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto shall be of any
effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby. 

J. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

K. Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal

bargaining strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and

negotiation of this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the opportunity to
consult with its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors as such party has
deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this Agreement, ( iv) each

party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this Agreement, ( v) each party has
agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and the rendering of such advice, and

vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting
party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, or any portions hereof, or any

amendments hereto. 

29- 



Attachment B — Exhibit 2

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and
year first above written. 

CITY OF LEMON GROVE

AN
Graham Mitchell

itv a nar P.r

Title) 

Date) 

James Lough

Citv Attorne

Title) 

Date) 

30- 

911 RESTORATION OF SAN DIEGO
Corporation — signatures of two corporate officers) 

Partnership — one signature) 

Sole proprietorship — one signature) 

03

Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

Name) 

Title) 

Date) 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: 
Name) 

Title) 

Date) 



Attachment B - Exhibit 2

CONTINUED - Equipment Costs

DESCRIPTION

911 Restoration

M

4174 Sorrento Valley Blvd. Suite H

TAX

San Diego, CA 92121

Air mover ( per 24 hour period) - No

Office 858- 6254003

000

Fax 858- 625- 0004

0. 00

License # 955773

CONTINUED - Equipment Costs

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX 1101" A 1, 

Air mover ( per 24 hour period) - No 1

11 .[

f0 EA 000 26. 63 0. 00 26. 63

monitoring

Dehumidif' ier ( per 24 hour period) - No 1. 00 EA 0, 00 60. 95 0. 00 60. 95

monitoring

Dehumidifier ( per 24 hour period) - 1. 00 EA 0:00 79.520-0Q 79. 52

Large - No monitoring

Dehumidifier ( per 24 hour period) - 1. 00 EA 000 101. 29 101. 29

XLarge - No monitoring

Negative air ranlAir scrubber (24 hr 100 DA 4;00 74.,56 7456

period) - No monil, 

Neg. air tan/ Air scrub. -Large ( per 24 hr 1. 00 DA 0..04 124, 54 0. p0 12A. 54

period) No monit. 

Neg. air FardAir scrub,- XLrg ( per 24 hr 1, 00 DA 0,00 140, 00 000 14000

period) -No monit. 

Heat drying - thermal air exchanger 1. 00 DA 0. 00 325. 00 obo 32$. 00

HEPA Vacuuming - Light - ( PER S1+) 1. 00 SF 0,,00 0, 35 0. 00 035

Water extraction From carpeted floor 1. 00 SF 0, 00 0,.59 0. 00 059

Totals: Equipment Costs 0. 00 933. 43

1ppty ( 3,osts, 

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX, TOTAL

Protect - Cover with plastic 1, 00 SF 0, 00 030 0. 01 103 M

Protect - Cover with pIdstic - after 1. 00 SF 0. 00 0.39 0. 01 0, 40

hours

Apply anti -microbial agent 1, 00, 8p. 0.00 0. 24 0. 00 0, 24

Apply anti - microbial agent - after hours 1 » 0,00 036 0,00 0,.36

Add for personal protoctive equipment 100 ISA, 0100 7. 87 0,61 8, 48

hazardous cleanup) 
m

ww wwo.. 

Totals; Supply Costs 063 9. 79

Line item Totals; PRICE LIST 0. 63 115. 14

PRICE LIST

Scanned by CamScanner

4/ 30/ 2015 Page; 2



Attachment B - Exhibit 2

Cost Per Emplayte

IWWRI" ION
1, 

911 Restoration

REMOVE REPLACE TAX

4 174 Sovi"o,4 ito VolIvvy Blvd. S u i tc 11

I InArdous Wmte/ Mold Clewing

S sul, 1) " w*. CA 91, 12 1

0, DO 86, 97 0 DO 86. 97
Tochnician - per hour

co, 0 S 5 77A

Cost Per Emplayte

IWWRI" ION
1, 

QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX

I InArdous Wmte/ Mold Clewing 1, 00 1 IR 0, DO 86, 97 0 DO 86. 97
Tochnician - per hour

NWWWW), service call - during 100 EA 000 166. 05 0. 00 166.05
ImIlwas hours

lWorgency service call - 4fter business 1, 00 EA. 250. 18 0, 00 250, 18
1XI urs. 

Water t"" ruction & Roniediation 100 UK 0, 00 59, 31 0, 00 59. 31
Cwhnician - per hour

later FAtnwti0n,& Remedirt( ion 100 HR 0, DO 89" 05 000 9, 05
Tochnici - one[ Kwm

I' quiPnwm Wum fake doom, arwl 1, 00 HR 0,00 5931 000 5931
rhonilotinS (hourly charge) 

liquip, setup, talc do%%m & niollittwing 1. 00 HR 0,00 89.05 0, 00 89. 05
Otter hrs

Totals: Cost Per litnployee 0.00 79992

Storage, C"Osu

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE

O . . . ............................. 

REPLACE TAX U)TAL

ff-site storage & insur, - climate 1, 00 SF 0. 00 1, 41 0,00 1, 
contailled - per mouth

Storage Costs 0. 00 1. 41

Disposal costs

DESCRIPTION QTY REMOVE REPLACE TAX TOTAL

I Wd dtrlstis ., por pkkajw trua'.", kvki 1. 00 EA 123, 90 000 000 123. 90
kscIrwfing du 11 Ices" 

p it le zxtc dwnj) truct- -,1W 1(( W,' 1. 00 EA 246. 69 0, 00 0 00 246,69
iml adiog dutop Dices, 

Totals: Disposal Costs 0, 00 370, 59

Equipment Costs

0Rrnnnpri hv (.. qm.qr-,qnnpr



LEMON GROVE ;CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD, 

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD & SUCCESSOR AGENCY

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date kay- 1- 9-1 V2
5' 

Dept. 

ml
a ac t t

Item Title: Draft Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budgets for the City of Lemon Grove, Roadway
Lighting District, Sanitation District, and Successor Agency

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Cathy Till, Finance Director

Recommendation: 

Provide feedback regarding the draft Fiscal Year 2015- 16 budgets for the General Fund, all

other City funds, the Roadway Lighting District, the Sanitation District, and the Successor

Agency. 

Item Summary: 

Staff presents a follow- up budget discussion from the May 5, 2015 City Council meeting. In

addition, staff presents the draft Fiscal Year 2015- 16 ( FY 2015- 16) budgets for the General Fund, 

the General Reserve Fund, other funds managed by the City, and budgets for the Roadway
Lighting District, Sanitation District, and Successor Agency. Direction provided by the City Council
will help in drafting the final consolidated budget, which will be presented on June 2, 2015. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Z Not subject to review

F- 1 Categorical Exemption, Section

Public Information: 

E None El Newsletter article

F- 1 Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Staff Report

B. Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 16 Budgets

Negative Declaration

Q Mitigated Negative Declaration

E Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE :CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD, 

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD & SUCCESSOR AGENCY

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 2

Mtg. Date ! May.... 19, 201. 

Item Title: Draft Fiscal Year 2015- 2016 Budgets for the City of Lemon Grove, Roadway

Lighting District, Sanitation District, and Successor Agency

Staff Contact: Graham Mitchell, City Manager and Cathy Till, Finance Director

Discussion: 

The purpose of this staff report is to provide follow- up analysis regarding questions that the City
Council posed at its May

5th

meeting, as well as to present draft budgets for the General Fund, 

the General Reserve Fund, the other funds managed by the City, the Roadway Lighting District, 
the Sanitation District, and the Successor Agency for Fiscal Year 2015- 2616 ( FY 2015- 16). 

General Fund & General Reserve Fund

On May
5th, 

staff presented the FY 2015- 16 General Fund and General Reserve Fund budgets

for City Council discussion. The City Council provided positive feedback on the draft budget

that was presented, including an expenditure for potential additional security in the Main Street
Promenade area and a storm drain inventory study. During the draft budget discussion, the City
Council requested additional information. The purpose of this section of the staff report is to

respond to the questions posed and to provide analysis regarding some of the options

presented. This section will address the combined General Fund/ General Reserve Fund

balances for FY 2014- 15 and FY 2015- 16, law enforcement questions, and an analysis of the

proposed budget items previously presented. 

Combined General FundlGeneral Reserve Fund Balances

The May
5th

budget staff report indicated General Fund surpluses of approximately $ 737,200 in

FY 2014- 15 and approximately $ 526, 500 in FY 2015- 16. Since that time, however, the latest

Heartland JPA (JPA) reconciliation revealed that the City will owe approximately $ 140, 000 for its

portion of the JPA shared costs in FY 2014- 15 due to mid -year staffing changes. Staff presents

both funds combined to reflect a full understanding of the surplus available for allocation. The

table below shows the combined surplus of both funds for the current fiscal year and for the next

fiscal year, along with combined fund balances: 

FY 2014- 15 FY 2015- 16

Beginning Combined Balance $ 39430, 000 $ 375177600

General Fund 6171200 5631

General Reserve Fund529 600
rv, .„ 

Combined Surplus 87, 540 1 . 

Ending Combined Balance $ 335179600 $ 31817, 600

Based on the current draft budget plan, the City' s combined general reserves increase by

approximately $ 387, 600 between July 1, 2014 and June 30, 2016. The negative surplus in the

General Reserve Fund in FY 2014- 15 is due mainly to the deferred maintenance projects

345, 000) and payment for a new fire engine and equipment ($ 114, 000). In FY 2015- 16, the

negative surplus in the General Reserve is due mainly to setting aside $ 150, 000 for the General

3- 



Attachment A

Plan Update project, $ 65, 000 for the installation of the exhaust system at the Fire Station, and

17, 500 for an executive search consulting firm. As a reminder, approximately $ 200,000 of the

General Fund surplus in FY 2015- 16 is one- time funds resulting from a " true -up" from the State. 

Law Enforcement Questions

At the May
5th

meeting, the city Council asked staff to present data related to law enforcement
activity. Specifically, staff was asked to provide comparisons of law enforcement per capita

ratios, calls for service at Citronica one and the Main Street Promenade, how calls are

prioritized by the Sheriff' s Department, data on response times, and historic law enforcement

staffing levels in the City. 

Per Capita. Ratios – Staff compared the city' s law enforcement per capita ratio with other cities
that contract with the Sheriff' s Department for services and with the Rancho San Diego station. 

For the comparison, staff used law enforcement staff ( patrol, traffic, motor and special purpose

deputies, and sergeants). Not included were community service officers, detectives, 

lieutenants, and captains. 

Although Lemon Grove has the lowest number of deputies per capita amongst the contract

cities, the City' s law enforcement complement is not dissimilar to five of the cities. Also, several

of the comparison cities have deputies assigned to schools and paid for through other sources. 

itronc a one & Main. Streetireet Promenade -- Call Volumes The City Council also asked about the
number of calls for service to Citronica one and to the Main Street Promenade. In 2014, the

Sheriff' s Department was called to Citronica one a total of 13 times about once per month. 

Interesting to note, that as Citronica one' s management became more proactive with several

problematic tenants, the calls for service have trended downward in 2015. Staff compared calls
for service with other similar sized apartment complexes in the City. Using call data from 19

other complexes, averaging 63 units ( similar to Citronica one' s 56 units), staff determined that
there were 0. 2 made per unit in 2014. Citronica one experienced 0. 25 calls per unit. Using
2015 data in which Citronica one was able to reduce calls, the call ratio will be well below the

average for similar sized complexes in Lemon Grove. 

The Main Street Promenade experienced very high call volumes— a total of 133 calls in 2014 or

2. 5 calls per week to the site. Calls to this site are heavily influenced by the volume of transit
users. Staff also looked at

1st

quarter data in 2014 and 2015 to identify any trends. Between

2014 and 2015, the calls for service at the Main Street Promenade dropped by 18 percent. 

Prioritization of Calls – during the City Council presentation, Lieutenant Chris May will provide

information on how calls for service are prioritized and dispatched. In short, the Sheriff' s

4- 

Population/ 

C_itmv ........ Staff Staff

Del Mar 7 586

San Marco 63 861

Solana Beach 14 956

Santee 45 11247

Imperial Beach 22 11247

Poway 39 11257

Encinitas 46 11354

Vista 71 17375

Lemon Grove 19 17375

Rancho San Diego Station 55 21113

Although Lemon Grove has the lowest number of deputies per capita amongst the contract

cities, the City' s law enforcement complement is not dissimilar to five of the cities. Also, several

of the comparison cities have deputies assigned to schools and paid for through other sources. 

itronc a one & Main. Streetireet Promenade -- Call Volumes The City Council also asked about the
number of calls for service to Citronica one and to the Main Street Promenade. In 2014, the

Sheriff' s Department was called to Citronica one a total of 13 times about once per month. 

Interesting to note, that as Citronica one' s management became more proactive with several

problematic tenants, the calls for service have trended downward in 2015. Staff compared calls
for service with other similar sized apartment complexes in the City. Using call data from 19

other complexes, averaging 63 units ( similar to Citronica one' s 56 units), staff determined that
there were 0. 2 made per unit in 2014. Citronica one experienced 0. 25 calls per unit. Using
2015 data in which Citronica one was able to reduce calls, the call ratio will be well below the

average for similar sized complexes in Lemon Grove. 

The Main Street Promenade experienced very high call volumes— a total of 133 calls in 2014 or

2. 5 calls per week to the site. Calls to this site are heavily influenced by the volume of transit
users. Staff also looked at

1st

quarter data in 2014 and 2015 to identify any trends. Between

2014 and 2015, the calls for service at the Main Street Promenade dropped by 18 percent. 

Prioritization of Calls – during the City Council presentation, Lieutenant Chris May will provide

information on how calls for service are prioritized and dispatched. In short, the Sheriff' s

4- 



Attachment A

Department has identified approximately 270 types of possible calls and given each a

prioritization rating. 

Response Time Data – the Sheriff' s Department analyzed the calls for services generated in

Lemon Grove in 2014. They analyzed the average time it took 1) from the call to dispatch to the

time the deputy arrived on scene, and 2) from a deputy being dispatched to the time the deputy
arrived on scene. The analysis showed that for all calls— high and low priority calls— the

average time from a call being made to the time a deputy arrived was 12. 66 minutes and the

average time from a deputy being dispatched to the time arriving on scene was 6. 20 minutes. 

High priority calls in 2014 were responded to immediately. 

Historic Law Enforcement Staffing – Staff compared the law enforcement staffing levels in 2015, 
with levels from 2010, 2005, and 2000. The graph below shows staffing of patrol, traffic, motor

and special purpose deputies assigned specifically to Lemon Grove: 

19 19

2000 2005 2010 2015

Proposed General Fuad/General Reserve Fund Expenditures

The May
5th

staff report outlined potential expenditures that were not included in the draft

budget, but were presented for possible inclusion. These costs represent either costs

associated with City council priorities or administrative recommendations. 

First, approximately $ 200, 000 of the anticipated surplus in FY 2015- 15 is derived from one- time

revenue. Staff recommends that this amount be allocated to paying down the City' s CaIPERS
Unfunded Actuarial Liability. A lump sum payment of $ 200, 000 next fiscal year will generate an

approximate savings of $ 050,000 over the next twenty years, given current investment and

actuarial assumptions. If the City Council were to initiate this payment, staff recommends

establishing a separate fund to manage the collection of funds and distributions of payments to
CaIPERS. 

If the City Council opts to make the one-time payment to CaIPERS, the City will have a

remaining $ 100, 000 in surplus funds. The following were suggestions for City Council

consideration as presented in the May 5'
h

staff report or discussed at the last City Council

meeting ( listed from most expensive to least): 

o Add a Deputy ($ 199, 000) – the cost of a new deputy includes $ 159, 000 for the deputy, 
17, 000 for start-up costs, and $ 23, 000 for a vehicle. The station lieutenant will

determine how to best utilize the deputy to meet the needs of the community based on
law enforcement data. Staff is concerned that the cost to add an additional deputy will
put the City into deficit spending in FY 2015- 10. Furthermore, in the past three years, 

none of the other San Diego County laws enforcement contract cities have added

deputies one city has actually reduced its complement by one. Staff is investigating a
U. S. Department of Justice grant program. Under this program, the City may be able to

5- 



Attachment A

fund 90 percent of one deputy ( not including the vehicle or start up costs). If the grant is

awarded, it would pay $ 139, 000 of the $ 199, 000 deputy cost for a three year period. 

o Add an Assistant Planner ($ 38, 600) — over the past few years as the economy has

improved, the Development Services Department has experienced a dramatic increase

in the number of permits that it processes. over a four year period, submitted permits

have increased from 700 to 943 per year this is an increase from 3. 5 per day to 4. 8 per
day. An assistant planner will alleviate some of the pressure currently experienced by
Development Services staff. This position will become especially critical if the City is

awarded the State Housing/ Park grant and several of the SANDAL Smart Growth Grant
applications. 

o Add a Street Tech ($ 31, 700) — during the City Council priority setting workshop
discussions, one of the priorities in 2015 is to enhance the appearance of the City. Staff

suggests that one effective strategy to accomplish this goal is to designate a staff person
exclusively to addressing graffiti abatement, illegal dumping, litter, and shopping carts. 

This staff person would also handle special clean up projects and could provide

additional support to City park maintenance. During free time, this person would also be

assigned to street and sanitation projects. 

o Miscellaneous Cost of Living Adjustment ( COLA) or Medical Allowance ($ 14, 600) — one

of the items presented in the May
5th

staff report was the consideration of a COLA for

miscellaneous employees. Since 2010, the City has been able to keep salary increases
equal with increases in the consumer price index. A 2 percent COLA would continue

with that aim and would be a $ 14, 600 impact to the General Fund. Alternatively, the City
could offer an increase of $ 100 per month in medical flex benefits to miscellaneous

employees. This increase would help offset the increasing cost for medical insurance
since 2010, the HMO cost for a family has increased by $ 325. An increase in the flex

contribution would cost the General Fund approximately $ 11, 100 and is non- 

PERSable." 

o Job Reclassifications ($ 10, 900) — currently two employees ( Human Resources Analyst

and the Accounting Clerk) are working out of class. Reclassification to Human

Resources Manager and Administrative Accounting Assistant would bring them in line

with the current duties assigned to them and would have a General Fund impact of

4, 000 and $ 6, 900, respectively. 

Other City -operated Funds

In addition to the General Fund and the General Reserve Fund, the City operates 26 other

funds. Budget details for these fund are included in Attachment B. Following is a summary of
the significant budget items related to the other City funds. 

Gas Tax Fund (2) — in FY 2015- 16, this fund has budgeted $ 825, 300 for street operations and

maintenance. This amount is $ 50, 500 more than the anticipated FY 2014- 15 budget, due

partially to the the City retaining $ 74, 500 in unspent funds from FY 2014- 15. However FY 2015- 

16 revenue is projected to be $ 98,400 less that FY 2014- 15 due to lower gas prices, an

increase in fuel efficient automobiles, as well as a decrease in the excise tax rate. 

Street Construction Reserve Fuad ( 3) — In FY 2015- 16, the budget reflects $ 100, 000 to be spent

on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project. 

Park Land Dedication ordinance Fund ( 5) — these restricted funds may only be used for capital
improvement projects associated with City parks. In FY 2015- 16, staff recommends that

64, 200 be expended on continuing park improvements, which may include expanding the



Attachment A

skate spot, replacing playground equipment, purchasing park furnishings, dog park play
structures, exercise equipment, and refurbishing the civic center fountain. 

Grants Fuad (8) — this fund manages various grants totaling $ 479, 700, including $ 225, 000 to be

spent on Safe Routes to School projects on Palm Street near the former Palm Middle School

and Golden Avenue near Golden Avenue Elementary School. In addition, if SANDAG awards

the City any or all of the grants that were applied for in April 2015, the revenue and expenditures

will be affected. 

CDBG Fund ( 9) -- this fund will manage this year' s Community Development Block Grant

allocation in the amount of $ 169, 000 for street and sidewalk rehabilitation. 

TDA Fund ( 10) — these funds must be expended on maintaining and/ or improving public transit
facilities. The fund has approximately $ 130, 000 in unspent funds saved from prior years, which

must be expended on transit related improvements ( bus shelter/ pad upgrades). In addition, 

there is $ 237,400 available for the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project, which is

projected to be expended in FY 2015- 16. 

TransNet ( 14) — In FY 2014- 15 the budget reflects total expenditures of $ 1, 911, 000. The

expenditures are as follows: $ 909, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project, 

139, 200 on traffic related projects, $ 201, 700 on storm drain maintenance and improvements, 

559,700 on traffic and pavement projects, and $ 101, 300 on administrative expenses. 

Integrated Waste Reduction ( 21) — The purpose of this fund is to manage household hazardous

waste. This budget projects revenue of $ 22, 300 and expenditures of $ 42, 300. The fund

balance is projected to be $ 46, 700 at the end of FY 2015- 16. 

Wildflower Assessment District ( 22) — the budget reflects $ 9, 100 in revenue and $ 7, 700 in

expenditures. The ending fund balance is projected to be $ 6, 800. 

Serious Traffic Offender Program ( 23) — the budget reflects spending $ 10,000 on traffic -related

expenditures ( supplies and equipment). 

Self -Insured Workers Compensation Reserve ( 25) — the fund projects interest revenue of

1, 400, a transfer to the General Reserve Fund of $ 25, 000, no expenditures, and an ending

fund balance of $ 501, 600 In addition, the fund has an accrued claims liability of approximately
175, 900, which represents the potential future cost of current claims. 

Storm Water Program Fund ( 26) — in FY 2015- 16, the budget reflects a total expenditure of

217, 000. This includes $ 37, 900 for staff costs, and $ 179, 100 for permitting, monitoring and

reporting functions. 

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program ( 27) — this fund collects impact fees

as required by the Regional Transportation Congestion Program. The budget projects spending
34, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project in FY 2015- 16. 

Self -Insured Liability Reserve ( 29) — the projected fund balance is $ 449,800. This fund receives

a dividend from the city' s insurance pool, which is projected to be $ 20,000. offsetting that

revenue are costs of $ 20, 000. 

PEG Fund ( 30) — a Public Education and Governmental ( PEG) fund was established to collect

designated monies from cable franchisees that operate within the city. In FY 2015- 16, the

budget reflects $ 56, 400 in revenue. The budget projects $ 36, 000 to be spent on connection

fees, $ 3, 000 on professional fees, and $ 50, 000 on one- time capital improvements to the

Community Center audio infrastructure. 

Housing Fund ( 31) — no activity is expected. 



Attachment A

Capital Reserve Fund – staff recommends creating this new fund to allocate funds for future
capital improvements and to account for multi- year projects. For example in FY 2014- 15, the

City council allocated reserve funds for re -roofing City Hall. This project was not completed. 

Rather than re -budgeting the project, staff recommends transferring the General Reserve funds
to this new fund to pay for the project. 

Community Facilities District ( 33) – this fund collects assessments from properties adjacent to
the Allain Street Promenade. Expenditures in this fund are limited to contractual services, repair

and maintenance, and utilities at the Main Street Promenade. The budget reflects total

revenues of $ 14,600 and expenditures of $ 17, 800. As the adjacent properties develop, the

assessment revenue will increase, so the deficit will be eliminated. 

Roadway Lighting District Budget

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate lighting
activities. Fund 1 1 , the General Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits
throughout the community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit Assessment Fund, provides for
enhanced lighting benefits at mid - blocks. Revenues in the two funds are expected to reach

245, 500 in FY 2015- 16. The funds pay for repair, maintenance, and energy costs of street

lights. The total expenditure is anticipated to be $ 319, 700 in FY 2015- 16. 

The Local Benefit Assessment District ( Fund 12) has entered into a 40 -month utility cost

repayment agreement with San Diego Gas & Electric. The repayment plan will be completed in
April 2017. The revenue generated by Fund 12 ($ 87, 100) is not sufficient to support its

operating costs ($ 195, 800) over the long term. Staff recommends that a future agenda item
address solutions to this issue. The projected combined fund balance in these two funds is
projected to be $ 367, 300 ($ 333, 300 in Fund 11, $ 34, 000 in Fund 12). 

Sanitation District Budget

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and a

Reserve Fund ( 16). In FY 2015- 16, the District anticipates generating $ 6. 0 million in total
revenue. Offsetting this revenue, the District anticipates expending $ 5. 2 million for operating
costs and $ 1. 5 million for capital improvement projects. The revenue and expenditure plan will
leave a balance of $ 14. 2 million in the District' s reserves at the end of the fiscal year. 

A portion of the City' s CaIPERS Unfunded Actuarial Liability ( UAL) is attributable to the

Sanitation District. The PERSable wages of the Sanitation District represent 33 percent of the
City' s total PERSable wages. This equates to the District' s share of the UAL being
approximately $ 1. 8. During the last auditor presentation, he indicated that enterprise districts, 

beginning in FY 2014- 15, are required to report unfunded liabilities as an expenditure in the
financial statement ( this requirement is from GASB 68). The draft Sanitation District budget

currently shows this expenditure as a line item in Fund 15 ( operational budget). Fund 15 also
includes an expenditure of $ 4, 000 for actuarial consulting services to determine the most cost

effective and prudent strategy for paying off the District' s liability. Staff recommends that a

future Sanitation District Board agenda item be dedicated to this discussion. 

Successor Agency Budget

In FY 2015- 16, the Successor Agency anticipates receiving approximately $ 3. 1 million in

Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ( RPTTF) proceeds from the County. The FY 2015- 16

budget reflects bond interest payments totaling $ 1. 1 million, bond principal payments totalling
660,000, various administrative costs totaling $ 250,000, and a payment of $ 694,400 to PERS

to pay down the Successor Agency' s share of the unfunded liability. Although is unlikely the
Successor Agency will receive the entire amount, due to the limited amount of RPTTF available, 

M



Attachment A

staff is including all of the items as placeholders, since all of them have been approved by the
DGF. Bond payments will always be paid first. 

In addition, staff anticipates spending $ 500, 000 on the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment

Project, which is funded with bond proceeds. once the Lemon Grove Realignment Project is

complete, the Successor Agency' s primary activity will be making bond payments. This will

result in minimal administrative reimbursements to the City. In addition, if approved, the

Successor Agency will make loan repayments to the City to the extent funds are available it is

unknown when those payment will occur. 

Conclusion: 

Staff recommends that the City Council provide feedback to assist with preparation of the FY

2015- 16 budgets for the General Fund/ General Reserve Fund, the other funds managed by the
City, the Roadway Lighting District funds, the Sanitation District funds, and the Successor

Agency fund. With that feedback, staff will prepare a final budget for City Council consideration
at the June

2nd

meeting. At that time, staff will present the Consolidated Budget for the city of
Lemon Grove, the Master Fee Schedule, and the Appropriations Limit. 

BE



Attachment B

foR111111,

11umn . . ..... .. I/A." 
A"N' WANNIM1111 P119i

Moll '

F30/0 ............ 

9

fNM rtfRd MdldfRfR irto fMINMmfiu

AA

371, LUU 87. 900 9 1. 657. 500 1. 657. 500 2. 274. 700

Licenses 110, 200 109. 000 103, 000 104,000, 105,000

Property Tax 2, 035, 700 2, 064. 200 2, 227, 300 2, 135, 000 2, 224, 900

Development Fees 300, 000 312, 700 260, 000 368, 000 272, 000

Sales Tax & Triple Flip Adjustment, 26% 3, 897, 100 4, 294, 800 4, 700, 000 5, 076, 000 5,400,000

Franchise Fees 889, 300 923. 600 932, 000 932, 000 932,000

Transient Occupancy Tax 36, 800 39, 400 35, 800 35P800 36, 800

Interest Income 2, 200 2, 500 2, 500 2, 000 2, 000

Miscellaneous Income 110, 400 67, 500 21, 500 54p000 23, 500

Vehicle License Fees 13, 400 11, 100 10, 700 10, 700 10, 700

Vehicle License Fee Adjustment 1, 886, 800 1, 940, 700 2, 024, 500 2P024p500 2, 074, 500

Parks & Recreation Fees 108, 000 100, 300 95, 400 98, 700 96, 700

Rents & Leases 325, 800 330, 900 238, 000 236, 000 224, 000

Traffic Fines -Public Safety 103. 400 120, 700 125. 500 140, 000 140, 000

it Department Fees 271, 000 254, 800 253, 600 270, 600 272,600

TOTAL REVENUES: 10,090..100 10. 572. 200, 1 11. 029. 800 11, 487, 300 11, 813. 700

N MENri

Gas Tax Fund 830. 200 927, 400 1 64, 900 60, 000 44, 500

Supplemental Law n, is Fund 100, 100 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100,000

TDA Administration 60. 300 64, 200 3, 600 3, 600 17, 400

Lighting Disthct - General District Administration 48, 300 25, 100 4, 700 4, 700 9, 000

Lighting District Loc Ben Administration 30. 600 61, 300 2, 600 2, 600 4, 900

TransNet Administration 84, 300 81, 700

Integrated Waste (AB939) Administration 26, 500 28, 200 600 600 1, 200

Sanitation District Administration 1, 483, 900 1, 562, 200 548, 500 548, 500 552, 400

Wildflower Dist, Administration 5, 500 5, 300 100 100 100

Serious Traffic Offender Program Fund Admin. 2, 000 2, 000

Storm Water Administration 36, 800 39. 000

Successor Agency - Administration 250, 000 248, 000 37, 800 16, 600 24p600

Transfer to Storm Water Fund 81, 100) 7 5,,,500) 1 157, 500) H65. 0001 156. 200) 

TOTAL TRANSFERS: .. 2. 877. 40

rrrrurrrruri
3, 068, 900_ 1 I 605, 30 571 7001 . 597. 900

I; 

rviiiiiiiiv............ ........ 

TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS: 12. 967. 5'0"0- 12, 059@000 1 2 411 ",600

TOTAL RESOURCES: 1 1344 7001 14 13. 292. 600 14, 686, 300

1



Attachment B



Attachment B

WE

130, 100 130, 200 67, 600 67, 600 68, 000

473, 000 525, 400 219, 000 217, 900 299, 500

128, 900 112, 600 151, 500 140, 700 141, 500

361, 100 400, 700 189, 800 191, 800 226, 500

4, 567, 600 4, 801, 100 4, 944, 000 47944, 000 5, 042, 400

202, 600 202, 100 201, 100 208, 800 203, 800

3, 505. 600 3, 623, 700
1

3, 863, 200 4,005, 800 4, 165,900

1, 207, 800 1, 304, 900 571, 600 648, 000 644,600

1, 780, 100 1, 870, 800 1, 068, 700 17017, 200 1, 059, 100

2 356 800 L 12, 971. 500 ' 1 $ 11, 276, 509. j 11. 441 11. 851, 300

GENERAL FUND BALANCE 987, 900, 1 $ S 1, 657, 6001 2, 01 , 10 $ 2 274 70D $ 21! 815, 000. 

Salaries

Retirement

Benefits-0ther

Services & Supplies

Contracted Services

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 

f  ii ii  /  rlr7X11 11

4, 125, 200 4, 389, 500 3, 018. 900

816, 200 838, 100 621, 500

974, 500 945, 800 667, 300

1, 600, 500 1, 725, 400 1, 661, 300

4, 790, 700 5, 013, 500 5, 246, 900

49, 700 59, 200 60, 600

S 12. 356. 800 I$ 12, 97i. 500 11 . 276. 
J.

600
a....... ........... 

P11

3, 158, 900

625, 300

661, 100

1, 693, 100

5, 243, 800

59, 600

11. 441. 800

3, 198,600

626, 900

696, 200

1, 931, 000

5, 338, 000

60, 600

11, 851, 300



Attachment B



Attachment B

gym  

0 /' r rl al,. I I fl I     I C lf 11////%  ,. j..
IJJJf> r rvnytii  rvwwaxwww! w; ww! w., 

315 800...... 

5

00' 

340 700

67, 400

60, 200

12r,
r, r, rrr, r

0, 500

29, 100

otiuiiiu( xm friioiii uuiw iiiiiiio umiiuM fMF MMMMMMMMA M MMMMMMMM n vnn ploy." i01fRhIiW. NfiNfiW, M I VsfrdfMMlM','..,.., Mf. 

3 , 5

Mrr„ ..
U„ fJr o/ rir

j r , 

II , 

57, 100 44r5r0,
rrr

100, 900

T 0 T A L: 
rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry

4' Safa; it's

Retirement

47, 500

9, 500

48, 900

9, 300

17, 000

3, 900

17, 000

3, 900

7 17, 000

4, 200

17, 100

9, 000 9, 000fits - Other

icesISeryu lies7. 

25, 500

r. M.. .. . .. ......... rrrrrrrrrr r...., r

26, 300

45, 700 37,70 37, 700 37. 800

TOTAL: 130, 100

2, 100 M1

0

85, 500 89, 100

w. m ' mww  n' arwhyeaeMrwr Iwr n r r rPof iPorvp Mwwwwiprlwr NJwNtiu

Salaries

Retirement

Benefits -Other

315 800...... 

5

00' 

340 700

67, 400

60, 200

12r,
r, r, rrr, r

0, 500

29, 100

120, 500

29, 100

23, 800

136, 100

39,900

22, fi00

Services lis 3 , 5 57, 100 44r5r0,
rrr

100, 900

T 0 T A L: 
rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry rvry

192, 700. 

0

2' I' 9r0010
r  r u rvrvrvrvrvrvrvry r

1, ; 1 1 ////%% 
r 

i ' irfµ" u// i, urvii Ds/ rii H / qc frNJf yru/ ri// dc/, I i ri, i%+1 di/lama/ ǹHir̀,%roii` rri va , oc i,9, oe vertw nl dl mfmfflM i III muM d uMp lM

Professional Services ( Contract Salary) 128, 900 112, 600 141, 500 140,700 141, 500

ar mmrmmmrrmm_...mrr•^-„---• 

r
000U DOY ( Ci 01411" 1 " f

rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrv, 

ArArArAr

TOTAL: $ 128 900 ' 112 fi00 151, 500 $ 140,

7061' 
rvrvrvry rvrv. rvrvrvry

f 

IL

n... » 

0

r

00' 4, 894, 300

Yr, Yr,,,,. rn,_ 

4, 894, 300

fiF f' pidlG MMMdMm% p/ iMuHdfrtfdM fM( Mf( I I I I I Ii1N, W1NMMdIdI IrtfrtfrtfrtfrtfNV vfMflidGffrtfrtfrtfrtfrtf lNVai( ygJry 4 MM N% i. 1

r r, r l;,  

r h r 9Y19n . f w, Maw w sr fir, roY. i
r u uir. ,% 

r.  
yn r

1{,, 7r ,  r, .! np. .; 111: b  
i  

y , 
r' f r i'  J f

r

49, 700

r: a
mm : f L' WMMX MMfAMMMMMMMwk

24 0

u Nidr<1Frw l x u wx r www 

Salaries

Retirement

192, 700. 

0

226, 700

42, 100

73, 200

15, 700

73, 200

157800

9' 1, 900

26, 700

17, 100 17, 300 18, 800Benefits -Other 3 , 7

Services upli
r rrru M,.,. r. r. rM  2, 100 M1

0

85, 500 89, 100

rvr rYrr" 

TOTAL: 
rr rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvryrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry r

3fi1, 100
RrRrRrRrRr

r,.,.,, 

400, 700
II

900 I I ' 1 1 8,00
rri.....,...... 

nn

s , fi- 50
r.:...:.. 

rrr.........,,,,,, wn.... rr,,, r. r.. 

ri s Contractct
n... » 

0 r 00' 4, 894, 300

Yr, Yr,,,,. rn,_ 

4, 894, 300 4,992, 700

Services Supplies 108, 400 102, 300 70 49, 700 49, 700

Animal Control 24 0 2 , 100 - 1, 10 208, 800 203. 800
MRr n r »..,......, rrrrrr... '. 

rr rrr rr, rrr„ r, rWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWr,rWrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry , I ,,, r r,, » r.,, 

4, 770, 200.....  

Y» rYrYrYr, 

003, 0 5, 145'."100
µrr Wr r r r1. rWr

5



Attachment B

M-EMEMM"MI/a .0..

mmmm 
f %, ..,, attr  '

N MNNIN, 1MlN, 1MH, fN MMlmwwwrvw wwwwwurvnomx..... 
idXlduYtlkdrtNNlRllllllllt  ,,,,,, 

N/ r i/ 
0/ am( r  

pu orator

1    '%//////////// 
I  >"' 

J ) 1   r Illi i jf

WU

ikv.'
Wi;' yrouwu

i ie1

2, 044, 700 2, 144, 400 2, 292, 300 2, 428, 300 2, 456, 700

161, 900

Retirement

452, 000 444, 200475, 500475, 500 432, 800

Benefits - Other

43, 600

514,700 480, 700 499, 600 490, 000 532,900

R,R , R,,, m ,,, , A.__,,,,,.,_ 

2
rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrv.rvrvrvW,-W,- u, u, u, u, u, u, u,,»

m,,,,,, n

SewI& S  Je

5 fi12. 000 743. 50D

TOTAL:,,,,,,,,,, µ 3, 5D5 i 3,623, 700, N r 4.005. 800 4.1 fi5

900 N/ r 
i/ 0/ am(

r  pu

orator
1    '%//////////// 

I  >"' J ) 1   r Illi i 

jf

WU
ikv.' Wi;'

yrouwu i ie1 312, 300 335,

000 87,

800 149, 900 149, 500 161,

900

Retirement 71, 50015,

40056,10033,

000 15,

200

1eSupplies 43,

600BeneBenefits- Other 49, 000 56,

000 61 ,

80028,10028, 100 28,

400 SewI& S  
Je ury wvvvv n,

rcFmR TSTA L • • 

11 244. 900 212.

600 SUBTOTAL: 650,600 0 600 701 900 396,' 455.500446,

500

11

Salaries

Retirement

Benefits 354, 600 390, 600 87, 800 96,

500 15,

800 91,

600 29,

500 Other 71,50015, 400 15,

200 1eSupplies 72. 500 64, 800 61 ,

800
SUBTOTAL: 1 200 fiO3, 000

174, TSTA L • • 
11 f 1.304. 900"'

1

rvrvrvrv , 571, 600 648, 00 fi441

0 1 / lil V

eWI 

fff d rr rJy) 1! 4M r

r 41G( h,,. „ 

J

f ` ('

f."
Irrrrrrir;' R,R,R,

R,,, , , , , , .... a , u , u , u , u , u ,

u.'"'.."'T79,
400 R „ ,

R, , 

n„ , 162, 300 17 , 24, 100 24,
600 r 32, 000 1 35, 300 5, 300 7, 000

7100 26, 900 28, 000 9, 500 10, 400 9,
000 Z vi '{  ii 21 000 30, 800 48, 900 55 600 125.

20D Wnri,,

W rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrv.......,,

r
SUBTOTAL. rv..., u, u, u,W, W,W, u,

u, „ 242. 200, 273, 7, $ 105, 300 I $ „1

fi5900

R„ .,  i1C 321, 300 339,
500 .,,« . . ................................ ............. ....... 

I..,.., ........... .......................... ..................... Retirement 50, 400 54,

900 •, Benefits - Other 64, 600 72,

200 Services 134, 100 130 500 143M900 1348800 144,

400 57' 0 8 $ 597,100.. .,$ . , i
TOTAL• ,»»»» . - -- n ,,

n, '143 900 13 144.

400



Attachment B

w°°.°°.°°°,,°,,,, , w°, 
11. qr,. - ....... W,W,W,W,W,W,W

I ri 1- 19, 5 113,600125,300110,300 112, 100

Retirement 12, 30012, 60016, 200 16, 200 17, 600

Benefits -Other 21, 600 26, 700 29, 400 29, 400 28, 300

Services lis 53, 500 48, 100 50, 400 49, 900 50, 500

Proarams 7 59. 600 60,
k .................. - ---------------------

600

25"6, 60 260, 200  $ 281, 900 20 5, 4,00. .......................................................... . 2fi" 1009 _ 

ur; m u uuuuuuui u ur( wwwuNir yw,ww`uwur( wiPowwwwwwwwww w Pour Po

Benefits -Other

116, 500125, 6001

43««30D,,. 

128, 800131, 300

4, 900 4, 800

R,

4, 600

Retirement

4 fi00,, 

Services & upjA s 249, 100

25, 500

231. 300 227. 500 ZxSmm,? 00

32, 00033, 100

22fi, 700

Services & Supplies

27, 400

Services lis

232, 300
J 

I1, 0

I ri s 116, 500125, 6001

145, 100

21, 300

128, 800131, 300 106, 700

Retirement 22, 000 24, 300 29, 000 29, 000 25, 500

Benefits - Other 30, 200 32, 00033, 100

Services & Supplies

27, 400

Services lis e
1 132, 000

rn,..... 

87 ooD sa soo,, 0

J-"'§ U'6T0TAL: 280, 400 248, 400

to. ,° oo

Salaries

Retirement

138, 000

24, 200

145, 100

21, 300

Benefits Other

Services & Supplies 100

SUBTOTAL:

h 

191, fi00

TOTAL: to. ,° oo

GENERAL FUND GRAND TOTAL. 

R° ' 

441 800 1 X1, 3 0

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 377, 200
w,°,° 

987,900 6 00 1, 7, f' 2® 7 , 700

TOTAL REVENUES 1 , 
w ,

10 572 2010I , , 100 , 11, 487, 3pQ 1, 1, 813, 7,0°0.°°, 

C TOTAL TRANSFERS: 
WwwwwwwW,W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W, W,-, Wrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry _ 

fi 0
r

3 fid, ,,_. x'00 0fi* 0 5T17D0fio900

TOTAL REVENUES & TRANSFERS
w,...°,.,.,.....° ....................... , r , 

t, 0fiT500 12. Y 13. 641. 100 X11 10°$ 59. 0
m 

12, 411, 600' , 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 3'fifi00 1., 971, 50x0 11, 276, 500 1 X800
11, 8 1 w3 0

ENDING FUND BALANCE 2, 01 fi, 10D 2, 274, 700

F9



Attachment B

X



Attachment B

Salaries - Reqular 47, 500 48. 900 17, 000

I- I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I.I

17, 000

I

17, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 47. 500 48. 900$ 17. 000 17. 0001 17. 000

Medical Insurance 18, 600 19, 300 6, 500 6, 500 6,(500

Retirees Health Insurance 6, 100 6, 200 2, 100 2,,,100 2,.100

Medicare 700 700 300 300 30

Life Insurance 100 100 100 100 100

Retirement 9, 500 9, 300 3, 900 34, 900 4, 200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 35, 000 35. 600 12. 900 12, 900 13, 200

Community Promotions 7, 000 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500 2, 500

Computer Maintenance 4, 600 3, 900 3, 300 3, 300 3, 40

Copier Service 400 200 200 200

Insurance Premium: Liability 2, 300 2, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

Insurance Premium: Property 200 300 300 300 300

Membershipu 21, 22, 200 2, 200 22, 200 2 00

Mileage 6, 900 9, 300 3, 200 3, 200 3, 200

Office Supplies 1, 000 600 200 200 200

Travel & Meetings1, 500 2, 200 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

Utilities - Electric 2, 000 2, 200 2, 800 2, 800 2, 800

Utilities - Telephone 500M

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 47. 600 45. 700 37. 700 37. 700 37. 800

130. 100 i:::: 67, 600J130, 200[ 67, 600  Is fi8. 000 . 

H,

TOTAL



Attachment B

10



Attachment B

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS  2 ,„ $ 127, fi00 $ 52, fi00 52, 900 J_,, 62, 500120. 700

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Insurance r i - i ili

Insurance r i - r

Membership

Mileage

Office li

Professional Services

Publishing

Subscriptions

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

Wellness r

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

15, 500

3fi500j 57,' 100 IIIA 44, 500 1 1, $ 100, 900

TOTAL $ 473, 000  1 I. J525, 400 219, 000 ..........$ 217. 900 299, 500

11

11
IN

nnv /.. r, . rr, r/ r/// l6 r/ ilrlffl f1 fVr.. I. fF. rr'. rF fr V / i. // 

r

rri / ., 

y

rrr, // Y ,....../.  

o

I
t .,, 

rrrrrr U.. ,..... / o,  

rf., 

5../ iii / r. / r,... 

r ..., .... 

r/, I, „ y /... .... / 
r r,,,, / 

f r.... s , , ,..., , H ,.  ,  ,.. r. , , ., 
u

frv, ., IW, ,, vr, I rrwufll rmlwAwlww nlwwmuluig» h rin„ 

Salaries - Regular 315, 800 340, 700 120, 500

r. r. r

120, 500 136, 100

SUBTOTAL SALARIES ..........  
Y » r

3' 15,
A

800... 340. 700 ;
r, 

120 500 120 50„ 0 136 100
YYYYYY 

Insurance - Medical 28, 200 29, 400 14, 800 14, 800 13, 500

Retirees is I 2, 800

Deferred ti 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

Employee is c Program 100 100 100 100 100

Worker's tin 6, 100 7, 100 800 900 900

Medicare 700 5, 000 1, 800 1, 800 2, 000

Life Insurance 100

Long Term i ilit 3, 1, 400

Retirement 100 29, 100 39, 900

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS  2 ,„ $ 127, fi00 $ 52, fi00 52, 900 J_,, 62, 500120. 700

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Insurance r i - i ili

Insurance r i - r

Membership

Mileage

Office li

Professional Services

Publishing

Subscriptions

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

Wellness r

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

15, 500

3fi500j 57,' 100 IIIA 44, 500 1 1, $ 100, 900

TOTAL $ 473, 000  1 I. J525, 400 219, 000 ..........$ 217. 900 299, 500

11



Attachment B

12



Attachment B

lPYl4 NI@PNN7N4ri1W, W MR W MMMM GY/yY ' dOdPdNKN< NNHRHQMdM% dNWWWNWWWNW IWudd Nld d00d IYNMHhrilll, l IdNfNNli AA R NWMRIN{ MNQNdfINidUlmmmnNNdl INWi i ':'^ ditll......... dllM1bMMA %  WOW01IJP , w MNNW> i ? 
a w r// r rkndriviariarir/ r r ' iin   n, r , rrr . 

rr%r

1

J.. rrrrr rrilr. %„,,,, , a. ,.. / Vii,/ , r, ,/. r r. ,.. 1  
r

N  / I r , rY / 
rrt / /  Irk / a

I, N / 

r n a
r

IrrrrrrrraNY o wlwwlNuNarr r,,, "' rrx% r nm, urwwwww mmm 6 uuu uu, r G . mnnnn Mmm nnnnnnmmnimM wwwwx mmmmmmmMm... ummmmmmmm' smn. n« nr,« yam:. a YsrNlo vl, mawwwmw. ur r rn: nm. nn m, M' r( d mr « dfw w r ., wwwwwwwww W . mmMm rrw Yru G Ni a il  nNrwFwr

Code Enforcement 3, 504 1, 300 1, 500 700 11500

nvestigation- Other Atty 10, 000

Professional i - I
d

125. 400 1' 11;, 300 140, 000140., 000 140, 000

rrrr. , . rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr r, 

128 . fiDD 14D. 151. 5D0 700 141. 5DD
rf Y - H

w



Attachment B

14



Attachment B

1 r: r r r / . r. . 
rrii/. ,. / . ,. 1 1111: 1 w I 1 1 11 . I 1 11 1u:: 1 1: 1: 11: 1:: 1. 1. L w r   ,. r /.. .. rr/ A 1 ,, , w., , u: .. 1: 1 ::::: 111 r:: 1 : 11.. 11. 1 111:::... I 1:::::: 11 :: 1:: 11lr 1. . 1 1.:.:.: 11. 1:: 1 11i /  I I 1 I  11 1 1:: 1111: 1:: 1i t %/ 1  f 1 11 1 :. 1. 11 1111 1 , . ,% fI 11111:: 1111111111116:: 11111111. 1 111111111111111111 11::::: 11: 11. r f 1:: 1: 11::: 11: 111 1111::::: 11:.: : 111111:: 11 1 1J  ,,  1111111 11 1W 11: 111 1111 11111.. 1111. 1 11::: 1::::: 1. 

Salaries - Regular 192, 600 226. 700 73, 200 73, 200 91, 900

Salaries - Overtime 100

73, F. 0 . . .... .................................. SUBTOTAL SALARIES 2. 700 $ 226, 700 73. 200 $ 91, 90019 ......... . . . ............ .......................... .......... 
1. 1111. 11. 1111. 1 . ..... I_ 

Insurance - Medical

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Workers Compensation

Medic'are

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

15, 100

13, 100

22, 700

15, 400 2, 30015, 400

100

2, 300

100

3, 90® 

Credit Card and Bank Fees

6, 000

2, 900

14, 000

3, 400

200

1, 300

100

2, 100

2, 200

2, 100

36, 600

700

42, 100

76. 300

Membership & Dues

91, 900

10, 600

13, 100

10, 600 11, 100

2, 300

Copier Service

2, 300 2, 300

100

900

Credit Card and Bank Fees

100

2, 400

14, 000

2,400 2, 400

1, 300

5. 900

1, 300 2, 200

400

400

700 700

15, 700

Membership & Dues

15, 800 26, 700

32.800

1, 100

33. 100, 451. 50
1

0

Computer Maintenance 13, 100 22. 100 16, 700 16,700

Copier Service 600 600 900

Credit Card and Bank Fees 13. 100 13, 700 14, 000 16, 900

Insurance Premium - Liability 6, 400 5. 900 4, 500

1

4, 500

Insurance Premium -Property 400 800 200

Membership & Dues 1, 300 1, 000
1

1, 100 1, 100

Mileage 3, 200 3, 000 500 500

Office Supplies 2, 600 5, 100 2, 500 2, 500

P6nting 100 100 100 100

Professional Services 47, 500 23, 600 35, 000 35,000

Subscriptions and Books 200 200 200

Training 200 2, 200 1. 500 1, 500

Travel & Meetings 100 100 100

Utilities -Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4, 000 3, 000

Utilities - Telephone 1, 000 2, 000 2, 500 2, 000

Utilities - Water 200 300 300 300

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 1 1 $ 92, 100 1 1 $ 82, 100 ] 1 $ 83, 800 j 1, $ 8511,

1500
18, 800

1, 200

16, 900

4, 500

200

1, 100

Soo

2, 500

100

35, 000

200

2, 000

100

3, 500

2, 200

300

89. 1001

I .......................................... .......... ........... TOTAL ' I36 40 189, 800 791, 800O 226, 5001

W



Attachment B

16



Attachment B

800 h 78, 900

Maintenance - Animal Control

78, 900

2, 400

25, 500

191, 500

25, 500

Atter Hours Calls

25, 500

rjis

Fuel - Animal Control Vehicle

16, 000

2, 800

16, 000

800

16, 300

Repairs Animal Control Vehicle

16, 300

2, 700

16, 300

Cal Id 5, 600 5, 500 6, 100 6, 100 6, 100

Contractual Services 4, 45 , 200 4, 698, 8004, 300 4,894,300 4, 992, 700

Insurance Premium -Property 5, 000, 

Utilities -Water 2. 900m 1. 900 1, 0
n nnn

1, 800 1, 800

FComputer Maintenance - Animal Control 2, 400 2, 400

Contractual Services 191, 500 193. 500

Atter Hours Calls

3, 000

700

Fuel - Animal Control Vehicle 4, 600 2, 800

Office Supplies - Animal Control 800

Repairs Animal Control Vehicle 3 300,
W

2, 700

R

TOTAL 4 2774, 200 $ 5, 003, DD $ 5, 145. 1 DO $ 5,' 152, 800 $ 5, 246, 200 j

17

190, 000 199, 100 192,700

3, 600 3, 600 3, 600

5, 000 3, 000 57000

2 50 J. 

A, 

3. 100 2, 500

R

TOTAL 4 2774, 200 $ 5, 003, DD $ 5, 145. 1 DO $ 5,' 152, 800 $ 5, 246, 200 j

17



Attachment B



Attachment B

Insurance - Medical 217, 400 210, 000 205. 200 205, 200 205, 200

TYP ! wi' Y.. 

Am
ui9ibw. wWn' w mom, .... imna ..... mWMf NW, W. yW , . Y, .. Y r9^ F" ,,, Y. 

c rrri ,,, , ,, 

600 600

Ni/ rfN/ fMfiNf M/ M/ N/ NN/ NNAiNN N fiY fimf fiHi/ N./ NN/ n< N / NMm,  rNr WMNWWMNWWMNIPoININIWiN4f111111111111111; 

600

25. 300 17, 400 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

Salaries 1, 657, 600 1, 674, 200 1, 618. 700 1, 618, 700 1, 751, 700

I Constant Staffing - Scheduled 119, 900 118, 500 125, 300 121, 300 126, 800

Constant Staffing - Unscheduled 338, 200 346. 600 512, 000 512P 000 512000
P

Salaries - Part Time 49, 900 51, 900 56. 300 56, 300 66, 200

Salaries - Credit From JPA 120, 900) 46, 800) 20, 000) 120, 000

55, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 2. 044. 700
I..".,..".,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.,.I.I.I.I.-,,,!,-.--... . .... . . 

2, 144.400 2, 292! 30 I$ 2. 456. 700S 2. 428. 300, 
i

Insurance - Medical 217, 400 210, 000 205. 200 205, 200 205, 200

Retirees Medical 67, 900 63, 300 84,000 84,000 84,000

Employee Assistance Program 600 600 600 600 600

Uniform Allowance 25. 300 17, 400 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

Holiday Pay 45, 000 39, 900 42, 300 39, 200 78, 000

Paramedic Recertification 36, 600 36, 000 39, 300 38, 300 39, 300

EMT - DC Incentive 1. 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500 1, 500

Education Award 7, 300 8, 000 10, 700 10P200 10, 700

Worker's Compensation 76, 900 68, 600 60, 000 55,000 55, 000

Medicare 33, 500 34, 900 34, 300 34,300 36,900

Life Insurance 600 500 1, 700 1, 700 1 p700

Re tirement 4 52, 000 444200 475, 500 475, 500 432,800

Unemployment 1 2, 100

600) A

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS . ............ 9§ 6 170O 924, 900 9§_51500 J j . . . ... . .. . .. .............. 965.7001 975. 100 $ 

ALS Supplies Pass Thru 16. 700 27, 600 25, 800 25, 800 46, 200

City Emergency Preparedness 19, 300 26, 600 24, 000 24, 200 24, 500

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention 1
1, 000 800 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

Computer Maintenance 17, 800 23, 500 25, 000 25p000 25p000

Copier Rental 1, 500 2, 400 2, 400 2, 400

Departmental Expenditures 7, 200 10, 600 8, 000 8, 000 9, 000

Dispatch Services 158, 500 202, 300 220. 000 220, 000 239, 000

it Station Supplies 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000 4,000 5,000

it Truck Purchase 86, 700

Fuel 28, 600 28, 600
I

26, 000 26, 000 26, 000

Insurance - Liability 65. 300 45, 400 41, 500 41, 500 41, 500

Insurance -Property 4, 000 6, 100 6. 500 6, 500 6, 500

JAC Reimbursable Expenditures 600) A

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures 4, 100 1. 500 1, 500 1, 500

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures 1, 100 600 1., 

1

IM, M

Loan Payment 22. 600 22, 600 22, 700 22, 700 22, 700

Medical Examinations 3, 900 2, 200 7, 500 7, 500 7, 500

Medical Services & Supplies 1, 500

Membership & Dues 400 600 600 600

is Supplies 3, 000 3, 000 2, 000 2, 000 2, 300

Patient Care Reporting Pass Tru 1, 500 5, 400 5, 800 5, 800 5, 800

Personal Exposure Reporting 300 300 300 300 300

Personal Protective Clothing 15, 100 13, 200 11, 000 11, 000 13, 500

Personnel Recruitment 1, 800 100 500 500 500

RCCP Pass Tru fees 1, 100) 

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment 4, 900 2, 600 4, 000 3, 000 4, 500

Repair and Maintenance - Vehicles 44, 200 56, 100 48, 000 65, 000 54, 000

Reserve Firefighter Expense 3, 500 6, 000 6) 000 6, 000

Self Contained Breathing Apparatus ( SCBA) 41, 900 5, 600 4, 000 4, 000 4, 500

Subscriptions and Books 1, 600 300 300 300

TIP -Trauma Intervention Program 3, 800 3, 800 3, 800 3, 800 3, 800

19



Tools and Supplies

Training

Training -AMR Pass Thru

Uniforms

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities -Water

Vehicle Supplies

Weed Abatement Expenditures

SUUT TA . SERVICES & SUPPLIES

Attachment B

3, 700 2, 000 3, 000 31000 3, 000

12, 200 18, 200 30, 000 30, 000 39,000

11, 200 1, 400 19, 100 19, 100 19, 100

2, 900 2,800 5, 000 5, 000 5,000

14, 600 16, 600 20, 000 20,000 20,000

4, 200 5, 500 5, 500 5, 500 5, 500

3, 400 3, 000 3,0003,000 3, 000

2, 100 2, 600 2,0002,000 2, 300

7,400
I

6,000 6, 000

494,,,E0 6600 S 743, 60

3. 505. 600 $<<

r r r , R R«. 

TOTAL 3. B23. T00 $ 3 8fi3 200 $ 4,005 B00 $ 4. '165. 900
RRRR 

r», m

20



Attachment B

11 - .................................... 

lop

I' d

Salaries - Regular 3, 12, 3 335 00- 1 149, 500900

Extra Help
hh, 10, 000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 161, 900312,300 . . .... .- 

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Employee Assistance Program

Worker's Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Computer Maintenance

Copier Service

Development Support

Fuel

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium -Property

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Noticing

is Supplies

Plan Checks/ Consultations

Printing

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Subscriptions and Books

Training

Travel & Meetings

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

29, 900 32, 200 15, 400 15, 400 15,400

6, 200 6, 200 3, 100 3, 100 3, 100

100 100 200 200 200

4,200 8, 200 4, 600 2, 200 2, 500

5, 800 6, 200 2,400 4, 800 4, 800

100 100 600 600 600

2, 700 3, 000 1, 800 1, 800 1, 800

56, 100 62, 100 33, 000 33, 000 43,600

118,4100
61. 100 72. 000S 105. 100

11,11,11, 1.111_,, Z, - 

61. 100

8, 300

800

1, 100

10, 900

700

1, 700

3, 000

1, 300

3, 000

197, 800

600

100

200

Ill

2, 000

1, 500

200

0
11

2, 200

7, 900

1, 100

2, 000

3, 100

1, 100

5, 100

205, 600

100

100

2, 100

400

8, 600

500

2, 100

7, 600

1, 200

2, 500

1, 500

1, 000

4, 000

150, 000

300

200

200

400

100

4, 000

1, 200

400

23311,200 1 1 $ 248, 800 1 ! u $ 185,800 J

9, 200

1, 000

11, 500

7, 600

1, 200

2, 500

1, 500

1, 000

3, 000

210, 000

300

200

200

400

100

3, 500

1, 200

500

9, 700

1, 200

10, 000

1, 500

7, 600

1, 200

2, 500

1, 500

1, 000

3, 000

163, 500

300

200

200

3, 000

500

4,000

1, 200

500

212600

SUBTOTAL $ iS 650., 600 $ 701. 900 396, 800 455, 5001 446. 500

21



Attachment B

IS



Attachment B

M l! 

0 1` ." r rmmmmmrr rcrcrcrcrcrcrcrcrcmnw w w w w w w vvvvwn uuw w w w w ww ww w w w ww ww v v v vuv; e; e w w w w w w w ww; e; e; e; e; ervuwvvvvvvwr wiv my ", ww vuv ...... vvvvrvu wwwvvvvvv .. i ....... ..... ..... 

Salaries 341, 300 ' 361, 200 68, 600 77, 300 75, 700

Extra Help 13, 300 29. 40019, 200 19, 200 15, 900
n muo wiririririririririririririririrn n n'... ,.. rrommnnnnn^nmmiriririririririririririririririririririririririririrmmmirririririw+ ..... w w ry ...... .. 

u

SUBTOTAL SALARIES $ 354, 600 $ 390, 60D 1 $ 87.800 $ 96. 500 $ 91, 600
r, 1 __ «««««««««««««««< »»> 

Computer is

Copier Rental

Cost Recovery

Development

Fuel

I sur n - i ili

Insurance -Property

Membership u

Mileage

Office u li

Personnel Recruitment

Printing

Professional Services

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Training

Travel Meetings

Utilities -Traffic Signals

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

43, 600 46, 200 6, 900 8, 100 8, 700

9, 200 7, 700 900 1, 100 1, 400

100 100 200 200 200

8, 300 10, 200

5, 300

2, 400 2, 200

6, 200 7, 600 2,7003,100

11, 400

2, 300

100 100 200 300 200

800 900 200 200 200

580600 64, 600 13, 800 1 15, 800 29, 500

3, 200 700

300

m

600

27. 100 J130. 100 138. 100 31. 200 44, 700 I

1, 14, 800 7, 000 10, 000 I 7, 100

1, 100

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 1--$ 1, 207, 800I

400 1, 000
U

1, 200

4, 200

844,. 600

2, 500 2, 900 5, 300 5, 300 5, 300

1. 700 1, 500 1, 200 11, 400 1, 400

10,3006,900 6, 900

600 1, 300 1, 100 1, 100 1, 100

700 300 300 1, 100 300

3, 600 3, 500 300 600 600

2, 500 5, 100 2, 000 2, 300 22300

100 1 500

100 goo 1, 000mm, 1, 000

1, 200 1, 100 2, 000 2, 000 2, 000

100 500 500 500

1, 100 1, 700 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

800 900 500 500 500

1, 600 300 500 500 500

25, 100 26, 300 26, 000 26, 000 26, 000

3, 300 3, 200 3, 300 3, 500 3, 500

300 500 600 600 600

72, 500 741. 300 59. 900 64, 800 $ 61. 800

SUBTOTAL $ 557, 200 ' 603, 000 174,800 192, 500

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 1--$ 1, 207, 800I 1, 304.,!. 900  571, 600 648, 000 844,. 600

23



Attachment B

24



Attachment B

If

w u uuxN w, xxw m ww ww. ww. m  ;; .•• u• i i u. i i u m i ii i i u i i u ii lu, nvi« rc rauwr rcw'! mumciririunirva mri . 

KO: 
i p , 

r i, i, r,r ulw4i u lm II II wuJlu uuuw uuuu I I I II I iluJ4i I I 16116i1m I. ' I 14u4J I 4upii I qo ii  . ryf js mlf ul Mry, wu' brr v_. uwm www wwwwwmw wwwwwwwwmm wwwwwmwmomo wwwmomow mmamw wmmm www nwmmam a ww momowwrm wwwwww niuwiuwtr' aI N I NUI NUYNUI Nuµu rerv MuiiuuJ w wl' fuwum tYim 1! YM W vNwwl JwrwnvnuMM1Srr/ r 1G' I IrrtMMu g y yW 9y Y1 mYluw v uN ,_ i Salaries - 

Regular 152, 100 179, 100 23, 800 321000 24, 300 Salaries - 

Overtime 200 300 300 300 300 SUBTOTAL

SALARIES $ '162, 300 $ 179, 400 24, 100 32 300 .. 24. 60 Medical

Insurance 18, 200 16, 600 2, 700 3, 700 2, 700 Employee

Assistance ro 100 100 100 100 100 Worker'

so ens tion 4, 200 6, 100 5, 500 5, 400 5, 500 Medicare

2, 600 2, 900 600 600 400 Life

Insurance6 100 100 100 100 Long

Term Disability 1, 800 2, 200 500 500 1 200 Retirement

32, 000 35, 300 5, 300 7, 000 7, 100 SUBTOTAL

BENEFITS L$ 58 900 Y

3,

800 63,

300 Q

rar 9,

200 14,

800 17, 400 16 100 8,

200 y->>>... 

mmririririmmmmririri, 
8,

200 ComputerMaintenance3, 000 Copier

Service 400 200 1, 000 9, 200 Insurance

Premium -Liability 4, 500 5, 900 3, 100 37100 3, 100 Insurance

Premium -Property 600 800 1, 000 1, 000 1, 000 Marketing

Supplies6,, 1, 000 7, 000 , 7, 000 Membership & 

Dues 600 1, 700 1, 700 1, 700 Mileage

3, 000 2, 800 500 900 500 ice

Supplies1, 600 4, 000 2, 2, 000 2, 000 Professional

Services 2, 700 1, 600 2, 000 2, 000 77, 000 Protective

l t i A 7, 000 71000 7, 000 Repair

and Maintenance - Equipment 800 900 900 900 900 Training

200 200 13, 000 13, 000 13, 000 Travel & 

Meetings 200 100 500 500 500 Utilities -

Gas & Electric 2, 000 2, 200 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000 Utilities -

Telephone1, 000 2,, 200 3, 000 3, 000 3, 000 Utilities -

Water 200 300 300 300 300 SUBTOTAL

SERVICES & SUPPLIES $ 21, 000 $ 30, 800 $ 48, 900 J L 1 55. 600 S ' 125. 200 SUB

TOTAL ««<,$ R«

RM2=

2 273 600„ WWWW87,

800
rrrrr

105 .

300,1
165,

900 25



Attachment B

we



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - PUBLIC WORKS

Salaries - Regular 302, 100 320, 700

Salaries - Overtime 8, 400 10, 400

Extra Help 10. 800 8, 400

SUBTOSUBTOTAL SALARIES $ 321 . 300 $ 339. 500TAL .......... . ................................................................................. . ... . .... . . . ............... . ...... . . . ........... . ... ... .. fi, 

Computer Maintenance

Contract Services

Copier Service

Cost Recovery Expenditures

Dead Animal Removal

Equipment Rental - External

Fuel

Graffiti Cleanup

Herbicides/ Pesticides

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium -Property

Medical Exams

Membership & Dues

Office Supplies

Pavement Markings

Permit Expenses

Personnel Recruitment

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Sidewalk

Repair and Maintenance -Storm Drain

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Street Sweeping

Tools and Supplies

Training - Streets

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

Attachment B

44, 600 45, 600

1, 500 1, 500

200 200

10, 700 12. 200

4, 600 4, 900

200 100

2, 800 3, 100

50, 400 54, 900

ro 4, 600

115, 000 127_ 1100, 

5, 100

700

400

2, 000

8, 500

20, 700

1, 400

1, 100

15, 900

700

800

I

wo, 
4. 201

6, 904

300

1, 700

3, 100

13, 600

1, 700

600

11, 900

1, 600

100

600

100

300

400

3, 800

17, 800

4. 500

3, 500

12, 800

13, 900

7, 800

3, 300

I

4, 000

5, 000

400

1, 000

2, 100

9. 000

17, 000

1, 800

1, 000

6, 600

1. 000

100

300

200

500

400

I
1. 

15, 000

5, 000

10, 000

21, 000

14, 000

7, 000

3, 000

3, 000

15, 500

4, 500

5, 000

400

1, 000

2, 100

9, 000

15, 000

1, 800

1, 000

6, 600

1, 000

200

500

200

400

15, 000

5, 000

5, 000

21, 000

14,000

7, 000

600

3, 000

15, 500

2, 500

5, 000

400

1, 000

2, 100

9, 000

15,000

1, 800

1, 000

6, 600

1, 000

200

500

200

400

15,000

5, 000

15, 000

22, 000

14) 000

7, 000

1, 200

3, 000

15, 500

144, 400IF SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 134. 1 00.] . ............................... 130. 500_] 143, 900 134.800 L
1, ...... ...................... ..................... 

SUB TOTAL . AT .......................................................... 134. 800rI $ 1.........4...........4.... 40.......0

M



Attachment B

28



Attachment B

I u v //
rr ! 

iY1J ; / jC7,,! 0

Salaries 66, 000 68, 600 70, 300 70,300 72, 000

Overtime 400

Extra Help 53, 500 44, 600 1 55, 000 40, 000 40, 100

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 119. 500 125, 300 112, 1001. 1

Insurance -Medical

Insurance - Medical Retire

Employee Assistance Pro - 

Worker's Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Unemployment

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Computer Maintenance

Contractual Services

Copier Rental

Credit Card Fees

Daycamp

Fuel

Insurance -Liability

Insurance -Property

Maintenance - Supplies

Medical Exams

Membership & Dues

Mileage

Office Supplies

Personnel Recruitment

Printing

Recreation Center

Rental Expense -Senior Center

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment

Softball

Special Events

Training

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

8, 500 10, 8070 13, 500 13, 500 13, 500

6, 200 6, 200 6, 100 6, 100 6, 100

500 500 500 500 500

2, 500 3, 000 3, 700 3, 700 3, 700

3, 100 2, 800 4, 600 4F600 3, 500

100

100 100 100

500 800 800 800 800

12, 300 12, 600 16, 200 16, 200 17, 600

300 2, 600 100 100 100

313,. 900 j t 39. 300J 99L$ 450 45.9000

1, 200 5, 800 2, 000 3, 300 1, 000

500 1. 100 1. 000 1, 000 1, 000

300 400 800 1, 200

400 2, 000 2, 200 1, 000 1, 500

18, 300 7, 700 12, 000 12, 000 12, 000

100

6, 200 3,,000 3, 100 3, 100 3,0100

400 400

200 200 200

100 100 100 100

200 100 100 100

100 1 100 100 100

1, 300 1, 200 500 500 500

200 500 200 200 200

1. 500 500 500

300

4, 500 3, 300 5, 000 3, 000 5, 000

100 400 500 500 500

1, 600 1, 400 1, 500 1, 800 1, 800

18, 000 21, 000 21, 000 21, 700 21, 700

11 100 100 100 100

34, 300 35, 300 40, 000 40, 000 40, 000

1, 100 2, 800 4, 500 3, 500 4, 500

14, 300 21, 000 16, 000 16, 000 16P000

103. 200 107.300 $ 11 . 009, $ 109. 500 $ 111. 100L_ _ j

25 $ 269. 100SUBTOTAL

149



Attachment B

CEO



@7= 7777= 7

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Medicare

Long Term Disability

Retirement

Unemployment

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Contract Services

Insurance Premium -Liability

Maintenance -Lighting

Maintenance -Supplies

Repair and Maintenance

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Tree Trimming

Utilities - Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities -Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - PUBLIC WORKS

19, 300

11 " I ------ 

112, 900 115, 000 115, 000 115, 000

400

2, 200 1, 500 2, 200 2, 200

20, 900 19, 300 22, 000 22, 000 22, 000

7, 200 2, 000

300 w I - 6' 

17, 900 19, 900 19, 000 19, 000 19, 000

4, 000 4, 100 4, 800 4,000 4, 000

1, 300 1, 200 2, 200 11, 500 1, 500

77, 800 69. 700 63, 000 63, 000 63P000

249, 100 .10 231, 300 227. 500' S 226. 700
7 . . . . . . . . j

226. 700

2 232, 30.0 ! 31, 300SUBTOTAL

R



Attachment B

M



Attachment B

Salaries - Regular 114, 300 123, 400 126. 300 126, 300 104, 200

Salaries - Overtime 2, 200 2, 200 1 2, 500 5, 000 2p500

125. 600 128. 800SUBTOTAL SALARIES 116i5oo 131. 106. 700

Medical Insurance 21, 100 21, 600 22, 500 22, 500 18, 000

Retirees Medical 3, 100 3, 100 3, 100 3p100 2, 400

Employee Assistance Pro g 100 100 100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 4, 000 5, 100 4, 600 4, 700 4, 700

Medicare 900 1, 000 1, 200 1, 200 1, 000

Life Insurance 100 100 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 900 1, 000 1, 400 1, 400 1, 100

Retirement 22, 000 24, 300 1 29, 000 29, 000 25, 500

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS ----------------------- ---- I [,$ 52. 200 1 1 $ 561 300 ' 1 1 $ 6Z,,000 j 11 $ 62. 1001 1$ 52. 900

Advertising

Computer Maintenance

Contract Services

Copier Rental

Cost Recovery

Equipment Rental

Fuel

Insurance Premium -Liability

Insurance Premium - Property

Maintenance -Services

Maintenance - Supplies

Office Supplies

Protective Clothing

Repair and Maintenance

Repair and Maintenance -ADA

Repair and Maintenance -Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Special District Assessment

Tools and Supplies

Training

Utilities -Gas & Electric

Utilities - Telephone

Utilities - Water

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES

400

1, 100

4, 000

200

15, 800

18, 200

100

1. 700

1, 400

100

3, 600

1, 600

100

5811, 200

300

4, 000

45, 300

500

200

3, 500

4,900

700

4 lei

to

Is

1, 700

1, 800

5, 200

3, 300

100

3, 800

1, 200

100

300

1, 600

54, 000

200

600

200

2, 500

3, 200

500

15, 000

28, 000

10, 000

2, 000

700

5, 300

3, 000

3, 600

1, 200

100

1, $ 132, 000

300

2, 200

10) 000

600

200

2, 500

3, 300

500

15,000

28, 000

5, 000

1, 000

2, 000

3, 200

5, 300

3, 000

3, 600

1, 200

100

300

2, 200

10, 000

600

200

2, 500

3, 300

500

15, 000

28, 000

10, 000

1, 000

2, 000

5, 300

3, 000

3, 600

1, 200

100

SUB TOTAL 226 0 301. 900 $ 322. 80 $ 280, 4010 4000 1.. , 7 _ 11 $ 

33



Attachment B

34



Attachment B

Salaries - Regular 124, 500136, 400

Salaries - i 2, 700 6, 400

I Extra Help 10, 800 2, 300

SUBTOTAL SALARIES138, 000 11, 45,11 100 S

Medical Insurance

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability

Retirement

WSW,Wfly,01KH

21, 000 26, 200

100 100

4, 300 5, 900

2, 800 2, 100

100 100

1, 000 1, 100

24, 200 21. 300

Medical Exams 100

SUBTOTAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES 100 $ $ 

SUB TOTAL
rvrv, 

19 " 
1 F. 

0 0 $ 1. 8 $ 1, 068, 700' — 10,, 111 2, $ 1, 059, 100TOTAL $ 1. 780, 11 7

11, 441, 800 19, 851, 300TOTAL - ALL DEPARTMENTS 1: 2 11. 276. 500

35



Attachment B

36



Highway Users Tax: 
Section 2103

Section 2105

Section 2106

Section 2107

Section 2107, 5

Trpn v̀let from Sanitation District

Salaries - Regular

Salaries - Overtime

Extra Help

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Mileage

Transfer to City for Administration

SUBTOTAL OPERATIQNS

JOTAL EXPENDITURES: 

Attachment B

127, 200

I O t„ A ,., 

100

f

ear Bud e/// 

100

11, Y`
W" 

lO ntic  

100 74, 500

Emu b
mi

205, 300 360, 800 271, 400 270, 700 209, 600

113100 176, 100 137, 500 159, 600 149, 300

93, 400 96, 100 113, 000 95, 000 81, 800

185, 300 188, 400 169, 400 217, 900 204, 100

6, 000 6, 000 6, 000 6, 000 6, 000

100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

830. 3O

1, 000

797, 400 849, 300 825, 300
JT 927, 500

N Iii - Nd `-," J u n e 3 0 $ 102 zoo74 5001.....- ,' wE

STREET CONSTRUCTION RESERVE FUND - FUND 03

1/011
17 Wlid- e] 

i'  /,% r , r /  JJ a f G ,,,, : G" r r, r ,;: rr r. .., -. i , d o.. r „.'  '',, . 

341. 300 346, 700 $ 156. 600 $ 156. 600 $ 157. 300Wo

N U . ... ... ..... 

Interest 1, 000 700 700 700 700

Other Revenue 10, 800 A

158. 000TOTALRESOURCES: 353, 100 347. 400 $. 157. 300 $ 157. 300 $ 

5577777777777, 777EXPENDITURE
MELEM/ 1- 

Capitalrr
Equipment 6, 400 190, 800

Lemon Grove Avneue Realignment Project - 100, 000 100, 000

TQTAL EXPENDITURES: 6, 400 $ 190, 800 . .. . . . . . . """' 100, 000 100, 000

ENDirtNGmm
E- - June 3- 0 340, 700 15, 60606 5... 73J7S . 157, 300 =

ZfVNF ....

0.......... ."00 -
1

0

37

487, 300 481, 000 516, 800

15, 000 22, 500 18, 300

15, 000 4, 000 4, 000

517, 30,0 507 . 39. 1005500

75, 400 67, 700 75, 400

8, 400 8, 200 9, 300

1, 000 1, 000 1, 000

100 100 100

4, 700 14, 600 14, 600

7, 400 7, 000 7, 900

300 300 300

4, 700 4, 700 4, 700

110, 400 103, 000 128, 200

21 2, 400 206, 600 241, 500

7005000 200

830, 200 927, 400

927j40'0

64, 900

9,0990

60, 000

60, 700

44, 500

8301,

1200
44. 700

927, 4001 774. 800 825, 3008

N Iii - Nd `-," J u n e 3 0 $ 102 zoo74 5001.....- ,' wE

STREET CONSTRUCTION RESERVE FUND - FUND 03

1/011
17 Wlid- e] 

i'  /,% r , r /  JJ a f G ,,,, : G" r r, r ,;: rr r. .., -. i , d o.. r „.'  '',, . 

341. 300 346, 700 $ 156. 600 $ 156. 600 $ 157. 300Wo

N U . ... ... ..... 

Interest 1, 000 700 700 700 700

Other Revenue 10, 800 A

158. 000TOTALRESOURCES: 353, 100 347. 400 $. 157. 300 $ 157. 300 $ 

5577777777777, 777EXPENDITURE
MELEM/1- 

Capitalrr
Equipment 6, 400 190, 800

Lemon Grove Avneue Realignment Project - 100, 000 100, 000

TQTAL EXPENDITURES: 6, 400 $ 190, 800 . .. . . . . . . """' 100, 000 100, 000

ENDirtNGmm
E- - June 3- 0 340, 700 15, 60606 5... 73J7S . 157, 300 =

ZfVNF ....

0.......... ."00 -
1

0

37



Attachment B

PARK LAND DEDICATION ORDINANCE - FUND 05

w/m/m/op"' I
r <. r / . v  / l..rr, . 1. .. ,... %

Jr... u. 1 i/. ., , rrti„ , r ,,.. %., ,., 00

19,400 237600 00 19,100 59, 200
i V

Development Fees 4, 1 0, 0 9, 000 51, 100 50, 200 5, 000

Interest 100

OT'AL RESOURCES: 32, 600 70, 200 69. 300

ll - - -------- 6

7///7//-g7,7M" 71j770/37 0Z7
Park Improvements 13, 500 10, 100 loploo 64,200

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 13, 500 10000 1LA0, 100 64. 200I

ENDING, FUND BALANCE - June 30 23, 600 $ 19. 100

tiff, 
7 71 11

Jy

10" 

2, 003,700 1 P906pi00 1, 772, 500 1, 772, 500 1, 242, 900

yr ,  0 , . 7V I f it " a.,, i mil  
u , v

r /  r 
UU / J'yirl% r/ r„%: L....................... ............. ................ ..... . . . . ............... .......... ............ 

7/_ 

4 0" Interest - Other 4, 500 4, 200 1.1, 400 41400

Property Tax Service Fee Refund ( one- time) 98, 400 1

rw w w .......... ,,, .......... ,,, .......... . . . . . 

201,66, op 1, 776, 247. 300TOTAL RESOURCES: 

City Manager Recruitment
Election Services (- seats= 10, 000;,, 1 - ballot

measure=$ 6, 000) 

Fire -Side Fund Pay -Off ( HCFA) 
nvirat Plan Update

Sfe*; Leave Payout

Telephani Upgrade

Trod er:to Self Insured Funds

1' r'a,,W,jfe,r to Capital Improvement Projects Fund

V', call' lo 11' Pay Off

Fin,ancEm System

Fire Engine and Fire Equipment

IT System upgrades

Facility Replacement - City all

Facility Replacement -Senior Center
Facility Replacement -Sheriff s Station
Animal Control Vehicle

00ENDING FUND BALANCE - June ........... '3O" . . .. .. . . . ............. ........ 1 t906. - i"', 66""" 

061.
1. 1 '

1, 24, 2 90` solo
rrrr

38

1. 
N' 17, 500

27, 100 200 8, 000 5, 500

20, 500

150, 000

4, 600

1. 7'" 800

85,1000 50, 000 50, 000 25, 000) 

1 180, 000

1, 700 400 12, 200 37, 500 12, 000

32, 700 38, 000 32, 000 32, 000 4" 

15, 700 35, 600 114, 000 114, 000 65, 200

13, 600

50, 000 50, 000

115, 000 115, 000 15, 000

95, 000 W

30, 000

Do 500 137, 800 4 4 ,740

00ENDING FUND BALANCE - June ........... '3O" . . .. .. . . . ............. ........ 1 t906. - i"', 66""" 

061.
1. 1 '

1, 24, 2 90` solo
rrrr

38



Attachment B

qr 0000 mn

mini; e

11, 000"k,41311" W4, 

F
o i' WIWNWY

7/sm/m/w/17

Annual Allocation 100, 000 100, 000 100. 000 100, 000 100,000

0 0 000TOTAL RESOURCES: 1111

o 1 1111U I

Transfer to City for Administration & Operations 100, 100 100, 000 100, 000 100,000 100, 000

TOTAL EXPENDIT RES: 100. 100 100.0001 1' 00, 00"01 $ 100. 000

I ..... . . .. .... ENDING V6 R̀iYiAi4 LABALANCE - June 3 0

GRANTS - FUND 08

x r, .>/ , ; t ++  i, w „ I ; W . / . ,;; , Ili  
r

l /. r  f

In r , ry W U  a H  : I  , .  M o , ,   
a r  11     

f

617. 6,04 ( 32, 300) ( 32, 3001 132. 3001

1/10R I
Grant Revenues & Reimbursements 160, 900 798, 500 772, 900 660, 800

Interest 200 200

TOTAL RESOURCES: 2. 300 . ................ 1. 200 $ 740. 600 fi2fi 500 00

Public SafetV: 

Disaster Preparedness Grants

Misc Fire Department Grants

Homeland Security Grants ( SHSGP) 
UASI- Urban Area Security Initiative
ARRA JAG -Law Enforcement

JAG Law Enforcement Grant

Miscellaneous: 

Beverage Container Recycling Program
HEAL Zone Grant

Capitall PLojects: 

Promenade Extension Planning
Smart Growth Incentive Program - Promenade

Safe Routes to School (State) - San Miguel

Safe Routes to School ( Non -Infrastructure) 

Safe Routes to School ( Federal) - Palm/ Golder

Safe Routes to School ( State) - Madera

Extraordinary Item ( Promenade correction) 

2, 900 1, 200 2, 200

400 1

7, 300 17, 800 22, 000

1, 100 3, 400 3W400

12, 600

12F000

24, 700
OMEM111110- 

300 6, 200 300

19 ,0 0000 14, 700 12, 000

iE68, 900

27, 300

152, 200

100

123, 000

W H

308, 000

100, 000

325000

772. 900

2, 300 2, 300

22,000 20,000

3, 000 3, 000

gw

300 300

12, 000 12F000

196, 200

100, 000

325,000

112, 100

105,000

225, 000

479, 700 J
I ............................................................... . --- '

iiiiiiiiirrml rr r xa xa, rrr ri:, 

END- ING FUND BALANCE - June ... '3 0 . . . . ................... .............................. . ............. . . ....... $ 637, 500) ( 3Z, 3,, jX2'j30

39



Attachment B

rt rlYryfrlYl Yr- 

Vl 1„1
I

r rrrro( r wJ, wr„ rwrlwl wN/ wrrr' r Yl: xu w. tk a( w( w( t( viRrdrrr f ffww wx w, w( wa. rrr uwvira, wWur." .- , rr erwrrtrrrtM lw r, m. w wr: rniml rrr uwr rf rtw: wkrrr IW f u.. dWnrtwwr, wMnw rrtrrtr rMrw I IM ( d iN i I immmmm IIIII I I krtrtrrtfrt mw Na

yY

5a I 400 400 $ 400 ( 400) 79, 600

w w

i r / /// S j
IJ// fJl// 

G. d.( mm' uww%- II .. r' 7me' mrm mwmwaw'' mx ww wuwawwwmm wwmwwww 4: wm wwwwwwwnw wwmx w w wwmow mw w wxwwwaw w

Allocation 293, 600 80, 000 80, 000

TDTAL RESOURCES., $ 293, 200 ( 400) „ $ 79, fi00 79, 600 79, fi00 " 

c
r

i, , i „: / ,/ i, r wr,  ff„ a ( Nr r  r r, 4i  a r ru rrr l / , r.,,, / r / / I // / ,,, f, t,,,/«/ r.r.,,,, t 1 i, ., r/„ ri, x /  <, r 
rix auwrrudo riiw .. .. 1 _ f ..... NLL/ LNJJNJJllmm»/ G,... vwwaw( fi( fNf( fiH Nkr' SY& k19NwwwNrcrtrtrtrtrtrtrtNmkrr11N6 IrNNAlik91HNNINK' N, fMMIMAfMfld mmml' Irn .. ........ _ +, Tj> I ... w wuuWu riv .. .:., 

General Expenditures 4, 300

Street/Sidewalk Rehabilitation 289, 300 79, 600 169, 000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. $ 293, 600 $ 79, 600 5

r»,,, n»»,mmrrrrrr%,»,,,r,,, 

ENC3ING r= UND BALANCE - June 30 4
m-,' 

N,

R,:: 

I wwwwfififififil

r

TS Annual Allocation

Other Revenue

Interest

Deferred Revenue

TOTAL Sk

f / 
I / 

r r ff
G Ilk6nnr. 

Salaries - Regular

Overtime

SALARIESSUBTOTALSA AR S

MedicalInsurance
W............... rrr.r...... wwww w.. 

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

OPERATIONS

Mileage

I

Capital Expenditures - Bus Shelter Replacement

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project

Broadway/ LGA Roadway Repairs
Repair and Maintenance -Bus Shelter

Repair and Maintenance - Trolley Facility

Trolley Corridor Landscape Maintenance
Transfer to General Fund - Administration

Transfer to General Fund - Operations

r. r »,,,,, Y,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r,r, r,r,r,r,r r,r,r,r,rr ................. .,,,,. 

SUBTDTAL- PROJECTS: 

I Arab r,    , , ,  1: -,'. A, r , ,  ,, l„ . ,, 
dIN@( Wiwi. NYN iJNirWMlIIdWIMYMNNNNNMMRIfIHFIIWiWil: uu M, ri IWIWI9XYM{ WNMII' WrlNll WYMY  PV ' 1 , , II N YAM W .. 1% MI% -  YI% qW"' 9 NR' gW( A40 lIyFNIKK MN 111, .. ;,,, ,

i„ ,,,,,, ',; 

L 20'0 28. 100

I, yJyrrrr yr/ 
t 4 

116, 200 121, 200 121, 200 121, 200 ' 12' 1, 200

1w1, 237, 400 237, 400 184, 900

300 300 100 100 100

166, 600 166, 600

11 fi 500 121, 500 52, 00 $ 525. 500 334,,300

o Illll 11, 11111111!! JJ J1JJ, / , LILI ! J 11111. 11I1 111J1111f > J' J
f

1 Jl I1. L , JJ I /111,1/ l lllllllllfillllI 1l I / 1. 

48, 10046, 700 469700

300

47, 000
r. 

300 300

47. 000 48, 400

5, 300 5, 300 5, 900

mm 500 500 200

100 100 100

100 100 100

600 600 600

100 100 fi

400 400 400

10, 700 10, 700 8, 100

17, 800 17.

800r
15, 400 j

I

600 5

I

600

120, 000 901000 100, 000

237, 400 2370400

V 50, 000

43, 600 43, 300 50, 000 50, 000 50, 000

2, 400 26, 000 26, 000: 260000

12, 400 11, 400 25, 000 25, 000 25, 000

3, 600 3, 600 3, 600 3, 600 17, 400

56, 700 60, 600

rrrrrrrrY r r r r rrrrrr 1r

1 16 ,500

rrrrrrrrr. r rlrrrrl

121, 300

rr, l rrrr rr » r. , , r , rr 

462, 600J
r., 

432, 600 269, 000

n, rr rv rvm,n, orrir»rrrrrrrrrr, rr,r-,» www» r»,k rrvry»,rr rvrvrvrvµµµ., rrrwwww,,, r, wn~ r»,». w rn,,,,,,,,w. w rn rn r,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, wn,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, r, rrr.. , , w. w.,,,, 

TDTAL EXPENDITURES. $ 11 fi $ 497, 406" 

r„,1mm ,, 1r1r1r1r1». _._

rr

500   ' 12' 1 300 527, 400  497 4D0  332. 800] 

r» 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 3 .. 200,,,,:: ® ` 1, 900? ,„

r

28, 100 1, 5x00 1

Deferred Revenue projected to be $ 130, 000 at 6/ 30/ 15

40



Attachment B

u .. .. r., .. .. III r   

i. 
i%// ,.;: ..,. ( li ,, G„, ,; , ".. fir  F. " G rfr r•,! . !

r <. ,.. ,

e.,  r t i ,... 

u I u II 

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

mmry 
w

i 1: ,. 

nnnx WIYIMIM Ynf N1iNY1M iA1WPol iF rrttl; 

ii/ iltlt //  /// 111 1 //////////// 
i , ,,, 

mwammmmmmmmmmwwwwwwwwnnnnnnnnradw mnnnnnn rr n ,.   ,,,,,,,,,; N», r,,,,, r» 
r u wu' u, NN aiJanusiNirrdwri aui r Niar a rrcra, x / l

Annual Allocation 792, 400 64 ',, 30, 1, 045, 800 1, 450,100 17911, 000

Miscellaneous Revenue 29, 800

I

TGTAL RESGURCES: $ 804, 70D ' fi 9i0 $ 1. 405, 000 $ 1. 911. 000

Salaries - Regular 63, 700 65, 500 69, 100

Overtime 100 100 100

SUBTOTAL SALARIES 63
x

800 i fi5 fiD0 200fig„ 
rwwwwwwwrrrrrrwww

Medical Insurance

r: 

6, 800 11, 200 12, 100

Retirees Medical 2, 000 100 200

Deferred Compensation 200 200 200

orr's Compensation 1, 00 1 P60 1 P60

Medicare 800 1, 000 1, 000

Life Insurance 200 200

Long Term Disability 400 400 600

Retirement 14, 400 14,000 16, 400

SUBTGTAL BENEFInTs,„,,,,,
r,, 

rrrrwxV
W, W, rrrrrrr ....,, 

2fi. 400
r,, 

28, 700 32,' 00. 

OPERATIONS: 
mmm mlm

eage......... 700

PROJECTS

Lemon Grove Realianment C - LG 1

Lemon Grove Realignment 909, 100

Traffic I m roveents M- LQ 1

Traffic Improvements ( Citywide) 12, 200 82, 600 125, 000 180, 000 139, 200

Storm Drain Rehabilitation - LG 1

Drain Maintenance (Citywide) 101, 000 35, 500 70, 000 115,700 83, 300Storm

Storm Drain Rehabilitation ( C ) - LG 16

Storm Drain Improvements 111, 100 111, 500 130, 000 243,500 118, 400

Street Improvements _( P)_- LG 17

Pavement Management 124, 100 152, 400 155, 000 139, 000 72, 000

Traffic Improvements ( C ) - LG 18

Traffic Signals 29, 000 16, 000 20, 000 9, 300 18, 900

Street Improvements _ CRI_ -_LG 20

StreeVSidewalk Rehabilitation 281, 600 111, 300 365, 000 623, 200 468, 800

treeViwalkRehabilitation- C 11, 300

Safe Routes to School (Federal) -Palm & Golden 200 75, 000 x

Safe Routes to School (State) - Madera Street 40, 900 200

Safe Routes to School (State) San Miguel 5, 400 20, 600

Transfer to City for Administration & Operations 84, 300 81, 700

SUBTOTAL - PROJECTS: 914, 900 612

GOOD
S 940. 000 01, 310,70

rRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrRrr r r r r r r

1 809 7 00

Errr r

1' 1 - ,
r• , rrrrr ._.. „ w, ,, r„ r  m- Y, Y, Y 

mm, 

r 

1, 4 
r

9vn
1 410001000000

R RrRrRrr

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 ,
rrr Y

41



SIDEWALK RESERVE - FUND 18

Attachment B

22, 22, 800 22, 800 22, 80

7V7 /// 77/7"M
gM /w/ g7

Revenue

Interest 100 100

TOTAL RESOURCES: .......... ............ ............ ...... . ..... 99] 22, 806 1 22. 800 22po $ 

111- 11-,, ...... ..... . . 

Curb, Ramp, Ik Rehab

L EXPENDITURES: 

EN DING FUND BALANCE - June 30 Z2, 800 22,8,00 22,80

C'j f
IIy//..  f„ %

J   ; 

l jar, 1,' r.  

rW,/;
n l . 7, G , v. // 

i., P/ ri' / ,
v ', I":. >

h°"' I., r % / il , 

y I,,,: V 
r/.  ,:, r +,  / 

a e d , r fak Iri, I
f / li. 1 , f  

D h r

105,900 98,800 88, 800 88, 806", 66, 700

L f -
I V Yr H I,,,, , r, J , , r ji,%0:, nn, % r rum a. moi. 11, . . . . ......... . - ------- 

rin . r
I I r MM11NO ' 11, 

A93 Fees 34, 300 22. 000 22, 000 22, 000" - 

Interest 400 300 300 300 300

MMMMMMr124
VI

I'

ll, 111on, -
IS 111, 100 69. 0p jTOTAL RESOURCES: 140.600

1 11 1Z. 

i. MI. 
33" 

Salaries - Regular

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensatin

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Long Term Disability
Retirement II

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS * I

16 iidNS . ........... . ................. 
Consultant Fees 11,11100 500

General Expenditure 14, 200

Mileage

Program Fees 6, 900

Transfer to City for Administration 26, 500 28, 200

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 41. 800 $ 35. 600
4

21, 400

21, 400

2;,300

800

100

600

300

200

4, 900

9 206

0111t

300

8, 500

600

A, .

300

23,900 1 1 21, 100

23. 900 21, 100

2, 700 2, 300

800 800

100 100

600 300

300 300

200 200

5, 600 2, 100

10. 200 6. 100

900 5, 500

300 300

81,600 8, 000

600 1, 200

101 ........... . . 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 40, 9010
1

421120

go"Bob
7; g , 0066,700 $ . .......................................... ......... 4 ........... 6 -8 0 0

Z; ; 111 = 170

42



Attachment B

Nrta ,. riiiiii. k

300

y  r

r. a
4, 300

a „ la  

vat

4, 900 4, 900

nyi k I , r

P,.., r. 

5400
NEW, ex / 

4

7 700

w, 3, 900

Annual Assessment Revenue 8, 500 8, 700 8, 500 8, 900 9, 100

TOTAL RESOURCES 12. 800 1 13, 400 13, 8«

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr0RrRrRrRr0
14.500L

71112/5

I . . . . . . 

I 2. 800

1. 700

900

Salaries - Regular

7 700

w, 3, 900 3, 900 3, 900

Overtime

Medical Insurance

100

Iw

SUBTOTAL SALARIES
I-. 

3, 000

3. 900

I

3. 900 3. 900

Medical Insurance

Deferred Compensation

1, 700

500500

100

500

Retirees Medical

Worker' s Compensation

100 100

200

Long Term Disability

Retirement

S 5. 600

100 100 100

Retirement

S

800

1, 000 1, 000 400

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

L1 8 _ OU

I . . . . . . 

I 2. 800

1. 700

900

1. 700
a . . ................. . .. . ... 

7 700

1. 000

OPERATIONS

1) 800

1, 800

6, 800

qy;

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance 100 100

Contractual Services

Retirees Medical

3, 000

Al

1, 700

100

1, 700

Deferred Compensation

1, 700

Utilities - Gas and Electric200

100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation

200

100

200

Utilities - Water

Retirement

S 5. 600

800

500

800

S

800

Transfer to City for Administration

5. 6Q0

5, 500 5,,3 00 100 100

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30
1." 

100

TOTAL OPERATIONS: ............................... ...................... 1 4,15001 L$ 5, 300 1 L1 8 _ OU

HE

I 2. 800

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 8. 500 ..................... 
1

5, 1, 

900

8. 400 7 700

ENDING FN BALANCE - June 30 7. 700

1, 800

1, 800

1) 800

1, 800

6, 800

SERIOUS TRAFFIC OFFENDER PROGRAM ( STOP) - FUND 23

L, ,
A Y; ,: r m r, -; r  . u,, yrs, aaw awrnwo Irvw ryriwlw u wY»»» ryryrrivlway!rommm uiu, Yi." 

1/,,
aa_ 

f / f ferlft:./ j// , /
f ,. 

u'. f, 1 //,// 1. I U

r. . 

Ur,/,/. I 

II
ll71rt .,.... 

ar / a 
a

a a
r/ 

I /... . /

a h, ,

rr
a aalI

r1
lr I

40034, 500

i  ,, /.. , 

34, 500

1, 

X

I . 

V,

7r". ;,, ( ...
r./ // 

Ma r

YI I, 

34, 500 2 1
P

R711, 

Impound Fee Share 12, 000 9, 500 9, 500 9, 500 9, 500

Interest 100 100 100 100 100

TOTAL ESOURCES: $ 40. 100 i-- 44. 1 0 $ 44. 100 $ 44, 100 31 000
X . . .. . .. . ........... . ' 111

HE

900

Salaries - Regular

600

1, 800

1, 800

1) 800

1, 800

1, 900

1, 900
qy;

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance 100 100 100

Retirees Medical w Al 100 100 100

Deferred Compensation m

Transfer to City for Administration

100 100 100

Worker' s Compensation 100 100 100

Retirement

S 5. 600

500 500 200

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 900 900 600

bp E .......... RAT -ION S`--__, 
ExpenditureGeneral 3, 600 7, 600 20, 000 20, 000 10, 000

Transfer to City for Administration 2, 000 2, 000

TOTAL OPERATIONS: S 5. 600 9. 600 120 20 00 S

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 12, 05. 6Q0 TO

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30
1." D_ 1K 21. 400

Z, 

18, 500

IN



Attachment B

SELF- INSURED WORKERS COMPFNSAT10K1' RF FRVF - F1 Min 9-8; 

r r , 

iw wi i:.. i iw a ,• ,,... / ,/.,,,, , ir, ,, .,„,„ 1 ,,, , „ J/i •; I /, //,,, 1 ,,, /, ,, i. 
7 "', ri/.°mm!^ 

WIl
11Y':'% NIYIYYII!"' N'!' Wtl' N) I Mp rW, WNM1( f(lJlf(!!({' ry P • ` lan:'nMinrk ., Y I i , !(

IcufmM»( nmJ((((/(( r- rlr rlrlrm n' r rrrnnem. rmrtMMmmmrniv" .. N, ri

23' 1200 258, 000 355, 700 355P700 525, 200

u:, 1 A r 
y  I Y d f  

Iy
p ŷ'y','r • % , "

WWW d, w  [ 4 iwl 

w, V, wwwx• I@aIV
ii. . r f , , , f j

r r,, 

uuuuuu! apmmmxmrrtrimJrrrrrr w awww a--- s.,.,. m Zm' fwmcrtwJ

Interest 1, 700 1, 400 1, 400 " 1, 4,00 1, 400

General s r s r ( 25, 000) 

Other v ue

wn,,,,,,,,,, $
wwww 

TOTAL RESOURCES. $ 307, 900 I $ 317, 600 407, 100 7 10 80u0

rrn., m aW'. u' i w„; mf ../
JIJ/ 9m Immam mmml7mm!% i uaauYiiiwviyiYiiw' fmvm y my yivalw2w^ wovw umi/ ,,, prom iaa aua yi a err .. 9 fi., mromrnm oDrumamm mmmrommm mammiuya ,.,.... 

r. lffl

i / / J / 1 / /: .:/ / l / / 
fo / it / / / i /ii / / / / I / // ail//i/ I IIJ Ji / i//ii/    ,//////%//% / III/ / ilio / i / / ilii/ i iiia1 % / / oi/ iii // momIll / iff1 / / i/ J  r :  // il%% J//// f , i /  LJ iii/ i ii///i i . 

wwwwwwwww wwwwwwwww     

Claims4900 ( 38, 100) 

Estimated I i Ie ( 168, 100) 
Insurance s

Professional Services

8,
mm. w w w............................. . . . . www

TOTAL EXPENDITURES° 00 $ 1, 38, 100 168, 100 $ 
wwwwwwwwww,. 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 80 0. ! $ 

w85,"
00 407, 10 .

n....... 

0010

Fund Balance includes $ 25, 000 on deposit with Tristar.; 

STORM WATER PROGRAM FUND 26 ............................. 

fN ,, ,,; ,  ,., " p. ,. v. • '°,: , 1.. o  I amarirr rii ..-, n rr., i

r

rrJ
J . 

700 3 400 , 3, 400 4
Orr!I% ,,,

II ,,%
ie„ • FIlN/ u// fir/ m  / r/  / 0 i.,„ 

INRG,, ° y ,, t r /%/' Jr,mrl/ i,, r'" ; . 500
r-,. . ry Y•.,, ,.•-„• -." mlprd:: rp6lmrp mrwmpmwwaaNRrY ArppwrvNimi dpwrwrrfimmn : w fx... r.•/ prr„ rrrn ;^.: 

ate': 

w• ..... x, ANb: u: P rtrrtrrtrrtrrt rtrrtrrtrrtrrtai . yu '"" rocr r: r..,.,., ,. 
rrrww mrnirnnrnirv+n+r̂mnnnnnn̂mm̂ wwo o v arrr .. rwrrtrrtrrtrrtrrtrrtrrtrrtrrtrr' rr' rr rtrrtrrtrrtr « rrrrrrr , n r ............................... 

m mme w

1
lf yJIJu lwWf

wwWl
w%wdhwrnl, rpp/ y rfi ,, ?rf/% 

JJ lNi iIii/JIi
fllI

tIfl JIi t.+
I. 

NllJ.Ii! lI
r I11 i 

JIIJIKI m/
Iif

lr1l` 
1a/.f

iri/
a

pI > 
Ir ,

a 1Rp

rm
xe m,w«.x ,wr mmmm/auu„rw,armmrr w/

rrm,, 
mrrx

xi
nn N. 

Storm Water Fees - Commercial 48,8N 49, 300 49, 300 49, 300 49, 300

Storm Water Fees - Discretionary 11, 300 11, 500 11, 500 11, 500 11, 500

Storm Water Fees - Residential 300

Transfer from General Fund 81, 100 75, 500 157. 500 165, 000 156, 200

W, W, , , , , ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 
ww , w _ www w

TOTAL RESGURCES: 1041 X00 1391;700 S 22:"1), 700 $ 229, 200 $ 217,000I

SUBTOTAL SALARIES
rvrvrvrvwwwwwwwr. 

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Worker' s i

Medicare

Long Term i ili

Retirement

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

GPERATIONS

General Expenditure

Mileage

Transfer to City for Administration

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 

rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvwww www,,,,, , , , 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES j 
www .

BAENDING FUND BALANCE June 30
rr« 

f, »,,,, „ fr , „ fl,/ »,,, 
a . w wiw .... w. i , a , .» , ,, r rY,,, r, r Y ,...... a :: /////  

r r ,,, • 
a, / 

pl'/,/,,,,,,,
r, 

fi / 
a, / 1r, F,/„/% p/,,,, r/,,,,/,,., r . , 

30, 400 35, 100 29, 900

u 30' 400 35. 100 29. 900

3, 900 4, 100 31, 400
100 500 500

mm 500 500 500

400 500 400

300 400 300

6, 900 8, 000 2F900

w. 

97, 300

1 -- A, r ,«,, 

14,000

179, 000

8. 000

179,000

12, 100

179, 000101, 500

wa 200 1, 100 100

36, 800 39,000

138.300 136. 300-' 17 9,« 200 180, 100
rvrvrvrvrvrvrv rrrvrvrvrvrv rvrvrvry w. 

7 '17,
wm., 

9 ' 1000

1 , 

3 0

221, 700 229, 200 217 „,O a

4003

44



Attachment B

f /, Ir I, r r, r rUx uw, «„ r//, rr,. 
r , rr II I  r wrylf  /  e r 

I

200 I:, 
0 22, 300

100
I rrrrr,,,, „ r r r r r r r r r r rrr rrr rr „ rrr. rlr., www

I
f,« frf /, rrf, Iflf ,,,; ,,,/; u,; „,//, rf; f ,, rrr rry , rl,/„ r/ / I/: I , / r// af f1 f

r

f rry,  r,, r . rrrrrrr   Y Y f . Y r r    .. ;,   .. r .   , , r W.,  r rrr, r
r / , 

r1  // //////// i/ IBMii iii / iiiii _  . / O ///%„////// ///////ll/Ill //// /%/////////// . //, / /// 
I   

K m   

RTCIP Fees ($ 2, 254 per residential housing unit) ( 100) 34, 000 56, 300 34, 000

r.....:... w, wwwwxlI, .......,,.,.,., 

TOTAL RESOURCES: ; II34, DOD 56. 300 56, 300

U J ";' "".. III ...: 1:. { N4Nll'" SNI) 1rfiMNNdHll; mrv' ifMl' JJI/ I/ I/I/ I/ IIY IY IIIIIIIIIWuu, u, 1 !! I"« u' uax':. 11lll ' d
11

ir:,.,.: r  or r„ / F//:::/! // 1. . % . r/ / / r
I I: ... /, .. < I ,,,,,,,,,,, / I. I III % I , I / I  

I ;. ,., r/ rr/r%/Ol>r,,,,,r,/// G/ r// frf0/,r,,;/,,,/%%//////, ,. fy„///// I,////,,,, L,,, //// G/%//O///////////0/„r, / / 

r r fsmxa rl' ill lr Ir, wf: rl nik' , , „ , . r « rrrrrmrrrrrrrrrr ' rr f M% __  (... _. o .
mry

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project 34, 000 34,000 34,000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES. «« ,
wl wwn1, 

34„.000
Www

34.000 34:nnn w.. 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30
u . Iwl,Irrrsvwwu.,ur „w • Ir;.. I., I 

reR: wwu-u-u- wlww; wlwwwwlwwwwlwwwwlw IlwewrmN. eVV V

pIIp'
II "

r. r.I. I,...... u.:. i5. Jrf. 5r1. Vr1. f ff. frf., n...
r Ir. 1. IFJll fl ff lfl v VpvpWrryf ffl , v vv f , 1111ff11 J11Vra9 E , l l'uf(, Vnn' Y. yw iVN

02230vv«2f 2I 3p vyw. um fI1

Above fund balance does not reflect $ 99, 000 in deferred revenue

i IJM' QIP)! mN/ Yh4: V: VYFFF:' nNNUN)' NAY/! N, YWu'_ uu.'; W; yY/ YWl^ W" u I''!'  ,,, - I ' ' uuuvuoWWUWu uu WW. wwuywuwwW, Wuwuuwuuuy iW uuwuwWwWsrmWuwuuww wuwy ' uww uuWu uuWUWu uuWwwwwwww w' aa Nuwm

r  

I,., //.   U „ D / ../ v lf: , ,, I t,././ , o f ( fr , f it / r ..- r r/ ;, r,'' 1...../, 

I1 I
i i wwww( uMnirtfiHflSrrtiuiri(!! NL4MM WfXNrN6Yl WrNm1 !! 9DDDIINHrq!, N HYW'' u.' fFdhH Nrir/ DI oIWIN/ auV / INf ' rYrkllifinuw' ul GlJr. WUL  ry w, II . myu: wr G, w• a, ; YYwww: 

45;0°,00,0112. ,58 4120, 81 42:18, 8 448,60,11) I I

H I ;  J 1   Ill...;» _ w J y, JJJ I , 1 ,,, >  , f „,, ., ..,... ..... ice  . , r rr, .,, . ;. 1 _ rr r r , ,  _ ,,»», Y» w
J / 

oiiii ///// , i / i,/1ii iii,, i/ii/ii/iriiiaaiiiiii, i /i /iii / /  ,//%/// i / /  i   // 
w, r« ri rimryrr , rrr,,, ,/rrr,// _ rrrr,,rrrrr

Interest 1, 300 1, 200 1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

Dividend , 7 , 37, 600 20,000

Revenue- ner l Reserve Account 40, 000

I wMwrr,,,, w„ r,R,f«„«,«, Iwl,,,»> r,,»,,,,» mri,,,,,,,«,«,,,,,,,,«,«, R,R,R,R,R,Ir,,„ I,«,«,R,.,« ur,w„«,«, R,R,R,R,R,R,R,.,« ur,w„«,,,,,,,,,,, m,, I,, mmr m,,,, w l,,,,, r, ,,,,,,,,, „,>>> rn„n , Y ...,• n,. r.,.,,, m„ W ti

TOTAL RESOURCES: $ 516,000 450, 200 442, 00'D t $ 409 801

NW I   w. w, I ww rrr l 1, . 1  1, N t

rrrrrrr 1o 

l/,. 
r, w, ,.. , ,. Ill, r, ,.. ,,,,// r/ , r/,,, „' II rr/r / r% / / ri,! - / ... rf/.// //....../ rrL.,// i rr1r,<, r/< 

r , m « rrrrrr « rrnlrrnfrr wwwlus rsr: w r aa rs ui: rrw rw rw rw rw rw w l urrrtrrrrrrr rt rt ara ara arafi( 

Claims 92, 500 29, 400 10, 000 1, 000 I 10, 000

Safety Loss Prevention RegulatoryCompliance 10, 000 10,000 10, 000

I, I _,, ,, _, rrr,rrrrrrrrrrr,rrr,rrrrrr ....... w rf, r , ,, w w« www w« W, W, W w«, n,,, „ n w« w-------- v v„ v„ v„ v , w, v v v v„ v„ v„ vr, v vw w , r vr,,,,,,,,,, «,,,, u,,,..,,,,,, Y

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 92,500' 294D0 " 08iU 11, DOB 20666
f

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 423, 5 $ 420, 800 , $ 448,fi004,1

45



Attachment B

111 / 
r1

I I 1. 

I III  

I I

132. 100 $ 189,.800 $ 189. 800 179. 200

D, NJ. 0 M MUN., mYMNlMidkMf, w. hn' nroM, JXMrM; Nb1/ mm', mMmwwwww/ ww—

wwe:
mnnnnnmmimmaw , mvvm, fi r, i ,:,. u, fmA, h, a, m/, ..//,

r/„ sN

i, 
Y %

IW/ W, ../.... 

mfnIMUWVWo_,
f ... iWW/ WWWWN/// — W. 

a

vA

i
LMWIWKINI4JLLLLN N N NiJ/ÎNYNY!NID A NYYi 1M1111111NY1 1N'19fIfMIMfMMfNAMINIIIIIIIi llillilli ” lrtofV. ' W/ MMI( MMIMMMMMMI( MIMrM MMIWJh' il' MfM( MIMMMN( ffi'( fiifwrtMNfiW/ mdudutMiV NNV1flMINiNMMAMHIMVAFi

Interest 200 400 400 400 40

PEG Fees 133, 300 58, 600 58, 000 86, 000 56, 000

TOTAL RESOURCES:,»,»,
rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvry» u» rvrvrv••• rvrvrvrv•, u» um rr„ 

133, 50!IQ t9, 100 24200 f200351,,D
r, r w mw

r / 

r, 

I I

Computer Expense 8, 500 26, 000 36, 000

Professional Services 1, 400 8, 000 8, 000 31000

1Capit I Improvements 1. 1, , 33, 000 50, 000

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1, 400 1, 300 49, 500 67, OOD 89, ODD

ENDING FUND L
I

G U A ANGE June 30 11,
371-

I t 0 189 800 198. 700 I t 79 200 t.46 600
wn rn rn r,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, wn,,,,,,,, M...  $  

w $   I
r,..'®°°°  d,; h. m.;»> vr> r ,,, ma" T 7r n,   nWl' 1 :.. .......;,., vWaxv, y,' p levemmv rv rnr. Mp,"""""? d! 7,":.",,° rv." 1P,.'. aMvnWUG!, , r -. r. r. r. r. r. . P'.". SI ' " 1 en ,. 

I , y11 y „ , , N ,.. , ) mmq , I ! NENWIN J fi Jd NNfMXI M/ yIIMIIlY 1IWdtl f l/ LHRYHG( MMMMM ' XddddXdM RMM

1N fT9IIlIIl .,: ,,' vu , IVIJi NVYf 9Mv f I YW511' dMYdW NKI' Wd/ Aifrtfrtfrtfrtfrtfrtfrtfrtfrt( m( MffiIPMXI ' N( MfMfM( M PI MiUNNNNAN! N!X1J' MiIIMdMrt Podfi( mMMPMMiMu d( mdM1fm/ MMMdM17MfifiImW YdMMMMMMiMRM Mfr fifrtfrtfrtfrtf iMfmfiMikMdifrtfrtfrtfY i0000MMi/ mMllA6d' GJIiM( MMfi MmlfilnF( MMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMMM MM RfwMli

1, 01 5 1, t 600 261 AVO D 0
rF  wyr—,,T-- 

IIw, 

I  

Jig / / '.. oo,. w l/ i/ 1 f >ii/, r / il, .. . t!,. ,. , Y >' ru %. a ..,. ,,,  rf. / ...,. ,   . ../ / 

Housing Revenue 14,1001

Other Revenue 3, 000 - . a

Grant Revenue • 1, 170, 800 1, 172,800

Extraordinary item ( Reclassified revenue) 134, 600

rvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrvrv ,., r,,,, rv rv• rv, rv rv rv rv rv rv rr, r, r,», u», u M MMM F, r,,., rMr M, rM

TOTAL RESOURCES: $ 196400 $ [ 867. 0001 190. 8001 [ 88. 8001 51 —.0 —0, 

nrvrv, 

r . 
w I  I ,.  m, 

D

rr // 
f „ r

r, r „•.® M-; r,,,,, MNW/ HNlff/d11MMM/! N/' AIMINMIMI M( NNluiuiuiuuMM MirMirMrMluwa..... MMMNMMdfR/ mmrvfMMfi wwmmrvwrvwry M k wwwwwi... mmrimmwawwmmwrvwrvwamw i rvwwnwrvwry , , IV „,., ( 
J, ., , , /, yI I / 1 , Y„Iy;; Y, I„ ,,: 

General Expense 200 100 200 200 Mr. 

Le on Grave Avenue Realignment Project 400, 000 - 

Main Street Promenade 1, 206, 900 , ( 1 4040100) - 

Professional Services 5, 000 1. 

Mw w I ,,,,,, ,»»,,,, »» r»r», ,,,,,,,»,,,», yr„ r, rr„r, rr,, r, r„ F,,,, r„ 

m

1, ,: 00 394. 0' $ _._ TOTAL EXPE NDITU„R,E,S,,,,,, ,,,,,,,,,, ,,,
rrrrrr

6 Q0 4 0 ” 1391 5

Mn mmr

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 , $ 1, 261, 600 $ 491, 000f  51, 000 51, 000
n . mm__..... .. . ry .., 

e



Attachment B

Capital Reserve - Fund 32

87, 30 $ - 180 000, ru — — — — — - ---- ---- ------------- i Lit ..... . ....................... __ 111 11111111111111111 1. 1. 1. 1 ........ J

Revenue 87, 300 180, 000

TOTAL RESOURCES: L8 8
rWrrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWrWr........ . .... 

0, 

Offib 111110U
Fire Engine Purchase 87, 300

Facility Replacement - Sheriff s Station 180, 000

T" L UPR5i S

J" $ kNid46[ k 87, 300

WIUIINIMWWNYNNWWWN ' fl 

5
r. Vlo,//  /  / 1U1., rr. / /.. 1it / / ; / ... / ; 

14, 600 14, 600 14, 600

Other Revenue 900 900 1, 200

TOTAL RESO URC"E; S'.. $ 400 $ 15,700 $ 14, 500
vvvwP» .......... .................................. 

its ................... 2j MINE/ 
Contractual Services A 11, 600 12, 300

Repair and Maintenance 700 1, 000 1, 000

Utilities - Gas and Electric 2, 800 4, 000 3, 500

Utilities -Water 500 800 800

TGTAL XPENDITURES: 
w, rrrrrrrrrrrwnn,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,r, rrrrr„ r:$ '

8100 4417

m m m m m, R , r : R n,»»n»rrrrrrrrrrr rrrrr, r .: rrrrrrr Y 
rr r r rr, rr, rrrr r r, r , , 

646'NG FUND BALANCE - June 30 ( 1001

M

75 
12, 000

1, 000

4, 000

800

A .............. . .. 

130,30



Attachment B

Will I' ll I' ll I' ll

Ili
I I I i,",, -,''

I'll"," 

IUD IE EEA

149, 600

13, 700

161, 900

15, 000

a :,, I

I

W.,r, rrb , "
r ;.=

rY
Nrmm,!.,.

r.

mm..,. .,,, : 

i

r ,

w,

rV
y..

aI..
W,,,;.; :s 

l

M

w

mm

rr r rr,

rii , +„

rmmrmmr
mm.. 

ur,
r,, .

I

I

llrs l:
mm. 

Wrr.,,,r,.,,....,., . : 

r.

W. .:

I " 

N .

0rh
r rrtl

ru , 
i , , ,'

I

rr,
e1+. r

I.M.
d. r.Itl 11r. r 7WV

oi! . ,  

r . rJ. 

n, d w, 

p a i

ulry
ry, I' 

IIII  IIU" i h' Nmd h' 
F, i.

Ip'. 
mmmmmmmm.. mm. mmmm.. . mmmmmm............ .......... W .... 

Mr rr..' rM M. 

mmr  
W

hwr,. M

rr.,.;
I lrl

m , : 

X18 " I  Iury 

i IIU  o i IN's"IW   h
U I

mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm21, 
J.. 

I  9

iIq
iii u IIN m' i2 III IIID' r....... W.......... W.......... " 

1 I

pp'.. 
I    

i
u IIII u i i  Nm

mmmm....  mmmmmmmmmmmm Wmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm mmmmmmmmmmmmmm.... iIW.. 

uIry 
IIU ail aim "' im  i i" im'" N hu' U' Y . 9, . D... . 

i
a flff ir„ fl r ,, f/ 1///, i. .lir, 1, l r i ' i J l1111% ri / r llrrrr fl: ri" ii// ll „„ 

i : j//// j// j/ 
r( r /

j j... IM.mmmmim 1F 

it r., e.. r rr .. .. r. 

i v .,. e. ... 
iiii  

r/.. l/ i.. /., i / % ly, i
a, 1,  

d WOIOJ01' IMMM bOdPPUJdW' ' .... MI N

r 1r, l

rf rrm,, wWSrvrvrvrvv( ilill5, ry .///
1% l 

Administrative Reimbursement
i:, 

f f fmmmm( F " IiiGllii f uuNm

I

iii/ii,.,...:. 
W.q uuu '"' fwwwww' 

248, 000 250„ 000

f° ++ iYlQ mmrvwfifRfRffWWWIW Wu..., I

250,000
i f dldliifRfRfRfRf f fRfRfRf f( fiif//// l l NI RfRfRfRfRof fm Y/ fiiff RMOMdMMRdMdfR00RR00ff RM MdMMRdMdf f f f f 

250, 000

ROPS Reimbursement 2, 035, 400 2, 083, 500 2, 100, 000 1, 848, 000 2, 100, 000

Miscellaneous Revenue 227, 900 o F

Rent 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000 9, 000
Interest Revenue 7, 800 4, 000 4, 000

67 600

46

Extraordinary Item - reallocate housing revenue

2004Tax Allocation Bonds - Interest Only161, 100

134, 600) 

273, 400 136, 000 136, 000' 

TOTAL RESOURCES: 
ll" 

000: 10 fig 4 0
rr

X10 525 4D
rr, n, 

0

rr

10. 194.900) 

Salaries - Regular 154, 600 I 149, 600 1 161, 900

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance

1. 232. 000 I1

154, 600

13, 700

149, 600

13, 700

161, 900

15, 000
Retirees Medical

5001 901

8, 100 8, 100 8, 100

Deferred Compensation

1
d

800 800 800

Worker' s Compensation 6,8006,800 6, 800

Medicare 2, 200 2, 200 2, 200

Life Insurance Ifs, I

Long Term Disability 1, 400 1, 400 1, 500

Retirement 34, 600 34, 600 15, 800

r

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS 67 600 fi7, fiD0 * i 50* Dra, 
2004Tax Allocation Bonds - Interest Only161, 100 273, 400 136, 000 136, 000' 

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds - Interest Only 342, 200 579, 300 571, 800 571, 800 563, 900

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds - Interest Only 189, 800 324, 100 315, 500 315, 500 305, 200

2014 Tax Allocation Bonds - Interest Only 115, 200 115, 200 223, 000

Administrative i r e n 250, 000 248, 000 27, 800 16, 600 24, 600

Consultant Services 900

DCH Honda Freeway Sign 16, 300

General Expense 7, 200 3, 900

Legal Services 8, 400 2, 000 5, 000 2, 000 5, 000
Mileage 3, 000 3, 300 3, 300

Main Street Promenade 150, 400 140, 000

PERS Actuarial Unfunded Liability W 694,400

Professional Services 1 13, 400 12, 700 5, 000 10, 900 5, 000

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project 92, 300 500, 000 500, 000 500, 000

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 1$ 1. 232. 000 I1 1, 443, 400 1, fi79, 300 1, 81' 1, 300
nnnnn,  ,.. ..... 

2. 324, 400

r,,..,, 

TOTAL ExPENDITURES: 1, , 1, , 5001 901

rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr rrrrr,,,,,,,,,,, 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 $ 13 398 900
VVrvrvrvrvF; [ r2r,

fi32Yr410 1 7, 
1

d

In addition the following pricipal payments will be made ( these payments do not affect Fund Balance): 

mrn,rn,_ 

200 Tax Allocationtion Bonds - principal1 my 70, 000 70, 000 75, 000 75, 000

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds -principal Only 180, 000 185, 000 190, 000 190, 000 205, 000

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds -principal Only 330, 000 340, 000 345, 000 345, 000 355, 000

2014 Tax Allocation Bonds -principal Only mm .' . 1 100, 000

TOTAL BOND PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS: $ 580, 000 $ 595, 000 $ ... 6..10, 000 ...... fi10 000 $ 660. 000
11

48



Attachment B

JJ
f. r< `, „ ttr r, I.

N,,

INl 51fn( J4i,, , i f kf i, 4v!/ 1 ..  7 ' 1,  I : f r,,,, ir ,, i , x, 

M $ 147800 $ 235, 000 235, 000 286, 900A, 
W11

17511200

Y I , 1Nw">' u V, 9', ,  f, ° '
1' 

Y, 1  

ppm/
Yr % "''. / / ' , r., 

eserve for St'reet Liqht Improvement 0 30AY 30. 600] 30. 600

17

MINE
1, 51 N400 157, 700 158, 000 158, 000 158,000

Interest 400 500 400 400 400

ES 333 400 I' S 445. 30029

rMM

Salaries - Regular 16, 100 15, 800 16, 400

1

6SUBTOTAL SALARIES ......................... . . . . . . ..... . ............................................... . . . . . ...................... 4 1 16. 100 15. 800 400

Medical Insurance

w

124, 400 "
1 1 11

j 98. 400

1, 700 1, 900 2, 500

Retirees Medical

Mileage

111. 600

500 600 500

Deferred Compensation

Professional Services 200- 

100 100 100

Employee Assistance Program

Repair and Maintenance 11, 700 3. 100 5, 000 5, 000

Worker's Compensation

Utilities - Street Lights 64, 200

200 300 300

Medicare

Transfer to City for Administration 48, 300

200 200 200

Life Insurance 1., 11

1

Long Term Disability 100 100 100

Retirement 3, 600 3, 600 3, 000

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

w

124, 400 "
1 1 11

j 98. 400

6, 400,. 

II S j

7006. 700

IOPERATIONS

Mileage

111. 600 106. 500

300 300 900

Professional Services 200- 

333, 300. 1

5. 000

Repair and Maintenance 11, 700 3. 100 5, 000 5, 000 5, 000

Utilities - Street Lights 64, 200 70, 200 74, 000 74,000 74, 000

Transfer to City for Administration 48, 300 25, 100 4, 700 4, 700 9, 000

TOTAL OPERATIONS . . ..... ....................................................................................... 

rrrrrrrrrrrr w

124,400 "
1 1 11

j 98. 400 89.00084,00q] II S j 88900

fA_, L - X- -
wwwwwwwwwP.- . C.-- _Nwwwwwwwww - V, -17- _U_ I _RE S. .................... . . . . . . . ............................... ......................... .................................. .. ... ... ... ... ... 124, 400. 1

www

wwwwwwwwwENDING
98, 400.] 111. 600 106. 500 112,000

FUND BALANCE - June 30 17 0 '' 1 $, - 281900
IIEEE=. ll..,.' ME" I'lI

2,86, 900I . . ... . ... nn",M, I ! C 333, 300. 1

49



Attachment B

r ! f

r r

rev r Coro  0 1 I ,    wwwvu wwwwwwwmwuvvuu ` vl vuvuvuuw uwuwuw vuvu vu

439 400 38fi 900 272 70D 272 70 0 ' 154 3D07 1

imo  ,,,,,,.,,,
r,l.,,,/ r / ,,,,,.,/ r!, 

i rrtrrtrrtrrtr rnrwrrrr Nr I Jrn/ rJ fn m rw r r rarar . _ ry   ru,',»',»',»',»',»',
H a „

rn' w', w', w', w

1, l/%/ / r,,%% r r,// r r  / i „// ,,, o f,,,,// ,, llll  r

Local Benefit Lighting Assessment si 85, 800 86, 000 86, 000 ' 86, 000

Other Revenue 6, 100 w

Interest 1, 000 800 1. 100 11100 1, 100

TOTAL RESOURCES: _ 

RrRrRrRrRrrrrrrr5'
S 00- 

r rrrr

369 
r

SD0 3'° 9, D 241, 01
r .. 

uw II' x11y1 yHm' NMYXWIfrK; NX "" m MN" r
MSM MIW+ nxWA% lanM1MAA, AMMIVpY

i
r x t/` f, 

Salaries - Regular 46, 100 45,200 47,000

SUBTOTAL SALARIES w 46, 100 45,200 47, 000

Medical Insurance 5, 000 5, 300 5, 300

Retirees Medical 1, 600 1, 600 1, 600

Deferred Compensation 300 300 300

Workers Compensation 800 800 300

Medicare 600 600 700

Life Insurance 100 100 100

Long Term Disability 300 200 300
Retirement 10, 300 10, 400 8, 600

RRrrrr, rnrrnrrnrrnrrnrrn»r r,»,»,»»»»» rrrrrr rrrrr    r « rrrr, , r ,..,. 

SUBTOTALriririBENEF ITS 19. 000 19, 300 17,200
Mileage SDD 8

x. r., , rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr,- , rr, ,, x __. 

00 700

Professional Services 5, 100 5, 000 5, 100 5, 100 5, 100

Repair & Maintenance -Street Lights 4, 900 29, 000 7, 500 7, 500 7, 500

Street Light Utilities 92, 100 108, 000 113, 300 113, 300 113, 300

Street Light Repayment program 5, 800 3, 600 11, 700 11, 700 11, 700

Transfer to City for Administration 30, 600 61, 300 2, 600 2, 600 I 47900

J

TOTAL OPERATIONS: 138 , 5DD 206 900 141. 000
rvrvw

r141,
000

u 

143. 200
rxrm

r ..... 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: 
rxrxrx,, r

138, 500 06,

r, 

20fi900 Ofi
x rrrr ,xrrrrrr 

205. 500 207. 400  

rrrrr, 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 
n

I 

I  .. 

wl 6+i W° 272 700 ; 1 700

50



LEMON ,,GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT

Sewer Capacity Fee
Interest

Other Revenue

Property Tax Interest
Sewer Service Charges ( net of deliquencies) 

Sewer Service Charges - LGSD and LM

Attachment B

OPERATIONS - FUND .......................... . . . ................. 

777,11, -- - -- --------- 

7, 221, 900 $ 8, 684,600 $ 8, 276, 400 8, 276, 400 8, 276, 400

Utilities 4, 800

ak! i i

5, 200

67, 300 16, 100 17, 000 39,000 17, 000

20, 300 21. 600 21, 800 21, 800 21, 800

12, 200

3, 000

12, 000

1, 100 1, 200

16, 100 36. 200

5, 459, 800 5, 827, 700 5, 460, 000 5, 853, 000 5, 883,000

44, 600 28, 700 39, 000 50, 000 39, 000

j 281 AGO, 1459, 0 14,243, 200 14,247,20031# i. 

Utilities 4, 800 5, 500 5, 200 7, 20 7, 200

Personnel 3, 400 43, 200 1, 135, 800 1P126P900 1, 167,800

Training & Travel 12, 200 7. 500 16, 600 12, 000 16, 600

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 16, 100 36. 200 35, 000 26,000 35,000

Services & Supplies 2. 510, 000 2, 648, 900 3, 875, 700 4,028, 500 4, 528, 800

Transfer to General Fund for Administration 737, 100 547, 500 548, 500 548, 500 552, 400

Transfer to General Fund for Operations 746, 800 1, 014, 700

Transfer to Gas Tax Fund for Operations 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000 100P000 100,000

OPERATIONS 4, 130, 400 O3, OO 5. 849. 100 6. 407. 80
1

5. 716. 800

1, 900, 000Transfer to Operations Reserve

TRANSFER TO RESERVE FUND 16 $ $ I $ 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES: $ 4,130. 400 j S 5. 716. 800 $ 5. 849. 100 $ _ fi. 407, 600

rr

7.829.1400, ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 1 8, 394,100097, 400

51



Attachment B

EXPENDITURE DETAIL-- SANITATION. OPERATIONS - FU N  1 .. 

Salaries - Regular

Overtime

Extra Help

SUBTOTAL SALARIES

Medical Insurance

Retirees Medical

Deferred Compensation

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare

Life Insurance

Long Term Disability
Retirement

Unemployment

SUBTOTAL BENEFITS

Claims Paid

Computer Maintenance

Contractual Services

Emergency Callouts
Equipment Rental

Estimated Workers Comp Claim Payable
Fuel

Industrial Enforcement

Insurance Premium: Liability
Insurance Premium. Property
Line Cleaning
Litigagion Services

Medical Exams

Membership and Dues
Mileage

Muni Sewage Capacity & Treatment

Muni Sewage Transportation

Office Supplies

PERS Actuarial Unfunded Liability
Personnel Recruitment

Professional Services

Protective Clothing
Repairs

Repair and Maintenance - Equipment

Repair and Maintenance -Vehicles

Restoration Services

Street Sweeping
Tools and Supplies

Traffic Safety Equipment
Training
Travel & Meetings

Utilities -Gas and Electricity
Utilities -Telephone

Utilities -Water

Inter.Tran., For Admin.Services

Inter,Trans For Operations

Inter; Trans; To Gas Tax Fund

Inter, Trans. For Operations Reserve

SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS

4, 000

26, 000

4, 400

4, 100

54, 800

3, 200

1. 

6. 700

100

1. 

2, 291, 400

29, 200

700

1, 500

10, 700

1, 000

2, 500

1, 300

737, 100

746, 800

100, 000

4 r0 , 79 331. 900

019, 14, WRT11

64, 800

0

100

17, 100

3, 400

3, 900

5, 500

29, 700

2, 000

16, 000

10, 400

3, 400

4, 100

900

3, 300

1, 300

547, 500

1, 014, 700

100, 000

1, 900, 000

2. 0, 000

46, 600

55, 000

10, 000

9, 100

1, 000

48, 800

7, 700

55, 000

4, 000

5, 400

15, 000

20, 000

20, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500

13, 100

3, 500

700

2, 500

2, 000

548, 500

100, 000

5, 000

46, 600

55, 000

5, 000

168, 200

9,' 100

10, 000

48, 800

7, 700

25, 000

60, 000

400

2, 000

8, 400

2, 310, 500

65, 000

2, 000

30, 000

4, 000

5, 400

10, 000

10, 000

10, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500

10, 000

2, 000

700

4, 500

2, 000

548, 500

100, 000

804, 800

14, 200

15, 000

834, 000

1µO1, 800 15,

500 1,

700 10,

000 13,

800 1,

200 6,

300 183,

500 20,

000 40,

000 55,

000 10,

000 9,

100 10,

000 48,

800 7,

700 10,

000 30,

000 400

2,

000 8,

400 2,

302, 000 42,

000 2,

000 1,

800, 000 1. 
72,

500 4,

000 5,

400 15,

000 20,

000 20,

000 18,

000 11,

000 500

13,

100 3,

500 700

4,

500 2,

000 552,

400 100,

000 1. 

TOTAL

EXPENDITURES 4 130, 41° 0303500 72 0 4 7 rm„ « , 
RRRR 45811,

000 52

771,

400 765, 800 14,

200 14, 200 13,

500 15, 000 799100

795000 98,

700 101,800 15,

400 15, 500 1,

700 11700 42,

000 30, 000 11.

1 30,

000 13,

300 13, 500 1,

200 1, 200 6,

000 6, 000 167,

300 165, 300 4

r0 , 79 331. 900 019,

14, WRT11 64,

800 0

100

17,

100 3,

400 3,

900 5,

500 29,

700 2,

000 16,

000 10,

400 3,

400 4,

100 900

3,

300 1,

300 547,

500 1,

014, 700 100,

000 1,

900, 000 2.

0, 000 46,

600 55,

000 10,

000 9,

100 1,

000 48,

800 7,

700 55,

000 4,

000 5,

400 15,

000 20,

000 20,

000 18,

000 11,

000 500

13,

100 3,

500 700

2,

500 2,

000 548,

500 100,

000 5,

000 46,

600 55,

000 5,

000 168,

200 9,'

100 10,

000 48,

800 7,

700 25,

000 60,

000 400

2,

000 8,

400 2,

310, 500 65,

000 2,

000 30,

000 4,

000 5,

400 10,

000 10,

000 10,

000 18,

000 11,

000 500

10,

000 2,

000 700

4,

500 2,

000 548,

500 100,

000 804,

800 14,

200 15,

000 834,

000 1µO1,

800 15, 500

1, 700

10, 000

13, 800

1, 200

6, 300

183, 500

20, 000

40, 000

55, 000

10, 000

9, 100

10, 000

48, 800

7, 700

10, 000

30, 000

400 2,

000

8, 400

2, 302,

000 42, 000

2, 000

1, 800,

000 1. 72,
500

4, 000

5, 400

15, 000

20, 000

20, 000

18, 000

11, 000

500 13,

100

3, 500

700 4,

500

2, 000

552, 400

100, 000

1. TOTAL

EXPENDITURES

4 130, 41° 0303500 72 0 4 7 rm„ « , RRRR
45811, 000

52



Attachment B

IIt" 

i, ,. 

4j683fioope'. 0LN N $ 

i u I
u  rr

63" 00Y1

rrr<. ,.. . r r... l ac/. 

rrrr. r, , , r. a ,... ... ,.  

6, 03441 00

r.. r,. , Crr r.. 

6, 934t100

N. 

i / d " , , N
iu Ii iliA

6 19, 34, 1100'' 

set ofi a_te Stabilization ......... -Beginning....... "iBalance (sub- set

Fund Balance) 3. 250. 700
4 ................. 0 ........... 1 3. 257, 600 L$ 3. 865. 20 3, 865, 2 3, 5 23,2001

Y TT

rrrr

Interest 6, 900

Transfer From Operations

Transfer to Operations Reserve

Rate Stabilization Endinq Balance* 3j267''6,00

Operations Reserves - Beg. Bal.( sub-set of Fund
Balance) 1, 432, 900

1In erest 5, 400

Irander From Operations ( revenue) 

r)rallttsfor From Rate Stabilization ( revenue) 

1TOGA). RESOU'R,GES: 043 8, 366

CAPITAL EQUIPMENT PURCHASES

Equipment Replacement

V°81),, Jcle8: 

CAP( TAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN PROJECTS

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project

S)awer Main Rehab

TOTAL EXPENDITURESo," 

2t orationti,,, Reseryes EnI, B #11 a
mrmmmn°

wr0
c0'*"* 

18, 000

1, 400

21, 600

41. 000

1. 397. 300

M iN' WRffQNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNNf- VP

7, 600 8, 000

600, 000) ( 350, 000) 

3, 865 2010 $ 3. 523. 200
J

1, 397. 300 $ 3, 068, 900

M-IOIOI
3, 300 4, 000

1, 900, 000 1. 

600, 000 350, 000

s 3. 966 i "6 $ 3. 422. 900

WAR

8, 000 8, 000

350, 000) 

20, 000

3. 52312 L,$ 31,531, 200

3, 068, 900 S 2 902. 900_ 1
I - 

4, 000 4, 000

350, 000

3. 422. 900 2. 906. 900

1 11

7
47

g9lL131111117119 I
111111111111111- - . 011171imW

16, 400 20, 000 20, 000 20, 000

544, 800

212, 900

57, 600 2, 000, 000 500, 000 1, 500,000

831, 700
prc$ 

2, 020,000 520, 000 1. 520. 000

3. 068. 900 1 402. 900 17,186 9001

ENDING FUND BALANCE - June 30 41, 654, 900 6, 934,
1,
100 4. 9 6, 4260100

53



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 3

Mtg. Date May 19, 2015

Dept. ' Development Services: 

Item Title: ; Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 8. 48 and 18. 08 of the Lemon Grove

Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management

Practices ( BMP) Manual

Staff Contact: : Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: 

Conduct second reading by title and adopt Ordinance No. 428 amending Sections of Chapter
8.48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation and

Grading) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove Best

Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. 

Item Summary: 

On May 5, 2015, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 428. The ordinance amends Sections

of Chapter 8. 48 ( Stormwater Management and Discharge Control) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation

and Grading) of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code with reference to the Lemon Grove Best

Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. The amendments are required for compliance with the

2013 Municipal Stormwater Permit and are consistent with updates being made by other cities in
the County. A full and detailed analysis was provided to the City Council in a staff report dated May
5, 2015, entitled Ordinance No. 428 Amending Chapters 18. 08 and 8. 48 of the Lemon Grove

Municipal Code with Reference to the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual. 

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the second reading by title and adopt Ordinance
No. 428. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

Not subject to review

F] Categorical Exemption, Section 15301

Public Information: 

1z ;None  : Newsletter article

F- 1 Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Ordinance No. 428 and BMP Manual

El Negative Declaration

Mitigated Negative Declaration

Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 

Neighborhood meeting



Attachment A

ORDINANCE NO. 428

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

AMENDING CHAPTER 8. 48 ( STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND DISCHARGE CONTROL) 

AND CHAPTER 18. 08 ( EXCAVATION AND GRADING) OF THE LEMON GROVE

MUNICIPAL CODE WITH REFERENCE TO THE LEMON GROVE BEST MANAGEMENT

PRACTICES ( BMP) MANUAL

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Quality Control Board for the San Diego region

RWQCB) has approved Order No. R9- 2013- 0001 and later amended as R9-2015- 0001, 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) Permit No. CAS0109266 ( Permit); 

and

WHEREAS, the Permit requires certain changes be made to the Stormwater

Management and Discharge Control Ordinance ( Chapter 8.48 of the Lemon Grove Municipal

Code) and the Excavation and Grading Ordinance ( Chapter 18. 08) with reference to the Lemon

Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Ordinance is to update the Stormwater Management

and Discharge Control Ordinance and the Excavation and Grading Ordinance with Reference to
the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual to comply with the Permit. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby
modifies Chapter 8.48 ( City of Lemon Grove Stormwater Management and Discharge Control

Ordinance) and Chapter 18. 08 ( Excavation and Grading Ordinance) as set out in Exhibit 1 and

approves the Lemon Grove Best Management Practices ( BMP) Manual which is attached

hereto and incorporated herein by reference ( Exhibit 2). 



Attachment A

Exhibit I

Chapter 8. 48 STORM WATER MANAGEMENT AND DISCHARGE CONTROL

8. 48.010 Title, purpose and intent. 

This chapter shall be known as the " Lemon Grove Stormwater Management and Discharge

Control Ordinance." )) 
4-. 

11pQ tha himnith _Qnfia-ty ' nom aim -nThe purposes of this chapter are as follows:.t.^.. f,1,.
0I, r:L,h,eF ems. %.011 1 1 N. 0 I I %-# %. A a L a I I %.

P " I %-# %.

Y U %.F a 9

U10ifnra nf thim rz; fizeRs of the nUll h10 C:nnfrn11* na Mnn- 1ZtnrMAAq%ti=_r c1; Qrh:zr_cp= Q in tha Qtnrm1A1: 4tP_1: 

imahnrMAR tM thQ QtMCMW:nfizr_ newlevaRGe SyQtcarn frnmG E) RV ED011= 99 SUStAM' h1l %
w % 51%0 Wk*.Wg VNIVIP1. 0116wa I' m N. 0

Y % AI lw%.0 %.#. Y W%%. -g I I  

F -,. y will I IFNI MU - 7 wjVw%%.0III is %- fogs

Qn* llq ch lmn* ma nr d; QnnQn1 nf mniar-inic inthor thnn QfQCKn1AfntAC- nnel hu rach ln; na = 111 itnntq in
1. 0 r I I I W I % 09% Ai I grog I%V %

ON %

A 9 %. F r
1% 0 %. F %. 01 9 %. F 9 1 1 %.-% 1 Iwo % I I% AI I W% wo I I I VW" LwI I %. So 1%. 4 P_ qj I NU low on V

i 1rhnn izfnrr" water cUsahnrainq to the maximum extent nrantinahle The intent of th; q nhanter ; q to

mmiant nncl anh:innia thA Wntimr a, inlitu nf el ir wate.FGGLIF-61218 Water hnc11qzct nnd WAtinnCIQ On P

m a R nin- r n, 1 rs 1 la nt in a nd ne n Q 1 ste nt u 4th thim Faciarn I 1AIntor Pn I 11 ifinn C nntmi A at la lip -n n 1AIntefI M%. Rl V%011 5% % w %, 018 I% A W%NFI I% wPIW%` wl 146 WE ILI I Ll 1%. F I lw4l V IF % A%% wPl I w I I %01 161 % of I I N. F 1%. f 1 1 161 w A I TA %# 
16 Vt %..

r I %. F % 01 1 1 V IF % PA

Art 22 1 1 2 C Rp_ntonn I 2M izt rzan I nnd Rnn mizan lzmainnnl lAintow 01 jaimfu Centre, Reard

Orchor Nil lmhar QQ- X)C17- 0001 I niz nM63nC1PC1 lAlh; rh rnnQt1t1 ItAQ hinfinnn, Poll, 1tant Misahnrcia
ft_ 1 %- 01 N. 0 1 5 Is *. A 1 11 1 P- 0 %. P a I % % e &_ NO *. W I www 5/) LpAw %. 01li Iwo WWI amwo 0 1% 011 1 A% 1%. Al VW

E-limonnfinn Ructam 1" h1P01=-R" 1 PP_ wn it KI m har C A 20 1 OR7 E R Th liz ahn nior qn-oke ta mram nta- 
III

thizRin n, irmncio-c b5ir.- 

A Prehibitina nn111 itad nnn ctar-muintgar riffigah: u-nam in thsnQtnrMWnti= r_ nanvevaMe

atestorm sewer yestabli s, h- rect U ""Ire i,, ine,nts; fb r d i S oha'Erg, e s, in to e, m, u n, 1, c'! sepa r

MS4), receiving waters, and the environment

idab1, e , Ury eEr otect to thq maximurn qxtent lif.,.,,prop receiv inq watQract

a t, f tbe eriv" ntfrorn loss, in ur deqradation. o!- d e by,disch,aironme I - a m s, "fromy - 

within the City's iurisdiction-, 

C. To protect the MS4 from damage; and

8. 48.020 Definitions. 

The following definitions shall be applicable when the following words orphrases are used
h r after in this, ch, a,r e, 13, est tl,F' gement"''Pr,act'llce,.,sI

r% n7 " I'll, hinthinr or not t Pcim words or % rases are t-, , vitalized. Ma.nual) VAh,*W# 1W% 41, 1
WWI ", * 11 U% r N VU n" rases



Attachment A

t ear 4,-4 eIG  y -fie - - r

Authorized enforcement official" means the city manager of the city of Lemon Grove or
any designee of the city manager of the city of Lerpon Grove who is responsible for enforcing
the provisions of this chapter, including but not limited to, the directors, their management staff

and designees. 

Basin plan" means the comprehensive water quality control plan for the San Diego
Basin, adopted by the Regional Water Quality Control Board for the ; San Diego Region in July
1975, and all subsequent amendments. 

Best management practices" (BMPs) means schedules of activities, pollution treatment

practices or devices, prohibitions of practices, general good housekeeping practices, pollution

prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures and other management

practices or devices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to
stormwater, receiving waters or the+.,

r'.„ A..+^ r ^^ r,. a a^^ a c. s+

emMS4. Best management

practices also include, but are not limited to, treatment practices, operating procedures, and

practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal or drainage from raw

materials storage. Best management practices may include any type of pollution prevention and
pollution control measure, approved by the City and consistent with the MS4 Permit, that can

help to achieve compliance with this chapter. 

TMP Manual" or " Manual" means the City' s B^ r+ ""^^^^^ m^+ n+ or^^^ a MP) Manual; 

t w r , rvtd, i • l; Ljn off
ry

rr , 

fr tir t time0-9F  W,. d o' tedl bI uti n r mm the, Cy
Council. The aDolic l version of the BMP Manual for a develo mei shall be the version in

ct at °°°l im e o , f f g!'', L9, P0052, yI
fu

th : Mi or h nit1
W

rpt lic-a. 1 o t; effe

improvement. 

Galff. r• a l` lra  i- 
meaRc th- G- a "%_ff

flraS_
q

n P - o

1 •# r ft:314-GGR# 41

psi . , 1°, m , , °..  ,. 

wM

t ` , ,(” ,

w,-„ m - — 117', 

DoE ®. . 
i i^  

rxv. 

Channel" means a natural or improved watercourse with a definite bed and banks that

conveys continuously or intermittently flowing water. 

City" means the Gcity of Lemon Grove. 

Contamination", as defined in the Porter -Cologne Water Quality Control Act, is " an

impairment of the quality of waters of the State by waste to a degree which creates a hazard to
the public health through poisoning or through the spread of disease. ` Contamination' includes

any equivalent effect resulting from the disposal of waste whether or not waters of the State are
affected." 

County" means the County of San Diego. 
Li ? e

avr_li Ickogilu hn irY inch lctriAL - r-T t _ 

5



Attachment A

wa iw6es 
L   i __ Q 1 i qeClir i  i 1

reGR i 1 i i i   .&,-- Gar  i 1 It  i + i i i  1 at of

iQ   i  ! 

r

r  i  mtr-Lzi i   t r

16491 a ik-01 INA W1. 0 ! ! ! 

i

r . 
W " 

N» w ; 

t tisri-tb" istufba - of n n iQ ateFeAs

Developer" means a person who seeks or receives permits for or who undertakes land

development activity. 
m r, him areM, 6is

aFeaT7

16- V 5 1 %. 0 %.r %. I. Y .. G RneGted
1

7%.AT

Directors" means the directors of the City' s G.. 9 Fnp orno a initu MiQuAinnMantDeyelopment

Services Department. and the Public Works Department. 

Discharge" when used as a verb, means to allow pollutants to directly or indirectly enter
stormwater, or to allow stormwater or non- stormwater to directly or indirectly enter the

MS4 or receiving waters, from an activity or operations which
one owns or operates. when used as a noun, " discharge" means the pollutants, stormwater

and/or non-stormwater that is discharged. 

Discharger" means any person or entity engaged in activities or operations or owning
facilities, which will or may result in pollutants entering stormwater, theweRve

MS4, or receiving waters; and the owners of real property on which such activities, 
operations or facilities are located; provided however, that a local government or public authority

is not a discharger as to activities conducted by others in public rights- of-way. 
t[ TJ

not 9MM6nC116=_ C1 WothfilMIAM frnm nefincimnt 1= dRI

L[ 

Mont" 

mm 1 V mm r n' Wr u r

1[ TT

mepnc: the

T7

7

IQQ1and nil cu [ hizanilonfI %. %.f I 1 %. 4 1 1 %. 4 %. A I 1 %-

0 % A I-# W %. 0 % 1 % V% 01 It._
nmandmant: 

fvi 'n -

a f tR
ark • rrco n

ifr 

it ., i ' . ,  r , 
iM LSI  

v , m i  ,,. .
p

i .  ;   i
I I7

bed a - s ,- v," H,; mm» ni n n m.. w

J"

i v7ar N , 

iw'., v ,. ? aw

n.. 

v, , w

4aN'" a . .";. '. ' µp

taa L

jg + fNaTT " n 6%.

f W I I r

rGFrttt i- Finn
n Mis i n I' 1 % Q1i L

afro P ma n d rr'-+

rf, 
mss^-hayi- i I` t 0+ 1 r , a

ftoh. 
r   tate- ,- 1

I orce6 Gu -F tfel

s iu 1

0



Attachment A

1 „  , a. 

oe , .
r

u, y, " m "  -' If .,.., v®,,, 

va  . „ „„ " .. ® , , 4 1 r* I— r„ un. j rmmro ,., F,14 amnv

r

MM MI I " 

r

t&y. iQF-L I+t- eAf- aGr- a m e d 

Erosion" refers to any process in which land is diminished or worn away due to wind, 
water, or glacial ice. Often the eroded debris ( silt or sediment) becomes a pollutant via

stormwater runoff. Erosion occurs naturally but can be intensified by land clearing activities
such as development, farming, road building, and timber harvesting. 

M

y ppµw y1 .  , w , 
rv-

k[, ,• ""  iIN ryM r " ". I u , , ro .', yl rro'   • ru  
rl Y

yI' 

uY.. , 
dYw^ la

f . I I.  ; 
r v

1

II _ 
r. °' ". 

I   ,. ' r , yv v

iM Vlwgl,

r,","r. , r ur mr " m' 4 " .: ,. V   

w.. '  „ 

o r . r, m" u geuVii

dt P.. " a' of

60 P FmQ rl

Ian_ 

nnrloWR
it a

Qtncn-, 

dr a4 }s attf*ag4Ges-_ W sfri2et- and lriit ix :4ncl n fh _ twit of fh a area haj_va : N

1, 4
gg

r
µ Ho N

Ir WMWMaIq
ro

i i",.  
I Mj. ,, ,

w ;. 1 W z ' Iy , , y Iyc, ur Y I mw  
err ,. r

n u wih a- 1: -) u ,' 6'_. v« m a-« I; a 1

p

N. 
rwl , 

i wN ur wv 
m n® r v Ilq iml rwr. 

Y1P ' vN ' q 4 . re" r
l " 

urr - rr ru w

mll
x   ; r v , m•„ w r » n' r mw ,, p.. .` vw r „, II ,. 

rw w, Wµ 
v N "! u  °

Pl' 
Ir:.  , 

Z% jV1

mry m a Bi w , ro

i I  
r

r a

I
N , dl ,'„ 

V

r ^

V r . . v  I, ,'. '' 4 , r r ' '

rNa -

off

yyq

rr 
rl, - ." ' eym •. ', al„ r pl mo-,: m v' .. rmri . ,;. , u; r reran d " r a w. „ u c ., Iw, „, aa u:, V

rPo u, J , mxr '

N "•^ r 1
Ali, 

V I, V
9 ” ,,' V

V, iirwwu ( 

q 1

Groundwater" means subsurface water that occurs beneath the water table in soils and

geologic formations that are fully saturated. 

ro

r r  Int xl. w  N', I ; pt la" r  f " r 

1` f w   . 

I  

r  "  " " re m,   • II m. ,  w Nt 

t

Not

If `  f

all ML - 2 r y

1  ' 
v 

asrm® ,: w, mm , fir '
Ivy , ,... u ... — 

I " ; ,, ",- Wu ' , • '.' a ,.. 

Ai

I  ,.". .. 
r,., r , ,  ... i • I I " r "  i

Ir f '. I u :' 
m

r - " r x mw „ a r m num, mr,,', m; n 1 , v, rrw 4x-, . 
rF «" rt '- r a ,, rw wx V, r o vu a, m, r x' n. a m, Ir r,. ro

r 

r,_ r w

ro rt
f t c , i t t t

WI, VI p, 
F  vyN. '"  : roM1 r '", •„” ":, '„  o I ' 1 ' ' W” 

f  

e , ,"..., .;, .,. r crµrrr.. nm rte. m, m r m ,' n, , 1 , .; r• Xy1, 

r, 
i I!

y y"'P , 
a, u, 

un mnrm rdlry/ W If ... iu  v, rldMlllr•, nr. 1 % Nurw ll y wr' IS  Va  

f , "

nr' r , N. i i, ';. " A1W 4 i. II ^ N ' I' :. UIW xm r rl " ve

T7 T i f Tu7T "y +  /
1'

11" l i ti l 1   TTG: 
m 

f , 
te

F
a - 

a, o, G

www ",; 
r l r , p i" ti. v f ;' , '': 1 ,. . rt r

r , , ' „ 8 ,,,, „ _ p ±(', I

l4I'

awUrf ' Oo ' x )'Xla .'! WU 1
IIII yn' "' MMMNNN  

i

r OT

r+

nf r,ir ri r jf# Q fni it ri n rni j nA • T_h frnrn ' c d" _Q n I 31
fWWI

1 1110 r

rrrZ hilif r nr lit rUnnff nIprrkQdl

infi"
n" ' rzr0r11

gra mi

irh mareri
ir nff Ir

r

h• sr•r+nric+ irr  • • _ ; Ga

se l hal 1 1rba4 } Gra- of- -us aQ #
hof ropy elf _ire 6am flowi.;_a r- 

t+- tfm~ r} nets; + n-- Gf ry ...

y "" r NN'•. " , I '
r i

b r ; wVi me , x :. Vfiv,,,, p rMr, ', , ,  a
i , , , ,' ,...' 

dV  ' ',. rl' '

v

I i,  
r •

I  r. XroW o. 

y
Ir

w, : I w f mm  " u . i m, ., , r - ,   ' . 
N""

Mi. G. , " v.. 
r, n ,' ", . , oV r' a, " ' , m " . r,: ,; „" 

n 
m., I  " II  mw " r, MI p I V

i.. _ , 
r - m. E  .:,rrm,, .,  r"  „ „  ,.v: ' i,,  r w , ^

dp+ v 4J
1

yo IN '. ". i W01 7—, 



Attachment A

Illegal connection" means a pipe, facility, or other device connected to the WMt

Genve-Wanne c:) fQt MS4 or receiving waters, which has not been reviewed and authorized by

the city; or a permitted/ authorized pipe, facility, or other device, which conveys illegal

discharges. 

Illegal discharge" means any discharge to the fnr_m%AimtPr- GonveyanGe suctimmMS4 or

rece'.
1M wlaa4ers that ts p, b, ttiis c hel", I _ r h, Jj i" a, pte, r. Tli, i ckjde (. q is no,t,, I' m 'te

of iirriqation2,8,050: d qof non-stormwater tJ,,,i,a1 aire not exen t Oilschat, es fist J 8.43

runoff o the stoUL O'M anAiggal
m

u

V

at dischgr( kitaijts du bsen11c that comtains additjonal " o lly
oi al •

or, the

EWQQ.Bpermjt, that has, not been isar(", fe''S, twat i u re a ., sued or has, notfailkFe, Of a BMR. Oisch I t

be,*_e,ti, acknowled, f4edmmmmmmmnr mnam.. by, the di,schoq er to, b,e. a,p fic

Ja te,d L,j nder an a PP i pammmmmmmm ha, ter
I L_ bliL

unless compliance with all applicable permit and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan

SWPPP) conditions is maintained. 

Pnean.s Pny dkah2ma ;ntM RtnCM1AM* sQr_ tha- Pfinrmutntimr annyla-vanGe 6111344M Gr FAGA' 
A I WV..P I I % A I W%0 I K I % Nr %

0%~ 1 1 1 1 WT L%. P§ k I I %OF %.#% I INO I IV I WIN % A q6%. O I NO 1W I I IF 11. 0p _ Y 1601' s- Okwe III %.
ffff I

4',sch-,arg - 44- n- 

PinumAintaf thnt nra nnt 0 gi jznh MiQ fferA aRW INN " INJ1W I I I I IN IN %. 4 1 %VF % I I % A % %- A I exe rn nt c%O SO GO Itsted ; n Rer-fien A AR 0& nu a

gnl nannant' j_ d-:MMr n nnIll it to --a] In-iZIAha nh
NO I 1 0 4 % 4 ILSO4 -

RenGe AnS n16 % OP% Pl 116% AMP I%b& %. F 1FL J--%A% A11F.; W 16% LF 16116AKLX%. F,%. W

A, 

Y .. . . ....... trvlts--- aap'Pli atl9

Vat --poll'ot, 
I

ion, 

4" P ' W 

r,nhl,Q narmit : and SZIAIPPP nancIffifinniq
4, a -

it:2; ntad_ 1WAV JitL h -a I % WW IF IN I 1 0 % W% svp I1%aO% 1I% 1FM P%.# F - 

i in ' a 6 _ ed -by -apa- - w 4M tr

N" G Ac, t-. 4, lean Wa

1.... W44&t-erA %AsnfiQr_ hnrfy" hnq thim onnnn
V IF %. 4 L - O I P - V 1- 0 % A 9 UlhqV. 8 169 9% 0

sr St"I a;, 9' 41 WG - G'- Gr--L F " 4401

44-_ i- --t 3- 411- 311ude, 4, -te " Lid""d 10ni,i,(* of Uvewl ItFa _ F., ( 4 f4f e e1FM 7C IZ? ' LOPte- Prvull

nncl
ON% A%. f WIN

s ro-ri:ioaast d Ve.)Fow - 

111,11116121., 111, 

M1 I " I
I M

111119 19'1i'ail[owl* M" MM, W, RM

iiiiwv itt* 4 iA v iLo- WEL , , 
as AN204 A""! 

M1011
IIIIIIII!kAIIIIIII

go



Attachment A

M

M0 ' mmN 1MtlM UvMW -; 

s. , w vvvvve, r i, ' vmm v m. nfl-, r v F ••,, r w v¢ w, uwry VVNvv n ., m ', - rvr . Cw'" . mimi df v, Mry I

van- r t II t f w. 

se } 

Infiltration" means the process of percolating stormwater or non- stormwater into the soil. 

Infiltration BMPs" ' ' " means any structural treatment BMP designed
primarily to percolate water into the subsurface, such as an infiltration trench or infiltration basin. 

An infiltration BMP may include filtering prior to or during infiltration. BMPs that infiltrate

some water but which are designed primarily to retain water or to treat water, such as retention

basins, constructed wetlands, or filtering swales are not infiltration facilities. 
ii

SZ,- mrgaJAJAJRr}
f

W %.A %. F _ O % f I 1 1. a % W IA.001% r
C. I Q r1 • r -i n n  r

t

i l' qtr
1

4 WW 4 ) %.* p 9,%. o %. Map " V A 9

Land development activity" means construction rehabilitation redevelopment, or

n MFl ' IA" of" ^ M I 9 r vv r j
f (

mr wa
V`

iY

VNr 0
VIrvu Uw, 

6N Imm° 0 

iwM
r d IV n ® w

U. 

Mt
a — w, Pati .. . 

Land disturbance activity" means any activity, requiring a grading permit that moves fifty
cubic yards of soils or substantially alters the pre- existing vegetated or man- made cover of any
land. This includes, but is not limited to, grading, digging, cutting, scraping, stockpiling or

excavating of soil; placement of fill materials; paving, pavement removal, exterior construction; 

substantial removal of vegetation where soils are disturbed including, but not limited to, removal

by clearing or grubbing; or any activity which bares soil or rock or involves streambed alterations
or the diversion or piping of any watercourse. Land disturbance activity does not include routine
maintenance to maintain original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or the original purpose of

the facility, nor does it include emergency construction activities ( i. e., land disturbances) 

required to protect public health and safety. 

Land owner" means the holder of legal title to the land, and other persons or entities

who exercise control over a land development project pursuant to rights granted in a purchase
agreement, joint venture agreement, development agreement, or long- term lease. 

Low impact development," or " LID," means a stormwater management and land use

development strategy that emphasizes conservation and the use of on- site natural features
integrated with engineered, small- scale hydrologic controls to more closely reflect pre - 

development hydrologic functions. 

Maintenance of a BMP" means periodic action taken to maintain the as -designed

performance of a BMP, and includes, but is not limited to, repairs to the BMP as necessary, and

replacement of the BMP by an equally effective or more effective BMP at the end of its useful
life. 

Maximum extent practicable" kor-" MEP" I means the technology- based standard

established by Congress in the Glean Water Act 402( p)( 3)( B)( iii) that municipal dischargers of

urban runoff must meet. MEP generally emphasizes pollution prevention and source control

BMPs primarily ( as the first line of defense) in combination with treatment methods serving as a

backup ( additional lines of defense).,MEP is an acceptability standard for BMPs. When BMPs

air'
1 , ", . (; U w

0 ., . ' , the, 
uY. , r . n M4 .. '.  M i  ostr>r  Y4 `   

u x I , .. j, {

Ipmy
m , 

e I ' MiMwaIM
I   (.: meetee µ . w' ,' 

w

w r '>!

W'
NwmmmII 1 SWI . 6M r e ^ M w 

inw
u;», w wvwwvm. wwrvnmwwnnww,

www wwwwwwwn ...
mmmmmm .... m r»> m» r rrRrw racticable A BMP is effective if it revents reduces or removes the of   that

would, 



Attachment A

ofliei,wfse b r res' nt in r0 n ff  t n ,® I n
u , t* . s rc t l f  t iJt

u. i mmw. wn nmmuwwwmxm ummwww- mwwmm ummww w a wwli. n m. miumn ww ' umwwain m nfiWruuilmf vmuww". ... .... wwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwmmmmmmmmmnwwwwr.i ... . wwV .... .. 
m -^^ mm^ 

other regulations as well as stormwater re ul, tions- , s cornaatible with the area' s land use. 

w, ,.....:

itt ,
a wnmm. wm- 
ILArtf' cilttvtcic11 lens rrarea r riiw .r

resourcesIother reos° rr ay , 1 i  s c' no- .,
I I 

u
a vid.onfts tt 

wwWwx. w 

are reasonable in relation to costs. 

tmeans- hi iR v" ntrr hnnge nr nfhar f• " 
I i a

T f

Wndifyod fnr- nff_r_= d_ 1 iQe

Municipal seearate storm sewers stem"( MS4) means a convevance or systern of

Icodyances'` d i't ria str ici 1 str AS, catch
b

i n cr

utt itch a n nr storm, drains,
11) 

n r  `
I

wd, r t t cit

oru t rir di . .. 
r

tact oc t th r u i at  r r nt, 

to State l l vi • orscio v l i  l f in st tcy s r t r r otber

wastes. includina special districts under State law such as a sewer district. flood control

I , 

district
4" 

t
i . 

r r rJ."istrict i t entity r an ln tribe r, n  t ri l,r i ntri_ rati

o
m r d @§, ig nad the CWA that

i cls r s to waters, of the United t tes* fljO Delsigmal .
r

usedfor c,oflectir or, c n

t r at r .. Lii i t i n d My Which tDi-Cartf th r PLiblicly Owned
Treatment Works ( POTW) as defined at 40 CFR 122. 26. 

MS4 Permit" refers to RWWQCB order No. R9-2013- 0001, NPDES Permit No. 
nnnn ..................... mMmMm  

CAS0109266, as may_ be amended. 

Natural drainage" means a natural swale or topographic depression, which gathers

and/ or conveys runoff to a permanent or intermittent watercourse or water body. 

New development" means land disturbing activities; structural development, including

construction or installation of a building or structure, the creation of impervious surfaces; and

land subdivision. 

Non- stormwater discharge" means any discharge to the c % OW 1 9 Vcaml%. O. Y
e« nGe

MS4 that is not entirely composed of stormwater. 
e, I  ,. ,"'-. °". r  r." 

I"  
r  

i i   "' W  .  '"'  , 
uwmr

w  

Iw," .,. . 
r'. 

J

l ct r n National ollt t  r 1t [ e D ......._. , _ . ... _ _   
m www -   w w mmmmm m mmmmm

ggp 

µJyp
pII rygv(ry hpp

I upy

Ip
II ypry , Wgyq'

J. 

y

W{ 

WI
ryJ; t,'he, U. S,,, RV ' A

VY "

t l  µ n
il,'

4 '
PV l ' N' M"' X :

y 
Nn '*

1.,
l0 Iln

X"', 

I ^ m`, 

4 u( uwviuwvwvvwv ..... vp wpiwpwpwpwp4w'

wwwma,
cfi wmm .... uul mmmmmmmmmmmn mmmmmrmmmmmmnnmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmnrvrvrv vll

1. i J r i
I C

i
AIr1Mrns tit

i, Q enL al nzn no n n 2 1 mr- fnr hl r6 + r + + + r' yr

shallnce



Attachment A

7. 08,,03,0, and/ orjp
licable state law.. 

Pollutants" shall means any agent that may cause or contribute to the degradation of
M

avated, It %, onta, 'ik,i 10,11 is Creat i or ra, Wate, ( J'a"J"ity, a coliIiiclitioIn, of ppfl,u ion or, c n iftalt' 

Pollution" as defined in the Porter -C of

the qualitv of the waters of the State by waste, to a dearee which unreasonably affects either of
0

S1111, 

the follow" r be, n efi ci a I LLInse- S r 2), Fo iIff" - e, qg: 1 Th - fo
dIff"

fies, (Iiat ser'vethese, ben,elficial Us
II I' ll, 4

Pollution mayincludecontamination. 

e. ent, LRI,@.-i Post,-Cons,truc,,tiort Stormwater Maq g, ni

6d that, apf to

lei bl!!D, M, P r v ".Q,nis.J.Q-r,,,..,,Iri—ncl-ctey—et,— j, u ir

10. M -P . ... Aer &.52, of'the I, Mun" ' pal Code Po- Canstruction Storm'WaterI and, Cha' G1 sst

Miana,mmen' t, PTans are co fon1M. Lefyrre' to

WQTR) and Storm Water Quality Management Plan ( SWQMP). 

TE- Ri F- 11111111111111111 191T. 10 F.M..;' Myr., di.. 
111161111 ' WIMISM

AOL= M IL4r r. rM LI M & IwA OM OR A' AL-- til-I

MM1qj
I OLwALIF! L r ow LGI III

A MWA16I S a---- 
W. -M -A, Wlaralim

IF," w U. A.! 
ILLW3111ILE ILWANI E WA I WW. A 0 1is DmaqL, AmwmjLt  

II

I
Ir Ir1. - T= r. - IN " r " wi! 

AI 0 L__j 112 MIMI KsALVUC_ AWWA W n III ILINI IML AWRIME
W2 MI

11111
A M jLWM_ W_L% W__ 11IMMM knza .

0N a a
a n I LWJ

Ift"T

fnrI I o + rim r%+e)Lf, -Ir-^ i i c- in ! rnt%+i= r;n -%nA
I q M ILLW

adY

III INUEr W W 2M 
T' M '

I 112 M L41! WEI M _ AW Lol

All 111I
NO

w W V rAlwrx IRLWW I MI

leffm

11IA aL Ta r - Till; Will I dk ddbk a a

RAI IZ 10" n MEL-! 

nywatan domnnd n, dr;inniq tename..m.tuiFe. 
0X'%. YUW15 % 0V%. F151%. A11I LN- V41111I

Premises" means any building, lot parcel, land or portion of water whether improved or

unimproved. 

Prinrifil n:atannry)? Means n" 

Wn, 1g,' no Ri ihclivicinnn ef :ran or hAere MIRAQ111' rNes 1n; tQ Th; c antannni Inah ICAOR QinC31j=_ I

d I I I I I W 0- 0 1. 4 fto %4 JL 1W I W I
I. W- I I A IIIIII I I %.? I a IV A 1IL % W &. 0 V T %_ 4 1 1 1 A F ' S- f% A

F j
11 1 %- OF P%. p

d

1MQ nNI Inn: 14ment&.- 
4 1 1 %. 1 1 1 1 %. 0 W, 1 11 1 1. 91 9 PI

Dovalnnmont CZrantizr Th; an C) mQ Ar-ro Th' o iiz risafini2d : aQ = y
Inn nchuatp InInd thni 1, 1z mnt fnr hpPify inrl, 1carlA, mr c nnliz fnmdu residential 1

mantga rwhere -UhH.Q... 

11"
amor( JiA a. a IS gir" III01%.%

1I t4ao- IaGire, 

2 A I linmatheA RAmpbr RhInng: T-h,'Q ant ic clapnocl = Q A far-illiv that 1r, natenocized n

anv PtAfga 2t:2ndnai Inciligtr6ni ( RIM ando- rzf) 12 FM 14 EF34 I 7E2D 7F; 24 nr 7Fj2& r %. 0 N. 0 1 0 1 I %
wor W % ff

7&,39-,--a6ame,
r%

F CIA 111I

in dn

tI ran- ts.._T4is_ % J - TT -vie4-aCo I X., . 71 I+11 1, 111 1 11111 W %w TTICV- F

drinkrz fnr- veRsur" nilon inni, idinn Qt:: itinn: 3r_v 11 inch ani inters nnd cefreshment stands Rellona

2 ........ . . wbz the-, 4ar* J -I ia- 4 'r

M



URPFrMTiwailwal

WA 0 0 W -0m All jf- JEQI' l WwXft 111111 q Wl.-k 6 All Will 0 IL & VWMK% All LIW-Aw, KIWAVt 0 N AL" It Mrn k-lw MLAP tnot I &W11111 IL- WA qWX qwA All LOP WW2 11111111 f -L -1100A B 2 q 11, wA All K wff -.Mqvmmw w A 2

s f i_ i i i i i 4 r rt f r r i t i i, r f / a ,. r

1 1 s s rt ff + f r rt i i r a + l & Ti t is + o f + i E i
4r yr \ T t #' s- ' w +  rt' 1 r # '! s „ r ` ' e i+ i` r

J Al f
iii` '+ f '+  i'.. sir i"i 7r

s. 

Ri
s 40 i rt

r

r

9= 6 Ilene

NO, Or," 11, 12171, FTTAT NOT 72"M 1+ 1 ON i  . f  i aa + if .. .. Fla

fs #,../ ' A 6a  s * w F O .
f .. i '} 

r i r + 

f f i :.. i  f' f f i 1. `' f w i iGOb i
t f, a - pr r W w # f . '. r 7 , 1

w vii i i f + i 4 r r i i V - 1, 41h iw + i 1 i s i i . 

h w, 410 I WA' AV  gbll&' l AkAlPhl 4111 M FATAAWTA+ 1* All ' A Al ON AWFA 91 ilrsT

1 i

r r 1111WOMS140KABtl Lwimill xr E L +iw --+ - AIL& A 111
f - 

s y hlrt qt . r r ;+.. 

f A11 i +^. f1 i 1 i i& i+ r e + iIN, # f i i i i i  # f

a
h c

t  

f

IF

I f i j  + fl i it f i #. a, + fl 1 ', i fi i, i. fi / a a r* L 4   > i ' f   i. 
1 W a L -1- t&- 7" + Ec T 7SAL- 3111111 AIR ARK4211111111 ME K" ILWAN 1111ILWA1111111Y; M : 

i

EVRE7

e >, 
r= 

J

f f

0

a +a i is i f i i' ! d --'Ti CAT AT f A F. f i M f a f

it.. i if...i
T E ' i w f M + + s  +! I wr .._.   r ur i !^' .^ +• f:..  ^.. i..  # •. 7i Wir.... 

r i
f  

fir A' +4
POO + 

T   

S

y.,  

f, # a f  a + 

r s

A e # ri 1 f

r. R + r ,. 

rt

f f i / i i i 4 rf i fr i i  r i+ f f fl i
r t # + r 4t + + r f + wr f rr fs i r  i r w

w * 

4k#  y s
s # 

r

f i i f # i._ f+ + +
f i +fr, #' f

s r

rt

UL rAll 9001

er i, ii i i1 i + i

4 i # r s . + r r

I
f i * r f  f i + s f + a s

1r W # y F

f a
fago + jiF s Ki _ # fir 191-21,41 i i V W fir r

rt f # + iii i

i t • i +  i i i
wr " ! VA 2 All . s s IPKA ELWAs



Attachment A

AMIUWAr a di ikWAM Iy r , V r r r

Receiving waters" means- s4#are- -- f-- ale , -& rimy- e e v 

rF
m J

J"" l ,, 
rwjrr", 

e, r n, ,.
i n" n ", 

m„ rx•., s — " wMw>'n. , u

It, e,", ",
r

t

l I --

bmd—baan"; 
A fin' 

torrd ina, a, ry, - h ". r.. 9, "t, +_W','r u,. rr' 

tint rn ti« A hi. pfnifnn
T TI

inless the wetlands W() %
AW

fsw

means all

waters that are " Waters of the United States". 

Redevelopment" means any construction, alteration or improvement at an already

developed site. 

Redevelopment can include, but is not

limited to, the expansion of building footprints, the addition or replacement of a structure, 

exterior construction and remodeling, replacement of existing impervious surfaces that are not

part of a routine maintenance activity, and other activities that create additional impervious

surface. 

aged-' d— I , I  

I_ 
mwwwwwwwww mm ra .

M . f I r t _rt f l

tW
o

r

I

irnrd, irfrinl f:nn;1lfiAQ _nnd m__i'  ` li i ir r

nes used
fnr nnrr r in rana; r

a n

I err, " WW' i . ', I i r .,.
w rv:,' ,.. 

w w, w r : w: w: . r, I , I , Y • uaw '' '"'. '

I' '
e " 

m ,,. 

w '

m,» " ia

l 

I ' , 
N ) an W"". 

AteirnmA

fntAF— 

Q r. i • t ri ir-nr- i i ri }' 

19 - Fneans a aGi _ t -f

n

r

m ,. W   ° ' 
II"" 

M„ "

ug, 1  •.  y mmN I 
I  

ul ,, '., "„ I  ' "

Q
i 

y , , 
rvaw, .; "_. 

rn" 

I= : r { 61 Ny o" vm. riamr. m rry , m- " ' wrormwv „ '
iw' Pu ma. f " uw wr puww nn vw a t" hn N1 y' Y r, 

i °" , N" u , V u,. m In I ', I w I
I, I " '. " y, ,, r N

n."" W , r v,® : r" 
I  

n ; yr rr w.. %• r I v, ren" "-- J" w ",. " m!, w « , r.,' 
l ,. t

r " , . _ I; . m    n W . r; t r v Ir r

r,,," ""„ , n rnrw w w,rv.-,-„ , f, 

dk; •  " '

tl - 

v,.. `^ ' 
r r, o   . " r ,, ~."""" " Wu®

Yw." 
m , r, r,; 

w - .. mmr fu , rr-

lN
pNgvw., vw, v " " r I,Ir  

r . wt
v

w _. . 

d W

i
y d  

u w , I . 
I .. .  "' "

e a iw
r r c,, i , i r , d. I: " i; eri, xm ".. aq.. w .. s .• v Y •; utia , mrviv rv, v+nm mr+ .® ! ,.

i,: « e, n.. it r atiu a' ( I.. Y1.  ,
1

ur- "
t

f}- TI

M 

n µ, 
n " 

W n
n, , ` " " 

I

c P a -m+- rr1 n af e r f   rh - rnf n r o f - dtt f ` ih i Rq
nr 1

1%> > an4- d + pt+ i i ta= a y- I -ems ens. - ate of nt s- elt
g n . - k, m" ;. , , r ,,.'. 

y ,:100( 1, r ,'„° 'Iwl y ryq _ ' ~. . w.,. r,. , I, Ir• , rv. . " ' 4. " w
i, , 

eft:,, r x : . ^
e' " 

w '"va, l
i,', s"

r ,,; "
N .. ,,.  „ 

rr," ""M1 "' M ' 9 " 
el ` , 

wv

r;. • .

r

w  .. 

M



Attachment A

V^ 

yAg  
o . .  

I ., 

v',: '

Tel,    ,
II: .,, 

Wy.. I
r'.' 

I ., :,,,. , ..     !
y', 

yl
y 

fir ' w 4P' 

INS
uaw , x ', x:, w ul, 

U' 
M, 1 . ., . r ',.' , 

Y:. " „; 

iw
r , , r

y1 III 0 I ! IV III wW.. 

1. wwwwwwwwwwwww

w

o e rmmmmLW,, qt.we.a1'fierJlOW5) ., n dt st t r ' 'd,,ry,,, I I rl

RWQCB" means the r -Regional -w water gQuality sControl bBoard for the San Diego
Efegion. 

Sediment" means soils or other surficial materials eroded and then transported or deposited

th cti iwater.,ic" r
1

r A n r lti r r th r • n ilc s c s i. e. 

h  s ein e I r ist. r r cl la tivifi . s o id w cd
m

llL nt irn  t c r i reI W

turbidity, clop fish pills, reduce spawninq habitat, lower younq aquatic organisms' su. .......................................................................................................... . . .rvival ratest

smother bottom lllirig r i s u r s ', a ti v t a°i
1. 

qgh. 

u

M g. %.# NA1%. F N. 0% 4 I I P I %

At} 
ears _ nils ar nfharso =fi# t`r rials ernded and them tra  

y

N,  I m 1 IWA  I. I 1 1 ^   , 

epos"" 
u  I  r

t. M.. 

R

I  w RW^ I v W°  V . " tw"' u` 

i
9   ,,,    

a,° rl+, 

w 

w : N w,  • 
I V

rvl "

i r+ , wx, ' , y- 
Iyl q. }

rn 
bol

u finantredeveii

s

s LI I% wF

Li
W IW R W W, NHA

uY ( N

wwm

onfirp, .,
eve on 4

r. 

i

I,  ile r" rv . f , ' rmm wa mrmumy . :  f+ 

W W

m rr : 

W

ed
Nv W

w w W " 

4
p  : 1 W .. N " i I

nth uta t r, r i. Id r i fi r -  r n 1 e t

L. 

Source control BMP ( both structural and non- structural)" means land use or site

planning practices, or structures that aim to prevent urban runoff pollution by reducing the
potential for contamination at the source of pollution. Source control BMPs minimize the contact

between pollutants and urban runoff. Examples include roof structures over trash or material

storage areas, and berms around fuel dispensing areas. 
N 1 w e ' N w

r, l.: rrrrrrrrr « rrrrrr t  , „ r, rr, ^ ,,,, x r  f .. — 
w

r

N: 

1 

i, a a m -- 

1 ,

r^

gyp , I  m m x ^, rw z V r, a . a ow mm 

State general construction stormwater permit" means NPDES Permit No. CAS000002, 

t+ and any amendments thereto. 

State general industrial stormwater permit" means NPDES Permit No. CAS000001, 

Waste-DisGha . qu+e at& 4of--DisGha. Fges--c f-Sty-mwate-rAssGsiafe d-wft4-1-A tfia4

t Ex t+y+t+ and any amendments thereto. 

M



Attachment A

Stop 1lWwork 0,9rder" means an order issued which requires that specifically identified

activity or all activity on a site be stopped. 
Ali

mrwrME!, 

w n9 . w mmvv r M

11 r. 

Id4wth 
WWWW m A ,'  , ,

m.  
r  

rmruv wNvt uliimmmmmmummmm mYMWlwu. uiewmnvrmumiwuuwrw i

wl rt  - ' 
m °  

r  ,  °

e

M
mmM„

U 14
1

Stormwater” means surface runoff and drainage associated with storm events. 

it } 7

mean

f ] 
off 1 81 f A1 ! 

WN 5% 41 No

IpCII
1

F Gatch hncin-ctropt a I Jtt^'%-e- JV% JiatQ tn Qtnrrn cirninC
1f f ! 1 f

Stormwater management" means the use of structural or non --structural BMPs that are

designed to reduce urban run --off pollutant loads, discharge volumes, and/ or peak discharge

flow rates or velocities. When applied to the city or another municipality, stormwater

management also includes planning and programmatic measures. 

Stormwater management plan" means a Ian, submitted on a city form or in a city - 

specific format in connection with an application for a city permit or other city approval, 

identifying the measures that will be used for stormwater and non- stormwater management
during the permitted activity. 

is 1f

Itho Qifn nr nnthribl

046, 

Ir r

ttl wim Cal
alter-{ nfhar r

tt
Mantle rdrApfc

1

l '" 111
I IW ' kY I IIW;, v IW Ir' ' 1wV V    

i ) 

r. , v m rvr' " on o ry iii w naw, V uv +- v rvV mu w " µinwv aw « Fe mm rig rrrrrrrrr a mr , -, " v r^ u' wM, ue' NPo•' gyw
w

7!

yp '
I Ilryy

1 , ,
aq 0

it

ti imm IuluyEu M1 W v
r

V

V :  '  ' : ,,
1

rr r 4e :.  
t ° uARr

N

NN . 

Structural BMP" means a BMP that relies on either a physical condition, other than an

entirely natural and undisturbed condition, or on a constructed or installed device to reduce or

prevent pollutants in stormwater discharges and authorized non- stormwater discharges. 

Constructed or enhanced BMPs that depend on natural materials and processes ( e.g., 

constructed drainage swales or buffers or constructed wetlands), and that require periodg } 

maintenance to function as designed, are structural BMPs. 

Structural post -construction BMP" means a structural BMP, other than a temporary

construction -related BMP, put in place in connection with a land development or redevelopment

project to prevent or reduce pollutionGGRt a M. P 1; one at it of+n-_stormwater or receiving waters, or to

prevent or reduce erosion downstream from the project. All treatment control BMPs are

structural. mltconstruction s. 

SWRCB" means the State Water Resources control Board. 

SM



Attachment A

r

Y -46-41-14-p
I. i i' N1. ; , M

VI 0 i J 4,   
ti , ;," .,. ' ur k i wn r , Mu Omry v w, t v u. v O. ry Y' nn p" ss4" r na ry a rr w w' rW+ w x i,M¶pµF fw NI . . a ix I  

1- 14A ircvr ., n rc u wm W .'

hr, r .! i, r v ; " M , 
w, 

E'. 

um  

w * . iiY

e'

Ct - Mn n 16

rm

ai a r,o

t  r r int Will GAFFY w ,  . 
w, 

a  r , , ^ .. y ' „ "", y

n . 

r V5 , r- . m r mm ( rwx'' wnaui mi w' mmi ' ur. ary ww, w,mmm . wi r. uvv il. 
r, 1 grvi Hrc V 9 V lµ ; W^ r A.. NUu. ttrnr hndy

Cis trincl R, tnh Rfnrm aleAnfsI

1rhnn r
flQUIR ' 

r

r

r Watercourse" 

means a permanent or intermittent stream, ,creek t or other body of water, either
natural or improved, which gathers -or carries surface water. ttMintoar

rraMntnh1P Qr rArMIQlAd Wntar chnihmpi linim IN
IN I 1 1%. 0485 rfrit

tr
innhoQ in d*nrrmafnr Water

quality standards" are defined as the beneficial uses (e.g., swimming, fishing, municipal

drinking water supply, etc.) of water and the water quality standards adopted

by the state or the United States Environmental Protection Agency to protect those uses. 
t ;;

r t t a r ter, III ac r n, rg i cl  i w s I i waters u
11, .

yppr 
I'' Iywy,, 

y 11t

W IY v , I I I r i IMS

r

w
Y 

V

t A" MNt ' t r r I '. e  

35 M ' rem Il t ,, , f
f l . 

Waters

of the State" is broader than that for the "Waters of the United States" in that all water in mm

mmmmmmaw_ w "Waters

of the State" regardless of circumstancesor condition. theState is considered to be _ . - .. _ Waters

of the United States" means water subject to the regulatory jurisdictionof the United
States under the Federal Clean Water Act and applicable case law. In general, this includes "

navigable" waters, waters tributary to "navigable" waters, and adjacent wetlands. {off 2

N -
f %.fQ ! 

I
9nA- Nf10• M%... IrdUi7

Q & I 0OSSI I %.
F } % 0 %. r1 8.

48. 030 General provisions. A. -

Responsibility for Administration. This chapter shall be administered for the city of Lemon

Grove by its authorized enforcement officials. B. - -

Effective Date. This chapter shall take effect on June 247, 200915. C. —

Construction and Application. Interpretation of this chapter shall assure consistency with
the purpose and intent of this chapter and shall implement the requirementsof S it. 

This chapter is not intended to interfere with, abrogate ntheS e rrnmmmmnor

annul any other chapter, rule or regulation, statute, or other provisionof law. The requirements

of this chapter should be considered minimum requirements, and where any provision

of this chapter imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other chapter, rule
or regulation, or other provision of law, whichever provisions are more restrictive or impose



Attachment A

higher protective standards for human health or the environment shall take precedence. 

Stormwater and non- stormwater discharges regulated under a valid facility -specific NPDES

permit or facility -specific RWQCB Waste Discharge Requirements Permit are not subject to this
chapter, but shall instead be regulated exclusively by the RWQCB. 

D. 8,'MP, Mat'i,L) 031. T'he Q' establish, and adpp en ri tLon ofthq, rqnff

pLr 9,q,,,,rams,,, i,nc1ud4ry^

mn,,.
g,,,, R,ana, %, nt ni,,eas,ures M?s t11at'' theGft,y_AjL1 impero . Lnp,nt2) in i m 0,111 E

1'* he5or reat"I'Lliret, be " m' Jgn) en'(edto, enSLOIe w'ith this chapter. * Lairir, ie,,ti i e documents shallp . . .... p
I.. kno%mri the BMP trovdo thie B, M,

Pf

Manual s,lial"I beary .o, e

blif fu Ohl %

A.# %P. 
AN '"' tI sk IN V-00 NMI of Of FGe m est. 9. offs 1;

n%.
pWb resolution of the City Council. 

F= M OR nat * ntandizd mr-nhwhit nr- nr-ovant thause () f r -paw
11 - Or 14. 0 saw%. 

WP

9 0 L" JEL"! I JL 0 LIM! I NO-! III, 
ELRrxw L. 

No

Mw wA' ALwJkqEP3L

A-40 No 1, , 
1 4,11 . — 1111111110

poll

E — . - Severability and Validity. If any section of this chapter is declared invalid by a court
of law, the remaining sections shall remain valid. The CitCouncilhereby declares that it would

liav" a,ss,ed,,,this,c,,h,a!pLer, a rid eaich' secfip n, c ti0, n q sethere, of' ai

jrre,s ctive of the, fact that, a,tl one, or more sectit"Ons

mmmnmsubse.,,
ctiaris sentlencels, cla.u.sesOr

houldte, r s, declared " nm. val' d or uti c,,o.,'ns,,,tlt L,Itio,n,al, and ' f for Y, e;1

b,e declared invalid ortiocat,',, ial ialordn:,ance or ordinancesz shall, be M f'ull

force and effect. ( Ord 2QQ a 1 MU18) 

CZ W City Pimcmitiz = d Annrnu; a[&_ 

I An nMn1* CntmnM fMr = 11 nf thO fn11n1A1inC1 n9QCMit1Q Mr PnproUnliz lRhnll

70, m '  P" a, 
hnizanot Inc nnimmuni Qhnil mcit him nnnir-nuinid 1 1n1szQr, tha cioniRmIgn mnkimr- dotizanoninq that t e

nnn1; r_nt;QM AMMn" Or, IA4th thl= '- - - - . _nMP1nt_Q mf th6c chn
0 ' k.. F%. Fg I 1ffII1%.O% W 1ffV8%. I 1 161 1%.# 1

1
ON 1 1%.# 9 I1LW %.. Vg %. a 95% 0 % Off 1%. 4

4dminigtrnthmm n1pprmna marn
lRit) 

phnt18MA pdil IRtmont. 
own 1%., 5%, 

G. F;, no a 11 Ims I I a n

or "
MI OF d I fil G-0 %: 041 t is G. 4

r

Nei czrnd; nn ninn (
v=

11' dhna mincIffir-

nio() 
op

sz) 
rpao I \,, a 5%, lixgoo %v I a

or Fenewc*, 

Impr-nuamont p1nn I*nnll id6nne. 11 Barg %. a 10% 0191%. 01 11%. r1%. A1I lu

n- o ic 1, Gn OF If14, 4X4 11, 
o, MJ, 

d, fiG, ttOR-
1-
4TH T, n, g_lnra i r1a nOrr- deviolio, n , eir- exteir* 

E

Pnrapi mnn nnIncimfinnfiGF, ia 541"

r

Rninn; firz minn- 

A. 

1. Rita ChauszInnMont pLqF3": 
O' rMf,%.# % A%.# V NAOPI%- FrI I ONOON 116 rl%-A

MAn ( inal'' d _" MandmizInt nr tomim exteRSIOn-Y, 9 9 A%.%

V
as gwg%. 4% A J141%. 01 91- 4155%.05 1%. % 01

M



Attachment A

n Tontnti a nnrral

mnnIWe• VIII

n nrinnra

Is IIII NJ> s et

a _ 
Iii ilr ir n r ormif•_ 

ph__ 
Cnnpirl irfir n riahf_nf utn normit• 

G
I~ nr+rnnnhmont narmit• 

iFVr 3 Intlnn narmi+- 

W IN Lw1I  - .. i      + 
a 

W w w w

IS kikjlk

111 ad ho" If- Tai W—,I;%70 iris' s _MrdLI 4, 111 is 1

1111111111111
Tmoblior- 141LO11 I

M11
milli in', P- 101, 41, 11

i A

w w w

IS + i   i i A 7_ 19 / 1111 .  i M. K is TLINI WEI i / 

r w w r w w r rALwXRML Awl wlLwLw

a 

w

i  4 i MM 3 PMUN ITIf

So

1 i / i + i A + +    + / 
w . w w IN III IN I. w I w w w w r r

i i  +  /  r i  + i  i +  /  + /  + + •• i + i

w11 11,

111
Lq jw w r w r w w r

w 111111

j 10. + i i AW - 1111A +  i @"§ A A ff" i i • L I   i +   +  F - TO + / i   

r . r r r  r r r w w w w r r . w w

V
i

i

i +  i +   i   A +  + + i / / i  A + A  A / / 

WwAIII w w w w I IN

J

dr

r w Ww3MLw. A A RMB 1Ww= MI

A + +  / i i  A A A  A i + 1 1  Y+ +  + 1 ". 0 i + i    i w

w . w w w w w r w w r r r r w w10 11w r r

i + A + + / i / i + i / +  i +  + A A  + A A  / + + silo r  + A
w w w w w w w w r w w w w w w

i + + /   + i i  +  i i  / i  r  i   i  A + A 1 + 

ww mi id w w w w w w w w w w r

i  + i A  i A A A A / i + i i  i INS + i +  A + a +  i ,  + + 

w w w r . r w w w r w w r A I IN w w r r r w w II IN 2 41111111 r

MENOMONEE

c
o

A +   i  A +     A + + i i / i i  + .  + .     + 

r w r r w w . r . w w w . w w w r w w w w • 

A A  A + i    i  r

VF w w r w w w r LIIr r w w w

8. 48. 040 Discharge IWA 00%. rom

r finn—s%t^ irmu« ter
prohibitionsed. 

A. Illegal Discharges. The discharge of pollutants to nnn Qfnrm esn+ or} directly or indirectly,. 
into the + nrm e nfar rnn ta

aRGe
ssyr

anmT s'4 or receiving waters; is prohibited, except as

exempted in



Attachment A

Section 8.48.050 of this chapter. The discharge of pollutants to stormwater, directly or indirectly
into the MS4 or receiving

waters, is prohibited, unless the applicable requirements of this chapter have been met. 

B. Illegal Connection. The establishment of illegal connections is prohibited. The use of

illegal connections is prohibited, even if the connection was established pursuant to a valid city
permit and was legal at the time it was constructed. 

C. + t e - ' 4as: Prevention of IIIe al Dischar es. -Throwing, depositing, 

leaving, abandoning, maintaining or keeping materials or wastes on public or private lands in a
manner and place where they may result in an illegal discharge is prohibited. , 

D. Violations ofthe MS4 Permit. It is unlawful for anv person to cause. or threaten to
mmmmm

xw r, .. 
m _ ..... m

se  r '  d iv'i   two dy   i r tl y u i i  ,  " fi,, the, st r
a

t r-  w 1n  y w r

MS4 that results in or contributes to a violation of the MS4 Permit. 

8.48. 050 Exceptions to discharge prohibitions. 

A. Permitted Discharges. An dischar a to the Qfnr-m mtarMS4

P l t , "` ( 
si' 

i^ 

I 
V i Y w , C i   

W

i b. 
P.

mmm r ....
o,.,. w . rN wvw+ ww 

I._ l erriitsud' to the d har r n an r tre- 

the , ta te1111. 11111., 
u qui  nt tpi iv', ion o tlCalifornia ter, Code s a llo rovcd e... d tl t the

dischg;  eir, As n ciot 1with all re iir , e t cf t P S    i p o ho ll ca l' 

laves and regulations. 

Grcu `" w t r "' sc gar e i a11 e irin Permits. h- sto r°m ater disci a,r es t 1 mm  

ri a v nc  t M54 fr y t fclic l ateLories are ollowed if: , i. 1  

fflWQCrr pr eo.`is,cla so tam .. DSS m it o. CA 00

2008- 0,002, oar, s ul se cn t or ' r for sc  r es q s Ltf ce a te rs pat er t.l a n San , ° i o , ay . 

a. n ' the, isc'h ar  r om°  lia ct i th ill e utr 
ni,, 

snit t the ili  a isle    r reit and
nUr.f wmmwwww

rr

w , 

V
m;

l I' tl

Y II , 

o `

i na

w ,

a

II

a

ni i
w ' 

w>W ' 

r  c u a r is11 otrl cr l abl l s ar rig 'L11at o s _ L the et r e n w t that. 
w ow yw,mm. w waww - mmm- mmm. m mmmmm rmm.,•-- o-',,, u, i t rv. r w w w wmmmw. www w. w. w. . urcmmmwre., 5mmmw r mmnn^ r. m r„ s.- m.,+-, 

u r

crt o f
V 1 dor uleht rn. t s oLinder ,

rcmmmmmm , rmm , 
w

9 *19
mm,- . , wmm mm . rc mmmmrc mm. wmm . 

r mmwwwmmwmmwmm www

tom the followinc cateeories are , 
w

ries: stormwater des ch a roes from i l lea a l d   a . wwwwwwwwww- w. 

J` • 

r  
a f -nm tinr nnt minntprIT  

gyp, ° ; r7 rr i inr{vAiatear• 
1 . D i s c h a f

rr' ' W ori' M IXY .. , vs  ` " 

wwumuummvwwwwmnmmmmmmmrmmmmmnrvwwww .... ivuum « anmi onmmmmm mmmmmmmw mm mmrmmm mwm mmm- nmmm Pimmar er

DJ ,

1 e ' y
w

i rai s 1 n thes tem s esu  ed1' t  e i i
rtt dl t ori

m n,,,-,- i, r    

i d' Mr° P i ... d A 1  

m . ... ., . . .. .. i r c n r, * 

belowi at a11' tie r  s l wt qtr r t r w rr r tot

wwwwwwa' '(
4 .....

w.... w

a

s s  O b( dry` i 

r
mm

I
uI

A`  a.

www „ 

r
nor  

wwwwwww

l ' wdr r, 

r, 

rn  w wwrc. mw ,,. 

t r o t  r drains  l
r mwwmmww www

mm mmmmmmmmmm  mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

Yh ,  
i- , ` i I .   ,:.  , , u u  '.'- :,' v; i  :, 1, ri     

i " ', 
r 

Mn.. ":. ' 
i mr '  .•,

r r, , . „ w  { 

Q

o ated' t o 1) l th round a. , r a t l tr  ctivel  s';vo e t  r i Ovate r"i  n
mmmm 

mmmw wrr wrrrww mm. - t a,. r.. r rm« r 

an p farpart o t a

es t   t  . r   n   t r  ° ate  sci  r e a h tl, tb  a t r
m   

w w m  .

mwwwwe
m wwwwewwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww   

mmmm mmmm mmmmm mmmmm- mm ........ wrc

MS4

r. ,, . eau r n  :. ,
Y. ... ,.. ;

n "' ,,  

mr ,. :. 

vdbi ! w... r ,,.  ,. a;  ' 
r w   ,  km,, rc nx ::" 4 . '„ mm9

r  P ay, , .. t  , t 1 ne tl [ 1,4-1,o rw r , n  qtr t'),1 maks. are allowed ' tie   1 a- i' have Dov   r  frofTl   e r 1  
r

f! Li  
w, w  w mmrc wrmm rc w  w.  r  

w mmm.  

swot- rrmmmm. 1w  
r

T ^ n I. Vuwk  

I ,

ir.  .. , 

q  .  
a r

r. 

wm , 
I ' j, 

i
I "

7.  r

i rw,.. n mm  J. a. M <. 

My ,  t  r l tri twwvww, r  t ,,   9 _ C , VI r , l  r N 2 0,1 - 0 3 B VI W r t
mrmnimaw rvmnmm: mr® nn a ... WqV-^ wwYW' uM mmrc m lmwwwwuwwwmmwmmMw NNo wwww.. ww uwiwiwi nwmmwm w uviuuwwww! Nirruwwww »»» uANii .... .,. 

wwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww v. tY4Wwwwimar' mimmmmmmmmmmu. mmmmmmmm m mmmmnmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmvmmnnummmmmwmmmmmmmnnnnnnnnnnnnmu,. 

l y W dl char is in coy° i e tl° al'1 reg r ir. en . t t ° l t NPDES r t
r l

w. mmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmm. 

19- 



UrFITOTITI I V,4 1
MA

191MAS CRI

cina

lines are illegal dischames, 

W 1W M IGLIWAMM Iffuu&
IAAMMLIW ' M

ahove tvsteP4&- when the system is desianed to be 16coil"ed he
IgEM,

clwater table at all times of



Attachment A

the ear and the system is only exppcted It ro.duce non- stormwater discharges under unusual

circumstances; 

4. Dischames from footing drains when the system is desi ned to be located above

ye "l -r, arid OL,)e nlM

storm water discharaeS LJndt,-)r un-u-sual circumstances: 

5. Discharges from risina groundwater; 

t
Is rr ,, W, inated' D iscl_ 

Ie,
s f1* 011 I'll inc ntanl 1 Ifo U, n dwater ' I rif i I tri t o r,i t tfie , lor 4,iw,a

GgiwevaFlGe sy G It. ef Imp I MII34 ;. 

7. Discharges fromsprincls; and

8. l Iliac pot gb,,,Ie water source, exqe tals sotforthInSedionn- p

ItM.0-948. 0650. C: and elxr,.pnt that i" i ation runoff discharaes are considered illegal

and are not allowed. 

E,,— Cond"'it't',onw<ri,, Ailow,edLg a rr, ` on- ' t,o rniwate r

If C, gc ' dressod as -fol OtherVise tliwn- storni water dl'll' s( 11,

11',
l,",I,,

Cl
llCi I %' 1---,– 11  Ie a(ips, are allowed ' flth,,E!.tycp,,, ad

from the following categories are illeqal discharges: 

conIdtionjngcicnden ation. I eonditlq. n° ry qn dris a e s s 11qe cpT,_2, Al

with applicable BMPs identified in the BMP Manual. 

2. Individual residential vehicle washinq. Wash water from individual residential vehicle

ib, e, wa,s,b inra,.ist bt cted to

Whe re d'l,:s,(, h a rc es, cipi n In ot e teal , a's, ,, b ly e d B M,, P- nu s tb  oi ri v Ie m, P.,. ln e,d,, i r ia cc n 0 Ell, M _Iven t
tarOh tf,'iw BMP

M01I

a - Il. No-,,n- cornrnierual car, was,h,es,l,.,-;s,

lLjch
as, fut,i,dr,,ci'ts,e,r,,s,,aji,d othtl,er su ni

activromsuch , iti, es ra re j,. 1, olt, co, m rdJI," e e, n6 v rd LIA, 11 r, deifial veli'lcle w1si. h s ; 3 g. s f

activities are thOrefore considered illegal dischgAres. 

3. Water from swimming ools. 

0 6

a(, ciale fifte - a aChlortnated swilk"nming-pq,pl wa.tqr,,,CNg 9ealgLp Ir backw. Isfi, c iidn

rgmgIIIIIIIIswn"mit, n, a onl3oI water 1:o the s,toIrv--wa4-,,eF, ot'll e llutants ,shall be e'lliminatc ilor to di L

GgRveyanGe... 6:11res.0t IIIAS4. 

b. Saline swimmina pool water. Saline swimm' o water to

d themea, JI'schar as as re - Cthe, Sanita siewe " JIcG, Ordirtig to reQ LAirement's for suctrs, r
rj( 

l0vat. s.3r, or otherwise disposed of in a manner that does not result in a discharge to the Cit ' s

IR

mg10t low" ax -g m -S -4s#ah j uesN tettj or

I 

nlr
Illli  

y  

uW  li I; x; nN "' 
I  Vil

m

w. 

Gt . ......... t

i Rg- GG..ridens -,' 

V itie,6-.-
w41, i fire IfKK.......... ............... 10.1 v. 

to I. Illml

4 ....................... .... I .... .... .......... W, -at . ........I

21- 



all OW1111111 OEM T4 lr_-% awl

qwp

r 9,AlkWil Ira0 OW& WArllkl. r ! vAA IR&L.-It K+ r . y r . 

Y111., 11. 
EVAMLLWA 0 Norm

ML

p f

r• : r Ls . r + r r': r . wr . r it r wlms w r lw w s + 

SIL— :.. i n .,. r r r NW11111 Wh-'WA NON qF.A OLWAi ..... r

rFF
r r, 

Mr , li,,T-= MT. -MI WT.Pit" Or- WAXIOlh f- ih ' T WIAT — 

Wiwi A Pikir- T- 4WIMAMIN A. 

4

llr yna Mbs.0-1 9 T--kV--T4-ft ** OWN KIM. ilklr4i I ATI— T- 11 i a I ibir4i M . 1 IRMO w 1, 

AL

conditionally allowed by I f'- RAr-Section 8. 48.050.A through

enforcement official determines that anv of these categories of otherwise conditiona- liv allowed

a fefy n " a IP-., a thor', 's or arecatist ub:110 ies s a! 

ou

r

a

i

entering ther
IF %- 4  

Q 1 9() 00' 1
w w L. ; i +wl s,'

ctf rnMS4. k <. J it !' rl' 0WI fLW



AGO

Attachment A

Mll 4, A 

i•, „+ 5,, ill „- , , :: i.. i1,,, , . * ,,, , i, ,:,,, ",,..,. #. A ,,,,, " : ;, , ", . !, ., >, .. , 

3

WM
wr„ ', ;, °' + fil ,,: ,;; jf ` ';: ,. 71!; ;,, fi` %" ,=; J1' ' : F" `;+!;; ,+ r  , i% ;<ni' .",;, 

tv

WAWA FUMUr

u
ti e

rf

iIM

f
a

I W7

0

fi: 

u

3

RP

ll": 

fs", A)llt A + aal

fir, . Is:. , ilk" "„ ` 7a i" ,,,`" 

i

4; , f , lik" ( A/ C All" WOOM" W, 

llk.  .  rr , ;  .,, ar. ! fir; 

ilk,, .+ f, , ; !, . rr , + l fi« , . , ,, 1 .., , , ,; ,  , .  „.. ,,, '; ± ` . , +, , " ;  ~* ' 

l I

ii; . ally , 
r% Al . , . fir, nr. ., , , , al

23- 



Attachment A

a s

A- 7 VAX
10

is

Iff

tllll " Ault l ># . 

u ti

MW

It'll 11, 

u
Y o

i

1" .. , "+ r '.  ; , 7Yr^  ;. r ,*.; ,. .:, fr„ + r" !_ , ti,,  ; * 1R£;  ,± AII;. , , .  , .   „, .  „;, ;, . , Il1 I" ;. AN, , i, , , , .;, '. ;'.; . `. , ,; ,.  "':; . ` ... , ; a,, 

i

w r

I' 

r
n

f # " `; ", ; .. tai- : g

e

r

a +
rs ' , , fir, 

011 ,,,;
f

s 3 , . 
t; 

fi t
sem,,,,. 

r, aaR
rr, r !' ;! aj; 

MIN

TWIN

7r', ,, 

11.41111 0"' ++ 4 i io EdOWe 11

wo i, d MAw- 1111L

alr; 7 o, 
it0-

0 r` „ "+ p

4 ' 

e, 

IfIftrl-I.M.Arl M 102A M kwilAilk
Ilfi

ail, ' fe
alf,; 

9 i n

t3:------- a l gr-o r- e basel+r e +#- E g- r--a al sis;- ar-# 

24- 



11 Alia WAS
Cow ItIIIo I VW

11 + i• + a - - rwayci; ronfr
thp

y F

0

w' - 

r
e A r

2

w

a

v

a A •, II CWI i 10 ;,... - i  i • i - i r • 1i - NO, Z i - i..... i, S: ••: r a a. 

t  . w Y 7  ':' !  / "" f   r  # w' 7 r r r  

r
1

i

r , 

f` 

r i  

ONE

MRS

i

illr
wim

r

0
u

i
r  

i

T. 

u' u

Y  

L

P
e i

I V f

n

u

i  d1i

Opp OF

l

Q

sm



Attachment A

r to p revo t r r et  at t r rot r g., t ate4 o t MEPAnyhe

w e  IY a rea, son,abIe da , e, y wh ict thise ` Ps r  a t be , pgt i ) l ac . ` T ' 

a ' ; ° '  ; l e  ` il° i nta . t  -  I I .   c l i- r is a
wwwrvry

violation of this chapter. 

D. collection and Use of Stormwater. An Aauthorized enforcement Goff cia l may modify
m mmmmm..-... mmmm .. mm...... m m. mm. m ... m mmmmm ... mm.... mmmmmmm m.... ....... 

pnnv/ rare u im a t i r a hk to I  , , + co I I a  f cfnrrr %q!zt ro  fhi , tai- a i , + ho ri_+ a I e ton n '  n
IF . 

4L
PYN f' "^ M 7 M, ,' 4ww' 

w`' wuw

i'q bmf' N 7NNa': "',," .
M....

r4* 

rrrrrr„W....... `$

a ° Yion

or the collection of stormwater for deliverer to and use at City -designated sites, provided the

ioiipus are, 
en -

f ' ce,aIc an. w ev, l t

2SQ is 1 !:2001MS

a

I 3

r A  +  +   + A
w 

r w W04101ofm + ANI

A a A + +  + r +    + r +  A  + A i a A i +  + i

r . . . .. .. 
r . . . r r

r LW71 ill 11I L

11 Jljf oqjw w A + w A  t pm - w  A •  ww1141r- 14, 01A i 1111 -111Y. - Ill I TIA II  A + 

r . r . . . r . 

11111111111+ • i mr.r. A . A.r  •• wr r r r i r + 

rMm
i+ 

p

A w a + 

1 J w . . w A  .  A .. 1 I    + 
1111r

I J A A  A i A A + A  A !     A w+ a s A  A+ 

A L . 19 M / r

r

A A A A + A A i i i• + A  + M A A

A A F A A + A  r  w i  +  A+ 1 A  A A w + A i A
w r / . r  . . . r r r r r . . r• . rr r / r . r

w A+ A i  i A A+ A  + A  it A+ A A A + A A A A+ 

A r A +  A A  +  
w  A+ A  A A A  A A+ A

w
A  

r r . . . r r . I 1. r 411 V V r . 
r r . r1 + . . IF I= I. . 

w A + 
A AGIIIPqRers. 

VoNaloc shall Abe washedft -F  
r w

A. . a/ . . .
wr.  and w / . r  

w

A + 
r

r+ r i  A A+ + A+ A . A A + A /+ A. A . + i

r  
hilt . A A

r +. 

A  

r . 

A A +   A A + A A A + A i +  w i A  + w A  + A   +  + A  / + 

Ll
r . r r . r . .

PO
r . . r. r r . r/ r r . r . r

i  w  r + A w  A r  A + +  A + qz, A A A i+ cn 4nno r. w r A

AAAAr
Aw. AAA

r +  .

A A  
r

R9.
0

A r. r

SL I A AA   A nihor   A AI A1  A A A + i   A

r r / r . . r . / . / y . / 

qwv III 1W

i r
zjS

A A  +  + iq
A

r / %. 0r / / 1 ' T %. F %. P N Is r. 

1  A +  + •  A
r r

olP A A +  / ll
remove

A + 

r r ... Ar i A A/ A. A + /+ A. +  A + A

thaw w i  A  A  A + A A A +     + i A A + A A A A +  A   
r r r r r / . r r / r r r / r / r r

r + + 

A A

r r r



Attachment A

Resswents shall move - - - - - -- - - - - 

r

goal _  i a _ i _  
r  1 , i i - 

r - ! - r r r ! - - ! - r

a _ goalshe, I he w + / i ave Inoffr r - - r - - ! - r - - - 

i i / i 1  i + a _ + i i w i i  i i mtnaincmir - - - - - r - 
r - R r - - ! ! ! No ! - 

l mrnnimflu
r r - - r ! -! r

1 111

re- proclu

mod l Ind 1 inclar fiveGov - FSZPQ, - ngf, t"h'a -% - r ! ! - - - F .e... ! 67

1 61m, _ i A  i/ + • I w i-  i A s/  .  I _ i 1_ i i I

w - - r v !! r v - ! r !- - r r

rfN- 91
r ! r r r - 

A + - + 
In,+ 

A i goal   

r

FM
ows

i goal  

r re r   -.. 

I
o% Ii o t%. e  r _ ! 

I an, I goal + / goal   he _ / _ i i in i over- r rtQ i r i al aters
r ! - - 

r - r ! - r' - - - - 

mtn; n : 11 Nlq 11Q tprunlQ 1*f it
o -

qshalltion
p Wo

taken -
signlaw

monim* ze
lId% Ir - -- 

r rflo ! rIII r r! r&

I

IfL
NO I Iw

Q AfQ / R A i

i i i  1 i i goal ls goal i_ / + i I i i a A i i+ i _ 1/ on i _ a

r• 

6 - 

r r - r ! r r ! r - - - - - 
r - r - r

A N 1- _ i  a  

r ! rIIII
r - r11 1 1.! 

61n, -+   i! - 1 + - 
r  

r + R  a ali i _  1 _ + !+  I  - 

r 01

goal  i i + A i i + i i  - 

Jill - - - - 
A MMI -  r Ir -onI

i 1 + + 1 1 i A - 1
r _ _ i  a A   1 - a I i  al

i i a A  - a' dr- i

I I 1 i+ w i - i I A l -/ _ / / i + / w a_ i_  a i 1 i _ + I

MEN, 

i goal   Noa A . a _ - A w WM-1 _ i go + i  _  - _ goal

r - 

i / 
r + - + a i + 1 _ I r / goal / a, -  w i _ w + I i / MEA

r - r - r ! r r - - - - - - - - - ! - - - 

III
A /   /  +  1 - _  i i  A A  / + _  a + i day i goal - 

rMAIN: - - 

r

i VLOWI  Ir_' I

A i goal I i  A  goal 1 _ goal i + i _ / i  i + a 1 goal  i + 1 I

i +  1 i i + _ ATMINMET. R._ i  + / goal + i  _ 1 + - goal

i i i + a i  _ / goal + /  _  + - 
goal i _ _ R / 

kk

r

r , w 1    _  
r w  goal

It + / goal i  _ i  / / - i / w r i r  i

r r ! mw
r - 

11
w w goal A i+ / goal i+ go iILP+/ I i

I Sjunumc- A

kkkkkkki +   _ _ / goal A i +  _ A + / A a w  y

r - III illilLwA - r r r rIII III IL_ NONNI m- r r r r- r 12r

1 -  / A 
aILOI/  + 

i goal  • + -  
w

r - r - r r i - a a !
it

r

A 1 + / _ - ala  _ _  a i + 

r - w / goal i _ 
r r w  -  r i + i a -  / w  rUVIr goal

an 111111 § A AN 111LIAL- I clot 1911110402 OIL ILLmmm

A wr i / 
r  i + a / ++ / r + ASI

aoffim
A _ 

r - amw - 
r ! r - - - - - - 

27- 



Attachment A

ror tt firoci normitc and nnnrn 111Q lC) rci 22Q S I 7[ lfIM

8, c ;d"' '" t maw eq, t n : - o - i rc ,; tiiv"tti

emnierniont and
f

ry

W%-#) 

ill ; wry . ry

n
r :, 

nmr+fira_ iC r li rrn oror 

r+0mmorr+in1_ f r+ilifioc

m  Civil .- gin-  - iGem w . 

N

SII ,   ,  
I

WWW«   ry ; u. + Nr , x

ol c

Y e. j , 

U

MkNffi 
oi c'.. il ery ; ` .

rl, 

MOi, 
r. 

lea Yrr mmnv. 

I% ;- A' mm i, m, r , ' T Y nb f immvuw, N '. mm mmmrr

u tll

yp
r

F, offll, th' m ' w , m, r , 

jg 

i in w iwr -
1, 

y

w

M

r.. 0, . 
rry

tnr

w

a . W

I. 

w, 

28- 



Attachment A

Pan, nnd fn, InfAmn • 
r

Ll AAnrinnsIVI%. As go• 

V. pnrtphlp

Re iNdina mnioHni rintpRiam n nrl rz4nmnp

it Pemw Waizhhnr- ; es. 

r

01 % A 16. 5 a G, I.Q., 
Ing IfG... FGe m e r# of ffll alrW-i la

I th nt t
m

c n rima, 11 nisad an Fn rn e rG;:' 1 fAG; U1 1 2 Gh CIPS * a R ntecl n

WN % 1gw0ff%. 4I41. J

no itHnnr areas. 

r

6A I

nr+th4tiare rnnrli' GiO ' 

uvo= 
zr rr

Vinhor
r

3 Cl, 1trinn 72inns ( Ord RRQ I nn 2 
r

nIng
r-1 fnniIi16i- 

29- 



Attachment A



Attachment A

III , 

t

t

t

166, 

r! Cnctmn r fc rn; mn mr fnr__m_inc- 
NU t , %.

f I I v1 9 11 111 1111

UlIffAlnlcl i ncs
N.

1 Rl+ ir1rY 

31- 



Attachment A

A - w  . 

now

r. LIOA 11 No LOP S

i. .  - . . i i  r i  a  i - . - a a MR111a a

r-911111 i  + a + . i . w  . KINII. F. I - 
r - r r r r 0!. 1- r . - • - - 

a  . - + i  - ORoar_[ A i i   a w - w  i   +  + i

rW MWI r - r r r - . - 

a - + A i - - a a -  r a A R a i- .  a a r IM I  .- R- TIM6
WW r r

w

i

i+  - i- . i  i i a r . a+  a NEW, VIA- 

r + + i  .  i A  a  a st +  i w w A  -   i  a + 4 .  i + i  + - 

r X- 111 INIA %- r . . r r r 
Vl IN- . 

r Of r
r r r

With i s - - A a -- 

IN UP IN- - - - 

a r a r i s a  + +  i
r - r r r w . r . 

r a a . .  day*  i i -  i w - w - 
r r rSAA - + 

v r r r r r

in +  + . . a + i  i i   + .  i + 

r r . r . . r - . - -
I Ir

rI
I     Pf Ind, . ict6ni

r- -

w- a . + 

r
Ind,

r .
r c+  

r. 

aHfiizcz SZ, wt
L. A LA

G i  i a +  i  . - r +   - a +  - .  a +  - + arad a

FVVI 111 IPU
r - - . r - r r - - - - - - • • - - 

anim l QtICMW fimr orm;f nci Rhll kelar thin tsmGond., - rrnnotr . . - r r r . - . - . r r r r % r - - 

aict
a. .  a i a r a+ A. . a a i a i A . a i i + 

r . r r r - r r w. - - - . -- . . r r r . r

a- -.- . A
wr . izn . ..

r .. 

a + a + r a - i - a . 

r + - 

r i .. i a A A

u, r a

i i +  +  a - a  - . + a a a  + w  - a i
w

i r r i r r i   i   -      
r r - . r r r- r - - r

a i - i  

I w - - - w  a III 1111111111i. A
r

a i   + w a  

NO, 
r r - 

r a    + A.- i s a a a s - i  
w - Ir - - - . . r - r r . . r rMIN r r WW

w - ATAELa11& 1r- 1IKqQHI1a - .  ii  A a r i    - - 
r . i  

r r

a - 

y

a .  i+ a  i i  + . a i i a a  a i i + t i .+ + i
r . r- r w r r .. r rLIA - . L. Ar- 

r r r. . . .- 

roLIIIII
r r w - r

1 + a i    i + r i a-  - i + i w  Ah  a i i  w

W% 
r . - . - . r r r - r rL.A- 

r . . r r 16 16A. - . WO W1. 01- 6111 r1611 1" j ILAI- 

i i- i . i + a i w  A w  A r is r a a. i+ + a . a+ i i
r r - r r r . - r r r w w r r r r % r . r r r

InUw
il HwQtl n tho finq

r r64 . r .
imci . . . . . 

rL. A r
riRIQ

r
LI . - . 

r

Zv

i Wank i . ,+ i i i a  + . a r w  i i i- + a i - a i a+-  

W - - r - r rL. A . w r r r r r r r . . . - rLIA - IN 16 P V LArL N. 0 - I I LI W PI

i i  + + i i  +  . + A i  a i + w  i - - i + r + a A i i + i

rIII - r r . - r ., 

in

r

n'

tr
r r r r - r r r

ity apply LfiyAoz,;' s r ., he -,by -Sec, on,, & -48v 440r 0- If r

a  r w - a  

r . r r - r w r. r . r r r - 

h4= 1 ri+ 1 1 . i  a
r . r

i i +- nil rp iff i+
r

iw

rir
i wA+ - 

r w w . - + r  r

Zj

i  . + a   + a + - a . A   i + i on i   + R i i i  i - inthe49r' W' W1- . . r r - r r - . r r - r r w r r r



Attachment A

a • r   w • a1111 - Al
r /  J  /  a i i r • i i 

w r w w w w r + r 111011I q IN IIIr
w r w w w w rM AIL w

I u

o ' 

A i r w Al A i + + All i + A  + i + AL 4 w  + + i 

w w w w w w r w wr w

j  // + a  a + + i a a +   + •/ i + a A +  + + /• Al + +   

LA w r w w r
wrw r r w w w

r

r

ww r w r l w w r
r w r r w w r r r w w w w w r w

0 1 1

r

AR
w w w

P. 

w w r r

a i  w r 3 a r r/  i  a s
r

1  a i 

w w
WI

r w w
w w w w r w w w w wr w w r

v ' 

r w r w r w w r w wRE NR4fI Elr
r w w w r

i

A " f9b"T."I w

a i 1 !  i  i + i i +  +  y   % U101/ - all III +  

IA90LW. A
Ail w w rw r r w

f I!  + +  / r r  i i f I i +   
w

r w w w r w

w r w w r
r

W -
W r. 

wA + i  i i   + a  / + I !  A + 1 i  R i i   

r w w w w v w w r w r w w w w r w w r w w w r w w r w

fW

u

r r a +/ i + / 
w w r w r w w w wrww + 

VAST  + A  
w w w

I I
r 

ll 0 Lo
w r

RD
a + i ^ I I R + a •  •  ! 

A A a  + A  + + 

LW__ r w r w w w r
r w w w w w

r i  a i + A +  a +  i +  +  A +   +  
r + 

w w w w w w w w w w w w w wIII 1112WW"Wr 1I w WwAls III A 46 10 WI M a w EWA 111w r s

u

a

r r w a   + a +, 

r

r r i  r   r w a  a i ia r r w4 i a w w

RM
w w w w 0w w r w SELOPSWAII r w w w w w r r

i 1 1 a + a s + + AS  
i i r a  a a a i

Ill 11 M M m A 0111 r a LVAr I M Lilt r r r r w w w r w r w

UTZ 111711 115 1

o, e

r i n
a

Lw 9 IN 1I w WNWAIIII ILwA!"! WAMA LqIpwIIIII Oil' A IIIIISqgwawr wVEI 1. 1111 LWILr w r

r a 6ILVffi a a a a    i + • i a + •• +  + R  a a  +  +  

w w w r w w• r w r w r w r w w

wMao
r w w w w r r

r r w r r a A A  a i+ i i i  ++ = i + R i w

aw2lilLuP111111I w w r w w w w0 L
0r w w r r v rMEN w + w w w

33- 



Attachment A

I
I o

s

11 1 -- - 

i + + IA +  +  . + .   . . + + +  
i

14- - W 1 - - - - L V V I r

1 It, XIv, 

MIWX-E! al I M W.W3 M w M LWFIEWA-WA M A WAIWXW III IP Mill, 

fill 
w 11ill, 

2
111wW "Ir." k1w, LIMM = P.MI

NONNI` 

11TAT01

i „ 

JU

e
F

r

a, I

r

JIIII

AI

All

i' ; a „, ,. ,, „, a ,, ; rr ,,, " ' ; , , 

liy; 

i

V"71IFF, al, 

T ell

Mbg

r u

IN MIMI

arwAil

it

mu

I

I

i

T ,,, ',.. ' AJJJ ,. AAI, .,. % "„< '” ,,; ,,, ,„ i ; ' ," >! 1f ,.. 2 '", ,,  f' ; 715, ar, .. ,,, 

r..."

1 

ME



Attachment A

8. 48. 070 Additional requirements for land disturbance activity, 

A.'- Permit Issuance. No land owner or development project proponent shall receive any

city grading, clearing, building or other land development permit or equivalent approval required
for land disturbance activity without first meeting the requirements of this chapter- the BIVIP

Manual and Chapter 18. 08 - with respect to the portion of the

development project and the land disturbance activity to which the permit at issue would apply. 

B.-- Owners and operators Both Responsible and Liable. Persons or entities performing

land disturbance activity ( including but not limited to construction activities) in the city, and the

owners of land on which land disturbance activity is performed, are dischargers for purposes of

this chapter; provided, however, that a local government or public authority is not a discharger

as to activities conducted by others in public rights- of-way. 

C.- Stormwater Management Plan. All applications to the city for a permit or approval

associated with a land disturbance activity must be accompanied by a stormwater management
plan, on a form or in a format specified by the city. The stormwater management plan shall

specify the manner in which the discharger/applicant will implement the BMPs required by this
chapter, the BMP Manuals and Chapter 18. 08 for the activity at

I
I  , , 

A. I I  

issue, wme _ u,t- IIl t ,. n tIrv, y n m., " rvry  

dJ

D. 
ry „ 

I  {   .  ..  ., ,.. ,,  

r - fir ,.  ,:  I

m. w, . , „ e;.. - «<< . ;, m y " , e, m , .,,. Yle , an. , m „ ,„_ ' ”, j „ , , , .... m m a , w m,,,, m,;; , 

n` wwN I r" `
m ` "'., 

a , 

ry as ; ' 

uli
e1b IRI

I ' u11In R
Iry

cull tll IIIIIII In '

I' I' 

1uoIml1 nmm ; sm1l 1I1IIIu1ol, "RImu1 Ion, Inns
I mn1 Im" 1 10 , 111" 1

um. ' n^ m 1I11I rymm 
uR. 

rv11111
I

1R ", ,

IIu1 I

I 11 IRS 1 IIIII1 h1u 1uwRlln 1uu11 ry rvnlluuun l— R, t11m nll lcl, 

n vv

u 

u

Iypgy
ff

0

y i vdp ` A, i uB r, xr. p ,

elf"
N , 

mr r '.. 

r ',!"°°  ' 9% '• ,' 

vl. di P". ry
III„,

I u,' ur .., * 
I- 0 '

r ev, l Mwrr iw v - P, v4 + . I

IIPP M F'
I'I I

w .....,

m' Inillll' IR 
I

IImII" I' 
Rluw "

N Inl Ileo

ul

IIII IRI

I
lu flu Oµ

m• ... p, m1111 I" rv. I d  rm '" I' mm" I mm
III1In

Ilm  

I' 

nmm 1111u. i " n1l opmm III IRr"^ mlll 
m

IUIIII" 1IIIdI2 n  nnnnlllll" .. I m 1I, . .''... 1I110 II. e m I '• I1  " mllllm '   " I1" . I1 

rvl

Ip11
1I'

n, m  
I' ...,, R „ 

nl
Rml l  

Ilwan' Inn ..'
SII.. 

I.„

I°' pl"
X" n ;

II•'.....
UI ,,,

ml' " nnl

In” m

PII

luuulll l ..., 

hRum
R

ul ............................ 

W m lu

I

II
IW

I 1I1Hm

v1m nu I' 

n , nluu .. m..... l .' I", M I n ,
Ipnl

I
ala

m lul uu 111111
m

mill. 
tlml

nTm
Ing

mm

I1l" 
u............................"'. 

V , ll. V-101

GA1III°'',, IIII",
I RI

I.... °

II1n
minl m1

0111111. . VIIIA ' puu' • III ••• p'' •••• 
n1l

Irv" 

R

m. Vi.

µ, 
2- , I

1

111' 1 
iiu' 

m11, 

I. :,,,:, n„ IIIA. fl I o ll IIIL.....,, t,

c ..... 1 '

u I
I

x Ilan n1
mu mx „ n

SII .... I I°   ' I " ml

IR L. ImI°° NII”., LI....,,,,,,,.,,... I,.°.:.., u;,... :.IIII"..... 
Irv,, I 11.' 11

VIII . 

m
I

I1I1
m” IRn"'

I lu I I, Illnl µµ I mII p1„ I Imm, 1I1In I I IIIIIII,
N  , ,

I1I1

m'• I1I1I1I "  
I m  ' Illlm

IIII. III I1I1Im' Ilm' 0nn 
a

I, µ' I' 
IuuumRlo. 

IIIIIIII "
I ' I

I

III ,111111 '  

IIII I
tl° 1n1

III. 1 "
11111

I

d „ """ 
1rv11

1I1I111I1 ,, n "• I m11 ' IIII .... L.. ,,,,„.... _....... ,...... I , ..... II R,, m   I ISI N w1, 1 I 111 lu IIS N n, 11n1 1 I Ian,  I m I, ul  Die  I  IIII I   1. ' i u
m u  u o11lm1m 1d1111111um. 1mm

m. m ux.. nN , 
IY; .,, ' 

o    ,. 

it ., Wp ' Nry im1 , m' „ .: - .- 
a n, ,; a '.

1 , 

i' r am' 

nr 

NJ ,
n M nm 11  n a  

ryP Ynlnl. lrvmm
maa ;, m.., rn- a;;

h,, a m ;., r1 -

uti . 
a' , r,. 

mm  '
ioo11 ,

aov. 

not u.. , c h, et  I c   u . irk , IIIIIIII. IInnn , 1v rv rv rv rv 

rv rv rvrvrvry reauired for that Tillina or cultivatina land exclusiveiv for the ouroose
of arowina Diants

w, M. , rcu ............................... n w I I In. n nWWW n n,...1.11mn m„ rvrvrvrvm„ m„ 1 l ,,,,,,,„ ., -

1,



Attachment A

or

wanimals
is not considered to be gradinq or clearin-q, provided all disturbed material remains

i
wmmmmmmmm

ai . anday. on the same site. the ti inq or cu tivatinq will  block or evert anv natural ratngq v  

t  i td , e l 1- a r l t v l e hass, 11  

too  

a t. r ct r. . I e a m e o I

rte-rurrn•: ... .. .. 

9  
I

f

Bi ) 1

1

i

r mr « rrrr „ a I.. 

pa,
p :

Iyµ 
p ' ypgypp r: w.. „ y , ryi„ n F, is

I1

r

m

9

d  

9

1 1 ti 1111 tai t°' 
f

8. 48. 08 X140 Additional pts' a - st- G-GOWWW' n-requirements for all land

development and redevelopment projects. 

A. Application to Development and Redevelopment Projects. No land owner or

development project proponent in the city shall receive any city grading, clearing, building or
other land develo r eniPrey

A l r wired w Y - r,:,-C Y vw  ct m

I ,

b  . «, f fhw , 

for land development activity or sigRifirvaRt. redevelopment activity unless the project
meets or will meet the requirements of this chapter and the applicable requirements defined in

the City' s BMP Manual and Chapter 8. 52.- For Priority Development Proiects, the project' s



Attachment A

O'st- l',,, r U Ctso n 
rqygm. 

p ri to the

issuance of such permits. 

B. Owners and Developers Responsible and Liable. Developers, development project

proponents, and land owners for land on which land development activity is performed, are

dischargers for purposes of this chapter; provided however that a local government or public

authority is not a discharger as to activities conducted by others in public rights- of-way. 
C. Post -construction Best Management Practices Required. Land development and

redevelopment projects with the potential to add pollutants to stormwater or to affect the flow

rate or velocity of stormwater runoff after construction is completed, shall be designed to include

and shall implement post -construction BMPs to ensure that pollutants and runoff from the

development will be reduced to the MEP, will not significantly degrade receiving water quality, 
and will not cause or contribute to an exceedance of receiving water quality standards

in accordance with the re uirements defined in the BMP Manuzil and chapter 8.52. 

Land ev. l  eqt s , cla, ted With g' cL.t ura l L"lirernent

imposed bv Section 8.48..080 of this chanter for land development activities annly to such
activi°tier sh e re ° s o t d itb a ricru' t a l ", ions. 

E. Post -Construction Stormwater Management Plan. All applications to the city for a
permit orapproval associated with a land development or redevelopment activity must be

accompanied by a post -construction stormwater management plan on a form or in a format
specified by the city. The plan shall specify the manner in which the discharger/ applicant will
implement the post -construction BMPs required by this chapter. The plan must address those

aspects of the project that, at the time a complete application is submitted, are subject to further

environmental review pursuant to Section 15182 of the California Environmental Quality Act. 
Post -construction BMPs for other aspects of the project need not be addressed in this plan. 

FF. Stormwater Management Plan Review Fee and Deposit. Fees for stormwater

management plan review and deposit thereof may be adopted by resolution of the city council. 

G. control to the Maximum Extent Practicable. All dischargers engaged in land

development and significant redevelopment activities shall install, implement and maintain post - 

construction BMPs as needed to prevent or reduce pollutant discharges in stormwater from land
disturbance to the MEP. ( c0fered. 3619SO 111 200&) 

8. 48. 4-0960 Maintenance of BMPs. 

sm



Attachment A

A. Existing Development. , , ' , 

dDischargers shall maintain the BMPs they rely upon to achieve and maintain compliance with
this chapter. 

B. NOW nA. A1^'^" r' Qn} Structural post -construction BlVlPs. The owners and occupants of

lands on which structural post -construction BMPs have been installed to meet the requirements

of this chapter shall ensure the maintenance of those BMPs, and shall themselves maintain

those BMPs if other persons or entities who are also obliged to maintain those BMPs ( by
contract or covenant, or pursuant to this chapter) fail to do so. 

C. Maintenance Obligations Assumed by contract or Other Agreement. Primary

responsibility to maintain a BMP may be transferred through a contract or other agreement. If

that contract provides that it will be submitted to the city pursuant to this chapter as part of a
development permit application, and if that contract is so submitted, the person or entity

accepting a maintenance obligation in such a contract or agreement will also be legally
obligated to maintain that BMP pursuant to this chapter. 

D. Obligation to Maintain BMPs Not Avoided by contracts or Other Agreements. For

purposes of city enforcement, no contract or other agreement imposing an obligation to maintain

a BMP can relieve a person or entity of any obligation to maintain a BMP imposed by this
chapter. 

E. Disclosure of Maintenance Obligations. Any developer who transfers ownership of land
on which a BMP is located or will be located, or who otherwise transfers ownership of a BMP or

responsibility for the maintenance of a BMP to another person or entity, shall provide clear

written notice of the maintenance obligations associated with that BMP to the new or additional

responsible party prior to that transfer. 

F. Maintenance Plans for Land Development Projects. The proponents of any land
development project or significant redevelopment project that requires a ' n in n M" I

rMtinstallation of structuralpost- construction BMPs shall provide to the city for review and
approval prior to issuance of such permit, a plan for maintenance of all post -construction

structural BMPs associated with the project. The plan shall specify the persons or entities
responsible for maintenance activity, the persons or entities responsible for funding, schedules

and procedures for inspection and maintenance of the BMPs, worker training requirements, and

any other activities necessary to ensure BMP maintenance. The plan shall provide for servicing
of all post -construction structural BMPs at least annually, and for the retention of inspection and

maintenance records for at least three years. 

R 
60e.,I lonVO4%grseeimp . ... ...  c .in, BMPs shallG. Access ,for „Maintenance Structural past- coni,,r

be provided adequate access for long- term inspection and maintenance purposes. 
s . it«r .. d  i t r j i .. na

0 L I %. A %. 0 1 %. A I L- 0 I V 5 1 %- f V V I I I F. 0 %.# I %. F %. F %. 4 16 %.* %, V \ %- 4 5 9 . aGFE) E;. Q-. othe0l: 11% agg als; aS ReG8E; E;. @.A IMJ1 fef 1: aGG8. 66) 

inn:iI %.GondIN.

Affln%
05

mnir

1 A 1%.

001Mnfnn=
mp6%.41 IW%. O

of thn a RAApc. 

H. Assurance of Maintenance for Land Development Prnects The r000ne nts ofn land

I n acTJ it r v I e t ctivit I rir s a " i eiLi 1' II roi ; ey t the

ty rior o is;s i of eri i f r t.l e r ism acce tab e t , i
n 

c roof of a mechanisma n i..................
T

which will ensure ongoing long- term maintenance of all structural post -construction BMPs

38- 



Attachment A

associated with the pro pro' ect. The oro onents shall be resp ible for maintenance of

B Ps, nl ss' m- a nt'll ai, a;i , rnative n ilcbam',,shin, for esL ri q„ iaintenance. is, acce _ he

city and becomes effective. 

I. Security for Maintenance for Land Development Projects. if it is determined by

the authorized enforcement official that the public interest requires the posting of a bond or

other security to assure the maintenance of a BMP, such bond or security may be required by
the authorized enforcement official Irlrrl. 2Ra

8. 48. 104-

160
Inspection and sampling. 

A. Regulatory Inspections. The authorized enforcement official mav establish inspection or
w,, , ,,, .,,,, , ,. 

p” ,. 

with 4V d,, ; m ,

V err , ;,. M ' 

enforce cp I an e  t1  , .... L NrI  ° . t t . his h tcr

l 
u  

r,,, 

r tLBI %+tet r

If entry for a regulatory inspection is refused by the facility owner or operator, or by the
occupant of a residence, an inspection warrant shall be obtained prior to inspection. 

B. Inspections of New construction ° r,n%
o tap 601 Eacem. when any new storm drain

system or structural BMP is installed on private property as part of a project that requires a city
permit, in order to comply with this chapter, the property owner shall grant the Citv Permission to

r n e tp n r t theuaccess,the ert t re l time' s a iis

working properly_ 
This includes the right to enter

the property without prior notice for routine inspections, to enter as needed for

additional ' inspections when the city has a reasonable basis to believe that the BMP is not
working properly, to enter for any needed follow- up inspections, and to enter when necessary

for abatement of a nuisance or correction of a violation of this chapter. 

C. Scope of Inspections. Inspections may include all actions necessary to determine

whether any illegal discharges or illegal connections exist, whether the BMPs installed and

implemented are adequate to comply with this chapter, whether those BMPs are being properly
maintained, and whether the facility or activity complies with the other requirements of this
chapter. - .. ,, _

lam - irhs

nr_dQ4 i . 1I1 Phnrrz mr i • r rn l arf rL 

szx rA z } r -e r

G -. a naa-yse } 

f t 

8. 48. 112-70 Enforcement-. 

Authorized enforcement officials may enforce this chapter and abate public nuisances as
follows: 

A. Administrative Authorities. 

1. Administrative Penalties. Administrative penalties may be imposed in
accordance with the provisions for administrative penalties set forth in this chapter. 

39- 



Attachment A

Administrative penalties may include the recovery of fines assessed against the city of Lemon
Grove by the RWQCB. Any later -enacted administrative penalty provision in the Lemen Gee
M Cede shall also be applicable to this chapter, unless otherwise provided therein. 

2. Cease and Desist orders. Written and/ or verbal orders may be issued to

stop illegal discharges and/ or remove illegal connections. If it is determined by an authorized

enforcement official that the public interest requires the posting of bond or other security to
assure the violation is corrected, such bond or security may be required by the authorized
enforcement official. 

3. 1. Notice and Order to Clean, Test or Abate. Written and/or verbal orders

may be issued to perform nny; rf ran, 1; rad h1l fh c ph;pntar activities to compIv with the BIIIIP

Mat".,. „" ..' "' j", M ,,     ". ', 
M ,,.. a „ rtu o r, , w«„ 

v" F... "

p

I

i 
e "" "  w i ; I:,  ,. 

ica ' i ";

m 

I h . W

warrant. 

4. 4 Public Nuisance Abatement. Violations of this chapter are deemed a threat

to public health, safety, and welfare; and constitute a public nuisance. if actions ordered under

subsections ( A)(2) and ( A)(3) of Roa# inn 2 4 R 17nthis section are not performed, the authorized

enforcement official may abate any public nuisance pursuant to the LGMC
IVF%.Ap 1 '% 0" rlap Chapter 1. 14. City costs for pollution detection and abatement, if not paid in full

by the discharger in addition to any other penalties, may be made a lien against the property in
accordance with the abatement procedure. 

5. Stop Work Orders. Whenever any work is being done contrary to the
provisions of this chapter, or other laws implemented through enforcement of this chapter, an

authorized enforcement official may order the work stopped by notice in writing served on any
person engaged in the doing or causing such work to be done, and any such person shall

immediately stop such work until authorized by the authorized enforcement official to proceed
with the work. 

6. 12 Permit Suspension or Revocation. Violations of this chapter may be

grounds for permit and/ or other city license suspension or revocation in accordance with
applicable sections of the LGMCe. 

B. Judicial Authorities. 

1. Civil Penalties and Remedies. The city attorney is hereby authorized to file
criminal and civil actions to enforce this chapter and to seek civil penalties and/ or other

remedies as provided in this section and in Section 8. 48. 120 of this chapter. There is no

requirement that administrative enforcement procedures be pursued before such actions are

filed. 

2. Injunctive Relief. The city may enforce compliance with this chapter by
judicial action for injunctive relief. 

3. 2. rrest or Issue Citations. The assistance of a peace officer may be enlisted
to arrest violators as provided in California Penal Code, and/ or a citation and notice to appear

as prescribed in the Penal Code, including Section 853. 6 may be issued. There is no

requirement that administrative enforcement remedies be used before such actions are taken. 

The immunities prescribed in Section 836. 5 of the Penal Code are applicable to authorized

40- 



Attachment A

enforcement officials acting in the course and scope of their employment pursuant to this
chapter. 

Inrrl 220 & =& 

8. 48.' 1 230 other acts and omissions that are violations. 

In addition to Uhe nt+fets failing to
comgl,ywith anv of the other requirements , the following acts and omissions are
violations of this chapter, whether committed by a discharger or by another person or entity: 

A. causing, Permitting, Aiding or Abetting Noncompliance. Causing, permitting, aiding, or

abetting noncompliance with any part of this chapter constitutes a violation of this chapter. 

B. Concealment, Misrepresentation and False Statements. Any falsification or

misrepresentation made to the city concerning compliance with this chapter, including any

misrepresentation in a voluntary disclosure, any submission of a report that omits required

material facts without disclosing such omission, and any withholding of information required to

be submitted by or pursuant to this chapter in order to delay city enforcement action, is a

violation of this chapter. Concealing a violation of this chapter is a violation of this chapter. 

C. Failure to Promptly Correct Non- compliance. Violations of this chapter must be

corrected with the time period specified by an authorized enforcement official. Each day ( or part

thereof) in excess of that period during which action necessary to correct a violation is not
initiated and diligently pursued is a separate violation of this chapter. Notwithstanding the

granting of any period of time to the discharger to correct the damage, the discharger shall

remain liable for some or all of any fines or penalties imposed pursuant to this chapter, or by the
RWQCB. 

D. city Permits and Plans. Any failure to conform to an applicable city -required plan
prepared pursuant to this chapter;' any failure to comply with stormwater- related provisions of a
city -issued grading permit or grading plan prepared to secure such a permit; and any failure to

comply with stormwater- related provisions in any other city permit or approval, is also a violation

of this chapter. For purposes of this chapter a permit provision or condition of approval is

stormwater- related" if compliance with the provision or condition would have the effect of

preventing or reducing contamination of stormwater or of moderating run-off flows rates or
velocities, whether or not the provision or condition was initially imposed to promote those
outcomes. 

Inrrl. % R § 1 !: 20W

8. 48. 13490 Remedies not exclusive. 

Remedies under this chapter are in addition to and do not supersede or limit any other
remedies, civil or criminal. The remedies provided for herein shall be cumulative and not

exclusive. Inrd 220%.
f %.f Nf

a  nng) 1%_#
1 I

Chapter 18. 08 EXCAVATION AND GRADING

Article 1. General Provisions

18. 08. 010 Title. 

This chapter shall be known as the "Grading Ordinance of the city of Lemon Grove."- r- 

271 & I 2QQ_PA



Attachment A

18. 08. 020 Purpose. 

This chapter establishes minimum requirements for grading, excavation and filling of land. It

also provides for the issuance of permits, and provides for the enforcement of the chapter

provisions. These provisions are supplementary and additional to the subdivision and zoning

regulations of the city and shall be read and construed as an integral part of such regulations
and the land development patterns and controls established thereby. ( C..),rd.. . 71 1fi

1 20fW' 

18. 08.030 Intent. 

The intent of this chapter is to protect life and property, promote the general welfare, 

enhance and improve the physical environment of the community, and preserve and protect the

natural scenic character of the city. In administering these provisions, the following goals should
be respected: 

A. Ensure that future development of lands occurs in the manner most compatible with

surrounding natural areas to have the least adverse effect upon other persons, land, or the

general public; 

B. Ensure that soil will not be stripped and removed from lands leaving barren, unsightly, 

unproductive land subject to erosion, subsidence and faulty drainage; 

C. Encourage design and development of building sites to provide the maximum in safety
and human enjoyment, while adapting development to and taking advantage of the natural
terrain; and minimizing adverse visual impacts caused by major land form modifications, 

D. Encourage and direct special attention toward retaining natural plantings and maximum
number of existing trees; 

E. Ensure that the objectives and policies of the adopted general plan for the city are met; 

F. Meet the requirements of San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board order
Number R920074004 R9- 201 3- 000.1L as may be amended. rn-.. 271 & I

18. 08. 040 Provisions separate from other requirements. 

A. Nothing in this chapter shall preclude the inclusion in any zoning permit, subdivision

approval, waiver, review or other approval issued or approved pursuant to city ordinances of
any condition, provision or requirement concerning the grading of land. Nothing in this chapter
shall preclude the requirement for the propertyowner or applicant to obtain any other permit or
approval required by the. 7 N. 0' it Engineer or by law from any public or private party or
agency. 

B. This chapter shall not affect the requirements of any other provision of this code
requiring permits, fees or other charges, or affect any provision concerning the granting of

franchises by any other person, body or agency. 

C. This chapter is intended to implement the provisions of Chapters 8. 48 and 8. 52 of this

code related to stormwater regulatory requirements including compliance with all implementing
regulations of the city related to pollution control related to stormwater discharges, such as the

Lemon Grove jurisdictional runoff management program (" JRMP"). lured 271 & 1, ) nnQ 



Attachment A

18. 08. 050 Definitions. 

The following words and phrases, when used in this chapter shall be construed as defined in

this section: 

Application package" means a set of materials, i. e., the application form accompanied by

maps, studies, etc. as required by the checklist established by the
Development Services Director, filed by an applicant to officially request a permit subject

to this title, or other titles as may be appropriate. 

Approval" means a written professional opinion by the responsible principal of record

concerning the satisfactory progress and completion of the work under his or her purview unless
it specifically refers to the Cit n sneer. 

Approved plans" means the most current grading plans which bear the signature or stamp of
approval of the G4.11a City Engineer. 

Approved testing agency" means a testing agency approved by the e4Cit

Engineer. 

Issi ll'Irtj e , i, ^. , ti N) Iq

w : , r, W , i rrrnrrr mvl v' mm '

T "
atedaw ea ww.iwx m a

I' N °°"' 1444uuW. '' NAAAAA
MIMM

v V

IV

m c ui ui i l;' imm1 mi " wwiiiw, mmr  4
I wa

1

Archaeologist" means a person who does scientific study of material remains of past human

life and activity. 

As -graded" means the surface and subsurface conditions and configuration upon

completion of grading. 

Bedrock" means in- place solid rock. 

Bench" means a relatively level step excavated into earth material on which fill is to be
placed. 

ractir f Bl l ) shall have the same meanie inSeLemon

Grove Municipal Code 8. 48. 020. " Erosion control measures" are.
w

BMPs.
w

T

BMP Manual or aouaal shall have the same meanina as set fbj t it in I GA_ Lemon Grove

Municipal Code Section 8. 48. 020. 

Borrow" means earth material acquired from an off-site location for use in grading on a site. 

Borrow pit" means premises from which soil, sand, gravel, decomposed granite or rock are

removed for any purpose. 

Gro+# t+ g" ees e-x a rtir a t3y n" Hated

zi

Building pad" means that portion of the land contained within an area bounded by a line five

feet outside the foundation footing for a building being cleared and level. 

Building site" means that portion of the land containing the building pad( s) and lying within

an area bounded by the top of slopes and/ or toe of slopes within the lot or parcel. 
CEQA" means the California Environmental Quality Act and its associated legislation, 

findings, determinations and requirements. 

MR



Attachment A

Certify" or " certification" means a signed written statement that the specific inspections and

tests required have been performed and that the works comply with the applicable requirements
of this chapter, the plans and the permit. 

City" means the city of Lemon Grove. 

irity en9,;nd9rCity En_, ickneer'' means the mcit, Engineer or the director of public

works for the city or his or her duly authorized representative. 

Civil engineer" means a professional engineer registered in the state of California to practice

in the field of civil engineering. 

Civil engineering" means the application of the knowledge of the forces of nature, principles

of mechanics, and the properties of materials for evaluation, design and construction of civil

works for the beneficial uses of the population. 

Clearing" and/ or " brushing" means the removal of vegetation ( grass, brush, trees and similar

plant types) above the natural surface of the ground. 

development rlirer' G+ Develo ment Services Director' means the director of

419 develonme Development Services or duly authorized representative. 

Compaction" means densification of a soil or rock fill by mechanical or other acceptable
procedures. 

Contour grading" means grading which creates, or results in, land surfaces which reflect the

pre -graded natural terrain or that simulates natural terrain, i. e., rounded nonplanary surfaces

and rounded, nonangular intersections between surfaces. 

Contractor" means a contractor licensed by the state to do work under this chapter. A

contractor may be authorized to act for a property owner in doing such work. 

County" means theCountv of San Dieqo. 
w. w. w. mmmmmmmnw w. w. w. w. w. w. mmmmm . . 

isII have the same m . _ nam as set forth in 8.48. 020

r II have same meansmeanina as set forth in the Lernn Grove Munic-flna. 

Code Section -8. 48. 020. 

4, Y ' 
r  -..„ y ur ,- ;'.  

HNi° , 
r -, fir n , „ . I Ir. . ,, . - . I uN . , , '.,. r II. 

w , - j. 

Mp .  . niw rrrrrr vm Wr ; e >. 4; miW r uwmvi w ani iii, i, r , rne : 4 - m m d   , ;, m  mn M V : d
mm„ - -, nr www

rv t I Xtr , r .. -  . , 

at inliflad

It

b-wal-r-m a

a
n 6% 

W 1 IV r

f"
n 1z' " T-4# 

IS   Of

ti » 

Earth material" means any rock, natural soil, or fill and/ or any combination thereof. 

Embankment" or " fill" means any act by which earth, land, gravel, rock, or any other material

is deposited, placed, pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved to a new location and the

conditions resulting therefrom. 

N ei• + .-` - i jm- a- GIVtt-
n

T e e r rers i c a rori h # A --P Fa e
uli, 

a MM. 

i r

n nM  i

mw, i '. ......... .. .  u '. w., , r. mri,i n » i.' w„ '., . . 
i; Owl^ 

Uwm ' rm. l, . mrrw



Attachment A

Engineering geologist" means a certified engineering geologist, registered by the state to

practice engineering geology. 

Engineering geology" means the application of geologic knowledge and principles in the

investigation and evaluation of naturally occurring rock and soil for use in the design of civil
work. 

Enviro til

nal initial
i,

Iy e- red undemmrthwe National FnVironmen. _... aG  st dv" s an initial s tw p   
r  

rr

Policy Act and the California Environmental Q,ualitv Act which assesses the Possiblerrrr

N

rrr 

i.  '.. a :..  . ,. p ,  ,,. nye opt, 
u . r

ir „' "'; m N i  , ,
r: 

ir ,. I y , , r r
pgpY, 

I
i,, 

a ' Yr ru N ,  

WY , timlf v' r,

fir(®° 
j

aIle, 

1. W { 

Y r r. '% [.. Y " ', Y v I I Y, f. dill. e Im

iiiF. ma

t' '..,,. t
Mires; l . 

mmw m m YMUrrV wxmivlxwxwm wnrwmmrrvlmmrw ' m. hrNiM1rrhrrMMM mIhMi vnrr- ae nvmrrdvnidIM1mmaYfMfiiKK W! dM'- M% W. 1 ,. 

proposed project. 

Enviro ° ), er t b sensitive areas" are defit-ie
d

by Re„ ional Water
muammlity

Control Board for
mw

W

r  ” ... 

V , 

mm 

R9 -2t P .. r , 

D

II ' t— ( RWQCPj, w r. rmnmmmm rmmmm"m.

r; 

m o 13- 0100
rmrkwY, r. Yui

a Y „

rvi
w

No. 
N , I

I' ,

u ,. 
YY  

i ; 4  
o- 

qp
gN

a I r Yw'" - 
wv l' 

r

Ommmmmi

r

rr
CAS01I1

9; , !! 

o. I A ' W N t  a not I t t  l   wi! 

r Act e : io lm lair ter bo les, rea  e°s, ,, at' d as Are,as ofto ani CleanYKgtc   ,. 
rrr .......... ®

rr mmmmm m

mm ,  

W ' .

nl , r 

s  t  l  r a r l S nil . ue i sol `, cal   a e  SIN t t  sod W 
r

RWQC

ww(

tw,.
w. . rmm. m.... - .._ 

m . . , .
m..,. r

iVumm^ 

4

N State, WMll-

l , 

rt„ 

Protected
mmmr 

ea; 
k

vuat.
r. erwbodies, +drmm r+—

esi'
If4N UWtrwV. iW'mmr' awwwrw wtw

uuemmmmndmmmmmmmmrmrmrmwrmmmmnith,... 
th ;.'

FAnRx—

A
rrwvrmuwRmwm'aNww.

E
i i......

rsr n @srves or -their

ww. rn'wwmr

d als, 
VI

ValIeINttmal i adrCNarea t , 
nmum... m

m' m vam. uuuwurmxrnri uw rvummmmm vnmrvinmm. m. .. - wruWµ ww  mrrWw. umrnmennnnmur rs'i fN( f3Alr^ k' 

u o de ° the , Itw ec es Conservation Eit  nthe. Cifies a n punt i,, D ou m d r.. .. 
mmmrne®® lvmrrmrmmrmmMlNinrnrn+ rIr iY

d 'ueuaamiwuw' 

a

XN XN I . r
v

Yu

U 
v ' 

r. w rrr « rrrw r Vew ,, uu n ; aum nr mr , wry m> r 4rrwL% rir nY uU rr w r mry p mm ruUt  GG  t r  n t t e n n C 

tl r e ° ivaie t or v on  r all sensitive . reas w -Bich have bears m' ent °ion  tl
mm-.... rr _ .

mmmm r.  - 
wwwww.w. w.......... mm. -....... y

wo IL A

rnnoic ot
scitj._' al AlI 1 116 11. % We

Erosionall bit tho nnionn of
me %—.A Val %i —JL I a % WP -- P I %-# %. l %0 'll Al -

W IF I I 1" I' ll I I % 

N - P ty 1 %
0 % A 0 IF %. 11 W % A I I 16A . ffl %. ff I " Ill W

Wtmmr -- w

W1
FY

µ il i i 

W rw v t t° e   1; riu w

llmG C- 8,4S.o2o,

Y Erosion control system" means any combination of erosion control measures as defined

in mmr- 

rrrrr ._ I
r

uifn ent f i cl r Ch te

r and the BMP Manual and shall

be to protect adjacent

private property, watercourses, public facilities and receiving waters from the deposition of sediment
or

dust. Erosion control me., . p
a„.” means erosion control sediment cont- waste

manpoement. 

w.®. discharge prevention. or
other p _ i . this chapter, Ehaino" ter $. 5, or theBIUIPB MPs reau re

v ....... 

Manual. Expansive soil" means any soil with an expansion index greater than twenty, as

determined by the Expansive Soil Index Tests (UBC Std. 29-

32). Inra hon
GsqeG le e

a rr h
f

G

r rear - 9

P4 Excavation" or "cut" means any earth, sand, gravel, rock or other similar material which

is cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated, or bulldozed by people

and the conditions resulting

therefrom. Fault" meansa fracture in the earth' s crust along which movement has occurred. An

active fault is one that exhibits separation in historic time or along which separation of

Holocene 45, N



Attachment A

deposits can be demonstrated. If Holocene deposits are not offset, but numerous epicenters

have been recorded on or in close proximity to the fault, a classification of active may be used. 

Fill, Nonstructural. " Nonstructural fill" means any embankment on which no soil testing was
performed or no compaction reports or other soil reports were prepared or submitted. 

irtslQnil_ " nnnnne mr-annrad 1 incur the Fesnons6hie Q P; QM nf1 ;-- r ur , vim

sem pa fi n; ight- gr=it ; 
w

ry y; W

m, u, RRRRt w

Geologic hazard" means any geologic feature capable of producing structural damage or
physical injury. Geologic hazards include: 

a. Landslides and potential slope instabilities resulting from bedding faults, weak clay

stone beds, and over steepened slopes; 

b. Deposits potentially subject to liquefaction, seismically induced settlement, severe

ground shaking, surface rupture, debris flows, or rock falls resulting from fault activity; 

c. Deposits subject to seepage conditions or high groundwater table. 

Geotechnical report" means a report which contains all appropriate soil engineering, 

geologic, geohydrologic, and seismic information, evaluation, recommendations and findings. 

This type of report combines both engineering geology and soil engineering reports. 

Grade" means the elevation and cross- sections established for the finished surface. All

grades shall be based upon the official datum of the city. 

Grading" means any excavating or filling or combination thereof. 

Grading permit" means a permit issued pursuant to this chapter. 

Grading, Rough. " Rough grading" means the condition where ground surface approximately
conforms to the design grade, generally within one- tenth of a foot, and all compaction of fills and

embankments have been performed to the specifications required by the soil engineer. 

Groundwater"' shall have the same meanintq as set forth in Lemon Grove Municipal Code
Section 8.48.020, 

Grubbing" means the removal of roots and stumps. 

Key" means a designed compaction fill placed in a trench excavated in earth material

beneath the toe of a proposed fill slope. 
ry

r'" , ., p rani zd  
r: 

I '".. 
w ,  

yr . ., . wr .-..' irr r J , ra ., vrr ww rm.. • r , m " n 74 , ia. xrrr ., Wuyp t it ... e, 1.. rri, y, r

gAY'`
X r; i rvvlri

r. x ,. 0 a jl '' f

NrMM", r' rqr W RM^ V 9' ° x ... ': Mw,. , uea" . Irwd' i., .,.,, m •

rr

rA^ I
r'

9' r ;, ,,'.' A ' WN V9 WH + A' umd',. mgnµ ,"
e c... 

Land development" means the making of excavations and embankments on private property
and the construction of slopes, drainage structures, fences and other facilities incidental thereto. 

Land disturbance activity" shall have the same meaning as set forth in Lemon

Grove Municipal Code Section 8. 48. 020. 

Landscape architect" means a landscape architect, registered by the state of California, 
who performs professional work in physical land planning and integrated land development, 

including the design of landscape planting programs. 

46- 



Attachment A

a1 } F

desi- r-iterla-an-- dan G nt- e-  Df-th* aM4ef- 

Landscape documentation package" means those supplemental landscape -specific

attachments required by Section 1 8. 44. 040 to be submitted as part of an application package, 
as required elsewhere in the Municipal Code. 

Landslide" means the downward and outward movement of soil, sand, gravel, rock or fill or

a combination thereof. 

Maximum extent practica. hle"'_ (MEP_) shall . h..a..ve the same
rvrvnrvnn-

eani asset forth in ......... 
mmmm

Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section 8. 48. 020. 

M54" shall have the same meaning asset forth. in Lemon Grove Municipal Coden . a.  me . 

Section 8.48.020. 

Natural terrain" means the lay of the land prior to any grading. 

Nuisance" shall have the same meaning as sat forth in Lemon Grove Municipal Code

Section' GZMG 17. 08.030, 

wry

r

yv y X ,,.- .::.  ' _; , 
I - . nrt  , rou. r  X, neo w. , rv.: '. w .  ,. r, „: „ , n, ,, Y „„, . I ., art. ry  s d.  , ". ,. I m ., u I

I , ., 

mrrtrt:

Xru. W& 

rY„ I I .  .«,.,. 

ed ' I' r, , , 

s % 

V1 lt liil"1 • , 

1

l F

t$ f-thGOR1-.0 P % W( 
rF t̀

f

y • • 
a II

rtrtrtrt

m
h - of  .  . N _ r

1pamon+ c nnri the
y

mn

c ,  . 

C? or-1 rr- i•+ rar  at

p
oX

u i
t . W .: rrtw. ':: ¢ r: . mix. m...: i: 

w.' r « o ,

ry®

yrv o r - vu.. iriririr ... Y m + m ' r ^ mm,•:• o e'» w'• '.'— v n • ww — r r:' ei„ 
rr xwr ' r uwr :: V ypv r'.. a:u. ®.. m, r ' rtm., 4 + ia p

BNi : .'  
iNhXFo

of & wi# i k+e- tG--Gon4urt- -aa efatje ler atf

rei-1, iaval,,- 0'i ...... _ their .... . 

Owner" means any person, agency, firm or corporation having a legal, possessory or

equitable interest in a given piece of real property. 

Paleontologist" means a person who holds an advanced degree, who is affiliated with a

recognized institution such as a museum or university and who is actively engaged in the
research of prehistoric life through the study of plant and animal fossils. 

Permittee" means any person to whom a permit is issued pursuant to this chapter. 

Person" means any individual, firm, association, corporation, organization or partnership, or

any G4yCity, county district or the state or any department or agency thereof. 

Pollutants" shall have the same meanie as set forth in Lemon rove Municipal Code
rv... rv. rv. rv. wwwwwwwwwww .............. 

m. 

Section 8.48.020. 

Pollution" shall have, the same m e a n.
m.

mie
as set farth.. in Lemon Grove M u n i c i p a I Code

m. m. m............. 
www

Section 8. 48. 020;; 

47- 



Attachment A

m Vfi
0 ,

µ" 
d n ,,, , n. fd ,,. wm.,,, , ;; , x,, , ala, ,. ai, i . fi t tl

X11 FdeVMIM% MS ce, int

atiVC17 Preliminary sail engineering report" 1 0 4 L P "'. 

I n' g^

ro' M 1J

I

ri«.' t" means a report prepared under the responsible supervision of a

soil engineer which includes preliminary information concerning engineering properties of soil
and rock on a site prior to grading, describing locations of these materials and
providing recommendations for preparation of the site for its intended

use. Premises" means contiguous property in the same ownership for the purposes of
this

chapter. Property owner" means the owner, subdivider or developer of real property which will

be benefited by the proposed land development

work. Property, Public. "Public property" mans property owned in fee by the city, or dedicated

for public

use. Public interest slope" means any manufactured slope which meets any one of the
following

criteria: a. A vertical height in excess of fifteen

feet; b. A vertical height in excess of five feet located on the exterior ofa subdivision

and exposed to view from any point outside the

subdivision; c. A vertical height in excess of five feet which will be visible after completion of

the buildings to be placed on the subject graded area from any circulation element road, from

any, existing or proposed public buildings, public facility, or publicly used property, from any
private property two streets or more away from the slope in question or from any private homes
existing at the time of creation of the

slope. Public rights- of-way" means public easementsor dedications for streets, alleys, 

drainage ways and/ or other

uses. Publicly used property" means property that is used frequently by persons other than
the residents and/or

owners. zCtr-Quain
p, " means 6 of innd+

rra'nfzr TWI 1) LAI

I

y i.'lnn

r 

r arn 
ir Tar _ sn nf r f

frnm j i r- F

r• 
mice _ nnar ir+r- t } irir• lM.

19 adTr r6, e_ _ 

Re ti.. ': r ro "" 
nrr .,

i m , mri, F: ,,, , ,:,,, , R , , w. rx.«, Ian i r r r r i

r

e - : 
aa

rA, f ,.

t. '

Ir 
r ,

ro t t¢, - tp 

rY
Xly

pppII andr %
P -

OCA 6 "

a
Rri i

n

6PY 1 H r;

r

nfheermeasure re

7Receiving waters" shall have the same meanina as set forth in Lemon Grove

Munmicimmpal Code Section C, 8.48.

020. Relative compaction" means the in-place dry density (determined by ASTM D1 556, or

other Gifu City Engineer approved equal) expressed asa percentage of the maximum
dry density (determined by ASTM D1557, or otherJliffG. Atv ity En ineer approved

equal). Retaining wall" means wall designed to resist the lateral displacement of soil or

other

materials. 



Attachment A

Runoff" shall have the same means as set forth in Lemon Grove M: nicinal Code

Section G, 8.48.020 K

gSediment" shall have the sameMMmeanina as set forth in. Lemon drove Munici,nal Code

Section 8.48. 020. 

Slope" means the inclined exposed surface of a fill, excavation or natural terrain. 

I;,, , ,.,.  P. ' ,, , I   , ,,
v;. 

v `  I
uw ow r

1- 1- atr o » n r l s o i . 

Gondi t

Soil" means earth material of whatever origin, overlying bedrock and may include the

decomposed zone of bedrock which can be readily excavated by mechanical equipment. 

Soil engineer" means a registered civil engineer who holds a valid authorization to use the

title " soil engineer" as provided in Section 6736. 1 of the California Business and Professions

Code. The terms "geotechnical engineer," "soils engineer' and " soil and foundation engineer" 

are deemed to be synonymous with the term " soil engineer." 
I

Soil engineering" means the application of the principles of soil mechanics in the

investigation, evaluation and design of civil works involving the use of earth materials and the

inspection and testing of the construction thereof. 

Source control BMP { both structural and ..non- structural shall y the, same meaning as

set forth in Lemon Grove Munici al code Section 8.48. 020. 
l' 

mmmmmm nnfe

State general constrction stormwater ermit" shall have the same mean . Hina as se o i

Lemon Grove Municipal Code Section LCO.. A0. 48.020. 

V

1,
M y : 

f..,__ 
u.

6-T7

v
i n inry " i   D

v-
Ftenkin^1 LrniQr, Cndo

Stockpile" means a temporary, uncompacted fill or embankment placed by artificial means, 
which is designated or intended to be moved, or relocated at a later date. 

p
p

ru; ,. 
A%' '

V 

I° !

Y "

u w u, ,

j,, `" w II , .

arc

vim» `°" 
y . N 1 veInf tt

v , -....« 
wwmm m,...., rr.____._....«. 

e Lemon Grove Municipal code Section 8.48.020. 

il Ivo t a nla  p h ... r c u
ww

n to o l 
Iu

h .. 

Lemon Grove MuniciDal Code Section 8. 48. 020

Structural post -construction BMP" shall have the same meaning as set forth in Lemon

Grove Municipal code Section 8.48.020. 

Subdivider" means a person, firm, corporation, partnership or association who causes land
to be divided into one or more lots or parcels for him or herself or others as defined by those

sections of the Government Code known as the Subdivision Map Act. 

Substantial conformance" means grading that conforms to Section 18. 08. 480 of this
chapter. 

Li p ef1

I %. f %. F %, V I L % A P.. f I % a# I '%. f I % A %_ F %_ 4 FLA %. F I I I I %. F F I %. F 9 % a# Ll 1%. 01URcilmr
r

1

infimnrlod r) tlrnnRiQ _ 
II I

En



Attachment A

Terrace" means a relatively level step constructed in the face of a graded slope surface for
drainage and maintenance purposes. 

Unsuitable materials" means any soil or earth material having properties or
Ghar r+arwcfi . 

Archaracteristics, which, under the criteria of this chapter or under the criteria contained in

any approved geotechnical report, make it unsuitable for use as fill or for any other intended
use. These properties or characteristics include, but are not limited to, organic content of the

material exceeding three percent, rock diameters exceeding eight inches, the presence of

concrete or asphalt, or the presence of expansive soils within three feet of finish grade of any

area intended or designed as a location for a building. 

Watercourse" shall have, the sa., me niear,itnti ras) s 0 f t h ° Lemon Grove, i i ai code

Section 8. 48. 020. For the purposes of this chapter, 

l w , w, Www wur, ; aw, 

1 fonQ> 

hw,, , , ., ; i; .. -   .. a ,.:   , or, : aw;: vavy w v w , , va,- , v ; w.w , ioaoia,(ier)t M , ,, n  ..„ .... t64 fec iw: o, w i r '. 11

AC1 ^ tJ 1 t" f Yrfin
TafT

a " Rprivate watercourse" is a watercourse that collects runoff from private property and

transports water to the public right -of --way and a - 

public watercourse" is a watercourse that collects runoff from the public right- of-way

or water collected in a private watercourse that has reached the public right- of-way.( nrd.- 3. 

n n• f1rr•1 -  nnQ 

Article 11. Permits and Fees

18. 08.060 Land development work Permit required. 

A. Except as exempted in Section 18. 08. 070, no person shall do any grading nor shall an

owner allow any grading on their property unless the person or owner has a valid grading permit
City Engineer authorizing such grading. issued by the

B. An owner is presumed to have allowed grading which has been done on property

occupied by him or her or is under his or her dominion and control. This presumption is a

presumption affecting the burden of producing evidence. 

C. A separate grading permit shall be required for each legal parcel, noncontiguous site, 

development, or each separate subdivision final map for which grading is to be performed. 

18. 08. 070 Designated exceptions. 

The following described grading is exempt from the requirement to obtain a grading permit
under the provisions of this chapter: 

A. Depositing materials in any disposal area operated by or licensed by the city or San
Diego County. 

B. Grading which meets all of the following limitations: 

1. Grading is on a single legal lot or contiguous ownership; 

50- 



Attachment A

2. Involves the cumulative movement of not more than fifty cubic yards of earth; 

3. The cut in the cut area and/ or the fill in the fill area, at their deepest points, do not

exceed a depth of three feet in vertical depth measured from the original ground; 

4. The fill is not intended to support structures; 

6. The finished cut and/ or fill slopes are not steeper than two horizontal to one vertical

2: 1); 

6. The finished grading does not alter the drainage patterns either upstream or
downstream from the grading; 

7. None of the fill is placed on existing ground having a slope steeper than five horizontal
to one vertical ( 5: 1), which is a twenty percent slope; 

H. None of the grading is closer than five feet to the adjacent ownership; 

9. The finished slopes are protected from erosion and the downstream properties are

protected from siltation resulting from the grading. 

C. Excavation below finish grade for basements, for footings or foundations for buildings, 

manufactured homes, retaining walls or other structures or facilities, all if authorized by a valid

building permit approved and issued by the Development

Services Director. Any embankment constructed with the excess material from the excavation
exempted by this section must either be disposed of under an approved grading permit, or be

disposed on- site without creating embankments more than three feet in unsupported height; 

D. Exploratory excavations under the direction of a soil engineer, archaeologist, 

paleontologist or engineering geologist. Such excavations must be properly backfilled and
compacted or otherwise restored. 

E. When approved by the Gity Q City Eng ineer, excavation for the sole purpose of

recompaction as specified or recommended by an approved soils report. 

F. Grading for which inspection is provided by the city and which is done by a developer or
contractor pursuant to city -approved improvement plans within public rights- of-way and adjacent
slope rights areas independent of adjacent land development work, or grading done pursuant to
a permit for excavation in public streets. 

G. Clearing and brushing when directed by the fire chief to mitigate a fire hazard, with the

concurrence of the Development Services Director that such

clearing and brushing will not cause significant damage to any rare, endangered or protected

species of plant or wildlife or cause any significant damage to any habitat of any rare, 
endangered or protected species of wildlife. 

Note: The above listed exemptions do not apply to clearing, grubbing, brushing or grading

when: 

1 . Grading will occur in or physically impact designated or dedicated open space or
environmentally sensitive areas designated in the CEQA, the general plan or shown on any

approved specific plan; 

2. Grading will occur in any waterway or wetland, stream, river, channel, pond, lake, 

marsh, bog, lagoon, vernal pool or riparian habitat; 



Attachment A

3. Grading will occur in any floodway or floodplain as shown on the San Diego county
flood plain maps or on city -revised maps; 

4. Grading will occur in any officially mapped area in high geologic risk zone; 

5. Grading will occur in any other sensitive areas such as archaeological sites, historical
ONsites or burial grounds. IC%) 3f 97IN A- %. F)nw

18. 88. 088 Permit applications

A. Any person desiring to perform land development grading not exempted by Section
18. 08. 070 shall submit a grading permit application in a form approved by the Cit

En ineer. 

B. A separate application with plans, specifications and other supplemental data as

specified in this chapter and determined to be necessary by the f. dnallumeoel y gineer, 

shall be required for each grading permit. The application form shall be signed by the owner or
authorized agent of the property to be graded. 

C. A complete grading permit application shall be submitted for city review and approval
with the following items, completed and signed by the applicant or authorized agent, to the

satisfaction of the City Engineer, or this chapter: 

1. Grading plan; 

2. Separate plot plan; 

3. Preliminary soil engineering report; 

4. Landscape and irrigation plans consistent with requirements of Chapter 18. 44; 

5. Drainage study; 

8. Haul route, including source of borrow or disposal; 

7. Erosion control plan: 

g1lp _ 
gyp" ^' W yy Mau  III

JWy^ 
I 

Me .

M

V
It , , t It ll

o rOAX OW II V to r   V %' 4 i e i 4 l a
r

r re  " 9̂/ e ll J'4 WM' MIA
qM r ' I IIb

8. 48, 

9-7. Grading plan check fee; 

109. Soil engineering report review fee; 

11-9. Deposit for independent third party review of soil report; 

120. Inspection fees ( may be paid at any time prior to issuance of permit); 

134-. Proof of legal lot ( may be waived by G.Fltve City Engineer if grading is pursuant
to an approved tentative map or zoning permit),, 

D. The City Engineer may, upon his or her determination and discretion, 

require additional data or information, eliminate, or modify any of the above requirements
determined to appropriate, including those items in Section 18. 08. 090. 

E. The plans, application requirements and necessary fees may be altered or changed at
any time between application submittal and permit issuance under the following conditions: 

1. A change of policy or direction by the city council; 

2. A change in the grading ordinance or fee schedule approved by the city council; 

52



Attachment A

3. Discovery that the plans, application or fees violate or do not meet existing ordinances

or policies or conform to the requirements of other permits or approvals, such as zoning permits

or subdivision maps; 

4. Discovery of any design defect, soil or geologic hazard, or any other fact oi item which if

left unchanged could cause damage, harm or hazard to public or private properties, or to life, 

limb or the general public' s safety or welfare. 

If such discoveries are made as described in subsections 3 and 4 of this subsection, and

changes are so directed, the applicant shall be granted an extension of the application

expiration date for thirty days, or for such other period as the r0ity A^ n' nnarCity Engineer may
grant to the applicant, to allow for all required changes to reasonably be made and
accomplished. 

F. The time limits set out in Sections 1 8. 08. 260 and 1 8. 08. 300 shall apply to all grading

plans and applications. . %
Q7 s -. 2 7 1 & 1) 2 n W2A

18. 08. 090 Additional information. 

Other items which may be required by the si y- e++ ee City Engineer in order to complete

the grading permit application include: 

A. Special erosion control plans, including landscape and irrigation plans; 

B. Hydrology and hydraulic reports; 

C. Application for environmental initial study ( AEIS); 

D. Geotechnical reports on seismicity and geology; 

E. Letters of permission from adjacent owners or easement holders to grade off-site or on

easements; 

F. Right of entry; 

G. Waiver and release to divert or concentrate drainage affecting downstream off-site

property; 

H. Easement and flowage rights documents; 

I. Other information as determined by the GAP, City Engineer to be necessary to [ 
protect the public interest and fulfill the purposes of this chapter. 

Recommendations included in such reports and approved by the City Engineer

shall be incorporated in the grading plan, landscape and irrigation plan and the land

development specifications. ( C), red.. R... 
9711 & If

1
20000%-# 

18.08. 100 Grading plan requirements. 

A. Grading plans shall be prepared and submitted with the grading permit application in
accordance with they+tl Q

I

City Engineering standards and the requirements of the
ee, City Engineer. 

B. All grading plans shall be signed by a registered civil engineer and by the soil engineer, 
The a4ty  City Engineer may waive this requirement when the proposed grading is on a
single lot or parcel not proposed for further subdivision and in the opinion of the

53- 



Attachment A

Cit En Engineer, the proposed grading entails no hazard to any adjacent property, does

not necessitate construction of extensive drainage structures or erosion control facilities, and

does not interfere in any way with existing natural or improved drainage courses or channels. 

C. The City Engineer may stop work and require amendment or change of
approved grading, erosion control or landscape and irrigation plans for any of the following
reasons: 

Extension or renewal of the grading permits; 

2. Changes have been made in the actual work which are not reflected on the approved

plans; 

3. The scope or quantity of grading has been changed; 

4. Construction, traffic, drainage, soil, geologic, public safety or environmental problems

not considered, known or evident at the time of permit issuance or plan approval become

evident. 3.711 1 & E4

18. 08. 110 Plot plans. 

A separate plot plan showing the location of the land development boundaries, lot lines, 

public and private rights- of-way lines, and precise grading information in accordance with
specifications set forth in this chapter and as required by the%.09 ' Cit Engineer shall

also be submitted. A print of the approved tentative subdivision map or tentative parcel map

showing the required information may be submitted in lieu of a plot plan. r-%
3

1 9nng

18. 08. 120 Preliminary soil engineering and geology reports

A. Three copies of a preliminary soils engineering report shall be submitted with the
application for a grading permit. Each report shall be prepared by a soil engineer and contain all
information applicable to the project in accordance with generally accepted geotechnical
engineering practice. The preliminary soil engineering report shall include, but not be limited to, 

the following: 

1 . Information and date regarding the nature, distribution, and the physical and chemical

properties of existing soils; 

2. Location of faults as defined by a registered geologist or certified engineering geologist; 

3. Conclusions as to the adequacy of the site for the proposed grading; 

4. Recommendations for general and corrective grading procedures; 

5. Foundation design criteria; 

6. Slope gradient, height and benching, or terracing recommendations; 

7. The potential for groundwater and seepage conditions and procedures for mitigation of

the groundwater - related problems; 

8. Other recommendations, as necessary, commensurate with the project grading and
development. 

B. The soil engineer and engineering geologist should refer to the geologic conditions
element of the Lemon Grove general plan in preparing the reports required by this section. 

ME



Attachment A

C. Recommendations contained in the approved reports shall be incorporated into the

grading plans and specifications and shall become conditions of the grading permit. 

D. Preliminary geologic investigations and reports shall be required for all land
development projects where known or reasonably inferred instability may adversely affect the

property. The preliminary geological investigation report shall include, but not be limited to, the

following: 

1. A comprehensive description of the site topography and geology including, where

necessary, a geology map; 

2. A statement as to the adequacy of the proposed development from an engineering
geologic standpoint; 

3. A statement as to the extent that known or reasonably inferred stability on adjacent

properties may adversely affect the project; 

4. A description of the field investigation and findings; 

5. Conclusions regarding the effects geologic conditions will have on the proposed
development; 

5. Specific recommendations for plan modification, corrective grading and/ or special

techniques and systems to facilitate a safe and stable development; 

7. Provide other recommendations, as necessary, commensurate with the project grading

development. 

E. The preliminary geological investigation report may be combined with the preliminary
soils engineering report. 

2? 1& I 7d 1

18. 08. 130 Landscape and irrigation plans. 

A. Except for agricultural grading plans, all slopes to be constructed, but only final slopes of

any borrow pit, shall be provided with an irrigation system which shall be used by the permittee
to promote the growth of plants to protect the slopes against erosion. A landscape

documentation package, if required by chapter 18. 44, shall accompany grading pian submitted

for grading permits. 

B. The grading on the project shall be designed for the efficient use of water by minimizing
soil erosion, runoff and water waste, resulting from precipitation and irrigation. 

C. The plans shall include specifications for the preparation of the existing soils or for the
application of topsoil amendments to the slopes to encourage vigorous growth. The permittee

shall be responsible for full compliance with the standards and procedures established by the

city in this chapter or other applicable ordinances, standards or manuals. Landscape and

irrigation plans and specifications shall maximize the use of drought resistant plants and shall

provide for water conservation measures throughout the planting irrigation and maintenance
plans and specifications. The plan shall show the finished configuration and elevations of each

landscaped area including the height of graded slopes, the drainage pattern, pad elevations, 

finish grade and any stormwater retention improvements. 

D. The landscape documentation package shall be prepared by a licensed landscape
architect, licensed civil engineer, licensed architect, or other landscape professional



Attachment A

appropriately licensed by the state and shall contain all of the elements required by Section
18.44. 070. 

E. The permittee shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of the irrigation

system until the, + ia

arCit Engineer determines that the system has been properly

installed and meets the minimum requirements of this section and the requirements of Chapter

1$. 44. nrd 387 3
1

2nn11 ( 00 nrH271 a 1) nn21

18. 08. 140 Minimum BMPs for land disturbance activities. 

All dischargers engaged in land disturbance activities shall implement BivlPs as detailed in

the city' s % BMP Manual, this

chapter, and Chapter 8. 48,3 as applicable to the project. 

18. 08. 150 Erosion prevention. 

A. Project proponents shall implement ethe., , -*-# ----. . w . 
09111, A % il ofIn, control

minimizemeasures in th,e BMP Manual, this chapter, and Chapter 8.48X to
f

proiect' s erosion

1 n , i rn ' n  , ii ' 
7A' f '. !  #' ' , -^ w ! 

of
7 .- , - 

AIL Z
6 ,/` ill ! - i IR 7 '! 

f al ' s iii ! i

r

t i, , 

a • as n . 

OA
Ivor

p

a

10

0

l l ltP& 

y

um ' m. ,,. x cu u .  .. i.. , . M  i'  i , 4  vif ' u ' ' W l a.. yvwY  

tel
r6

V i  r„, iV Y r ,', y . ' v.  m
Y ; -. ro  ;' ,  1 '" MW

u i': ,., w,.,„ , uv .... , ....»,, , wm.  - I r.. r V . u

e+ 

g

f



Attachment A

MMWs, 

IWAWN

ars

w iw
r

as ' 

i aw
Ai

i

i ill

r
i

r , 

a1IR,  

r. 

1, 

i

a, 

i

y

i, AY -, , ,,, r :+wi , „ 
Alli illi' . air

w
Ai

ww" 11

ISM
i

r

r

r

dr

IIIA

t1F;, ;". , ry ; , , , , ,.,. ,,, , , + ir ' ,. R ;. r +" alar% , 

18. 08.' 1 S0 Erosion control plan requirements. 

As applicable, all applications for permits related to construction activities, regardless of the

date of submittal and including but not limited to projects that require an approved grading plan
or permit, shall include an erosion control plan designed to limit erosion of all disturbed portions

of the property and to eliminate the transport of soil onto adjacent properties or into streets, 
storm drains, or drainage ways. ' C) r"i. '% 

I

271 § - I , 9nn8-) 

18. 08. 170 Erosion control required. 

57- 



Attachment A

A. Plans for an erosion control system shall be prepared and submitted for the review and

tv a * 
I

approval of the Gzdlitv a as a part of any application for a construction permit. T cit Engineer

The erosion control system shall comply with the requirements of the latest State general
coil

istr'tictions,,,,tormwa,,Ite,,r,,L)e,,rmit, (RP° Pe rmit No., CAS0,00002, and any ... amendri'Nierits

thereto _ ! F== m Rmuctom , the M54 Permit, Lemon

Grove Municipal Code'.-.( G;4.11G. Chapter -s 8. 481 and this chapter to satisfy the requirements for
erosion control and to eliminate the discharge of sediment and pollutants. The erosion control

plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following information: 

1 ffi Name, address, and a twenty- four hour phone number of the owner or responsible
party, and the person or contractor responsible for installing and maintaining the erosion control

system and performing emergency erosion control work; 

2. The name, address and signature of the civil engineer or person who prepared the plan; 

3. All desilting basins, debris basins, silt traps, and other desilting, velocity retarding and

protection facilities necessary to adequately protect the site and downstream properties from
erosion and its effects, preserve natural hydrologic features, and preserve riparian buffers and

corridors; 

4. The streets, easements, drains, and other improvements; 

5. The location and placement of gravel bags, diverters, check dams, temporary erosion

control measures such as mulches or soil binders slope planting, drains and other erosion

controlling devices and measures as required by_the BMP Manual; 

6. Access routes to all such erosion control facilities and how access shall be maintained

during inclement weather. 

B. Erosion control system standards shall be as follows: 

d rszcfimAPA- control, RMPs easures shall be imolemented as reauired by the1 Erosion %.OF m

City' s BMP Manual, _this chapter, and Chapter 8.48. 

2. The permittee or owner shall be res risible for control of erosion on a,fl, areas ofR

qLad! nqY til acc,ep'tanceof the ,coimple'ted,' olns, flits

extends to completed and occupied lots. 

3. No earth or oraanic material shall be dennsited or R!,agtO. here it ma! be difffqyy
rnrrip-d intra q stream or bor, 11 of standing water

4. Eauir) ment and workers for emeraencv work shall be made available at all times. Ope

4redl_t a - 11 nec'essar", materials shall be available oiarA r' i s te, 

stockpiled at convenient locations. and j,j! nt in sufficient quantities to facilitate rapid

construction of temoorary devices at all times. Failure to maintain sufficient materials onsite to

ptwevent an,,:-I' co ri,tro] dischat"'gg, pollutants in accordance wfth the., 

lat"on of ttiiis, C"4-apte,r. mW er ts, Qf th]'L_C " ha ) tei# 2,'3' rid the City' s B'M'P M alnLIZI] immim '

is a VIO I

1190p
a a

L . 1 go
AN op. 0 WWIVIAN M Job a ftj raVis mi I FrAW a

11, 01, 11 111111ILML I 3MLqM! z MLW' dL,,, j

h Au M= F Nil 0 owe ' fi_M11hd1r_. MIELP W1, 61

1i
1111111

Mi
41h a a go, AN, AN AM, M a A AN

M LWM 90111 MMLIWA 2 -IL-M —2 M ME 0 1

58- 



Attachment A

t,. 
d

r rl_ r- rn iirlo  tiz

At

IV IF > > 

we JI" IJ

be - 4e, dr,. W; a

uw.', ."

f: d : iotpa, AAA AA

i

fe, ry," 

desiltinn h inc

All removable protective devices shown shall be in place at the end of each working

day when there is a fifty percent chance of rain within a forty --eight hour period. If the developer

does not provide the required installation or maintenance of erosion control structures within two

hours of notification at the twenty- four hour number on the plans, the City En_iq'neer

may order city crews to do the work or may issue contracts for such work and charge the cost of
this work along with reasonable overhead charges to the cash deposits or other instruments
implemented for this work without further notification to the owner. No additional work on the

project except erosion control work may be performed until the full amount drawn from the
deposit is restored by the developer. 

o6. At any time of year, an inactive site or inactive portions of an active site shall be

fully protected from erosion and discharges of sed iment. 

pyg _ -~'
ro y1y1, y ba,,Si ISI vv. 

a, `,' ...

0 " Ps Ir,
i .. 

A site or portion of a site is considered inactive if construction activities

have ceased for a period of ton --1 4 or more consecutive days._ If construction activates have

ce s ,d for- 14 rnor I or rive a ° ° i r trti I 1 i i l , at ° r i t l  

is considered inactive. 

C. No grading work shall be allowed between October 1st and the following April 30th on
any site when the cit En ineer determines that erosion, mudflow or sediment of

silt discharge may adversely affect downstream properties, drainage courses, storm drains, 

streets, easements, or public or private facilities or improvements unless an approved erosion

control system has been implemented on the site. If the city determines that it is necessary for
the city to cause erosion control measures to be installed or cleanup to be done, the developer

shall pay all of the city' s direct and indirect costs including extra inspection, supervision, and

reasonable overhead charges. 7
29- 008) 



Attachment A

18. 08. 180 BMP maintenance. 

All BMPs for erosion prevention and sediment control shall be functional at all time. Prior to

the rainy season and after each major storm, all 
ra 4m n BMPs

shall be inspected to assure the functionality. BMP maintenance shall be conducted throughout

the life of the project. Mai 271 & 1, X)08) 
x '%.. 

1

18. 08. 190 Grading and grading for building construction. 

An owner of land desiring to perform land development work incidental to and in connection
with the construction of a building or structure shall present an application and obtain a grading
permit. The r.-

Oibl
e city Engineer may require a field inspection of the completed grade

with representatives of thePublic wy1lorkslDe artment, the Development Services
dgwAinr,m r, f dDepartments, the permittee, the civil engineer, and the soil engineer prior to

commencement of work authorized under a building permit. The permittee shall request the

inspection of the work, if required, two working days prior to the inspection. The grading phase
of the land development work shall be completed and a soils report, including, but not limited to, 

relative compaction of the pads and verification of pad elevations shall be submitted prior to

commencement of work authorized under the associated building permit. The

cipliainnmant Development. Services Director may direct the building official to suspend
or revoke any building permit in accordance with Section 303 of the Uniform Administrative
Code where it is found that land development is being done or has been done illegally without a
grading permit, or is in violation of a permit, until a grading permit is issued pursuant to the
provision of this chapter. The Development Services Director

will not certify to the completion of the building where land development work has been done
until a grading permit is issued and certified as complete. ( nmi 271 1, : 2QO& 

18. 08. 200 Early subdivision grading. 

Grading of the subdivision will not be permitted prior to approval of the final map or parcel
map unless specifically approved as a condition of the tentative subdivision or tentative parcel
map. If early subdivision grading is approved, the subdivider may make application to do so
under a standard grading permit. This application shall be accompanied by detailed plans and

specifications based upon the approved tentative map in conformity with the provisions of
Sections 18. 08. 080 through 18. 08140 of this chapter. A grading schedule and cost estimate
based upon plans and specifications shall accompany the application. I(D. lrdoq d 3 071 s 1 - 22MW11

18. 08. 210 Environmental review. 

A. Prior to the issuance of any grading permit, the city Engineer shall refer the

application for such permit to the GOMM, '

INIn"
he rl. l

n Development Services

Director for environmental review pursuant to CEQA. 

B. The GOFAR,! 1Ri4 d E9IV' eIOF Hirnrf.cwDevelopment Services Director shall review each

application referred to him/ her to determine whether the grading, if carried out as proposed, 

could have a significant impact on the environment. If the GOMMI inittr t alrs,-, rr nf

Development Services Director determines that the grading may have a significant



Attachment A

impact on the environment, he or she shall return the application to the C

Engineer with appropriate scoping guidance to be furnished to the applicant for preparation of
necessary environmental studies, or for the preparation of an application for environmental

initial study. , as— QQ9 ) 

18. 08. 220 Right of entry— Indemnification of city. 

As a prerequisite of issuance of any grading permit, the owner of the site to be graded, and

the contractor, if any, shall grant to the city permission, a right of entry into the site for inspection

and/ or correction of grading not performed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the
permit. The owner and the contractor shall agree to indemnify the city for any claims or

damages which may result from the city' s entry onto the property including any corrective action
taken pursuant to such right of entry. The right of entry and indemnification agreement form
shall be approved by the city attorney. , 1009) 

18. 08. 230 Restriction on permit issuance Excessive grades. 

Except for the movement of earth for small projects such as custom lots, individual building

foundations, and driveways as approved by the Develo ment

Services Director, or for local roads or trenches to mitigate a geologic hazard to adjacent

property, or as required for the construction of necessary access or fire roads, as approved by

the rUitu e City Engineer, no person shall grade upon nor shall any permit be issued for

grading upon natural grades or slopes which exceed twenty-five percent gradient through a
vertical rise of more than twenty- five feet, unless specifically approved by the city council or

planning commission. , 9CIC18) 

18. 08. 240 Nonstructural fills. 

A. Nonstructural ( uncompacted) fills are prohibited, except for temporary stockpiles, unless

specifically authorized by the City En ineer . 

B. Applications for grading permits involving nonstructural fills shall be accompanied by an
agreement signed by the property owner. The agreement for development of nonstructural fills

shall be prepared by the City Enqineer and shall contain the following provisions

and such other provisions as may, in the opinion of the city attorney and of the i C

Engineer, to afford protection to the property owner and the city: 

1. The development work shall be designated as nonstructural fill and shall be constructed

in accordance with grading plans approved by the ^ L, 

1J ind FCity Engineer; 

2. The owner acknowledges that as a nonstructural fill, the site is not eligible for a building

permit until, subject to the review and approval of the Cit En ineer, a soils

investigation report, additional geotechnical reports in accordance with Section 18. 08. 120, and

any other pertinent information as deemed necessary by the City Engineer, have

been submitted and approved by the city; 

e



Attachment A

3. The land development work shall be done and maintained in a safe, sanitary and non - 

nuisance condition at the sole cost, risk and responsibility of the owner and his or her
successors in interest, who shall hold the city harmless with respect thereto; 

4. The agreement for nonstructural fills shall be presented to the city council for approval, 
and if approved, shall be recorded in the office of the San Diego County recorder. The notice

shall remain in effect until release of the agreement is filed by the City Engineer. neer. 

lea. -? 9 1 4
7 n C1 S 

18. 08. 250 Drainage easement required. 

A. For all public watercourses, the applicant may be required to grant or cause to be
granted to the city, a drainage easement in accordance with the specifications set forth by the

citEngineer prior to the issuance of the grading permit. 

B. For all private watercourses where the continuous functioning of the drainageway is
essential to the protection and use of multiple properties, the applicant may be required to
record a covenant, a maintenance agreement and/ or deed restriction placing the responsibility

for the maintenance of the drainageway( s) on the owners of record of each respective lot

affected. Permanent off-site drainage easements, as required by the G.AVY ta, City-En. ineer, 

shall be acquired by the applicant. Such easements shall be subject to approval by the

City Engineer and recorded prior to issuance of the grading permit. 

C. For all watercourses where no public or private improvements are to be installed, but

which must, in the opinion of the City Engineer be kept open and clear for natural

stormwater runoff, the applicant may be required, prior to the issuance of a grading permit, to

grant a flowage easement to the city. Flowage easements shall be granted on a form approved

by the city attorney. ((). Bred. 3-:97

19 & Is
1

80

18. 08. 280 Permit applications Expiration and extension. 

Any grading permit application for which a valid grading permit has not been issued, whether

or not the grading pians have been approved and signed by the c+#,%.

01a
N. Vol Cit Engineer, 

shall expire, automatically, one hundred eighty days after receipt of the application by the city, 
after which time the application and plans shall be deemed as expired and invalid. ( Q.*—d. .2. 7

a

18. 08. 270 Issuance of permits. 

The N.- erI rCity En_ickneer shall issue grading permits for land development work upon
approval of applications and plans; receipt of prescribed studies, reports and other required

documents, receipt of fees, and securities, receipt of the required originals, sepias and prints of

the approved grading plans signed by the rl,. itv e City Engineer, neer, the soil engineer, the

landscape architect, the engineer geologist and others as required by the Cit

Engineer, who have been retained by the permittee to perform the work. The permit shall

include, or refer to, the conditions, plans and specifications which shall govern the work

authorized. , 

622
0 0 9) 



Attachment A

18. 08. 280 Denial of permits. 

A. Hazardous Grading. Thei city Engineer shall not issue a grading permit in

any case where he/ she finds or where it may reasonably be inferred that the work as proposed
by the applicant will: 

1 . Damage any private or public property; or

2. Expose any property to landslide or geologic hazard; or

3. Adversely interfere with existing drainage courses or patterns; or

4. Cause erosion which could result in the depositing of mud, silt, or debris on any public

or private street or way or in the City' s MS4; or

5. Create any hazard to person or property. 

B. Geological Hazard. If, in the opinion of the i e City Engineer, the land area for

which grading is proposed is subject to geological hazard to the extent that no reasonable

amount of corrective work can eliminate or sufficiently reduce the hazard to person or property, 

the grading permit shall be denied. 

C. Flood Hazard. If, in the opinion of the rV.1b, e Citv En ineer, the proposed grading

would adversely affect the flow of runoff or would alter runoff to the detriment of upstream, 
downstream or adjacent properties, the grading permit shall be denied. 

D. Subdivision or Zoning Permits. Under either of the following circumstances, a grading

permit shall not be issued unless and until a subdivision map or a zoning permit has been

approved or conditionally approved, and it has been determined by the' city
Engineer and the Development Services Director that the

subdivision map or zoning permit is not threatened with expiration: 

1 . If the purpose of the proposed grading, as stated in the application is to prepare the

land for subdivision or for some use for which a zoning permit is required; or

2. Notwithstanding the purpose of the proposed grading as stated in the application, if the

r f z emainao City Eng ineer and Development Services Director

find that the purpose of the proposed grading is to prepare the land for subdivision or other

purpose for which a zoning permit is required. 

E. other Reasons. The Cit Engineer shall deny issuance of a grading permit

if so directed by the city council; or if prohibited therefrom by a duly enacted moratorium, court

order, injunction, or other legal order; or if the applicant or owner has failed to comply with the
provisions of this code; or if the work proposed is not consistent with the city general plan, or

any element thereof, or any specific plan, land use ordinance or regulation, zoning ordinance

regulation or permit, or subdivision map. The nitv iQQ City En. ick shall deny applications
which are not in the interest of the public health, safety, or general welfare, or do not constitute

a reasonable use of land as indicated by the existing zoning or an approved land use plan. 
I) ff- 

18. 08. 290 Appeals. 



Attachment A

An applicant may appeal thecity Engineersneer' s denial of, or the conditions of

approval of, an application for a grading permit to the city planning commission. The applicant or

the permittee may appeal a decision of ther*
I. pCity Engineer within ten working days

after the decision is made. Appeals shall be in writing and shall state the specific nature of the
appeal. Appeals shall be filed with the Development Services

Director, who shall set a hearing within sixty days, and shall notify the owners of record, 

interested persons signing the appeal in question, and owners of adjacent land identified by the

City Eniq neer as being affected by the proposed grading. The decision of the

planning commission may be appealed to the city council. '
nr. l 271 & 1°° 2 0' 

a

18. 08. 300 Permit expiration, extension and cancellation. 

A. Expiration. Every duly issued grading permit shall be valid for the time period specified
on the permit up to a maximum of one year from the date of issuance. All work covered in the

permit shall be completed within such a period, except as specified in this section. 

B. Every permit issued shall expire by limitation and become null and void if the work
authorized by the permit is not commenced and diligently pursued within one hundred eighty
days from the date of permit issuance, or stopped, suspended or abandoned for a period of one

hundred eighty days. 

C. If work is not commenced or diligently pursued, within the extension period specified in

this section, then the permit shall thereafter be deemed expired and null and void. 

D. For purposes of this section, " diligently pursued" work shall be grading of such
magnitude, frequency, or complexity as to require the regular services of the permittee' s soil
engineer and/or civil engineer or other professionals, and which is inspected at regular intervals

by the city. 

E. Extensions. Upon written request from the permittee, submitted prior to the expiration of

the one hundred eighty -day period in which work was to commence, the r,.%.fl 1,% JW1

a nparC C

Engineer may extend the period in which the permittee must start work, for one hundred eighty

days, provided the permittee demonstrates that circumstances beyond the permittee' s control

prevented commencement of the approved work. 

F. If the work authorized by the grading permit is not completed within the permit period, 
therVitu e City Engineer, upon written request from the permittee, submitted prior to the

1
1%. V P

expiration of the permit, may extend the permit for a period of one year. 

G. cancellation. Thenify- eerCity En_ ick may cancel a permit or may require the
plans to be amended in the interest of public health, safety and welfare or under any of the

following conditions upon the request of the permittee. , ? nn
X_ WW &) 

18. 08. 310 Revocation of permits. 

A. The ity_ Engineer may revoke any permit granted under the provisions of
this chapter if the c+t f '%.# 

1 9 ZJ I

ffan
nparCity Engineer determines that the permit was obtained by fraud, 

or that one or more of the conditions upon which the permit was granted have been violated, or

that the permittee failed or refused to correct a deficiency or hazard upon the receipt of written
notice and within the time specified in such notices, or that the permittee fails or refuses to

64- 



Attachment A

perform any of the conditions or standards established for any subdivision, zoning permit or

other approval granted by the city, or fails to correct any hazard or condition as referred to in
Section 18. 08.590. 

B. The permittee, owner or other party aggrieved or adversely affected by the revocation
of the grading permit may appeal such action to the city council. Any such appeal shall be in

writing, accompanied by a filing fee as shown in the master fee schedule and submitted to the
city clerk within ten working days after the decision is made by the city Engineer. 

The appeal shall cite reasons and contain other information as necessary to explain why theF

City Engineer' s action should be rescinded or modified. Upon receipt of any such

written appeal, the city clerk shall set the matter for public hearing. 

C. Any interested person may appear at the hearing and present evidence. At the

conclusion of deliberations on an appeal of a permit revocation, the city council may deny the
appeal, modify existing conditions of, or add new conditions to the permit, or reinstate the

permit. 

D. If a permit is revoked, no further work shall be done upon that site except to correct

hazards and to complete any work required by the permittee's agreement with the
C ity Engineer or city council. Every agreement and every security required by thisWill

chapter shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding any revocation. , 

1 8. 08. 320 Fee schedule Generally. 

A. Fees required by this chapter shall be collected by the finance director. Such fees shall

be as presently designed or as may in the future be amended. 
B. The s+y-eN City Engineer may require the payment of additional fees for any of

the following reasons: 

Extension or renewal of the grading permit; 

2. Enlargement of the scope or quantity of grading or any change which increased the
need for inspection or administration of the project; r

3. Additional soil or geotechnical review by a third party of any modified grading. 

C. No permit shall be issued, and no land development shall be permitted until the fees

applicable under this chapter have been received by the finance director. tnrc"...
wIl

27' 1-  1, 2CIC) 

18. 08. 330 Plan check and permit fees. 

A. Before accepting an application for grading and/ or landscape and irrigation plans and
specifications for checking, the finance director shall collect aplan- checking fee. The amount of

the plan -checking fee for grading and landscape and irrigation plans shall be as determined by
the ^ i}

N- 45 % J 
N- F

In~
nonrCity Engineer and as set forth by council resolution. 

B. The plan checking fee for a grading permit authorizing additional work under a valid

permit shall be the difference between the plan check fee paid for the original permit and the fee
required for the entire project. ( C.) Fcd.. 3, 1718 & 

1 : 2()()&) 

18. 08. 340 Preliminary soils engineering report review fee. 



Attachment A

Before accepting a preliminary soils engineering report for review, the finance director shall

collect a report review fee. A fee will be charged for each individual report submitted for review. 

The amount of the review fee shall be as determined by the
rite e. R. neneerCity Engineer and set

forth by council resolution. Additional deposits may be required for independent review of the

soll engineering report. , 9nn&) 

18. 08. 350 inspection deposit. 

Prior to the issuance of the grading permit, a deposit shall be paid to the finance director to

cover the city' s expenses, costs, and overhead for field inspection, office engineering, and

administration of the work performed, including landscape and irrigation work. This will be based

on an estimate of the hours needed for inspection. The amount of the deposit shall be as

determined by the City Engicyneer..
r%.

A . 14. 0 1', & 1 , -' 16- "'

1? r' 8, 

18. 08. 360 Work commenced before permit issuance Fee. 

In addition to any penalty prescribed for violation of this code or for violation of the provisions
of this chapter, and in addition to the fees required in this chapter, a separate fee of one

hundred dollars shall be assessed for any work for which a permit is required by this chapter, 
commenced prior to obtaining such permit. Payment of such fee shall not relieve any person

from any liability under the provisions of this code or from fully complying with the requirements
of this chapter. The fee prescribed in this section shall not be construed as penalty but is added

to defray the expense of the enforcement of the provisions of the chapter and shall be assessed
for each violation cited. , A220 08) 

18. 08.370 Fee exemptions. 

Permits for grading when approved and inspected by a city, county, state or federal agency, 

may be issued without all or part payment of any of the above fees as approved by the } 
1 rrl ' ? ' I _' I- O_QCity Engineer.  , 

18. 08.380 Refunds. 

A. No fee collected pursuant to this chapter shall be refunded in whole or in part except as

provided in this section: 

1 . Plan check fees may be refunded, less any city expenses, including overhead incurred, 
upon the applicant' s request, provided no plan checking has commenced. There shall be no

refund of any plan check fees after issuance of a permit. 

2. Report Review Fees. Prior to review of a report, any fees paid for report review shall be

fully refundable, less a handling charge, upon the applicant' s request, providing the permit has
expired, or is withdrawn, or if the project does not warrant preparation of a soil engineering

report. 

3. Grading inspection fees may be refunded in full, less a handling charge and city
expenses, at any time prior to the start of the work authorized by the permit, upon the

applicant' s request, provide the grading application has expired or has been withdrawn. 



Attachment A

B. No refund shall be made, however, if the applicant or permittee has any outstanding

debts owed to the city, or if corrective work remains to be done on the grading work itself. 

C. No refund shall be made pursuant to this section if a request for refund is submitted to

the city more than one year from the date of payment of the fee as to which a refund is claimed; 
nor shall any refund be paid if the total refundable amount, after deduction of city costs as
provided in this section, is less than twenty- five dollars. ¢o,A. 2z , 200

J1 .. W % 0 &) 

Article 111. Design Standards

18. 08. 390 Design responsibilities. 

A. civil Engineer. It shall be the responsibility of the civil engineer who prepared the
grading plans to incorporate the applicable recommendations from the soil engineering and

geology reports and to incorporate any city En. iq neer approved alternative concept

grading plan into the grading plan. 

B. The civil engineer shall be responsible for establishing line and grade for the grading
and drainage improvements and shall act as the coordinating agent in the event the need arises
for liaison between the other professionals, the contractor and theCity Engineer. 

The civil engineer shall also be responsible for the preparation of plan revisions, and upon

completion of the work, the submission of as graded drawings incorporating all changes and/ or

additions made during construction. Prior to the release of building permits for any given lot or
lots, the civil engineer shall submit a written statement as evidence that rough grading for land
development has been completed within standard tolerances in accordance with the approved

plans and that all embankments and cut slopes and pad sizes are as shown on the approved

plans. 

C. Landscape Architect. The designing landscape architect shall incorporate applicable
recommendations from the soils engineering reports along with appropriate measures related to
soil engineering into the landscape and irrigation plans and conditional approval
recommendations. The landscape architect shall also prepare plan revisions, to include

securing approval from the city Eng i prior to installation, and shall submit as - 

graded drawings incorporating all changes and/ or additions made during construction. The

landscape architect shall, if requested by the City Engineer, prepare alternative

concept contour grading plans for review and approval by the o' ninei ity Engineer. 

D. All groundcover shall provide one hundred percent coverage within nine months of

planting, or additional landscaping shall be required in order to meet this standard. 

E. Soil Engineer. The soil engineer is responsible for performing the preliminary soils

engineering investigation and preparing the preliminary soils during grading, providing

compaction inspection and testing, and preparing the final soils engineering report. The soil

engineer is also responsible for reviewing and signing the grading plan insuring and assuring
that they comply with the soils and geotechnical recommendations of the preliminary soils
engineering report.

rd. 271 n19n&) 

18.08. 400 Setbacks. 



Attachment A

A. Setbacks and other restrictions specified by this section are minimums and may be
increased by the City Engineer or by the recommendation of the civil engineer, soil

engineer or engineering geologist, if necessary for safety and stability, or to prevent damage to

adjacent properties from deposition or erosion, or to provide access for slope maintenance and

drainage. where zoning requirements exceed the minimums in this section, the zoning setbacks
shall govern. 

B. Retaining wall may be used to reduce the required setbacks when approved by the sf# 
ennineerCity Engineer. 

C. The tops and toes of slopes shall be set back from the outer boundaries of the permit

area, including slope rights areas and easements, as follows: 

1. Top of Cut Slope. Top of cut slopes shall not be made nearer to a site boundary line
than one fifth of the vertical height of cut with a minimum of two feet and a maximum of ten feet, 

as measured horizontally. 

2. Toe of Fill Slope. The toe of fill slopes shall be made not nearer to the site boundary line
than one half the height of the slope with a minimum of two feet and a maximum of twenty feet, 
as measured horizontally. 

D. Setbacks between graded slopes ( cut or fill) and structures shall be provided to the

satisfaction of the r itl e eCity Engineer. 

E. A usable side yard of at least five feet from any building wall shall be provided to the toe
and top of a slope, unless waived by the rVibl City Engineer. 

F. No provision in this section shall be construed to allow less than the required setback

for berms and drainage unless an approved drainage device is used to reduce these

requirements. (
Ord. 27a

a
I 2nna) 

18. 08. 4'10 Cuts. 

A. cut slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical ( 2: 1) unless the

applicant can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the city Enqineer and ^ 9FnP11 '
nib» 

djQtfalnmman+ cl'- atnrpeVelopment Services Director that the project would be substantially
improved with steeper cut slopes. 

B. Requests for approval of cut slopes steeper than 2: 1 must be accompanied by a
geotechnical report that establishes such slopes will be stable, and accompanied by a
landscape architect report that establishes such slopes can be adequately landscaped. In no

case shall cut slopes steeper than 1- 1/ 21 be allowed under any waiver of the 2: 1 standard. 

C. The G..ityerCity Engineer may require slopes flatter than 2: 1 in order to achieve

the stated design and landscaping purposes of the city. 

D. Unless specifically approved by the city council or planning commission, no cut shall

exceed a vertical height of forty feet. In approving cut slopes higher than forty feet, the following
shall be considered: 

1 . The lack of feasible alternative grading designs which result in slopes of forty feet or
less; and the furtherance of general plan goals and objectives by the proposed development; or

2. Overriding benefits to the city from the development proposal. ( Ord
N- 1

or27  
I 2XIPN



Attachment A

18. 08. 420 Fills. 

A. Fill slopes shall be no steeper than two horizontal to one vertical ( 2: 1), exclusive of

benches and terraces. The City Engineer may require slopes flatter than 2: 1 in

order to achieve the stated design and landscaping purposes of the city. Where a fill slope is to

be located near the site boundary and the adjacent off-site property is developed, special

precautions shall be incorporated in the work as the Aity
N. 0 0enP %%JnI-P city Engineer deems

necessary to protect the adjoining property from damage as a result of such grading. 

B. Unless specifically approved by the city council or planning commission, no fill shall

exceed a vertical height of forty feet. In approving fill slopes higher than forty feet, the following

shall be considered: 

1. The lack of feasible alternative grading designs which result in slopes of forty feet or
less; and the furtherance of general plan goals and objectives by the proposed development; or

2. overriding benefits to the city from the development proposal. 

C. Slope stability analyses shall accompany soil engineering reports for all fill slopes
exceeding forty feet in height, where authorized by the city council or planning commission, 
regardless of the slope ratio. The soil engineer shall provide a written statement approving the

slope stability. In addition, the soil engineer shall recommend alternative methods of

construction or compaction requirements necessary for stability. ( G.F-di. 3,71, 2MQ) 

18. 08. 430 Terraces. 

All slopes thirty feet or more in vertical height shall have drainage terraces at least six feet in
width established at not more than thirty foot vertical intervals on all cut or fill slopes to control
surface drainage and debris. Where only one terrace is required, it shall be at mid -height. 

Suitable access shall be provided to permit proper cleaning and maintenance. Such drainage

terraces shall be improved with a paved swale or ditch at least one foot deep, with a minimum

grade of two percent and wide enough to carry the one -hundred year storm runoff arriving at the
terrace. , 2- 0f Qf 9) 

18. 08.440 Berms. 

Unless waived by therz* bf a Ci! y En ineer, a compacted earthen berm shall be

constructed at the top, or along the line of vertical curvature, of all slopes steeper than 5: 1. The

berm shall conform to the slope and shall be a minimum of one- half foot high and two feet wide. 
The Cit En ineer may require larger berms if necessary to achieve the stated
design purposes of the city.( C.-D.R.J. 3 E211 § , 

18. 08.450 Stormwater runoff. 

Stormwater runoff from lots or adjacent properties shall not be carried over cut or fill slopes

steeper than 5: 1. Such runoff shall be provided to the satisfaction of the G. R} 11 ennirta r' 

Engineer. Surface runoff shall not be permitted to flow from one residential lot to another. {fid- 



Attachment A

18. 08. 460 Subsurface drainage. 

A. cut and fill slopes shall be provided with subsurface drainage as necessary for stability, 

and as recommended by the soil engineer and/or the engineering geologist. 

B. All canyon fills and buttress fills shall be provided with subdrains, unless waived by the
01 Cit En ineer, based upon the information provided by the engineering geologist

and/ or the soil engineer indicating that they are not necessary and recommending against them. 
rnrd 271 & 1

T

18. 08.470 contour grading. 

The si# e eeFCity Engineer may require public interest slopes to be rounded into existing
terrain to produce a contoured and smooth transition from cut or fill faces to natural ground and

abutting cut or fill surfaces. Such slopes shall be contour graded and landscaped pursuant to a

landscape plan prepared by a landscape architect and approved by the
Engineer. The contours of the finished slope shall approximate the natural contours to the

satisfaction of the s+# e+ eeFCity Engineer. The brows or tops of slopes may be straight to
match the lot lines and facilitate placement of lot fences. , 

18. 08. 480 Grading Standards for substantial conformance. 

A. The grading will be considered in substantial compliance if the pad elevations and slope
heights shown on the approved grading plan are within plus or minus one foot of the elevations
shown on the tentative map or approved conceptual grading plans. 

B. The city Engineer and the ^ } cti' talr nmarif Glirar'}

rlrDevelopment

Services Director have discretion to permit up to a two -foot elevation variation if they determine
that the change will not adversely affect views, drainage and unusable yard areas, and the

change is needed to create a better design. , 2008) 

Article IV. Performance Security

18. 08.490 Required security. 

A. No grading permit shall be issued for grading unless the applicant shall first post a
security with the city comprised of a cash deposit or a combination of cash deposit and
corporate surety bond of a surety authorized to do business in the state. An instrument of credit

or other security pledging the performance of the work, may be submitted in lieu of he surety
bond to insure installation of required structures, drains, landscaping, irrigation and other

improvements shown on the grading plans. Such funds are trust funds for the purposes of

satisfying the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created by the work or lack of
maintenance thereof. An irrevocable standby letter of credit issued by a financial institution
subject to regulation by the state or federal government may be posted in lieu of the surety
bond, instrument of credit or other security. 

B. The estimated cost of the work shall be determined by the C ily Engineer

after reviewing the civil engineer' s estimates. If the - itue city Engineerneer determines that
Y %%

0

70- 



Attachment A

the size, complexity and scope of the work does not justify the full amount of the security, he

may waive all or part of the amount to the extent that there is no hazard or danger. If the scope

of work increases, or new conditions are discovered after grading commences, the

City Engineer may increase the amount of the security. W I 1 11 %. P %.#

C. The security shall be in the form approved by the city attorney. The total amount of the

security shall be equal to one hundred fifty percent of the estimated cost of the grading work
authorized by the permit plus an additional sum equal to one hundred percent of the estimated
cost for the construction of drainage structures or facilities, including standard terrace drains, 

slope planting, irrigation system, erosion control devices', retaining walls and similar facilities

authorized by the permit. , as— 0 WRA

18. 08.500 Cash deposit requirements In lieu of bond. 

A. The cash deposit shall be equal to twenty percent of the calculated security, as

approved by the si# e9 City Engineer. Interest shall not be paid on cash deposits. 

B. In no instance shall the cash deposit be less than one thousand dollars or more than

twenty thousand dollars. In instances where twenty percent of the appraised calculated security

exceeds twenty thousand dollars, that remaining portion of the security in excess of twenty
thousand dollars shall be combined with the remaining eighty percent of the approved security

in the form of a corporate surety bond, or other security authorized by Section 18. 08.490. 

C. The cash deposit shall be used to satisfy the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard

or injury created by the work in violation of the terms and conditions of the grading permit and in
violation of the provisions of this chapter or any other applicable law or ordinance; or for

maintenance, cleanup or repair of any public or private street or easement, or for the

maintenance, upkeep or installation of debris basins, erosion control devices, etc. Use of the

cash deposit or a portion thereof shall in no way limit or release the obligation of the permittee

or surety to satisfy the cost of correcting any deficiency, hazard or injury created by the work or
to maintain the same in safe condition. If the amount of the cash deposit is insufficient to satisfy
the cost in full, the surety shall be liable to satisfy the remainder of the cost in excess of the
cash deposit to the extent that the remainder does not exceed the full penalty amount of the

bond. In addition, if suit is brought upon the surety by the city and judgment is recovered, the

surety shall pay all costs incurred by the city in such suit, including a reasonable attorney' s fee

to be fixed by the court. I CQP Rd. A2.0 71P 10 IN , 

122 -
NO GIB) 

18. 08. 510 Erosion control security requirements. 

When the
a%

Cit Engineer determines, pursuant to Section 18. 08. 150 of this

chapter, that plans for erosion control system be prepared as part of the grading permit, the

applicant shall furnish the city a cash deposit in connection with an agreement to perform
erosion control work. The amount of deposit shall be one hundred percent of the cost estimate

for the work shown on the erosion control plan, subject to the approval of theCitC

Engineer. Section 18. 08. 490 shall be applicable regarding types of securities acceptable by the
city. In addition to the required security for erosion control work, a cash deposit in the amount of

five thousand dollars shall be required for emergency erosion control work and/ or for emergency

cleanup. -(
r' rc 301 & 19 920 `" 

71- 



Attachment A

18. 08. 520 Required terms and conditions of securities. 

A. Every surety bond and instrument of credit shall include and every cash deposit and
letter of credit shall be made on the conditions that the permittee shall: 

1. Comply with all provisions of this chapter, applicable laws and ordinances; 

2. Comply with all the terms and conditions of the grading permit to the satisfaction of the
nibi Cit En ineer; 

3. Complete all of the work contemplated under the grading permit within the time limit

specified in the grading permit, or if no time limit is so specified, the time limit specified in this

chapter. Ther-ifu en City Engineer may, for sufficient cause, extend the time specified in

the permit, but no such extension shall release the owner or the surety on the bond or person

issuing the instrument of credit; 

4. Each security shall remain in effect until the completion of the work to the satisfaction of
the Cit Eng' ( nrc. 271 S I _XM

a A- N. 0 % 0
9) 

18. 08. 530 Use of securities for work done by city. 

In the event of failure to complete the work or failure to comply with all conditions and terms

of the grading permit, the r14i a. arCit En ineer may order such work that in his or her
opinion is necessary to correct any deficiencies or eliminate any dangerous condition and leave
the site in safe, stable and nuisance -free condition to his or her satisfaction. The permittee and

the surety executing such bond or person issuing the instrument of credit, letter of credit or

making the cash deposit shall continue to be firmly bound under a continuing obligation for the
payment of all necessary costs and expenses that may be incurred or expended by the city in
causing any and all such work to be done. 0r. 1. 3F?'' & 11 , 22nn0' 

18. 08. 540 Release of securities. 

A. Cash deposits, bonds, or other security shall be released upon request in writing by the
developer when work is complete and approved by the rz; ty i2nainaiarCity Engineer. 

B. No security under the provisions of this chapter shall be required from the state, or any

of its political subdivisions or any governmental agency. However, a contractor working for the

state or any of its political subdivisions or any governmental agency shall present a security for
performance unless proof is submitted that the work is covered by a separate and similar

security inuring to the benefit of the state or agency.% , 900,8) 

Article V. Grading operations

18. 08. 550 Work authorized by permit. 

The issuance of a grading permit shall constitute an authorization to do only that work which
is described or illustrated on the application for the permit, or in the plans and specifications

approved by the s+# er}g+ ee City Engineer. The work shall be done in accordance with any

conditions imposed by the City Engineer and in accordance with the requirements

72



Attachment A

of this article. Conditions imposed by theCity Engineer shall be shown on the
grading plans under the heading " General Notes." , : 20WAN

18. 08. 580 Responsibility of permittee. 

It shall be the responsibility of the permittee to know the conditions and/or restrictions placed
on the grading permit and as outlined in applicable sections of this chapter, and as continued on

the approved report( s) and to insure that all contractors, subcontractors, employees, agents and

consultants are also knowledgeable of the same, and insure that they carry out the proposed
work in accordance with the approved plans and specifications and with the requirements of the
permit and this chapter. The permittee shall also be responsible to maintain in an obvious and

accessible location on the site, a copy of the permit and grading plans bearing the approval of
the City Engineer. « rd. 27

18. 08.570 Contractor qualifications. 

A. Every person doing land development shall meet such qualifications as may be
determined by the, eCity Engineer to be necessary to protect the public interest. The

Wl%. y %- Ot + r ee City Engineer may require an application for qualification which shall contain all
information necessary to determine the person' s qualifications to do the land development. 

B. All land development work shall be performed by a contractor licensed by the state to
perform the types of work required by permit. , 

18. 08. 580 Time of grading operations. 

A. All grading operations, including the warming up, repair, arrival, departure or running of

trucks, earth moving equipment, construction equipment and any other associated grading

equipment shall be limited to the period between seven a. m. to six p. m. each day, Monday

through Friday. No earth moving or grading operations shall be conducted on Saturdays, 
Sundays or holidays recognized by the city without written permission of the ' C

Engineer. 

B. No grading shall be allowed between October 15th and the following April 15th on any
site when the City Engineerineer determines that erosion, mud flow or sediment

discharge from grading may adversely affect downstream properties, drainage courses, storm

drains, streets, easements, or public or private facilities or improvements unless an erosion

control system approved by the cit En ineer has been implemented on the site to

the satisfaction of the ref 1 nr,%.OF rCit En ineer.( C) rd 271 1 9CIW

18. 08. 590 Temporary suspension of permit. 

A. The o;}
7

a%

WO^ rCit En ineer has the authority to temporarily suspend all work on a

grading project and suspend the permit by issuing a written stop work order if he or she
determines that field conditions present an immediate hazard or danger to fife or property; if the

work being done is contrary to the approved plans or conditions thereof; if the work being done

under a grading permit issued for a subdivision or zoning permit is contrary or conflicting with



Attachment A

any approved changes and/ or modifications made to the originally approved or conditionally

approved tentative map or zoning permit subsequent to the issuance of the grading permit; if

there is lack of supervision of the grading operation, lack of engineering control, lack of soil

engineering control or lack of dust or air pollution control; if archaeological or paleontological

artifacts or resources are discovered; or for any other reason- which in the C

En.gineer' s opinion, presents a threat to the public safety or welfare immediately, or in the future, 

or which may cause unstable earth conditions. This temporary suspension shall continue in
effect until the hazard or condition is corrected to the satisfaction of the' C'i t r

Engineer. 

B. It shall be the responsibility of the owner to furnish any additional information, 
investigations and reports necessary to resolve the stop work order conditions. The owner shall

pay for all work associated with furnishing these items, as well as any additional staff time in
ON

resolving the stop work order conditions. , !: mw

18. 08. 600 Transfer of responsibilities. 

A. If the civil engineer, soil engineer, engineering geologist, landscape architect, the testing

agency, or the grading contractor of record are changed during the course of the work, the work

shall be stopped until: 

The owner submits a letter of notification verifying the change of the responsible
professional; and

2. The new responsible professional submits in writing that he or she has reviewed all
prior reports and/or plans (specified by date and title) and work performed by the prior
responsible professional, and that the responsible professional concurs with the findings, 

conclusions and recommendations and is satisfied with the work performed. The responsible

professional must state that he or she assumes all responsibility within his or her purview as of
a specified date. 

B. All exceptions to subsections A( 1) and ( 2) of this section must be approved by the si# 

City Ens ineer. 

C. Where clearly indicated that the firm, not the individual professional, is the contracting

party, the designated engineer, architect or geologist may be reassigned and another individual
of comparable professional accreditation within the firm may assume responsibility, without

complying with the requirements of subsection A( 1) and ( 2) of this section. lnrcl 271 1, ! 2n WO" 

18. 08. 610 Construction of fills. 

A. Preparation of Ground. The ground surface shall be prepared to receive fill by removing
vegetation, noncomplying fill, topsoil and other unsuitable materials, and by scarifying to a depth
of one foot to provide a bond with the new fill. Where existing slopes exceed five feet in height
and/ or are steeper than 5: 1, the ground shall be prepared by benching into sound bedrock or
other competent material as determined by the soil engineer and approved by the

City Engineer. The lowermost bench beneath the toe of a fill slope on natural ground

shall be a minimum ten feet in width and at least one foot into dense formational materials. The

74- 



Attachment A

ground surface below the toe of the fill shall be prepared for sheet flow runoff, or a paved drain

shall be provided. 

B. where fill is to be placed over an existing cut slope, the bench under the toe of the new

fill shall be at least fifteen feet wide and shall meet the approval of the soil engineer and/ or

engineering geologist as a suitable foundation for fill. 
C. Expansive Soils. whenever expansive soils are encountered within three feet of the

finish grade of any area intended or designed as a location for a building, the permittee shall

cause expansive soil to be removed to a minimum depth of three feet below finish grade and

replace with properly compacted, nonexpansive soil. 

D. Fill Material. Any organic material shall not be permitted in fills. 

E. Except as outlined in subsection F of this section, no rock or similar irreducible

materials with a maximum dimension greater than eight inches shall be buried or placed in fills. 

F. Unless the engineer properly devises a method of placement, continuously inspects

placement and approves the soil stability and competency, the following conditions shall also

apply: 

1. Prior to issuance of the grading permit, potential rock disposal area( s) shall be

delineated on the grading plan; 

2. Rock sizes greater than eight inches in maximum dimension shall be at least six feet or
more below grade, measured vertically, and ten feet measured horizontally from slope faces, 

and shall be two feet or more below the bottom of any utility pipeline; 

3. when the design of the development or covenants and restrictions provide assurance

that no structure or utilities will be placed on a precisely definable area, these dimensions may

be reduced with the approval of the Citv Engineer; 

4. Rocks greater than eight inches shall be placed so as to be completely surrounded by
soils; nesting of rocks will not be permitted. 

G. All fill slopes shall be overfilled to a distance from finished slope face that will allow

compaction equipment to operate freely within the zone of the finished slope, and then cut back

to the finish grade to expose the compacted core. Alternate methods may be employed by the

grading contractor subject to approval by the soil engineer and City Engineer. In

such instances, the grading contractor shall provide detailed specifications for the method of
placement and compaction of the soil within a distance of an equipment width from the slope

face. 

H. Buttress/ Stabilization Fills. Recommendations for buttress fills or stabilization fills by the

soil engineer shall be accompanied by a report by the soils engineer or certified engineering
geologist setting forth the soil or geologic factors necessitating the buttress/stabilization fill, 
stability calculations based on both static and pseudostatic conditions ( pseudostatic loads need

not normally be analyzed when bedding planes are flatter than twelve degrees from the
horizontal), laboratory test data upon which the calculations are based, the buttress/stabilization

fill, a scaled section of the buttress/stabilization fill and recommendations with details of
subdrain requirements. 

I. Utility Line Backfill. Backfills for on- site utility line trenches, such as water, sewer, gas

and electrical services shall be compacted and tested in accordance with Section 18. 08.780( D) 

75- 



Attachment A

of this chapter. Alternate materials and methods may be used for utility line backfills provided
that the material specification and method of placement are recommended by the soil engineer

and approved by the e.F11 rCity Engineer prior to backfilling. 

J. The final utility line backfill report shall include a statement of compliance by the soil
engineer that the tested backfill is suitable for the intended use. ' nrcd. 7. 1 11, 2ns_ nQ) 

18. 08. 620 Lot grading Safety precautions. 

A. At any stage of grading work, whether an approved grading plan, or a grading permit is
required, if the rV.4P, e City Engineer determines that authorized grading is likely to

endanger any public or private property or result in the deposition of debris on any public way or
interfere with any existing drainage course, the rGty tsj City Engineer may specify and

require reasonable safety precautions to avoid the danger. The permittee may be responsible

for removing excess soil and debris deposited upon adjacent and downstream public or private
property resulting from his/ her grading operations. Soil and debris shall be removed and

damage to adjacent and downstream property repaired as directed by the rVitu AC
Engineer. Erosion and siltation control shall require temporary or permanent siltation basins, 

energy dissipaters, or other measures as field conditions warrant, whether or not such

measures are a part of approved plans. Cost associated with any work outlined in this section

shall be incurred by the permittee. 

B. No off-site work will be required when, in the opinion of the ngtuy rCity Engineer, 

the permittee has properly implemented and maintained erosion control measures în
accordance with the Citv' s BMP Manual and the deposition of soil and debris or erosion on

adjacent properties is the direct or indirect result of actions of the downstream property owner. 
Ord 271 & 1 X20 RA

18. 08. 630 Public protection from hazards. 

During grading operations, the contractor and property owner shall take all necessary

measures to eliminate any hazard resulting from the work to the public in its normal use of
public property or right- of-way. Any fences or barricades installed shall be approved by the s+t

City Engineer and shall be properly constructed and maintained. They shall separate

the public from the hazard as long as the hazard exists. nr 
A-%. F

18. 08. 640 Public facilities within public rights- of-way. 

The following provisions of this section shall apply unless provision is made by a secured
agreement pursuant to land development work done in conjunction with the authorized

subdivision of property. 

A. A property owner shall pay the city for all costs of placing, repairing, replacing or

maintaining a city -owned facility within a public right- of-way when the city facility has been
damaged or has failed as a result of the construction or existence of the owner' s land

development work during the progress of such work; 



Attachment A

B. The costs of placing, replacing or maintaining the city -owned facility shall include the
cost of obtaining an alternate easement if necessary; 

C. The r*f%l %., 
ifQnI ZI I

In;
na %".' IQrCity Engineer shall notify the property owner of such damage orI %.

Yfailureas set forth in the provisions of this section. The city may withhold certification of the

completion of a building or other permitted work where a notice has been issued. rnrcr 3F7I" k- 

8484

18. 08. 650 Protection of adjacent property. 

A. Notwithstanding the minimum standards set forth in this chapter, the permittee shall be

responsible for the prevention of damage to adjacent property and no person shall excavate on

land so close to the property line as to endanger any adjoining public street, sidewalk, alley or

other public or private property without supporting and protecting such property from settling, 
cracking or other damage which might result. 

B. In addition, each adjacent property owner is entitled to the lateral and adjacent support
which his or her land receives from the adjoining land, subject to the right of the prop owner

of the adjoining land to make proper and usual excavations on the same for purposes of
construction or improvement, under the following conditions.. 

1 . Any owner of land or his or her lessee intending to permit or to make an excavation
greater than ten feet in depth within ten feet of his/ her property lines shall give reasonable
notice to the owner or owners of land abutting the property lines affected by such excavation, 

stating the depth for which such excavation is intended to be made and when the excavation will
begin; 

2. In making any excavation, reasonable care and skill shall be used and reasonable

precautions taken to ensure that the soil of adjoining property will not cave in or settle to the

detriment of any building or other structure which may be thereon; 
3. No land development work shall be approved which physically prevents the use of

existing legal or physical and usable ( in the opinion of the City Engineer) access to

any parcel. I C.). Fc.J" 71If 1 1:9-
2. Of

WO

18. 08. 660 Maintenance of protective devices. 

The owner of any property on which a fill or excavation has been made pursuant to a grading
permit granted under the provisions of this chapter, or any other person or agent in control of

such property shall maintain in good condition and repair all retaining walls, cribbing, drainage

structures or means/ temporary or permanent BIVIPs and other

protective devices pursuant to chapter 8. 48 or the „BMPManual- or as determined

b the City En ineer and planting shown in the approved plans and specifications
or in the as -graded drawings or as required by the grading permit. Facilities dedicated for use by

the public and accepted for such use by a public agency are excepted. , 9nng) 

18. 08.670 Protection of utilities. 

77- 



Attachment A

A. During grading operations the permittee shall be responsible for the prevention of
damage to any public utilities or services. 

B. The responsibility applies within the limits of grading and along any routes of travel of
equipment. 

C. Before starting any excavation work the permittee shall be responsible to contact
Underground Service Alert, Incorporated and coordinate the proposed excavation with all

interested utility companies, districts and agencies. , 

18.08. 680 debris on public streets. 

The California Vehicle Code and this chapter forbid the placing, dumping or depositing of soil

and rocks on the public streets or any portion of the public right- of-way. All vehicles engaged in

hauling materials under the permit provisions of this chapter shall refrain from depositing soil or
debris on the public streets by any means, including, but not limited to, spillage from the bed of

a truck or other vehicle and debris collected on the wheels of the haul vehicle. The

Cit En ineer may require a cash deposit to insure the cleanup of public streets. d: 

1fi : 2

18. 08. 690 Dust control. 

The contractor/ permittee conducting any earth moving operation under this chapter shall be
responsible for controlling dust created by its grading operations or activities at all times. 

18. 08. 700 Cleanup. 

The permittee conducting any earth -moving operation under this chapter which requires
vehicles to haul earth materials on any public street shall be responsible for the complete
removal of such materials ( soil, mud or other material) from the street, if spilled, dumped or

deposited on a public street. If the permittee fails to completely remove such spillage, the s+} 

City Engineer may order the necessary removal work. The permittee and the surety

shall be firmly bound under a continuing obligation for payment of all costs incurred or expended
by the city pursuant to Sections 18. 08. 500 and 18. 08. 530. , 2 0 nW &) 

18. 08. 710 Preservation of existing monuments. 

All existing survey monuments shall be shown on the grading plan. Evidence indicating that
arrangements have been made for the preservation and/ or relocation of existing monuments
shall be submitted to the ruity or- ierCityEngineer prior to issuance of a grading permit. -hod- 

ter§  7 f1r1 Q 1

18. 08. 720 Archaeological or paleontological resources. 

If any archaeological or paleontological resources are discovered during grading operations, 
such operations shall cease immediately and the permittee shall notify the siiy-eRg+ReeCity

MR



Attachment A

Engineer of the discovery. Grading operations shall not recommence until the permittee has
received written authority from the City Engineer to do so. (. ' 71 a 1 300Q

11

Article VI. supervision, Testing Inspection and Enforcement

18. 08. 730 City gongineer Responsibilities. 

A. The city engineer shall enforce the provisions of this chapter, except as otherwise

provided in this section. 

B. The city engineer may establish and implement special inspection requirements and
augment his/ her resources or expertise as he/ she deems necessary to properly inspect a

particular grading project. The cost of these special requirements or augmentations shall be

paid for by the benefiting permittee. 

C. Prior to the approval of any land development work requiring grading plans and
specifications, ther_;tv QQ_ City En ineer may inspect the site to determine that the plansJI

01

and specifications are current and reflect existing conditions. 

D. After grading permit issuance, but prior to any land development work involving grading, 
brushing or clearing, there shall be a pre -grading meeting. Prior to pouring curbs and gutters or

placement of base materials, there shall be a pre -paving meeting held on the site. The

permittee, or his or her agent, shall notify the vita tAQ City Engineer at least two working
days prior to the meetings and shall be responsible for notifying all principals responsible for

grading and paving related operations. 

E. The City Engineer or his or her designee shall inspect the land
development project at various stages of work requiring approval and at any more frequent
intervals necessary to determine that adequate inspection and testing is being exercised. 

F. The City Enqineer shall require inspection of work done in connection with
land development to insure compliance with the provisions of this chapter and shall release the

security when such work is properly completed. 

G. The Cit En ineer shall cause land development being done without a
permit to be stopped until a permit has been obtained. The' City Engineer may

require that such work done without a permit be removed or corrected at the expense of the
responsible person. Where land development work involves an embankment improperly

constructed or constructed without adequate testing, he or she shall cause such embankment to

be reconstructed or, in lieu thereof, order the work stopped and corrected as set forth in
ON

Sections 18. 08. 590 and 18. 08. 820( D) of this chapter. !: 20W

18. 08. 740 Liability of city. 

A. Neither the issuance of a permit under the provisions of this chapter, nor the compliance

with the provisions of this chapter or with any conditions imposed by any city official under this
chapter, shall relieve any person from any responsibility for damage to persons or property
otherwise imposed by law, nor impose any liability upon the city for damage to persons or
property. 

M



Attachment A

B. The City Engineer or an employee duly authorized with the enforcement of
this chapter, acting in good faith and without malice for the city in the discharge of these duties, 
shall not render himself or herself liable personally and is relieved from all personal liability for
any damage that may accrue to persons or property as a result of any act required or by reason
of any act or omission in the discharge of his or her duties. Any suit brought against the

City Engineerneer or employee, because of such act or omission performed by him or her in

the enforcement of any provision of this chapter, shall be defended by the legal department of

the city until final determination of the proceedings. CN., 3 15 & Is) 22nno` 

18. 08. 750 Supervised or regular grading observation required. 

A. All grading, except grading for a borrow pit, in excess of two thousand five hundred

cubic yards shall be performed under the general observation of and coordination of the civil

engineer who signed the grading plans and shall be designated as " supervised grading." 

B. Grading not supervised in accordance with this section shall be designated as " regular

grading." 

C. For grading of two thousand five hundred cubic yards or less, the permittee may elect

to have the grading performed as either supervised grading or regular grading. , 

18. 08. 760 Regular grading requirements. 

A. The City Engineer shall cause regular grading work to be inspected to the
extent he/ she deems necessary and shall require inspection of excavations and fills and
compaction control by a soil engineer. The grading plan shall be a part of the building permit
plan set. 

B. The ^ i4i o,; aarCitV En- ineer shall require sufficient inspection by the soil engineer to

assure that the soil engineer has adequately considered all geologic conditions. 

C. The soil engineer shall file a report with thecity Engineer assuring the

compaction and acceptability of all fills. Where potentially expansive soils are present at either
cut or fill grade, the soil engineer shall provide written recommendation regarding treatment
given or to be given to such soils. , ! 2nng) 

18. 08. 770 Supervised grading requirements. 

A. For supervised grading it shall be the responsibility of the civil engineer supervising the
grading to supervise and coordinate all field surveys, setting of grade stakes in conformance
with the plans, and site inspection during grading operations to assure that the site is graded in
accordance with the permit. 

B. Soils reports shall be required and geology reports may also be required as specified in
Sections 18. 08. 780, 18.08. 790 and 18. 08.830. In addition to the copies filed with the

City En_, ineer, copies of such reports shall be sent by the permittee to the civil engineer

supervising the grading. 

we



Attachment A

C. The soil engineer shall make such tests and inspections as necessary to assure that

the recommendations given in the preliminary soils engineering report and incorporated in the
grading plan, specifications or the permit have been followed, and comply with the requirements

of Section 18. 08.780.-(nred. 711 nnQX

18. 08. 788 Soil engineer observation and testing responsibilities. 

A. General. The soil engineer' s area of responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, the

professional inspection and approval concerning the preparation of ground to receive fills, 
testing for required compaction, stability of all finish slopes, design of buttress fills where

required and incorporating data supplies by the engineering geologist. 

B. Preliminary and final soils reports shall be required as specified in this chapter. During

grading all necessary analyses, compaction data, soil engineering and engineering geology

recommendations and reports shall be submitted to the client for distribution as required, and a

copy of all such documents shall be provided to the G,.itu e City Enmneer. 

C. When preliminary soils engineering reports are not required, the C31411 eCid

Engineer may yet require inspection and approval by the soil engineer. The soil engineer's

responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, approval of cleared areas and benches to

receive fill, the compaction and testing of fills and their inspection and approval. The soil

engineer will submit a statement that all embankments under his or her direction have been

compacted to a minimum of ninety percent relative compaction percentage approved by the
City Engineer. Prior to the release of building permits for any given lot or lots, the soil

en ineer shall submit a compaction report to the satisfaction of the Cit En insetg

as evidence that rough grading has been compacted in accordance with the approved
preliminary soils engineering report. 

D. Density Testing. All fills shall be compacted to a minimum of ninety percent relative

compaction unless a lesser density has been specifically approved by the city
Engineer. Field den- 

sity tests shall be performed in accordance with ASTM D1555, or as revised ( sand cone test), or

equivalent, as approved by the City Engineer. Atleast twenty- five percent of the

total tests shall be by ASTM DII 555 to verify the accuracy of the equivalent method. All such

tests shall be reasonably and uniformly distributed within the fill or fill slope surface so that
representative results are obtained. 

E. At least twenty percent of the field density tests taken shall be located within three feet
of the final slope location and at least one density test shall be taken within the outer twelve

inches of finished slope face for every five thousand square feet of slope area. 

F. Locations of field density tests shall be determined by the soil engineer or approved
testing agency, but shall be sufficient in both horizontal and vertical placement to provide

representative testing of all fill placed. 

G. Field density tests shall be performed on the basis of at least one test for one thousand
cubic yards of compacted fill and at least one test for each two feet of fill thickness. 

H. Testing in areas of critical nature or special emphasis shall be in addition to a network of
representative sampling. Where lower density and very high potential expansion characteristics

ME



Attachment A

exist, as determined by the soil engineer, lesser compaction may be granted by the } 

City Engineer upon justification and recommendation by the soil engineer. 

I. Testing for expansive soil sufficient for each building pad shall be performed on soil
within three feet of the finish grade of any land development intended or designed as a location
for a building. , 

18. 08. 790 Engineering geologist Responsibilities. 

The engineering geologist' s area of responsibility shall include, but not be limited to, 

professional inspection and approval of the stability of cut slopes with respect to geological
matters, and the need for subdrains or other groundwater drainage devices. The engineering

geologist shall report his/ her findings to the soil engineer for engineering analysis. rd. 3 I

3

18. 08. 800 Required inspections. 

The following inspections by the city shall be required of the items of work listed, at the stage

or time indicated. The permittee shall notify the City Engineer at least one working

day ahead of the time the work will be ready. 

A. Excavation and Fill. 

1 . Canyon cleanout: after all brush and unsuitable material have been removed and an

acceptable base has been exposed, but before any fill is placed; 

2. Toe bench and key: after the natural ground or bedrock is exposed and prepared to

receive fill, but before fill is placed; 

3. over -excavation: after the area has been excavated but before fill is placed; 

4. Excavation: after the excavation is started, but before the vertical depth of the

excavation; 

5. Fill: after the fill has started, but before the vertical height of the fill exceeds ten feet and

every ten -foot interval thereafter. 

B. Concrete or Gunite Drainage Devices. 

1 . Cross gutter: 

a. Subgrade: after the subgrade is prepared and required reinforcement placed, 

b. Concrete during concrete placement; 

2. Curb and gutter ( private property): 

a. Subgrade: after subgrade is made, forms in place, with required reinforcement, 

b. Concrete: during concrete placement; 

3. Terrace drains, down drains, brow ditches and all over -paved drainage devices: 

a. Subgrade: after grade is made but prior to placement of welded wire mesh or

reinforcing steel, 

b. Reinforcement: after thickness control wire and reinforcing steel or welded wire are in
place, 

82r



Attachment A

c. Concrete: during concrete or gunite placement. 

C. Drainage Devices other than concrete or Gunite. 

1. Subdrains: 

a. After excavation but prior to placement of filter material and pipe. The subdrain pipe and

filter material shall be on- site for inspection, 

b. After filter material and subdrain have been placed but prior to covering with backfill; 

2. Storm drains and inlets: 

a. After placement of storm drains, but prior to covering with backfill; 

b. After placement of inlet forms but prior to pouring concrete; 

3. Earth swales: prior to rough grading approval. 

D. Rough Grading. An inspection will be made when all rough grading has been
completed. This inspection may be called for at the completion of rough grading after the si# 
eeeKCity Engineer has reviewed and approved the required reports and the civil engineer

has submitted the written report required by Section 18. 08. 830( A)( 1)( c) indicating substantial
conformance to line and grade. 

A building permit will not be issued until rough grading has been approved and receipt of the
final soils report required by Section 18. 08.830(A)(2)( a) and the report required by Section
18. 08. 830(A)(2)( d). 

E. Irrigation. 

1. Pipe Lines and control Valves. During installation of main and lateral lines, inspections

shall be made to assure continuous support of all pipe, properly assembled fittings and valve

installation, as well as proper backfill procedures. 

2. Coverage Test. When the irrigation system is completed, a coverage test shall be

performed in the presence of the situ eiCity Engineer or appointed inspector. 

F. Planting. 

1. General Soil Preparation. After the finish grade has been established and appropriate

drainage is accomplished, incorporation of amendments shall be inspected. Amendment

material shall be approved prior to import. Material invoices and/ or licensed weighmaster' s

certificates may be required. 

2. Plant Pit Preparation. During the preparation of all plant pits, inspections shall confirm

standard procedures are followed to maximize the promotion of healthy root development. 

Material invoices may be required. 

3. Staking and/ or Guying Procedures. Upon completion of planting, all nursery stakes

directed to be removed, and proper staking and/ or guying practices shall be accomplished. 
Inspection of procedures will confirm compliance. 

G. Erosion control Measures . 

1. After excavation of desalting basins but prior to fill placement, prefabricated devices are

to be available on- site for inspection; 



Attachment A

2. After fill placement for desilting basins but prior to placement of concrete or other non- 
erosive materials; 

3. After completion of an erosion control system in accordance with an approved erosion

control plan and the requirements of the City Engcineer. 

H. Final Inspection. A final inspection by the city shall be made when all work including
installation of all drainage structures, irrigation, slope planting and other protective devices, has

been completed and all written professional approvals, certifications and the required reports

and as -graded drawings have been submitted. ( C)IFIrd. 

371_ a-on 

18. 08. 810 Notification of noncompliance. 

If, in the course of fulfilling responsibility under this chapter, the c;} %—II City Engineer, 
the soil engineer, the engineering geologist, or the testing agency finds that the land
development work is not being performed in accordance with approved plans, specifications or

this chapter, the discrepancies shall be reported immediately in writing to the grading contractor, 
the property owner, and the. 0 1' city En-gineer. Recommendations for corrective

measures shall be submitted for approval by the Put,, e City Engineer. rnr. l 271 a, 

X83

18. 08. 820 Stopping and correction of work. 

A. Whenever the GAW city Engineer determines that any work does not comply
with the terms of a permit, or this chapter, or that the soil or other conditions are not as stated

on the permit, or that work is being improperly, or in a hazardous manner, he or she may order
the work stopped by notice in writing served on any persons engaged in doing or causing of
such work to be done, and any such persons shall forthwith stop such work until authorized by
the City En.. iqneer to proceed with the work. See also Section 8. 08. 00 of this

chapter for related provisions. 

B. whenever any work on which city inspections are required is covered or concealed by
additional work without first having been inspected, the Cit En ineer may require, 

by written notice, that such work be exposed for examination. The work of exposing and

recovering shall not entail or be subject to expense by the city. 

C. If the nify Q n

rCity ngineer finds the soil or other conditions not as stated in the

approved plans and geotechnical reports or in additional information which was required for

issuance of the grading permit, he or she may issue a stop work order until approval is obtained
for a revised grading plan which will conform to the conditions existing at the site. 

D. Work may be resumed and the stop order shall be rescinded upon the G141l en rCit} 

Engineer' sneer's determination that conditions have changed, corrections have been made, or the

cause or actions which required a stop order have been acceptably remedied or alleviated to his
or her satisfaction. -{) rd 271 & I nnOI

18. 08. 830 Completion of work. 



Attachment A

A. Final Reports. Upon completion of the rough grading work or at the final completion of

the land development work under the grading permit, but prior to approval of the grading

securities or issuance of a notice of completion or certificate of use and occupancy: 

1. The responsible civil engineer shall submit to the. eCity Engineer: 

a. A certification letter stating that the grading was done per the approved plan or an as - 
graded version of the grading plan ( as -graded drawings) prepared, signed and dated by the
responsible civil engineer which shall include original and " as -graded" ground surface

elevations, pad elevations, slope ratios, and elevations and locations of all surface and

subsurface drainage facilities, location and scaled sections of all buttress/ stabilization and fills, 

subdrains and general location and depth of all areas of removal of unsuitable soil. 

b. The as -graded drawings submitted by civil engineer shall include the landscape and
irrigation sheets of grading plan showing the as -built landscape and irrigation works. The civil

engineer shall work directly with the landscape architect to complete these as -built drawings. 
c. Prior to issuance of a building permit, a written statement ( rough grading report) signed

by the civil engineer reporting that the site is rough graded in conformance with the approved
grading plan, as modified or amended by any construction changes approved by the

City Eng ineer, and which specifically states the following items were performed under
his or her supervision, and are shown correctly on the as -graded drawings: 

i. Staking of line and grade for all engineered drainage devices and retaining walls ( rough

and final grading); 

ii. Staking of property corners for proper building and slope location ( rough grading); 

iii. Location of permanent walls or structure on property corners or property lines; 

iv. Location and slope ratio of all manufactured slopes; 

v. Construction of earthen berms and positive building pad drainage. 

2. The soil engineer shall submit to the si#y-eCity Engineer: 

a. A final soils engineering report prepared by the soil engineer, including type of field

testing performed, compaction reports, suitability of utility trench and retaining wall backfill, 
summaries of field and laboratory tests and other substantiating data, and comments on any

changes made during grading and their effect on the recommendations made in the preliminary
soils engineering report. Each field density test shall be identified, located on a plan or map, the

elevation of the test, and the test method of obtaining the in- place density described; either

ASTM D1558- 78 or the approved equal shall be so noted; daily reports from the soils tech
should be included; 

b. Written approval as to the adequacy of the site for the intended use as affected by
geologic factors, a statement of compliance to finish slope heights and gradients, and when

required by the City Engineer, shall submit an as -graded geologic map; 

c. The utility line backfill report required by Section 18. 08. 610( J); 

d. A final geological report or certification by a certified engineering geologist indicating
that all geologic problems identified in the engineering geological report have been addressed. 

B. Notification of Completion and Certificate of Completion. The permit holder or agent

shall notify theCity Engineer when the grading operation is ready for final
inspection. Final approval shall not be given until all work, including installation of all drainage



Attachment A

facilities and their protective devices, required irrigation system installed protective devices, 

required planting, and all erosion control measures have been completed in accordance with the

final approved grading plan and the as -graded drawings, required reports and statements of

compliance consistent with this section and Chapter 18. 44 have been submitted.- Ir'
I,' ', 

09nl n-_ nrd 271 n & 1 n

18. 08.840 Violation Misdemeanor. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be

deemed guilty of a misdemeanor. Each such person, firm or corporation shall be deemed guilty

of a separate offense for every day during any portion of which any violations of any provisions
of this chapter are permitted, continued or committed by such person, firm or corporation and

shall be punishable therefor as provided in Chapter 1. 12 of this code. «' rte.  , inn O, 

18. 08. 850 Violations Public nuisance. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this chapter, any grading done contrary to the provisions of
the chapter is also a public nuisance. Upon order of the city council, the city attorney is

authorized to commence necessary proceedings provided by local or state law to abate, remove

and/ or enjoin such public nuisance. Any grading done without graders first having obtained a
grading permit thereof, regardless of whether such failure is due to neglect or refusal, shall be

prima facie evidence that a public nuisance has been committed. To implement this section, the

city attorney may proceed as in a civil or criminal penalty procedure. The civil remedy may be

before a court within the local jurisdiction of the city or may be an adjudicatory hearing before
the city council. (

C) rrl 271 ' l 2OW

18. 08. 880 Denial of further permits. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 1 8. 08. 830 and 18. 08. 840, any grading done

contrary to the provisions of this chapter shall result in denying issuance of any further permits
involving development and use of the property up to a maximum of three years. In addition, 

depending on the time required to resolve the grading violation, the city may record with the
court recorder, notice of grading violation and denial of issuance of any further permits. fiord- 

a

18. 08. 870 Lot grading Responsibility of permittee Protection of adjacent property. 

A. For all public watercourses, the applicant shall grant or cause to be granted to the city, 
at the GAitu e City En.. inneer' s discretion, a drainage easement ( riparian buffers and

corridors) in accordance with the requirements of the C ity Engineer prior to the

issuance of a grading permit, or prior to the approval of a grading plan. 

B. For all private watercourses, including brow ditches, where the continuous functioning

of the drainage way is essential to the protection and use of multiple properties, a covenant, a

maintenance agreement and/ or deed restriction shall be recorded by the applicant, placing the

responsibility for the maintenance of the drainage way( s) on the property_ owners of record of



Attachment A

each respective lot affected. Permanent off- site drainage or flowage easements, as required by

the City_Engineer, shall be acquired by the applicant. Such easements shall be

ppsubject to approval by the city Enqineer and recorded prior to approval of the
grading plan, or issuance of a grading permit. 

C. No man- made dams, ponds, diversions, flow decelerators or excessive vegetation shall

be placed, allowed to be placed, or allowed to grow within the property subject to an approved

grading plan, or a grading permit, without suitable provisions, as approved by the
Iewfonfflncity Engi nee r for maintenance. Erosion or siltation as a result of these features shall

be the sole responsibility of the property owner. 

D. The permittee has the right to the proper discharge of natural drainage, within the

provisions of this division, into natural drainage courses. The quantity of peak runoff shall be
limited to the quantity of peak runoff of predevelopment conditions. This includes the right to

discharge, within natural basins, runoff due to decrease of permeability of the property from

grading operations, landscaping, and the construction of improvements and to discharge a

reasonable silt load in this runoff comparable to the historic, predevelopment condition. 

t

18. 08. 880 Establishment of permanent vegetation. 

A. The face of all cut and fill slopes, in excess of three feet in vertical height, but only final

slopes of any borrow pit, shall be planted and maintained with a ground cover or other planting

to protect the slopes against erosion and instability. Planting shall commence as soon as slopes

are completed on any portion of the site and shall be established upon all slopes prior to the
final approval of the grading. In order to minimize the period during which a cut or filled surface
remains exposed, such planting shall provide for rapid short- term coverage of the slope as well
as long- term permanent coverage. Planting materials and procedures shall conform to
regulations adopted by thec6tlj., a,-,, Citv En ineer. other plant materials as specified by a

landscape architect may be approved by the Cit En ineer. The permittee shall

maintain such planting until it is well established as determined by the oUibi a' Gity

Engineer. 

B. Minimum Requirements. In addition to planting with ground cover, slopes in excess of

fifteen feet in vertical height shall be planted with shrubs in two and one- quarter inch pots or

trees having a one gallon minimum size at ten feet on center in both directions on the slope. 
The plant and planting pattern, but not the quantity, may be varied upon the recommendation of

landscape architect and approval by the+.. %.01 City Engineer. 

C. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to their rocky character or where the

slopes are protected with pneumatically applied concrete mortar or otherwise treated to protect
against erosion and instability to the satisfaction of the ' Cit En ineer, the

requirement of this section may be waived by the ee City Engineer. ' F ; 

3

18. 08. 890 Preservation of natural hydrologic features, riparian buffers and corridors. 

All natural hydrologic features and riparian buffer zones and corridors must be preserved to
eliminate or minimize runoff from construction sites. Polluted runoff generated in construction



Attachment A

sites should be treated to maximum extent practicable prior to discharge into the said features. 

18. 08. 900 General construction permit requirements. 

A. Dischargers required to comply with the Sstate construction general stormwater permit
shall maintain on site and make available for inspection on request by the city any state -issued
waste discharge identification number ("WDID") for the site, and a copy of the notice of intent

NOI") filed with the State Water Resources control Board pursuant to that permit. 

B. Dischargers required to prepare a SWPPP under the sState general construction storm

water permit must prepare the SWPPP, implement the SWPPP and maintain it at the site, 

readily available for review. 'Failure to comply with an applicable state --required SWPPP is a
violation of this chapter. 

C. Dischargers required to conduct monitoring under the Sstate construction general
storm water permit must conduct such monitoring in conformance with requirements specified
by the state, retain records of such monitoring on site, and make such records available for

inspection by an authorized enforcement official or authorized enforcement staff. ( C) rd. 1 0._ 

2 9} 

18. 08. 910 Penalties. 

A. Administrative Penalties. Administrative penalties may be imposed pursuant to the
Lemon Grove Municipal Code. Any later -enacted administrative penalty provision in the code
shall also be applicable to violations of this chapter, unless otherwise provided therein. 

B. Misdemeanor Penalties. Non- compliance with any part of this chapter may be charged
as a misdemeanor and may be enforced and punished as prescribed in the Penal Code and
Government code of the state of California, and the Lemon Grove Municipal code. 

C. Penalties for Infractions. Any violation of this chapter may be charged as an infraction
at the discretion of the prosecutor. Infractions may be abated as a nuisance or enforced and
punished as prescribed in this code, Penal code and Government code of the state of

California. 

D. For Civil Actions. In addition to other penalties and remedies permitted in this chapter, a

violation of this chapter may result in the filing of a civil action by the city. Except where a

maximum monetary amount is specified, the following may also be awarded without monetary
limitations in any civil action: 

1. Injunctive relief; 

2. Costs to investigate, inspect, monitor, survey, or litigate; 

3. costs to place or remove soils or erosion control materials, costs to correct any
violation, and costs to restore environmental damage or to end any other adverse effects of a
violation; 

4. Compensatory damages for losses to the city or any other plaintiff caused by violations; 
and/ or restitution to third parties for losses caused by violations; 

5. Civil penalties; 



Attachment A

6. Reasonable attorney fees; and

7. Fines assessed against the city by the RWQC B. 

As part of a civil action filed by the city to enforce provisions of this chapter, a court may

assess a maximum civil penalty in accordance with the general penalty clause as set forth in
Section 1. 12. 010 of this code, or any other penalty adopted by the city, but in any case to be

assessed per violation of this chapter for each day during which any violation of any provision of
this chapter is committed, continued, permitted or maintained by such persons). 

In determining the amount of any civil liability to be imposed pursuant to this chapter, the

court shall take into consideration the nature, circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation
or violations, whether any discharge caused the violation is susceptible to cleanup or
abatement, and, with respect to the violator, the ability to pay, the effect on ability to continue in
business, any voluntary cleanup efforts undertaken, any prior history of violations, the degree of

culpability, economic savings, if any resulting from the violation, and such other matters as

justice may require. 

E. Penalties and Remedies Not Exclusive. Penalties and remedies under this section may

be cumulative and in addition to other administrative, civil or criminal remedies. , 



Attachment A

Exhibit 2

Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual



C
0

Ity of 'Lemon Grovj

0

Storm.wa ter Best Managem ent Practices Manu al



Table of Contents

lJ StormwaterBesL Management Practices Manual ......–_~~-~_-~~__-~_,_ 3

12 Purposes ................................. ~---~~~-~~ ~ 
J, " 0 0,^~~~~-' 40, J~ k' ' ' t,~~~ -° w Y, -~~~~~~^ F M ~~-~~~ H, *~~ 3

1. 3 BMP Manual Document Outline .......................................................... ~~~.~~~_~~~~.~~_~~~~~~~~3

2- 1 Construction ..'''.._....'.......'~,~..~~~ 

2- 12 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control ..~ 6

2. 12 Maximum Disturbed Area for Erosion Controls .................... 7

22 –''''''''''–''''''''''''''''–''...---....^—'~-~~--~~~~~~~ 8

2. 3 Industrial, Commercial and Municipal ........................................... ~..,-_- 
I' M ~._.~.~~_~~_ M'' O~~ lJ

2, 4 Residential ............................... 
w~~.,~~~.,~~,^~~~_~~~,~~~~_ 20

3 Enforcement Response Plan ......... ^~, WA, w~_ 6~_~~ 25

32 Administrative Enforcement Actions ......................................................... -_~__~-~,-,~_~~~~25

3. 1. 1 Written and Verbal § G 25

3. 1. 2 Administrative Citations and Fines l.24) .......... _..__-.^._...-.__- 25

3L1. 3 Public Nuisance Abatement G8/48J1O.A.4).................... ~,__~~_,_~~~,_~ 26

3. 1. 4 Stop Work Order 88.48. D0.A.5, LGMCGl8. R.'~_~~_~ 26

3. 1. 5 Required Bonds orSecurities .............................................................. ._,_.~~~~_'~___.~_27

31J6 Permit Suspension or Revocation ............–....._________._- 27

3. 2. 7 Enforcement of Contracts 27

32 Judicial EnforcementA t na.......–_^____~~_~-~~.~~~~-,~~~#
0~~~~~~~~~~_~,~.~^_~~~.-- 27

32. 1 Civil orCriminal Penalties and Remedies G8`48llO l\_,~~........ 27

3. 22 Injunctive Relief G8/48llOJB.2)................. –.....--.._~~~~_~~~.... 27

3. 2. 3 Arrest or Issue Citations ( LGMC § 8. 48. 110. B. 3) ..................................... ................ 28

3. 3 Enforcement Documentation ............... ,~,~~,-~~~-~,-_~__.~~~~,~~--_~_~,.~~,__~-~_*.~~~_~_ 28

3, 4 Municipal Enforcement .................... ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ ~~ ~_~~-~~~.-~_-~_~_~ __~~_28

3. 5 Industrial and Commercial 29

City of Lemon Grove SuormmwaterBMP Manual Page Iof 36



3. 5. 1 Mobile Business Enforcement .................................................................................... 30

3. 6 Residential 30

3. 7 Development Planning Enforcement ................................................................................ 31

3. 8 Construction Management Enforcement ......................................................................... 33

3. 9 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Enforcement ............................................. 35

Tables

Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites .............................................................................. 4, 

Table 2. Minimum BMPs for Industrial, Commercial and Municipal " 11, 

Table 3. Minimum BMPs for Residential Sites/ Sources ................................................ 20

Figure

Figure 1. Typical Enforcement Process for Private Construction 34

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 2 of 36

Updated June 2015



u.  :

IIIIIIC':°" IIIIIII I. III C I u.` III
IIIIII'

IIIIIIII' ll ° Ilpl u Illllr l:" I IIIIfI II

uI

IIIIIC IIIIIIII' I° III SII '
I.. IIIIII' IIIIIIII' I '° Illu! IIIII, IIIIIIIIIL

I U I IIII 
ILII

Vmull  II II u u I, I  a i V I V II ull V III
II

I I .. I .. IIIIY ... IIII I I Ilu I I I
u   u   I I II lu Ill i III Ills

11111 . I ... III  IIIA  111111. IIIIIY II IYu II II . II III I I I iP I I I . IY II IIIC. 111111. I I III 111111... I . VIII .. I lu I . IIIIIY , I II I I I I I I I I a u III I III  IIS IC..  .. I
I I . IIIIII . III IIID.  . 111111, . IIII C, I  IY , VPiI . 1. 11111. I .. 111111 Y I u II I II I I I I

This Stormwater BMP Manual ( Manual) is to be used * in conjunction with the City of Lemol

Grove ( City) Stormwater Management and Discharge Control Ordinance ( Stormwate. 

Ordinance), codified as Lemon Grove Municipal Code ( LGMC) Chapter 8. 48, and the wate-. 

quality protection provisions of the Excavation and Grading Ordinance, codified as LGM( 

Chapter 18. 08. This Manual is not a stand-alone document, but must be read in conjunctioi

with other parts of the Stormwater Ordinance and the and Excavation OrdinanciGrading
collectively, " Ordinances"'). In general, this Manual sets out in more detail, by project category

rDischargers must doto comply with- Ordinances and -  - permits• - 

Regionaland
activities that are subject to the Ordinances. The Manual and the Ordinances have beei

prepared to provide the City with the legal authority necessary to comply with thi

requirements of San Diego

2013- 0001, amended r r - No. ' ! !!! rPermit). 

The purposes - to establish - , 

requirements and controls, and to support the following objectives stated *in Section 8. 48. 010 of

StormwaterOrdinance: 

0 To establish requirements for discharges into the receiving and the
1

waters, 

0 To ® practicable ( MEP), life, property, receiving waters, 
aquatic

I
and the environmentloss, 

I
degradation, or damage

bydischargesfrom within the City' s jurisdiction; 

0 To protect the MS4 from damage; and

0 To meet the requirements of state and federal law and the MS4 Permit. 

s

3 BMP Manual Documentr ne

Section rIntroduction, provides a brief discussion

Manual, and includes the document outline. 

Section IBMP Requirements,.presents the minimum BMP requirements for construction sites; 

post- constructionsites; industrial, commercial and municipal sites/ sources; and residential

sites/ sources. 

Section presents enforcement actions performed by the City
that address Stormwater Ordinance violations . 



The requirements sites; constructionsites; 

involvecommercial
and municipal facilities; and residential properties are described in this section. 

Wherever BMP requirements reference "' where applicable," " where feasible," or similar terms

that discretion,  determinationwshall be made ; Authorized Enforcement  

Official. Lemon Grove Municipal Code Chapter 8. 48 defines " Authorized Enforcement Official" 

as follows: "'the City Manager of the City of Lemon Grove or any designee of the City Manager

of the City of Lemon Grove who is responsible for enforcing the provisions of this chapter, 

limitedincludingbut not to, thedirectors,` . wig` `
staffanddesignees." References

o  
a

w .. refer ofactsheets in manuals prepared theCaliforniaw ` 

uality Association ( CASQA). CASQA materials can be accessed at www.casqa. org. Some

materials are available ` `` and othersrequirepayingaccess. 

Table 1 below presents the minimum BMPs required for construction sites within the City' s

jurisdiction. Types of BMPs include project planning, erosion control, sediment control, good

site management (" housekeeping,"), and non- stormwater management. Following Table 1 are

additional BMP requirements for sediment and erosion control, maximum disturbed area and

advanced R 

I Construction sites that are subject to the State Water Resources Control Board' s ( SWRCB) Construction General

Permit ( Order No. - 0006- DWQ) ( CGP) must also adhere to the BMP requirements of the CGP. The minimum

BMPs listed within is section are requiredu s jurisdiction, unless

stated. Some requirements sites required to obtain a City gradingpermit. 

2AII BMPs in this table mustimplemented, 1 1 . For categories of BMPs marked'® t

responsible party is not required

the BMPs in the category. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 4 of 36

Updated June 2015

CAS CSA

BMP Type Minimum Required BMPs2 Factsheet

Preservation of existing vegetation EC -2

Minimization of areas that are cleared andraded to only the portion of theg Y

site that is necessary for construction

Project Planning Minimization of exposure time of disturbed soil areas with a maximum areaP i EC -1

of 17 acres or to the alternate maximum area approved by the City in writing) 

Minimization of grading during the wet season and correlation of grading with EC -1

seasonal dry weather periods to the extent feasible

I Construction sites that are subject to the State Water Resources Control Board' s ( SWRCB) Construction General

Permit ( Order No. - 0006- DWQ) ( CGP) must also adhere to the BMP requirements of the CGP. The minimum

BMPs listed within is section are requiredu s jurisdiction, unless

stated. Some requirements sites required to obtain a City gradingpermit. 

2AII BMPs in this table mustimplemented, 1 1 . For categories of BMPs marked'® t

responsible party is not required

the BMPs in the category. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 4 of 36

Updated June 2015



Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites ( Continued) 

Desilting basins i n in accordance ith CASQA standards, or other recognized standard rove the City
En gine r9 If th e project is on e acre or grea ter, th e de- sil tin i1 t be d esi gned in accord n i th th e cu rr n t CGP. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 5 of 36

Updated - 2015

CASQA
BMP Type Minimum Required BMPsz Factsheet

Temporary stabilization and permanent re -vegetation or landscaping as early EC -1

as feasible

Preservation of existing vegetation EC -2

Physical Stabilization ( select at least one) 

Hydraulic Mulch EC -3

Hydroseeding EC -4
Erosion Control

Soil Binders
EC -5• 

Straw Mulch
EC -6

EC -7
Geotextiles, Plastic Covers, and Erosion Control Blankets/ Mats EC -8

Site Drainage ( select at least one) 

Earth Dikes/ Drainage Swales EC -9

Energy Dissipater/ Outlet Protection EC -10

Slope Drains EC -11

Perimeter Protection ( select at least one) 

Silt Fence SE -1

Gravel Bag Berm SE -6

Fiber Rolls SE -5

Sediment Capture ( select at least one) 

Sediment/ Desilting Basin3
SE -2

Sediment Control
Storm Drain Inlet Protection SE -10

Sediment Trap SE -3

Gravel Bag Barrier SE -8

Straw Barrier SE -9

Sediment Tracking

Stabilized Construction Entrance/ Exit TC -1
Construction Road Stabilization TC -2

Entrance/ Exit Tire Wash TC -3

Street Sweeping SC -7

Vehicle and Equipment Management

Cleaning NS -8

Fueling NS -9
Good Site Maintenance NS -10

Management, Materials Management
Housekeeping" 

Material Delivery and Storage WM- 1
Material Use WM_2

Stockpile Management WM- 3

Spill Prevention and Control WM- 4

Desilting basins i n in accordance ith CASQA standards, or other recognized standard rove the City
En gine r9 If th e project is on e acre or grea ter, th e de- sil tin i1 t be d esi gned in accord n i th th e cu rr n t CGP. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 5 of 36

Updated - 2015



Table 1. Minimum BMPs for Construction Sites ( Continued) 

2. . 1 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control Ike qtnrements

In addition to the minimum BMPs listed in Table 1, construction projects are also required to

comply with the following requirements: 

1. The faces of cut - and - fill slopes and the project site shall be prepared and maintained to

control against erosion. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to the erosion - 

resistant character of the materials, such protection may be omitted upon approval of

the City Engineer. 

2. Where necessary, temporary and/ or permanent erosion control devices such as desilting
basins, check dams, cribbing, riprap, or other devices or methods as approved by the

City Engineer, shall be employed to control erosion, prevent discharge of sediment, and

provide safety. 

3. Temporary desilting basins constructed of compacted earth shall be compacted to a

relative compaction of ninety percent of maximum density. A gravel bag or plastic

spillway must be installed for overflow, as designed by the engineer of work, to avoid

failure of the earthen dam. A soils engineering report prepared by the soils engineer, 

including the type of field- testing performed, location and results of testing shall be

submitted to the City Engineer for approval upon completion of the desilting basins. 

4. Desilting facilities shall be provided at drainage outlets from the graded site, and shall

be designed to provide a desilting capacity capable of containing the anticipated runoff

for a period of time adequate to allow reasonable settlement of suspended particles. 

5. Desilting basins shall be constructed around the perimeter of projects, whenever feasible, 

and shall provide improved maintenance access from paved roads during wet weather. 

Grading cost estimates must include maintenance and ultimate removal costs for

temporary desilting basins. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 6 of 36

Updated June 2015

CASQA

BMP Type Minimum Required BMPS2 Factsheet

Waste Management

Solid Waste WM- 5

Hazardous Waste WM- 6

Contaminated Soil WM- 7

Concrete Waste WM- 8

Sanitary Waste WM_9

Liquid Waste WM_ 1 0

Water Conservation Practices NS -1
Non- Stormwater Dewatering Operations NS -2

Management
Paving and Grinding NS -3

Potable Water/ Irrigation and Flushing NS -7

2. . 1 Additional Erosion and Sediment Control Ike qtnrements

In addition to the minimum BMPs listed in Table 1, construction projects are also required to

comply with the following requirements: 

1. The faces of cut - and - fill slopes and the project site shall be prepared and maintained to

control against erosion. Where cut slopes are not subject to erosion due to the erosion - 

resistant character of the materials, such protection may be omitted upon approval of

the City Engineer. 

2. Where necessary, temporary and/ or permanent erosion control devices such as desilting
basins, check dams, cribbing, riprap, or other devices or methods as approved by the

City Engineer, shall be employed to control erosion, prevent discharge of sediment, and

provide safety. 

3. Temporary desilting basins constructed of compacted earth shall be compacted to a

relative compaction of ninety percent of maximum density. A gravel bag or plastic

spillway must be installed for overflow, as designed by the engineer of work, to avoid

failure of the earthen dam. A soils engineering report prepared by the soils engineer, 

including the type of field- testing performed, location and results of testing shall be

submitted to the City Engineer for approval upon completion of the desilting basins. 

4. Desilting facilities shall be provided at drainage outlets from the graded site, and shall

be designed to provide a desilting capacity capable of containing the anticipated runoff

for a period of time adequate to allow reasonable settlement of suspended particles. 

5. Desilting basins shall be constructed around the perimeter of projects, whenever feasible, 

and shall provide improved maintenance access from paved roads during wet weather. 

Grading cost estimates must include maintenance and ultimate removal costs for

temporary desilting basins. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 6 of 36

Updated June 2015



6. The erosion control provisions shall take into account drainage patterns during the

current and future phases of grading. 

7. An approved "' weather triggered" response plan is mandated for implementation in the

event that a predIcted storm event has a fifty percent chance of rain. The proponent

must have the capacity to deploy the standby BMPs within forty-eight hours of the

predicted storm event; 

8. All removable protective devices shown shall be in place at the end of each working day
when there is a fifty percent chance of rain within a forty-eight hour period. If the

developer does not provide the required installation or maintenance of erosion control

structures within two hours of notification at the twenty- four hour number on the plans, 

the City Engineer may order city crews to do the work or may issue contracts for such
work and charge the cost of this work along with reasonable overhead charges to the
cash deposits or other instruments implemented for this work without further

notification to the owner. No additional work on the project except erosion control work

may be performed until the full amount drawn from the deposit is restored by the

developer. 

9. At any time of year, an inactive site shall be fully protected from erosion and discharges

of sediment. Flat areas with less than five percent grade shall be fully covered unless

sediment control is provided through desiltation basins at all project discharge points. 

A site is considered inactive if construction activities have ceased for a period of 14 or

more consecutive days. 

i

2. 12 Maximum Disturbed Area for Erosion Control

Cleared or graded areas left exposed at any given time are limited to the amount of acreage tha
the discharger can adequately protect prior to a predicted storm event or 17 acres, whichever i

smaller, unless the disturbance of a larger area is approved in writing by the City Engineer. I

the event that a discharger requests approval to disturb an area greater than 17 acres, thth

discharger shall first submit to the City Engineer written documentation describing how i

ensures that it reduces discharges of pollutants to the maximum extent practicable and prevent

discharges of pollutants that would cause or contribute to violations of water quality standard
despite the larger disturbed area. 

For the majority of the construction sites wn the City' s jurisdiction, the minimum require

BMPs. if correctly installed and maintained, should adequately control sediment discharge

from the site. However, if it is determined that a site possesses characteristics that could resu

i31in standard construction BMPs being ineffective in the treatment of sediment,, thus resulting * 
an exceptional threat to water quality ( TTWQ), advanced treatment will be required. A site i

considered to be an exceptional TTWQ if it meets ALL of the following criteria: 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 7 of 36

Updated June 2015



The site, or a portion of the site, is located within or adjacent to (within 200 feet) a

receiving water body listed on the Clean Water Act Section 303( d) List of Water

Quality Limited Segments as impaired for sedimentation or turbidity; If

Disturbance is greater than five acres, including all phases of the development; 

Disturbed slopes are steeper than 4: 1 ( horizontal: vertical) and higher than 10 feet

that drain toward the 303( d) listed receiving water body; 

Contains a predominance of soils with U.S. Department of Agriculture — Natural

Resources Conservation Service Erosion factors K greater than or equal to 0. 4. 

Alternatively, applicants may perform a Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation or Modified

Universal Soil Loss Equation analysis to prove to the City Engineer" s satisfaction that advanced

treatment is not required. 

Treatment effluent water quality shall meet or exceed the water quality objectives for turbidity
and any other parameter deemed necessary by the City as listed in the Water Quality Control

Plan for the San Diego Basin for Inland Surface Water and Lagoons and Estuaries ( 2007) for the

appropriate hydrologic unit. 

Additionally, the City may require advanced treatment for sites that have a record of

noncompliance with the City"s construction BMP requirements, regardless of if they meet the

above criteria. For projects where advance treatment is required, the applicant must submit the

design, operations and maintenance schedule, monitoring plan, and certification of training of

staff to the satisfaction of the City. 

This section includes p ost- construction minimum BMP requirements. These BMPs include, but

are not limited to, site design, source control, and treatment control BMPs. 

2.2. 1 ' Notice Regarding Upcoming 0-unges to

The City will be adopting updated p o st- construction BMP requirements for development

projects to meet the requirements of the Municipal Permit. Those new requirements are

anticipated to go into effect in December 2015. All projects that do not have prior lawful

approval at the time the new requirements become effective must be designed to meet the new

requirements. Portions of a plan that, at the time a complete application is submitted, is subject

to further environmental review pursuant to Section 15162 of the California Environmental

Quality Act, are considered not to have prior lawful approval. Please consult with City
Engineering staff if you believe your project may be subject to the new requirements. 

2. 2. 2 Curi-ent Require-ments

The following post -construction minimum BMPs are required for all land development an

redevelopment projects. For projects that are Priority Development Projects ( PDPs), as define

in LGMC Chapter 8.52, the requirements of Chapter 8. 52 must also be met. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 8 of 36

Updated June 2015



Whether a permit or approval is required or not, and whether a post- construction stormwate-
N

management plan is required to be submitted or not, all dischargers engaged in lan

development or significant redevelopment activities in the City shall implement pos

construction BMPs in the following areas if applicable to the project: i
1. BMPs for permanent control of erosion from slopes. These BMPs can include structures

to convey runoff safely from the tops of slopes, vegetation or alternative stabilization of

all disturbed slopes, the use of natural drainage systems to the MEP, flow and velocity
controls upstream of sites; and stabilization or permanent channel s, unless the

downstreamcrossing
is not publicly accessible and is not frequently used. 

2. BMPs to control flows, velocity and erosion. These BMPs can include but are not limited

to the use of energy dissipaters, such as riprap,, at the outlets of storm drains, culverts, 

conduits or lined channels that enter unlined channels to minimize erosion; installation

of retention or equalization basins, or other measures. Flow control and

erosion protection measures shall prevent any nificant increase in downstream

erosion as a result of the new development, but shall not prevent flows needed to

sustain downstream riparian habitats or wetlands. 

3. Pollution prevention and source control , to minimize

bodies.

4. Site design BMPs, such as impervious surface minimization; and appropriate use of

buffer areas to protect natural water

5. Site planning BMPs, such as siting and clustering of development to conserve natural
areas to the extent practicable. 

6. The installation of storm drain tiles or concrete stamping, and appropriate

discourage illegal discharges. 

BMPs for trash storage and disposalI . 

Vi. Structural BMPs to treat and/ or to infiltrate stormwater where a development project

would otherwise cause or contribute to a violation of water quality standards in

receiving waters. Offsite structural BMPs may be used for treatment and infiltration

necessary to meet water quality standards only if the conveyance of runoff to those

facilities prior to treatment will not cause or contribute to an exceedance of water quality
standards, or deprive wetlands or riparian habitats of needed flows. Offsite facilities

shall not substitute for the use of any onsite source control BMPs required by this BMP

Manual. 

9. When an • 

Grovetion
BMP is used, related BMPs set out in this BMP Manual ( includi4p

but not limited to siting constraints), to protect present uses of groundwater, and future

uses of that groundwater as currently designated in the applicable RWQCB basin plan. 

City of Lemon t



Discharges to infiltration BMPs may also require an RWQCB permit, and additional

f* -')

tate requirements may also be applicable to these discharges). 

10. Other applicable BMPs required by the manual. 

11. Natural BMPs, such as constructed wetlands, grassed swales, biofilters, wet ponds, and

vegetated filter strips, shall be utilized whenever practicable for post -construction BMPs

that are proposed by a discharger. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 10 of 36

Updated June 2015



M

UCIO
CL

i

r

cu

7

r--

q

M

r

Q

r

bo

u -

4U) c

o

au) 

Q

co

w

LSLLrcF

CQ - 

tOCD

L- 

Cn

F--

F

a) o

cn . _ 

C

Q

o

cabo0 0

0

V

Ca

M

0 o.

r-

q

C

a

x

v

4

o

a 

a3

sz(

U

Ca

w

E

E

a`
3 "-.

N.

o

a

oQ) 
a

6-

0

L

cn   

J

E

a

L

N

w

cn

D = ? 

CD

u

a3

L

cn

C]• 

o` 

M >,,

E 

o

v ' 

V) 

u

0`

o

v

D

a

c
s "' 

E

o

4-

1

4

o

Ar. 

4-
0

v) 

c6

CO

m

U

L) 

oV

o

0c

cn

L4-
1

v

0

o) -
o

0

ucmD
as

o

cn   

o

o '

aD

Caa

o

n

0

m) 

o

0 (

1) 

0 '  

ou

U) 

oU

U

v] 

0) 

a7

03

V

0TJ

C6

cn

C6

to

p

L

Q

OJ

va

o

Co

ca

o

v3

ca

r6

0

p

ca '> 

oocn
ca

4, 

cu

ull

L

cua7
ca

E

C.] ) 

OLU

6-_

j

a 

ca

E

cr- 

E

o

o

rU . 

LZ- 

v

a

F—

Z

0

C

Q(

n6

cn

o

0

cn

c) 

2-)

2) 

o

cn > 

ca

U) , 

ca

m

a] • 

cn , 

o

L

O

E

cn

Z

to _

0

a) _

0

oc

coo
n

cu

v 

v 

s-- 

blo

0 •  

a

v

o '

ca

v

a

rl

Ci] 

ca

v

CU

NIN
o

U

o

cn

LU
c, 

n

w

n. — 

0

0

M



0u0MC-
4

016.
4 rdv0u

r 

0Enp4Na) roN

C

u' €" 

4

CL

Li

N1

Ln

N

m (

D

U

CCS

v

0] 

pC5

0

U

C/) 

C!

J

VL ......... ............................. .................. ............ 

n 

4- 

CU

0

0  

a

N

a

Q

a

4

cn

0] >- -

6 -•--'  _ 

in

cn

U)(

n . - 

mv
aa) 

C " 

i  [(

n

Q

o - 

c

U) 

0

0)

a

a3

o

cp

cu

o

o + 

ca0
Q) 

4-

0

L

o

CUU

up2cv  

0-% 

v (

n

C%

3

U

O

p

Q > 

D

o

a)

o

o > 

6-

0, 

Cuc. 
o  

o 

ca

cn

cn

a 

a 

as ', 

ca

0 . 

v

ui

Q

cn

CU) 
o

o

0

0

0

a3

cn _ 

cn

cc) 

CU

a _

0

Q

o

a 

U. 

co

o

o

ca . 

v

as

cam .

cn

v

E

v 

CD

as

c

o ' 

o

v

a) 

o

cn

a

cn

E

cu

Ca

v (

Doo ' 
c 

i--, 

v ' 

u? 

a

as

cy

o

o, 

CD

ca

o

L - 

a0

C:)- 

cn

cu

D

oU

a) 

0

E[

a

L

a ' 

W

W
Lb4.
5

cu

cn

o

aL.
f

ca

v

o

o

cn

ra

c.. 

0

0

a'  

c 

c  

to ] [ 

E  

a ---, 

a

E

L

4-= 

a 

a 

a

L

a 

cn

v' 

v

a

cz

cn : 

u' 

L

c 

o (

n

a

m - 

ca

CU (

n 

a  

cn

m

cn

a ° 

o >, 

E

co

V

Cj

CU . = 

in • 

a] '  

as

C

Qacm

v - 

E

CU

n

o

in

U) 

o

cn

ca

a) '  

ca

a

0

a' 

a . 

ca

Q

o

n

F--- 

ca

o

cu

a

J

cn -

0

ca

N

U) 

CU

o

U

a

CD  

4

H

0

cn 0  

1
a] - 

4-

0

cm ' - 

m

ca

L

D

o

ca = 

in

CU

aZ

CO



090u0U] rHc 

Ma 0ub0Naj

U • C

rqlTr
M

I

CD

Q

W

m

Cl ( 

0

o

C ) 

Q , 

r

r

i

4..
r

C/) 

U] 

LL

D

to —  

D

N

m

a

C

0 -

a

a 

a 

o

C

o (

D

0

o: 

Wo
ca

cu

L

CU

cn

o

U

U

C

C

U7 , _

0

C:

0

co  

D

a_ • 

v

o0

n

L _

cu

4-
j

v7

En

N_ 

0

N

Cll

O

L

C

C

C) 

Q 

C

C

L

N

v

Cll

N

cn

p

cn

o0

cm
cn

4--

j

0] 

U

p

L

pQ) 
CL 

L

D

cu

a) 

o

a

ca

o .

0

C

Q

Q

C

U (

U -

t, 

C . 

L

boL
cn

un

a

0

N .— + 

Q7-
4

L -

p

CU • 

C

0] 

3: 

Q) 

Q

L

co

0-
4

co

a. 

v
i

r- 

0

n , 

o= cn

o

cn

E

In

3

a) • 

cn

cn ` 

rl

Q

C

a] 

cin — 

p

U) 

j

L

a

L7

E

w

co

U) [

a

Q

0] }+ 

0) 

a) 

L

C6

CD
o

Ncn

cn

L

cn

Cl] 

C

co

U

L

U , _

E

70

wsj
a) 

Z7

0.)  

cn

N

C0
1= 

C .

4.
5cz

S

N

C -

O

cn

N

M

Q

C

4- 

L

O .+— 

ca

cn

E -

o

Co

4-
1

D 

o

U . 

o• 

v

o

cn

cri

m

p

o

nD ' -

0

o

cn

D

L °) 

p= 

o

O

M

N — 

cn  

a) -

v

C

U

c7

C

CD

u) 

4- •

C

C

O

E

c

a) 

o

o

cn _

0

U

o

Q72

cn

U  

cn

c

E

o = 

cn

E , — 

T — 

O

ca

v 

D  

cn

o

cn }. .._. .,_.:,_. 

o

I-- 

as

Q
o "' 

D "' 

a ' , 

o

a)

cz '

CA

L

L

cn

Co

0

0

0

0

Ln

cu

cn4EE

caca
E

C

E , . - 

as4-
j

cn

ca   

as

cn

0

cu

co

o.) 

c

a 

2

w

c 

cn •

tea

a) 

o .

c

0

L

a

Q

CL

0

D3

Ctsen

16

ch

C0.

2

E

D

p 

Q > 

L + 

E

a) ° 

c 

ce

o

ca

o

E

cn

cn_ -

1--

j

D7co
w

a) 

o

C6 }—

U. 

CU = 

O

U

N , 

C  

L

D

c/) 

C

C

U

pD

A
Cl) 

cin

a -- 

o

L

o

D

L

D- 

Cn

cn

t 

un

E

cu

0

CD

En

CU

m

bio

cn     

C }, .

L

a 

a» 

o

cu

m

o

Ca

v

o

v  • 

c '  

o

0

L

L

L

L • 

C

L.. 

as »

rrvrvrvrv.. 

40-  
o

cD

c

D

6--

o

w

x

0

in

Ecoo
o

2

m - 

vi
ov 

cn

cn%

I--

CU

a 

c

om0 + 
D

L

C

vU
u

m

L4.-

2

Q) 

co

L - 

D _

cu

U) 

po

Cll

L +_-' 

C

N

M }' 

to

V) 

cn

L

Q

cI7 ,,»,[.... 

L .... ......... ........ 

0

M

m

LC7

CD

I` 

Z



W

CNI

0n4

D

C) 

r--

1

W. 

U) 

cf) 

Q) 

bo

c3r
4-
0

C/) 

W

C=) 

C) 

c/) 

C) 

cz

a) 

c/) 

cf) 

I

mLL

ca

0

n

0

0 -

2-

0a) 

D

ca

W

U) 

c

c: 

2', (

1) 

0

U) (

L) 0

2 =

5

0

W
L-- 

L

0

0

cl) 0- U) 

cm

E

cu

0 (

D

0

cn

E

0
k— 

cu

E

E) 

0

0

a) 0 -

0

cu

D

4

CL

cu
4--

j

U) 

co

4k---, 

C= 

cn_ 

0

C -- 

w

Cc

n

0

C) 

E

a) 

co

0

0

co

UJ

3 = 

co

o

E

cn

m

2 -

0

0- -

0

M- 

L- 

4-- 

0

CM

CL
C

0 . 

CU

0 (

n

M --

o

a) 

0) 

o

0

a) 

E -

0

ims

D

0

0

cu
0--

o

E

Q)

o (

n -

0

ca

E

2

c- 

n -

C

cu

0

0w

go _

0 *

0-- 

0-

0

c- 

0

E

m

0

0

W > 

cu

co

a) 

co

0

cn !

E -

0

M

0

0

ca -

0

0

4-

0

Ca

Sn

u

0

0- 

E20

3

0

E -

0

0

2) 

0

cu

E

3 " 

w

m

En

co

cu %-: (

n

Q) 

E

0

0

0C) 

cn

0cl) 

a) 

LZ

a) 

U) 

a

CL

En

a) 

L, 

0

0

0

0

E

0

0 -

2

co

o

4-
j

0

c: 

a) 

cu

c > FU

CD

0

0

D >

1

co

CO

C -) 

W

co

m

0 :

t--:! 

4--

1 _

0

M

cu

cu

o

cn

w

9-- 

r-- .

2

0

cn

2

aimS: 

cla :

Zr

0 =

3

c- 

E

cn

o

co

cn

q

a) 

C= -

6

M- 

c: 

a) 

CU

co

2

L- 

E

4) 

CO

tm

n

0

0

w

U) -

I-- 

W

c- 
6--

p

0- 

cn

0

W

C

20- 

Q) -

a

0

2

c- 

o

An

cq

0

0C

E

cn

a) 

cu

0

CO

0

CD

w

40.- -

N .- 

0 -= 

CM

n

n

cn

3

M (

D

a) 

CIO

C:) 

0

4- 

cn

Eml

0

m (

n -

6--

o = 

2

76 .

42)0

2 -

o

L

0 -

E

2 -

0

E

D -

0 -

0 -

0

D

a) 

0E

CL4Q

4-

0

W

C

oco

0

E

c-, 

o

U) 

2— 

L- 

E

00

E

0

0" 

0) 

coM- 

PEI

E

0

a) -

0

4--

j .

2
G= 

m (

n &.- 

cx

U) 

0

A2

cL -
S

E

En

0

0

Sn

0) '-

Ez (

D

m

L

c_— 

COLu

cu

D

E

n

cu

CU -

0

U) 

CU

cu

4-, 

cu

C) 

C) 13L- 

co

a) 

Ca (

D

Ecnca
0

C-- 

ig: . 

Ln

cn

w

0

0

D

CO

E

z

0

0

C) 

0

0

co

cn

c- 

in

w = 

of

a) .

I ... 

I

cn

0 -

0

Lf- 

I_- 

0; 

c. 

21 _

0

C- 

Ll-- 

E

co

4-

0

cu

co

cu

0

0- 

0- 

0

0. 

CU

0

0

0

cm

cu

p (

1) .;

z *- 

4 -

j

3

ca

0

cu

M -

t—

3: 

0

a) 

p

4-
a

co (

1) 

E >, 

a) r

1) 

co

L

cu

V

Car
C/) 

00

cu

cn

cf) 

U) - = 

a) 

CIO

cn

C:
L

Ca

J: 

c/) 

c -(

J) 

OL

0 -

1- = 

a) 

0 - 

V) 

CU

4-

0

0

0

U) 

a) 

cl) 

c- 

3

C) 

c- - 

C2 (
L) 

o

cl

M- 

U) 

0

1) (

L) 

g-- -

I..- 

CU

0

3

0) -

0

0) 

C

En — 

E

Q

o

a_ 

x

m

0

a) 

0

cu

2

E

0 > 

C

0

CD
c/) (

D (

D

CU

0- -

0

ch

cu

a) 

0

ca

cn

0

ca (

D

cm

D

a) (

D

C

c

0

w

0

0

0

1-., 

5-- (

n

cn -

2

4

0

L— 

u

n > 

LZ

0

E

cu

a) 

0

0

0- 

U) 

cu

E -

0

w

D

cu

0

a) 

E

0

IZ- 

a) 

a) 

0 -

0 _

0

cu

E

cu

00

cn

I-_ 

L) 

4-
4

c- 

5'.. 

o (

n

E -!:= 

n (

n

cn

cn (

n (

n

cu

0

cuF

I..- 

C- 

a) 

0 -

1--, 

w

n

t- < 

Co

tL-- 

w

4 >-, 

a

U

in

cu

00

ca. 

E

0

cn

0

CD
cn

C- 

C6

E

L— 

L- 

CM

D

m

C) 

o

Cl

a)ocn

L— 

o

o

o

cu

0 :

t-- 

0

0

0

C:) 

E

cu

3

0

3: -"-, 

UU

P6.
4

Fa . ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

Q = 

0

0

0

T --

I

L

cuc

a) 

MLE

3

CD

1-- .

5-- 

0

cu

4-
0

0

Ln
r-- 

CD

n

m

D " 

0- 

4 

Fu (

n

D

a) 

76
L- =

3 (

n

0- 

f-

j

VC

ca (

1) 

c/) 

0) 

1) 
6--

1

M

ozo

0

2) 

W-

3

2

1

C

0

CU

0

0

CU

C13 (

U

CU

FU

E

0IL
o

o

cu

E (

1) 

L) 

9

2 :

3

0 (

n

CD

cu

in

1) 

cu

u) 

Q) 
4-

j

C) 

w

Lu

cn,

2
to- -

6

of

E

a) 

Q. 

0

co

00

4-

JU 

D



0u0U) Q) mwr -
L4

u0uPiz0 0

CL

cvi

CO

co

w

CNJ

T, 

cu

co

co

co

bo

U) 

co

co

u

LL

0

Cidau
E

0

a 

oD

D

E

E

2

as

0- 

0

4) 

a) 

a) 

0as

cu

E

2

n

La) 

cn

w

cn

0

cn

CU

0- m

0) 

0

a) 

a) 

0

0

Co

0) 

3: -

0

a) 0

a) 

0 -

0

0

a) 

M- 

cn

t_- 

0

cu

cu

4-

0

u

2

U) 

3

I.- 

SQ

1 =

3

c

Ca

o

4

IL
J; 

Ei

C- 

n (

1) 

C:

L
0

CIO

bo

0

0
6--, 

c

ca

0ip

D

0

ca

2- 

0

cc

V) co

4-
P

o

2

ca. 

E

0

a) 

0

czk- -

05 = 

m

0
4--

ffl

w > 2

0E

cncn0

U) a) 

a. 

cri

Do

0.., 

O.

E

0

0- 

70

U) 

4-

1

W = 

1) 

0

0

E

00

Ile2

E

0

n

2

cz

0

0

cn-

E

CO

E

cu

6D
Q) 

wcncm• 

m

L— (

D

Co

wa) 

0

4

a) 

U) 

p

cu

M

E

ca

cu

bb

4-
j

cn

E

cn- 

0M
0) 

a) 0

U) 

cn

M (

D

r-- 

a) 

En

cn

cnCD
cu

n

U) 

cu

uz

n

U

E(

n

E

E

0

2

w
I*- 

m0 (

n

CD

M -

0 (

1) 

2L- CU

U) 

cn

0

CU

7t=! 

D

a.> — 

C/) 

000

0- xLU
i7/
5

0

4- 

m

0 (

2-

0

30
4-
1

0

0- 

cx

ML

cn

0

0- 

r

I

U) 

2

0

a) co

CL

cu

cn

a) 

CU

0

cn

0

0 (

n

N

Fn

a) 

4— 

CD

1— 

c- %*— 

0

E

01) 

ca- CU

cu

0

C) 

cu

N

M

cu

E (

1) 

a) 

cn

0
6--

1cn (

D

QO1-

j

a) 2

n

En

CU -

0

C) 

CM

0

CM

Sel

n

C- =

3

a) 

w

E

4 

Q) cu

Mw

0L

U) 

u

L

0

rrrrr

CN

C) 0

cr.) 

LO

Z

Ir- 

CD

r

r00
IN

IF

I



mll, 

M

CD

93-

r

co

CD

U

U

U

W

coI

1-# 

CDD

L) 

U) LL

e

0

a) 

co =

3

0

W

0 (

n

4-

j

W

0

0

L- .

0- = (

n

cn

0 — 

E

cn

1

1

cu

IZ- 

0

C) 

m

a) 

4--, >.. -

0 -?!, 

E

Z3 _

0

o

o

o

o

CO

5

U) 

n

0

E

0 .= 

CD

cu

LU

T = 

L- 

Cl > > 

0

cm

C: 

i:-, 

L = -

0

E

CU

M

0

CO

D-

0

CD

4-

0

n

0-

0

2

m

00

M

0

0

cn

C? 

00

o

a) 

E

V) 

0

a

0

4- — 

a? - 

0

1) 

a) 

o

cu %-

m- 

0

cu

0

En

CD_ > 

E

cn

4-, 

0

CU

4-

a

CA

m

cn

LZ

M

00

c

0

a) 

g: 

a) 

CD- (

D

cu

0) 

en = 

CU

to

cu

co

cu

M

3

F2

0 ". > 

o0

cu - 

0

S (

n

o

CM

w

U) 

p- 

L- 

Fn

m

o

C- 

0 > 

Q) > 

C

0 -

P-

j

0

C-

0

4--

1

E

Lo

cu (

D

m

cn

CM

cn

Ne

2• 

Fn

cu

L- 

cu

4-
b

n

o

c- 

0 -

6--

1

0

11-

1

cu

c

a) 

in

0

0

cu

0

cu -

0

a) 

0 $- 

cn

cu

cn

cu

0 •

0

cn

Q >., 

3

C) 

0

EO

a) , 

c

u

ca-•

cn

0Cj
E-

cn

cu

cu

o

0

0

0

4-
0

cn

w

0- > 

CDL .,

a, 

o

0

cu

C" 

cu

nFu

0

En

cn
in

E

0 -

6--

o

cn

0

D

oL

M

M

a) 

cu

CU

co

E '

Cn- 

L - 

o

a) 

0

En -

0

M > 

a) 

o

cu• 

7`

7

E

00

C

3

a) 

a) 

a) 

cu

cu

n

E (

n (

n

cu

0

a) 

a) 

72

cu (

n

o

E

E

cu

a) 

0

ca. 

0 -

C

0

L- 

a) 

q) 

m =

3

M - 

n

C) 

0

W

CU

r-- 

m

m

g- 

N

0 > 

cn

cu

cu

in

0

C-

CU

E

E

cu

70 -

0 = -

1--

i

o

C

2

0

E

L- 

IV -

Fu

M

W

0 (

D

cu

m

N

CU

Im

cn

cn

cu

E

a) 

GO) 

cn

0

0

c

4- 

4-- 

cu .

27

CU

w

ffi (

n — 

C

2

w

I_- 

C/) 

C%

3

i.-, 

m

CU

cn

0

0

a) 

0- (

D

M

PEI

M

CM

0 .

1.

2, = = 

0

cu = -

a

cu

cu -

z,- 

o

a) 

cu

c

2 (

D

CU

a) 

m -

D

E

cu

E

Fo

C) -,

E, 

L.

0 -

0

4-

a

CU

c

u

n -

6-

0

0

Fu = 

CU

a) 

a) 

0 " 

0

cu

3: 

cu

E

cn

o (

n

E

ui — = 

0

0

C/) 

0

0-

0 - 

A-$ "

o- 

0

E

0

cD- 

a) 

cn

0 -

0

w

E

M

c

0L - - 

CD
L- 

cu

C) -

2

0 = 

ff

c . 

L- 

CU

a) 

CU

0 >.,. 

zt: -

0

0

s -

E -

0

M

n

a) 

W

175 -

0

cn -

0

cn

E

M

CU

cu

a) -

1- (

1) 

a) 

L- > 

p

0

5

CU

0

ca- 

n. 

cu > 

2

o- = 

0

cm
M

C) 

3

a) 

0- 

CU

o

o

m

m > 

CL

E = 

cu > 

0

a) 

cn

m

S

E

2

o

a) = 

0

a) 

Cd
0"

4

a) 

a) 

w

a) 

Lu

a) > 

2

a) 

E

0

a) 

0

o

12

cm -
c,-

u

cu > N

o

a) 

E

0

CU

CU

Q

cu

w

m

En

C

0) 

a) 

0

u) 

a.) 

U) 

En

U) = -= (

1) (

1) 

a) 

cu

cu (

u

a) 

o > 

cu

c

cu

0

cu

C-) 

C/) 

0),*

Cn- 

cu = >-, (

u

g-- 

w

a) 

w
c-

a) 

c - 

U) 

CU (

1) 

E (

D

C) 

En

0

0

u) 

2

4- 

0 (

n

0

CU

C5

IZ

0

a) 

a) 

E

a) 

0

4-

0

cu

ff

0- 

CD

CD
C- 

CU

C_- 

a) 

i

o

E

0

E -,

cu

E — 

cn

0 -

0

U) 

CU
L+..- 

0

C- 

cu

w

2

0

L -
j

0

CU

D " 

cnFu

0

cu

C.> 

If

4-
b

3

cu " 

0

C> 

Fu

cu

cj 

a) 

cu

oa) 

0

CU

o

E > 

o •

o) -

m

0

ca

0

w

0

m (

D

4--

jQ) 
n

r-= 

0

0

o

0

E_ 

CU
1--

j

0

0

2

cu

CT
U) 

W -

0

a) 

m

cn

E

a) 

c/

5

0

0

o

a) 

c- 

cu

ui

0

C) 

E

CU

0

0

CZ- 

4-

0

n

U) 

0

En

o

cn

5 = 

cn

cli

cu

m

a) 

cu

U) 

0--

o

a) -

o

a) 

4 

Lu

3: -

a -'
C'-

U' 

0U

I 

o

0

0

2

0

a) _

0
I_- 

0

w

0

E

0

0 -

0

0

L

0

0

0

L) 

0- 

L..- 

c

o

w

o

0

a) 

w

E

E

E

CU =

5

6--

1

0) 

m

w

0

0- 

CU

0

CD - 

j=

f

cu

cu

m

N -

0

0

N

m

CU

C: 

CU

cu

cd

000

a) 

L- = 

S.- = 

a) 

ca. 

0

U) 

o

CO

CL

0L
0 (

n (

n

C) 

X1) 

m

M

cu

D

cu

m = 

U) 

PQ0
vaC) 

cu

C) 

0

6-

1CO

m

0

cu (

n

C- 

0

r-- - 

2

0

m -
2

o

En - CU

IZ

cu

m

C: 

En

0

c

Q) 

0

cu (

n

cu

E

cn

0

0

E0
cu

4--

1

4-

j

0

o

0

4-, 

CU

Co

n

o

cn

M%-- 

0

1.-

0

0) 

cu

0

E

E

10

a) 

2

4--

2

cu

L) 

o

cl- 

0 -

5

2

cD- 

0

a) 

0

0

0

1

2

en

M

U) 

C-) (

n

0- 

0- 

CU

6 .. 

4-

0 -&--

0

C) 

z

En

E (

n (

f)

E

6

co

7gr . .......... 

Ir- 

mll, 

M



V

a

i

m  

a

d' 

M

N

o

Q

U3d' 

co

co

7

a  

Q

N  

C)

C

bz

CLrO

N

M

4 = U

U

L] 

U

L] 

v

Ua

CO

C/) 

roLL

U) 

C/) 

o

IZ- 

C' 

p

a

cin

0

cu = 

oNv

N

ca ( 

4- 

cu

O

L

a

o.

cn

c

L

Ca

W

L

cD

L

N

O

Lra

a 

a) 

v

D

L

a-- 

ca

Cn " 

r_ - 

CD

ca

ca

a O ° 

cn

cn

U

a] 

v }, 

E

a .  

o

5

L . - 

cn

o) 

as

D

as

a) 

ca

E

o

o

E

LD },

CD

j

E

o

N

ca

o

E

O

c

v

c

D .— 

ay

O

c . + 

Q
ra

ca

cn

cn = 

a) 

o

T

O

a— 

o

V1

0 ' 

a) (

a "' 

O

to

ca

U - 

L- 

4

N

0

cn • . 

n

v 

ra

cn

Ca

o> 

CO — 

o

co

o

Cl) 

ra

cn

v

L— -

a

o - - 

c 

o

mFu

cu •

vi "' 

o

a

M

E

0

o . , 

a> > :,=, 

o

r

Q -

a

U { 

i-- 

L

ca . 

0

0

t5

O

o • - 

0 ' •— ca

o

a 

o ' 

0_ 

0

07

cn

cn

v

a

con

Co

v -

2

a

o

O '

L  

0

Co

a

2

c 

O

E • 

a

ca

t-' 

ay

m

ca4-

0

C) 

a 

cn

CM

CL--- 

CUL
q

o, 

a — }, 

o

Caa 

p

CU

L

cn

a

L

c

o

w

a

cry =

3

ca ` 

O

C

Co  

n. 

C. 

ca  

Q

L— 

v

o

as +

a

CL

U

cn. _. 

L

C

ca

O

cn

v

o

N

O

Ca

a) 

U

0  

a

as  

0

o

QNC

v  

0

ca

ca  

C     

o     

as

a) 

o

a

v

p

N

0

L

O

O

4-
0 }, 

o

CD

O

a

n

caa

oV

0] 

cna3

L— 

L_ 

U

0

a] 

E

Ccu

LL.

Cacn

CD

C

O

cn -

0

c

c

ui . 

0

cn

a) 

cn

a 

y

0

ca

v) L

O

L

C

p

m

a

o

o

C °

a

ca

o = 

ocoaQ0

0 .

n

L

w 

Dcn
0- 

0

co

cu

Co

Co

L

V • `- 

VJ

E >,

cu

1] 

D

a)  

c

cn

O

Q

ca "`-' 

CL }' 

v

a 

a

v

a] 

w --

0

a

a) 

O

o :

E  

N -_ 

C

o

o

raU

o

o

cn

0- 

c -

0

o^

o

n' 

0ca-- 

o

O)

w

CU , 

cn

r

o

d -• 

C

0 °' 

CCD

o

ca

0

N

o

C_ 

ra

E

C2

Oa

Q

ca

I

ca

c ca

o) 

o

L • ?  

a) 

ca

E— 

o -.> 

O

cn

o - 

a  

cnE

O

0 —

0
o

v  

cn

cn -

o

cn

6

0

L

N

Co

3 -

a

m

Q

o —

LD

O

a) 

a] 

O

U

O

2

cv

O

ca

cn

2

o

L. 

a) 

caa) 

o

E

cn

a] -_ 

2

ca

dCo

Ca

Q3

ca

Ca

a7  

E

CD

0

O

C

a} 

U - _ 

i

Ncn
U

U

cv

cn

U

N

oa

o

m

cn + 

per,) 

2 [

a

L , 

D

C

C

N

O  

Ca

C

2

En

CDCU

a -> 

o

ca " 

a)  

u' 

a) 

ca

a

s 

O

o

a > 

ca

r„ 

ca

0 }, 

o  

N

a.

wcn
E

mF- 

d

n

D

o

Qd' °
n

J

0

0

M- 

a) 

a Ca

ov
L

D = 

a

o

Q
o

cuv

C) 

Lf) 

CU

M

o--

0a

m

o 

c

O

CU

0

x] 

LO

U

N

a3

N

OaCU

N

co

cn

oE

co

O

a) _

E

O- •

C

Y

D

c _

OL

a) =  

a) 

cn

E — 

O

o

L

3

L

0? 

j

Vim? 

O

Q7

C

r

NJw

Z

r

N

N

04



L] 

R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R,
R . . 

M

0.. 

iD

NN

r

o00

m

CO

N

Cl) 

U3

cy') 

OJ

D

rr

C) 
C/

j

C5
r--• 

C'

7

C) CI) 

CO

C] 

cvLL

cn

cn

L

CD

cno
M

a)

CM

cri

ca

a, 

cz

m

cd

c 

L

C

a) 

co

a) 

v

0

c

a) 

o

a 

r--. 

o

a, 

U) 

9: 

Co -

0 -- 

CU

a .,_, 

as

C  CD

c

n,. 

T  

n

U  

o 

v

D

o

0> 

0

E

E

CD

a

U

v

o •_ 

0

cin

ca

O

ocn

a) 

o

L .. 

as

w

0- cn

a) 

Q) 

CD

0

p
a) 

cn

O

O

0  

o  

Qcn
ca

L

E

cu

c 

cn

ca

a

v

cn

CD

a) 

m

c

L- 

a

a 

E " -- 

as

a) 

cn -

0
Ca

CU

cn

c 

U) 

v

n = 

En

o
a) 

E  "' 

E

o

O

cn

o

a) 

cz

Ma) 

E

U5  

2

E

o (

n

a] 

c

0

U) 

v

C

D

o

vU • 

a) 

CU•_ 

N

c 

cn

o

a-- 

V] 

cn

C

LZ

D

a) 

o

o

cn

4- 

O' 

a) 

m

N

CL.;.. 

6

0

4-

0

r 

E

a) 

cn

E

E °' 

ca

a) 

E

ca

ca

ca

cn

m

cn

cn

00' 0

o

E

a (

D
c' 

a) 

E

U (

D

0U }. 

E

o

92

cnCO 4-

1o

C

o

c

a) 

as

inCD
ch

a) 

v) -

0= 

0

ro

o) 

Cl) =

3to

Cl -

0

o

0

o

ca

4-

0N

C

o -

v

CU

o

o

O

o

sem

o

0  } 

CU

yU

a. 

Lo_ ,

cLra

a

Co

a 

cu

2

L.. 

L

a

O

0

0

0

U- 

0

a) 

0

L

Q

N

a) -

a -- 

cn

cn

a) 

4-- 

0Q - 

Q

to

a) 

cu

a] 

C

0

ca

cn

0) 

U -

p

cin

cn

Q
C- 

V] 

CU

cn

C

Cn3

C

ca 

cn

i

m

U

c ' 

co

c6

U  

a3

Q

L -

0

Ian

cu

E

cn  U) 

O

v

o

L •  

c' 

a   

z 

L

on

o

o

o

U

cn 

n

a3

co

v

O

v }' 

a) 

C6

m

0

i--  

o 

M

C

N --• 

o 

ca • 

ra

ain, }, 

U

O , 

U

coU

O

O

ca

a) 

v

En

cn

O

d] 

cm
Q `
r] 

cn - 

cu =  

cn

Qom,) 

CA

3

0) — 

m -

0 -

v

ca

a) 

a) 

m

a >% 

0 .  

a       

o  

m

c6

E. 

Q

cn

E

0 -

0

C!

7

v

m........... 

Cl3

H

ca

o

U) () 

a) 

ocn

2E
a

0] 

N

o

0

LO

o • 

6

ca  

m

w

ca (

n

o

m

m

o

a - 

JC

c

c

cn

O

5

c

cn . 

L

CUE
a]  

Qi

cn } }; 

CQ

2

m

E

0- 

cu

cu _

0O

ao
cn }. cn

EUca
s

n

cO . 
Q

n

u

v

M

o

v

Z: 

aoN
o

cn

o

3

Z

N

N
r

N

N

NU
D



L. 

a

o

a

a0
V— 

M

o

D

D

D

Q

m

m

m

C

M

CO

cC7

cy') 

L. 

U) 

CO

CO

vLi

ca

CU

o

ca

4-
1

0

U] 

a7

L

o

CoE

a 

cz

0

cn

o

v

cn

o

CU- 

a

U

42) 

a

co

cn

u

a`
a

m

o

cu

cu

E

D

0 > 

CU
4-- 

0

0

p

Ccu
n

aa) 

ria

cn

d3

a] 

C%

3p

C

V

CD

T - 0

0 [

a

am

c

m

0

o

U

Q

o

m

U

0

cnE5

2

oa), 

E

L

cu

cu

cu0
cn

cu

Ucu

oL

a) . 

Fu

CUL

N

o

cn00
uio

o

0

n

cu
c6

ca. 

v

ca

c6

a .
cu

eL- E

CIS

cn

0

0

u

Lv

w

o

a) 

cz

n

a) 

cu

o

o

m

cu

o

usPM

0

0

L

cu `~ 

L

CU

Cz

cn

L7

cn . 

CU

Q

3: 

con

PO

0

CU - 

t 

v 

cu

a

ca

o

o

cn

cacl
cn

a' 

o

E

0a) 

En

a) . 

cun

0

0

a.
i

a  = m

m

E

o

a] 

a

CU >

Q

p

o

n

cn
cu

cm 

p

cu

cn

cl -
0

CL .

76

3: 

2E

co

0

a

I

Z

ooN

aN

oM



Cd

w

U) 

cu

WQ) 

Crcr) 

IL) ccLL

C/) 

I (=

T
COCO) 

C/) -

q-

m

I

T

C) 

V--- 

U) 

C/) 

E ------ - 

Cl) C) COCO

4-

J

7:

560rl
F.

40u

ILA0

Cd

a) 

Cd

A

0

4

Lrj

4- 

0

CN4

coo 4

40- 

E

0

U

r-

4

4-
j

2

rl

14-
40

0

E

ch

0

cu

11, 

L2

0

1:•

2

0

4--

jc

ILA

0

I-- 

Co

ca. 

0

E

u

s

Q) 

0

Cd

cu

as

E -

0- 

L -- 

0

CD (

n

w0ca. 

0n

u4-

J

Q) 

U
P-
1

0 (

D

n -&-

iCD

ch

C/) 

cn

nv
4-
j

Ul) Q) 

0

ILA

n (

V
4-
1

cu

42

L- 

o

zz! 

M

C:)- 

7m -

0

cn

CU

OA

D

2

C/) 

u

4 > 

0

0

2

4--

j

o

0

coo-
6

E

cf) 

cE

i-> 

u
F..

4

1:

1.

4

0

Z 

03 •

F= 

CU -

I-- 

LZ

C/)

L-. 

ch

u

E

c

0

J0

Q) 

0

0

0

0

L- .— 

0 •

CU

4-

0

L- 

U) 

0 = 

c:)-.- 

C) 

C- 

ca

0

0

0

NO54

M

U) 

CU

pr.
L

0

a) 

N

Ucdun
a) X

Uo

L) 

0j

M — 

4 .. 

o

CU

a) 

Cd

C) 

Ep

2

U) 

U) rr (

j) 

c

0

CID

C-) (

3) -

tf

CU
C-) 

CZ
F-

qILA

0

1-

j

C13

cu

cu

U

M

In

0

c

cn

Da

q

c

0

0

C:) 

C

0

0

0

PL 

n

L) 

o

c

0

60

W

T

14-
4

S 

0

3.) 

CCL -
70•

CU

ui

C/) (

1) 

6-

0

U) 

U) 

0

w

n

1) 

C—

z

M

CO -

I-, 

Co

a) 
1-

j

Ili

4-

j

Cd

W

2U

c_- 

U) 

f-

j

3: 

cu

4- 

0

M

proCly

2

L- 

0

0 - 

c

cd
4-

j

r.4

P-

4

cu

m - E

cu

ca

cm

0

v= 

cn

ca_ 

co

2

4, 

cu

co

0

CDL

0

C

r--

4

4-

j

m

cz

o

V

U3

0

cn

w

CD

cu

a) 

C) u

Q) 4

0

0

u

C-) 

cn- 

2) 

co

cu

N

cu

4-

jo

U) CD

E :

3

cn

4-

j

0

En

0

2) U

0 (

n

C-) 

1--

j

v

o

4-
j

U

cow

cn

T

CDU— 
2

cu

na

cn

2

0

as

Q) 

0

0

Q) 

4-

j

4

a) 

0

u;--

4

4

lu

cu

Cd

Id

Q) 

W

cu

Co (

1) 

cn0

um

fZ
r-

4u

4-

4
1) 

4

rTj

4- 

p

Ln
r--

i

4-
0

0) 

4- 

a) 

U) 

Cf) 

c- cn

0-
4

wQ) 

4-

j

m

0

0

co0

La (
1) 

1-

0

Cf) 

U-
1

CdQ

m

cua

cu

E

a.) 

co

00
r

c

4-

bW

0

4--

Jum

e 

Cd

M

u

Q) 

C16

cn

0Ln

cn

2

cu

4m

4-

4

Q) 

cu
P---

4

cu

w

l-, 

0

U) 

U) 

0

Lu

IL

3: 

4-
j

4-

j

uIlj

Q) 

Q) 

oCY') 



CDP

r

N

L" 

CVU

11- 
11-

2L2

U] 

U] 

a
t•- 

U
C!] 

C/) 

0

a

O

U
C/

3

O

a 

c

r

U

c 

U) 

C/) 

U

C/) 

LL

cn

4- 

0

0

0

CUbo

o , 

cucu
L

CU

a? - 

cn

L  

n

0 

a

ccn

0

cn

u; 

E

03

La3

0

cu  

L   

o - 

mo - 

0

o

a

cn }' 

0

a)  

a•(

n._

M

M

0

W

D

a  

Q

cnNL •
a) = 

0

0= 

co + 

CU  

Q

cu  

0

Q

0 

L0

Jo

o- 

a ' 

o

co

v

ID

o

N

E

o

as

L0

0

u—' 

cn

CU -

a - 

aa) 

u

CU

tf
o

ca

a 

cn

Q • 

ca

cn

Iz

CU

Q

c

cLa

cn  

0- 

v

c

E ' 

a

Q
o

CM

022

o

cn

W 

M

L ., 

o

a) 

c- 

C- 

EO- 

a] 

2n

0

C 

CL

En
cn

v, cn

cu

0 • 

o- 

0 ' 

o

cu U  

00 ` 

ca

0

L' 

cn _ 

L

0 (

D > 

n , 

n — 

U

Co — 

r

cu

0

v

cu

C: — 

a 

a ' 

c„ 

cna) 

cn

o

Co

L — — 

L

aD

a

0

a ° 

o

a` 

a3

0

co

U •

a

cr"—' 

a 

cn

Q

a. 

Cnn • 

a.  

a

oL- 

L

o

c" 

cn

o

ca

a

a) 

0

u

a - 

o

L

o

cuL

o ' 

a' 

o

o; 

Eo

a

cn

o

cn

0

L

2  

L6

cc— 

0

a) 

0   

cu

o 

c

u' 

cu

0

CD

o

cn

CL

o

cu

ai

o

c 

asbo
L

C. 

n

L

ca _ 

0

cn -

0
M  

0 " 

a -

C

cn . 

in

Cd

N

cn

M

caE

a

0

a) 

CJ6a 

a

cn

cu

CDO

72

o

0

ca

0

o

c

Q' 
0

0

ccn

vcn

C) 

4mJ

a

v ., 

cc6

n

con

v 

o

c   

E -

aa 

a3 }' 

c

a

a) •`

n

o

C
a) 

cca

m

L

o

w

o

0 "' 

a

0

0

cn

c

oU) 

o) 

L

o

o -

o

o °

D _

0

cn

o

o

cn

va

cn

cn

0w

0

cn

5, 

cn

U

0 . 

cn

U

o
a 

c

as

Co -

0

o

cn

cn

0

cn

0, 

Q

L  0 -

v

o

cn

cn

cn

U

C - 

L

0

Cd

cu

O

cn

07

L• 

QCIL
a

a) 

CCUmE

Q3 (•] 

V , 

U

Ln

N

i

1_

V

U

V

rn

cn

ca -

I..-  

L

a--' -+-- 

Cn

ca. 

cOn

as , 

0

cin

cu

C- 

0 ° 

Qi

cu

F

v

v

cn

0

cn

cn

cu }_, 

Q

L

w

L

0

o

D

n

N-

F

y, 

a) 

c 

0] 

aa) 

m
2  

acn

N

L

cu

O

cu

L

cu

Q> 

o

L

L-

o

0

Qjto

M

cu

CD

c. 

a) 

c

a] 

U

a) }, 

cn

a 

cn

d

0
a) 

cn  

cn }, 

cn

a

cn

v

cu

U_ 

o • — 

cn  = 

cn =

3

o

o

o

o

iu  

o

L

o

as

a] > E

L

o

ui

0

cn

Q

a 

o `'_' `. 

D

0

cu

Qa

cu

a

v — Q

o
J 

E

a
i

4z - 

7  

a3

0

a

c, _ _ 

i

w ° 

E

0

u3

0

0

cn --

cn

cn
CU

CU ' 

c; 

cn

o

0  

cu  

cu ( 

mcm(

D

E

aD   • 

0

a) 

CD 

4-

0

cnZ
L

0

LZ

0 

L

cLu .................. . . .. . . . . . . -,; . .. . . 

LL

C _ 

C_]  

L

co

U

S

N

L-= 

m

UJ   _.. 

O] 

v3

L+- 

0

v

o

as

0an. 

0

0

C2. 

L

0c6vi

Q) 

v- 

0

o

o

cn

L

0

0

I

cn"— 

t1Co
o

n

o- 

o

L _- 

cn

CDr

a_ 

a3

O

ate] 

a) 

Ca

a °; 

Q ` 

Q- 

L

a3

a

a 

L

0-

a 

cu

L

0

ca

as _ 

c. 

cn

a

L

a) 

a -

0

v

a

0

L

v

o

a3

Q

E

m

W

Lf

a_ 

cin

U

a

D

Ln

z

LO

ov

r14

C) 

A



OOMINa90ua0aDV] MpmMH

0] V

IOL

N

Y7

00

o

a

CO

cU) 

a

C] U3

C) U) 

0

C) U] 

Ca] 

y

CO

UU7

vcvLL

L
4-

1

lililili..

lilili. 

Dcu

m,  ::

r
r
r
r
r
r
r
r 

r
r

r_ 

o

y << .« 

im

v

o

L

a

0. 

W -

0

0

L0

L) 

a 

0

C: 

a? 

cca

CU

0-- -

0. 

o

a

cn

CCU

a .  

o

o

CD

a) 

U) = 

C-- . 

E . 

m

0o

v

o —

C; 

Ln •' 

i- , 

cn

c

cn - 

a 

ca

n

E

L

p + 

c

v

0

0- 

ai

o 

Q

v; 

o °•' 

cna 

cn

CL

o

o

a3

ca

cn

cu

cu

cn

o  

v

a 

a 

au

m

ca

cn -

v_' 

m

7

cn

Cu

as

oa }' 

c' 

a) 

n

cn

0 ' • 

a

o

L  

U

L' 

u . 

o

L,.• 

L

0

L

CUi
U/) 

L

a

Q

c 

o

cu

n

m

Q

Li— 

a

o

X77
C

cn

a } 

5- 

o

0- 

0

a) 

Q

o

a 

a7  

0- 

o

ca

a3

oca. 

v

c, 

cu

0

ua) 
a

o

v

C, 

o

o

E

a? 

L (

D

Dm
CU

0

asY

cn

c

o

Q

0

0

0-

0

J

v

0

CLCa- 
cn

a 

L'

m

v

cn

a

ocu
is

v

v

ai • 

0

E

CL

ra

cn • 

C] 

a

cd

m

cn

0U=

C 

o

as

E

cv

DW0
0 

a) 

C] 

E

0) 

cn '  

1- 

O

a

E

0

L-= 

L

E

c

0
M

0

0- -

0 -

r

U

c 

o  

cu  

i--. 

L- 
L

U

o

o

U

a) 0

L

W ' 
a) 

D  

v3

cona

i

0s

DCDc

0

C:) 

a' 

o

o `' 

a) 

v

ca

cion

c

o

Q

ui _' m}'•

c

v

E

U) 

c

a 

Cu

2

a 

o

0  

cn

n
9--

L;= 

o

a

as

a)-

2

o

a • 

L

ca

En -

0

cu-

4--

J

4-
0

C" 

cu

0  

Cu

o4-
0

o

v, 

cn  

o

o

cu

as

O

ca

c

3: 

cu

m . 

E

o

m

0- 

CD

cn

D
a
j

c

cn

v

0

E

a)

m

12

cmE —(

n

2

cu

L

V

a)

m0-
0

u] 

U

L

Q- 

C

L

0.
7

to

uw

tT

0

I

r

ln• ..... : .

r 

n,. 

f

a_

a. 

m ... 

CA

OL

0

m

E

cu

cu

C) 

cu.

CD

a 

L

ui

a3

C6

d.,

CM.

Ca- 

m

U

Cu

0

m

v

N

13 ' 

4.-.+ . 

Vy

cu

a) 

Qj

Fn

0] 

cn

z

p

CU  

0

p7
7, 

L

n

Q

Q

cn

L

L

L

a]  } 

CL
c 

w > 

M- 

cn

m0- 

E

0

a) 

C 

r .

c0
ft

0

0
t-- 

Ir- 

CN

z

m._ _ ................ ® 



a3

NIO

I

a (

D

m

G] 

rd' 

NCV

m  

KIM

2) 

r

N

Q  

r

V

U

C-
3

CO

c ') 

r

U) 

CO

1••+ 

VLL

rr

ate- Cu  

17

0

Ca

0
3t

o

ca

a) 

moC3i

ONO

U) 

9- 

c

cu

N

ca

N
c] 

cry

ate] 

m

cu

0

L

2

C) 

Ca

m

o

I

3

L- 

0°) 

a) T

o

CUE

Q) 

CZ– 

cu

C

L

La) 
In

Q] 

cu

Co }'  

CD -

0

L)• 

0

c

0- 

cnZDcv
V7

Q

m

L

0

a) 

O

Ca

Ca

Ncu

n0

co

3U
C) 

4– 

0

c

co

D

U > 

a) 

a) 

cn

O

o

o

D

vn
o

cnCD

m

co

a•

cn

C

Cf

N0

0  n

E

C!) 

0

h

a) 

a) 

U

D- 

a) 

A– 

L

a) 

o

W/ 

w 

U

m

Va) 
a- 

0

0

cn

CU

g–

l0
Q. cn

w

cu

L. 

L

a-

2

a

LL

o

a) 

E

ci.-

2U

a) 

c

0

o

T 

Q

a) 

E

O

U

a? rn

O 

D

U

L > 

CU

L- 

cu

0

O

C6

0

m

o

u_ 

w  

X37
C6

a) 

4--

p

C:? - 

n

co °' 

m

a

L  

o

Q _

0

Q

v. 

U

v

E  

E

a

v) 

0.- 

U) 

L

o-tf

o

CL

2  

CD

w

a) 

a 

a._. 

o  

o

co -

0

0

ML

v

CL

vs

M

0 -

0

o

a) 

v  

co

ca  

v) 

o

c6

ca — u3  

cat

aa

g

a) 

0) 

cn

cn

as

cam

Q 

0) E— 

cn

0

as

n

a) 

n  

ca

o

cx
o

0

o - 

Q- 

uvi

o

aL) 

U) +-- 

o

a) 

a--• 

L

N

Q

0

CD

U

0

0a) 

aV) (

cn

E 

o

0

0

cB -

i--  

o

0

Cca
o

0

E

cL-^ 

0

tea' 

0

a

5

o

cu

cu

0 -

C

U- 

C ~ 

o . 

U

Co

U

0cu

D] 

Vj

In

U

N

L] 

V3

N (

n

cn

co

a)  

cn

cacn
oCZ–(

D

cu

cn

a) 

o  ... 

c) 

c 

0) 

a) 

cu

a) 

o

v 

o

Na

0

co

a

W

Q

L

a

U) 

3) 
J

a) 

C!) 

E

m

o

O

n

a) 

v

cn

Co -

v

o

r ---

A

E

o

co

v

v) >,

C:) 

cn

o

a) 

cnL
cn }; 

U

Q 

L. 

U (

D

C

0

4 -

co

0

0- 

M-  - 

Q) 

Q

N

o

rn

a) ,  W ' 

0) F

a) 

cn

o

0

cin

co 

Q

a --  

0) 

5

0 .  

cu -

0

m

z

00r



CD
N

L. 

L

1

cr7

M

c"') 

C) 

D

C) 

U) 

CO

1

U

NCO
C] Li

m

mr

o

L_ 

B

u7

cuL

c

L

0

L

Q, _

0

I

a) 

T

o  

Qom] 

ul

2

n

co

u7

Co

Co

cm_ 

CD

o

C

N  

a) 

fJ) 

cu .  

ten

CD

cuu} 

L- 

Ca

M  

C6

a.
7

u7

C

L  

Cts

Q) 

O

w

U

C

V

00

0

o

L

0

v

C

Ec

l- 

a) 

0

O

O• 

0

a
a) 

O

cnL

C

En

0

L ((

n

cn

a) 

a) 

a) 

C

0

a) 

C %[ 

c

CI_
3  

a) 

E

Qc (
n

E

cu

i

E0cu

E

a) 

C }' 

v

sZ

L_ 0 - 

CU +- 

C6

a] 

ca

4--

1   

a) 

C

3: 

cn - 

U

n  

cu

cn

a) -

0

cu

a) 

a) 

cu  

0

V] 

cn

L0)

cu

0

E

Ca

in

0- 

0

3:'- 

c `- 

4-

0

cu

0

vw

cn

co

CD

O

o -

tf-

0

a) 0

0

Ca

o

v

L_ 

O

o

cn `_ 

ca

c. 

o

E - 

co0

0) L

cn

a) 

O

u]

N

CD   

0L_ 

C

cn

M

a) 

m -

0

0

a) 

0-

0

cin

a

s

o` 

V + 

E

C

a = 

v

0- 

oC

cuco

ca = 

o

tin'

cn

v ' 

a3O

cn

D

0- 

a

a) 

cu

n

Co

cn

a) 

O

cu

cn

0

a

ten

a) 

ca

i

cn

o) — 

a) i

o

L  a) 

0

ccucCom
a) }, 

4-

0

CD

U     

U

0

N

Co

L- 

L

Q : 

L7

aoj

0

cn

cn

a) 

0

M

c- 

a) 

m

a

CM

c6

cn

cn

0
O

cu

n `'— 

0- .  

n

E

n

cn

as

0

cu

a) 

v) 

cn

a) 

cn

o

a] 

to

a) 

a) 
4--

pL-) 
L

0
4-

0

ai

u .

cn

CI] 

0

ca -

a

CI] 

m

m

C 

cn

a

o

Q

d

cu

4-

1

U) 

4- `

n

o

L

0

C= 

a) 

co

o

E

co

cn

Ca

a) 

a) 

a) 

cn  +

0

CU

co

co

0] 

a) 

CL -

v

CD

ca

n  

m

V7

C

Q

u3

ca

o

C + 

v

c -

P

o

a) 

L

us

a) 

cu

CT] 

L

0

0) 

a) 

cu

x . - 

a? 

0

u3oo

Q

cu

n

cin  > 

a) 

ouy

o

w _

0

v

o

0

0

0

0

a_ 

cn

0

u3 +- . 

o

cn

co

CL  

M

M

ca

E  

o

3

6

N

N



3 Enforcement Response Plan

The City of Lemon Grove ( City) enforces compliance with the requirements of its Stormwater

Ordinance ( LGMC Chapter 8. 48) and the requirements of its Excavation and Grading Ordinance

LGMC Chapter 18. 08), including the BMP requirements in Section 2 of this document. In

accordance with Section E. 6 of the Municipal Permit, compliance with the City" s stormwater

requirements will be assessed through a variety of means, including, but not limited to,, 

inspections, responses to hotline calls, and the routine municipal separate storm sewer system

MS4) outfall monitoring. Where violations are observed, the enforcement actions and

rocedures described in this section will be employed to enforce the requirements. 

The City typically employs a tiered, escalating enforcement system. However, the City reserve

the right to use whatever tools the enforcement official deems most appropriate for a give il

situation, as dictated by the specifics of each case. I
Enforcement actions, including escalated enforcement actions, are described in the following
sections. It should be noted that

dinexperience
and professional judgment of City staff are

important in guig the appropriate response to a violation. Escalated enforcement actions

will continue to increase in severity, as necessary,, to compel compliance as soon as possible. 

3. 1 Administrative Enforcement Action4l

The various administrative enforcement measures employed by the City are discussed below. 

W.t-itte.iiLi.-i-idVe-rt)c-ilWar.ii'.I-ngs( l..,GMC'§ 8. 48.' 1' 10. A.2- 3) 

A written or verbal warning is typically the City' s first level of enforcement action when

violation of the City' s Stormwater Ordinance is observed. Written warnings can be given usin 

a variety of methods including cease and desist orders, notices of correction, inspection
reportl

riotices of violation ( NOV), and orders to clean, test,, or abate. 
E

Notice and orders to clean, test, or abate may be issued to perform any act required by thl's

City"s Municipal Code. When written

d

warnings are issued, the violation is noted, a time fram.1
to correct the violation is given, ana follow- up date is scheduled. City inspectors follow -u

with violations as necessary to determine whether or not compliance has been achieved. I
3. 1. 2 Administrative Citatiotis and Fines ( LGMC Chapter 1. 24) 

The City"s authorized enforcement staff may issue administrative citations for violations of the
City" s Municipal Code. Maximum citation amounts are defined in LMGC § 1. 24. 030. D and

depend on the number of previous violations by the same responsible party that have taken

place within the last 18 months, as follows: 

First violation: $ 100

Second violation: $200

Third violation: $ 500

Additional violations: $L000

Per LMGC § 1. 24. 030. B, every day that a violation of the Municipal Code exists is considered a
separate, distinct violation. Therefore, "" a separate citation may be issued for each day that a

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 25 of 36

Updated June 2015



violation occurs"' ( LMGC § 1. 24. 030. B). This means that,, for example, a violation left unresolved

for three days may be considered three separate, distinct violations, and citation amounts may

be escalated accordingly. 

To be considered an additional violation beyond the first violation, the infraction needs to relate

to the same ordinance, term, or condition and result in citing the same responsible party. 

Subsequent violations do not, however, have to occur at the same physical location, involve the

same personnel, or be for exactly the same reason to be considered additional violations beyond

the first violation(LMGC § 1. 24. 030. E). For example, if a contractor violates erosion control BMP

requirements, and then later on violates sediment control BMP requirements, the sediment

control BMP requirements violation may be considered a second violation as long as it is within

18 months of the first (erosion control) violation. 

When an administrative citation is issued, the responsible party may request a hearing to

contest the enforcement official' s determination that a violation of the City' s stormwater

requirements has occurred. Details on the City' s hearing and appeals process can be found in

LLMC Chapter 1. 24. 

D. 1. 3 PUbfiK. Nuisance Abatenert ( I -C M:C . 480.AA) 

Violations of LLMC Chapter 8. 48 are considered a public nuisance. If actions required to

resolve noncompliance with LLMC Chapter 8. 48 are not taken, the authorized enforcement

official may abate the nuisance pursuant to LLMC Chapter 1. 14. City costs for pollution

detection and abatement, such as BMP implementation,, may be recovered from the discharger

in addition to any other penalties. City costs for pollution detection and abatement,, if not paid

in full by the discharger in addition to any other penalties, may be made a lien against the

property in accordance with the abatement procedure ( LLMC § 8. 48. A.4). Costs for pollution

detection and abatement may be recovered from the discharger in addition to any other

penalties. 

0. 1. 4 Stop Work Order (LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A.5, LGMC 18. 08. 820) 

Whenever any work is being done contrary to the City' s Municipal Code, or other laws or

ordinances, an authorized enforcement official, as defined in LGMC § 8. 48. 020, may order the

work stopped by notice in writing to any person engaged in doing or causing such work to be

done. Any person receiving a Stop Work Order is required to immediately stop such work until

approved by the authorized enforcement official or authorized enforcement staff to proceed

with the work. 

For enforcement of required BMPs at construction or industrial/ commercial sites, the City can

issue a Stop Work Order. Stop Work Orders are typically given if written warnings have been

issued and the violation has not been corrected, or if an observed violation poses a significant

threat to water quality. Stop Work Orders prohibit further activity until the problem is

resolved. The Stop Work Order will describe the infraction and specify what corrective action

must be taken. A copy of the Stop Work Order will be given to the owner or contractor and

placed in the site' s active inspection file. To restart work once a Stop Work Order has been

issued, the responsible party must request that a City inspector re -inspect the site to verify that

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 26 of 36

Updated June 2015



the deficiencies have been satisfactorily corrected. Once the inspector verifies that the

appropriate corrections have been implemented, activities may resume. 

3. 1.,;5 Requ 1'red Borids o i, SeCUri ties

The authorized enforcement official may require a bond or other security to be posted in the

When necessary to assure a violation is corrected ( LGMC § 8. 48. 110. A. 2) 

When necessary to assure the maintenance of a BMP (LGMC § 8. 48. 090. 1) 

The authorized enforcement official determines the amount of the bond or security required. 

3A. 6 Per-ti.i.lt Suspension or Revocatioll

Where compliance with the City' s stormwater requirements is a condition of a City -issued

permit or other license, violations of the stormwater requirements may be grounds for permit

and/ or other city license suspension or revocation. For instance, in severe cases of

noncompliance, or significant discharges relating to development and/ or construction activities, 

the City may revoke the building or grading permits that a contractor is working under for the

project or deny future permits on the project. The responsible party will then need to re -apply
for permits and meet the requirements the City may have placed on the project before resuming
the project. 

3. 1. 7 Frifoi-cemerit of C:o.titracts

If a contractor is performing work for the City, then the City may use the provisions within the
contract for enforcement of noncompliance. Such contract provisions may allow the City to

refuse payment, stop work ( without time penalties), and/ or revoke contracts if contractors

performing activities do not comply with all appropriate permits laws, regulations dan

ordinances. 

3. 2 Judicl'al Enforcement Actions

In addition to administrative enforcement procedures, the City also may take the judicial

enforcement actions described below. 

3. 2. 1 Civil o.i-,- CrimInal Pe.i.ialties and Remedies ( 1, GMC § 8. 48. 1- 10. BA) 

The City Attorney is authorized to file criminal and civil actions and to seek civil penalties

and/ or other remedies to enforce LGMC Chapter 8. 48. There is no requirement that

administrative enforcement procedures be pursued before such actions are filed. 

MjLHICtive Relief (1, GMC § 8. 48. 11O. B. 2) 

The City may pursue enforcement by judicial action for preliminary or permanent injunctive

relief for any violation of LGMC Chapter 8.48. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 27 of 36

Updated June 2015



3.2.3 Arrestor Issue Cita Lions ( LGMCO.B. 3) 

Violators may be arrested, with the assistance of a peace officer, pursuant to the provisions of

the California Penal Code. Violators may also be issued a citation and notice to appear as

prescribed in the California Penal Code. The City is not required to take administrative

enforcement actions before taking either of these steps. 

111 a t111' 1111MV RumI q

During each investigation, all observed noncompliance activity is documented. The following
informationI is recorded for use in administrative and judicial enforcement actions, where

applicable-, 

Chronology of events

Case summary

Time and expense log

Inspection reports

Complaints

Phone conversation records

Correspondence

Maps and diagrams

Photographs

Witness list

3. 4 Municipal Enforcement

0 Explanation of the violationj

0 Request -to -file form

0 Field notes

Emergency ' incident reports

Lab results

Chain - of -custody for samples

Permit applications

Sampling plans

Other supporting documents

Reports from regulatory agencies

During routine municipal facility inspections, City or contract staff will assess facility areas and

activities to ensure all are maintained in accordance with City regulations, ordinances, and BMP

requirements. If BMPs are found to be deficient or otherwise ineffective, the responsible party
or department will be provided with required corrective actions. If the responsible City staff

member or department/ division does not perform the necessary corrective actions in response

to the inspection findings, escalated enforcement action will be taken by involving higher

ranking representatives within the responsible department or division, who may enact internal

disciplinary procedures, until the deficiencies are resolved. 

If the inspector notes that specific areas of a leased facility require additional BMPs, the City can

require the implementation of BMPs in addition to the required minimum for the specific

area/ activity. If a leased facility continues to be out of compliance, the City may choose to

discontinue the lease, which would remove the tenant from that particular site. Discontinuing a

lease is considered an escalated enforcement action. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 28 of 36

Updated June 2015



As required by the Municipal Permit, City staff will seek to resolve incidents of observed

noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event,, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

The City ensures that pollution prevention methods and BMPs are implemented by enforcing
ts ordinance. City inspectors and staff members properly document each observed violation at

facilities failing to comply with stormwater requirements, and enforcement action is taken

where necessary to bring about compliance. 

Depending on the nature and severity of the violation, enforcement may consist of any of the

actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3. 2. Typical enforcement actions are listed below; escalated

enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative citations* 

Public nuisance abatement* 

Revocation of permits or licenses* 

Inspectors seek to resolve noncompliance promptly and establish appropriate compliance time

frames on a case- by-case basis. Escalated enforcement measures are used as needed to ensure

compliance. Note that the City maintains the authority to require facilities to prepare Storm

Water Pollution Prevention Plans or to conduct sampling and analysis where deemed necessary

by the City. 

If the City inspector observes a significant and/ or immediate threat to water quality, action wil

be taken to require the facility owner and/ or operator to immediately cease and correct thl

discharge or activity. Conditions that would warrant such action may include observations o
runoff from the industrial site that are not reasonably controlled by the protective measures o. 

observation of a failure in BMPs resulting in or potentially resulting in a release of pollutants t( 
a degree that may substantially degrade water quality. Discharges related to noncompliancl

deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will be reported to the RWQCB orall, 

within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of the Municipa

Permit. Section 3. 4. 5 of the City' s JRMP document provides more information on reportin 

requirements. 

Events of noncompliance are evaluated according to the following criteria to determine whether

the events pose a threat to human or environmental health: 

The event of noncompliance resulted in a spill or discharge of hazardous materials, 

pollutants, or runoff containing pollutants that had an effect on a receiving water body. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 29 of 36

Updated June 2015



The quantity and/ or concentration of the pollutants in the spill or discharge affectino,. 

the receiving water was such that it may cause or contribute to an exceedance in water

quality objectives as specitiect in the San Diego Basin Plan. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed

noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

Most violations associated with mobile businesses are anticipated to be related to illegal

discharges. The Citys enforcement approach to such discharges will require the discharge to be

stopped and the area cleaned of discharged materials when applicable and feasible. Education

may also be provided to operators who are not aware of the City"s stormwater requirements. 

Businesses that do not possess the materials necessary to implement the required BMPs will

likely be required to demonstrate to the City that they have obtained such materials and can

properly use them before the City allows such busi-nesses to resume operations in the City. 
Mobile businesses that do not have City business licenses will be required to obtain them. 

Discharges related to noncompliance deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will

be reported to the RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in- writing within five days, as required

by Attachment B of the Municipal Permit. Section 3. 4. 5 of the City' s JRMP document provides

more information on reporting requirements. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed

noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

The following mechanisms will be used by the City to determine areas where enforcement

actions may be necessary, where appropriate: 

0 Public reporting hotlini

0 Analysis of field screening and analytical monitoring results

0 Observations from City personneU

During investigations of incidents reported to the hotline, or discovered during routine MS4

outfall monitoring, that are associated with a residential source, City staff will address issues of

stormwater concern where feasible, and provide education where appropriate. Voluntary
compliance and escalating enforcement mechanisms are implemented to immediately eliminate

an illegal connection and illegal discharge ICAD once the source has been identified. Violations

to the City" s Municipal Code will be investigated by City personnel with enforcement authority. 
Violations are documented and depending on the nature and severity of the violation, 

enforcement may consist of any of the enforcement measures described in sections 3. 1 and 3. 2. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 30 of 36

Updated June 2015



There are two methods of discovering residential activities contributing to urban runoff. One il, 

through complaint/ referral process. Complaints may be received h direct contact witl

City or contract staff or through calls to the City' s Stormwater hotline. The other route i 

through observations made by City staff during residential area inspections, during schedule( 

MS4 outfall monitoring, and during routine City activities such as MS4 maintenance

Additional, focused investigations of areas upstream of outfalls with obvious pollutants presen

during the Dry Weather MS4 Outfall Monitoring Program and complaint respons( 

investigations provide further information about potential problem areas. The City believe,, 

that the combination of monitoring, public reporting, direct observations by City staff that an

routinely in the field, and targeted additional investigations where necessary provide sufficien

oversight of residential areas and activities. 

During investigations of incidents reported to the hotline or discovered during monitoring, the

City will continue to use the opportunity to address any other issues of concern, and provides

educational materials where appropriate. Voluntary compliance and escalating enforcement

nechanisms are implemented to immediately eliminate an IC/ ID once the source has been

identified. Further details of enforcement mechanisms pertaining to ICADs can be found in

i,ection 3. 9 of this document. 

Follow- up inspections conducted as a result of residential BMP deficiencies will be performed. 

Violations will continue to be investigated by City personnel with enforcement authority within

on the nature and severity of the violation, enforcement

may consist of any of the actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3. 2. Typical enforcement actions are

listed below; escalated enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk (*): 

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative

Public nuisance abatement* 

Discharges related to noncompliance deemed to pose a threat to health or the environment will

be reported to the RWQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required

by Attachment B of the Municipal Permit. Section 3. 4. 5 of the City' s JRMP document provides

more information on  

As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

3. 7 a rr a;

nt Planning Enforcementa a

The City will use a variety of enforcement methods to ensure stormwater requirements for all

development projects within the City' s jurisdiction are implemented. Enforcement measures

will escalate with continued violations as necessary. The City' s current plan check process

includes steps to enforce the implementation of development requirements during construction. 

City r r BMP Manual Page 31 of 36

Updated



Since all structural BMPs are required to be shown on the project' s plans, inspectors check tip

make sure these BMPs have been correctly installed during their routine inspections. If an

mistakes in BMP installation are noted during plan checks, the City requires the project t; 

romptly correct these errors until BMP installation is consistent with the specification on thl

roject` s approved plans. 

Once a project has been completed, ongoing operation and maintenance is verified through

inspections or through review of submitted maintenance verification certifications. If a project

is found not to be maintaining BMPs as required, depending on the nature and severity of the

violation, enforcement may consist of any of the actions listed in Sections 3. 1 or 3. 2. Typical

enforcement actions are listed below; escalated enforcement actions are marked with an asterisk

Verbal warnings

Written warnings

Administrative citations* 

Public nuisance abatement, which may 'include placing a lien against the property* 

If an inspector finds maintenance deficiencies with any structural BMPs at a completed project, 

he or she first attempts to explain the deficiencies and necessary corrective actions to the

responsible party, if the responsible party is present. If the responsible party performs all

necessary corrective actions promptly in response to the verbal explanation from the inspector, 

the case is closedl and the resolution is documented. Otherwise, a written notice is issued to the

responsible party. The notice indicates the type and location of each BMP and describes the

deficiencies observed by the inspector as well as the required corrective actions. Responsible

parties are required to perform the corrective actions and demonstrate that all necessary

maintenance activities were completed through a re -inspection with the City inspector or

through providing photographs of corrections. The inspector may also request additional

documentation or perform a re -inspection at their discretion. 

The maintenance condition of structural BMPs are determined through an annual self - 

certification program where the City requires reports from authorized parties demonstrating
proper maintenance and operation of BMPs. If the responsible party fails to provide the annual
report, the City will issue a written notice requiring the responsible party to provide the report

within a given timeframe. 

If a responsible party fails to sufficiently respond to a notice from the City by the response

deadline, the inspector may issue a written warning. If the responsible party still fails to

perform the necessary corrective actions, the inspector may issue an administrative citation. 

Follow- up inspections conducted as a result of structural or treatment control BMP deficiencies

will be performed. All enforcement actions will be documented appropriately in the

development projects database file. If a development site receives frequent citations or is not

responsI ve to previously issued enforcement actions, more severe actions, such as court actions, 

will be used as necessary. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 32 of 36

Updated June 2015



As required by the Municipal Permit, City inspectors will seek to resolve incidents of observed
noncompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timeframe, the reason

additional time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept in the project' s file. 

3. 8 Construction Management Enforcement

duringThe
City is responsible for enforcement of applicable local ordinances and permits at a

construction sites in its jurisdiction. When violations are observed and documented

site inspection, the City will implement appropriate enforcement measures based on th

severity of the violation. Enforcement can range from written warnings to more sever

enforcement such as Stop Work Orders. Stronger enforcement measures will be used a

necessary if proper corrective actions are not implemented during the allotted time frame or i

the severity ofthe violation

progressiveThetypical ; ./ implement following; 
actions considered escalated enforcement are marked with an asterisk (*): 

Written warnings, including
inspection reports, correct work

notices, 

0 Stop # contractor, with cost reimbursement

BMP implementation by City -hired

City*to the

and/

orSM-
91MM

0 Civil criminalcourtaction* 

Escalated enforcement actions will be reported to the RWQCB within five ( 5) days, as required

by the Municipal Permit. 

Permit.

The City works closely with development projects prior to the commencement of construction

activities. All construction sites are expected to be aware of the City' s BMP requirements. 

Accordingly, a written warning will typically be the first enforcement step, and additional

enforcement actions will be taken if that is not sufficient to achieve compliance. Figure 1

illustrates the typical enforcement process for a private project. The City seeks to resolve

violations as quickly as possible, including prior to rain events where feasible. In cases o? 

significant or repeated noncompliance, the City may hire an outside contractor to implement

required BMPs at a construction site when there is at least a 50% chance of rain within the next

72 hours. The City will require cost recovery from the responsible party (private projects) or

contractor ( City projects) for the costs of BMP implementation in this scenario. In cases where a

violation cannot be resolved within 30 days, the reason additional time was needed for case

resolution will be documented and kept in the project' s file, as required by the Municipal

City r Page 33 of 36

Updated



Figure 1. Typical Enforcement Process for Private Construction Projects

Violation documented for construction

activities', 
I

Written warning: inspection report or

correct work notice

LGMC §§ 8. 48. 110. A. 2- 3) 
Achieved

Noncompliance

Stop Work Order' 

LGMC § 8. 48. 1 10.A.5, LGMC § 18. 08. 820) 

Continued

Administrative citation

151 violation: $ 100

2n dviolation: $ 200

3, dviolation: $ 500

additional violation: $ 1, 000

LGMC § 1. 24. 030) 

f -I

Continued Noncompliance and

50% of rain within next 72 hrs

0

orl :' A"If
IIII(

I'MAIX) 

Compliance
resolution exceeded 30

Achieved .............. 
w-, days, document rationale. 

Compliance

Achieved

City hires contractor to implement
11

Compliance

required to reimburse City for costs, 
Achieved

LGMC § 8. 48. 11 OA4) 

Notes

1. An administrative citation may be issued directly, without taking other enforcement actions shown in this figure first, for
illicit discharges or illicit connections. 

TI -i e Ci ty resery es th e righ t to is higher lev el enforcemen t ac ti ons wi th ou t firs t takin g I ower level enforcemen t a c ti ons
wh ere necessa ry to reduce th e discharge of pollu. tan ts to its s torm. d rain sy s tern to th e maximum ex ten t prac ticable. 

An administrative citation may be issued concurrently with a stop work order if deemed necessary by the City. 
4. All violations within the last 18 months may considered in determining the applicable citation amount. Each day that a
violation exists may be considered a separate and distinct violation. ( LGMC § 1. 24. 030). 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 34 of 36

Updated June 2015



Revocation of permits and civil or criminal court actions are rarely used tools and therefore are
not shown in Figure 1, but the City does reserve the right to use those enforcement tools where
riecessary. The enforcement process for a City project is similar to the private project

enforcement process, except that, in addition to the enforcement measures shown in Figure 1, 

the City may also use enforcement of for its own projects. 

When a site is subject to the Construction General Permit ( CGP), City staff may also collaborate

with RWQCB staff on enforcement actions. The City will notify the RWQCB in writing within

five calendar days of issuing escalated enforcement to a construction site that poses a significant
threat to water quality as a result of violations of other noncompliance. Written notification

may be provided to the appropriate RWQCB staff member by email. The City will also notify
the RWQCB of any construction sites required to obtain coverage under the CGP that, to the

City' s knowledge, have not filed N01s, within five calendar days from the time the City became

aware of the circumstances. At minimum, the construction project location and name of owner

or operator will be provided to the RWQCB. Written notification may be provided

roV. electronically by email to Nonfilers R9@waterboards. ca. g - 

Any noncompliance that may endanger health or the environmental will be reported to the

R,WQCB orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of

the Municipal Permit. Criteria listed below will be used in addition to the criteria listed in

Section 3. 4.5 of the City' s JRMP to determine the threats to health or the environment associated

with a noncompliance event, whether from stormwater or non-stormwater discharges, where

applicable: 

0 Estimated area of erosion caused by dischargit

0 Total suspended solids concentration and turbidity of discharge

0 Other materials discharged that pose a threat ( concrete washout, sanitary washes, etc.) 

3. 9 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Enforcemen! 

The City implements and enforces its ordinances, orders, or other legal authority to prevent

illicit discharges and connections to its MS4. If the City identifies the source as a controllable
source of non- stormwater or as an IC/ ID, the administrative and judicial enforcement measures

previously listed will be used, as necessary, to eliminate IC/ IDs. 

If a complaint is received that indicates an IC/ ID, City staff will conduct a field investigation for

complaints with details suggesting an actual or potential discharge to the MS4 or receiving
water body. If investigators find evidence of a violation with the potential to release pollutants

or an actual IC/ 11), every effort is made to find the responsible party and inform them of the

complaint or issue a written warning. Parties found to be responsible for a violation or ICAD

are required to clean up or remove pollutants to the maximum extent practicable ( MEP). Any
refusal by the responsible party to perform clean up of a violation or discharge will be handled

by Code Enforcement staff and appropriate enforcement actions will be taken. 

The nature of the City' s enforcement approach is determined on a case- by-case basis and is

based on factors such as the severity of the violation, the threat to human or environmental

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 35 of 36

Updated June 2015



health, site- specific circumstances, and past compliance history. If the situation is determined

to pose an immediate risk to public health or the environment, the City may coordinate with

other agencies or teams that are specially trained to assess and mitigate emergency situations as

necessary ( e. g., those involving hazardous wastes/ materials, etc.).  discharge is also

reported to the RWQCB as required by the Municipal Permit. 

Any noncompliance that may endan.Rer health or the environmental will be reported to the

orally within 24 hours and in writing within five days, as required by Attachment B of

the Municipal Permit. Criteria listed below will be used to determine the threats to health or

the environment associated with a noncompliance event, whether from stormwater or non- 

stormwater • where applicable: 

Estimated pollutant load discharged from site

Estimated volume of discharge

Types of pollutants discharged, including if toxic materials were discharged

Sensitivity of the receiving water body, including if it is 303( d) listed for any of the

pollutants 'in the discharge

Proximity of site to sensitive habitat/ end angered species

Proximity of site to public water supply ( well head, monitoring wells) 

Quantity, if any of the discharge reached the receiving water body

Beneficial uses for affected water bodies

Additionally, water observed at major MS4 outfalls and traced to an anthropogenic source( s) is

considered an illegal discharge. If the anthropogenic source( s) is/ are found to be from a( n) 

industrial/ commercial site, an inspection of the industrial/commercial facility will be performed

in a timely manner to investigate the discharge. The inspection report will include a note

describing that the inspection was prompted due to recent IC/ ID discovery associated with MS4

outfall monitoring. 

If the anthropogenic source is found to be from a residential area, the City"s field crew will leave

educational materials and/ or a written notification informing the responsible party of the illegal

discharge and their responsibility to eliminate it. Follow- up inspections will be conducted as

necessary to ensure the discharge has been eliminated. 

If the anthropogenic source is traced a municipal source, further investigation will be completed

to identify actions needed to eliminate the source. 

Any ICAD observed to have potential to immediately impact human health or the environment

will be immediately reported to Code Enforcement staff and the Fire Department,, if necessary, 

and all associated enforcement action( s) will be handled by Code Enforcement staff. 

As required by the Municipal Permit, City staff will seek to resolve incidents of observed

nonC ompliance within 30 calendar days, or prior to the next rain event, whichever is sooner. In

cases where the violation cannot be resolved within the appropriate timefrarne, the reason

additI onal time was needed for case resolution will be documented and kept on file. 

City of Lemon Grove Stormwater BMP Manual Page 36 of 36

Updated June 2015



LEMON GROVE :CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 

Mtg. Date may, 1 94 2015
Dept. Develop., i s    a nt., e

MiMXIY WNrMn NXv knmzlUlW 

Item Title: Ordinance No. 427 Approving Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 Amending the

Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High

RMH) for properties on the South Side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway
and 8373 Broadway

Staff Contact: ; Carol Dick, Development Services Department

Recommendation: 

Conduct second reading, by title only, and adopt Ordinance No. 427 ( Attachment A) 

amending the Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High

RMH) for the properties located on the south side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway and
8373 Broadway.; 

Item Summary: 

IOn May 5, 2015, the City Council introduced Ordinance No. 427 ( Attachment A), an ordinance

amending the Zoning District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) 

for the properties located on the south side of Broadway between 8305 Broadway and 8373

Broadway as shown on Exhibit A ( attached to Ordinance No. 427). The City Council also adopted
a resolution approving General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 which amended the General Plan

Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial to Medium/ High Residential

Density. If adopted, the Ordinance becomes effective on June 19, 2015. 

Fiscal Impact: 

None. 

Environmental Review: 

R Not subject to review

Exempt, Section , 

Public Information: 

F- 1 None El Newsletter article

Notice published in local newspaper

Attachments: 

A. Ordinance No. 427 (ZA150- 0001) 

Z Negative Declaration

Ej Mitigated Negative Declaration

Tribal Government Consultation

Z Notice to property owners within 300 ft. 



Attachment A

ORDINANCE NO. 427

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE (CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING ZONING AMENDMENT ZA150- 0001 AMENDING THE ZONING DISTRICT

FROM GENERAL COMMERCIAL ( GC) TO RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM/ HIGH ( RMH) 

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove conducted an environmental assessment for

Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 and General Plan Amendment GPA150- 0001 on April 1, 2015, 

to amend the General Plan Land Use Designation from Transportation and Retail Commercial

to Medium/ High Residential for ten properties located on the south side of Broadway as shown
on Exhibit A and to amend the Zoning District from General commercial ( GC) to Residential

Medium/ High ( RMH) for those same properties; and

WHEREAS, a Negative Declaration ( ND) of Environmental Impact will be filed

subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the proposed project. The Initial

Environmental Study prepared for this project identified no potential environmental impacts. 

Mitigation measures are not included in the ND; and

WHEREAS, on April 27, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove Planning Commission; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council certify
Negative Declaration ND15- 01 and approve Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001; and

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2015, a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon
Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS, General Plan Amendment GPA150-0001 was approved and Negative

Declaration ND15-01 was certified; and

WHEREAS, on May 5, 2015, the Lemon Grove City council introduced and conducted

the first reading of ordinance No -427; and

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2015, the Lemon Grove City Council conducted the second

reading of ordinance No. 427 and made the required findings in accordance with Section

17. 28. 080( 8) of the Municipal Code: 

1. That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan, in accordance

with Government Code Section 65860, as amended. 

The amendment will allow residential development in an area that is suited for more
intense residential development and is more compatible with the surrounding
development. 

2. That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the

proposed amendment. 

The amendment eliminates an existing land use conflict and provides for the ability to
develop residential land uses consistent with the existing predominant land uses in

the vicinity; and

3, 



Attachment A

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA DOES ORDAIN AS
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION ONE: Approve Zoning Amendment ZA150- 0001 amending the Zoning
District from General Commercial ( GC) to Residential Medium/ High ( RMH) for those properties
identified in Exhibit A. 



Attachment A

EXHIBIT A

PROPERTIES IN PROJECT SITE

1. 8321- 23 Broadway Lane APN: 499-220-27

2. 8319 Broadway Lane APN: 499-220-26

3. 8313 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 06

4. 8307 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 08

5. 8309 Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 09

6. Broadway Lane APN: 499- 220- 10

7. 8351 Broadway APN: 499-220- 35

8. Broadway APN: 499-220-61

9. 8361- 5 Broadway APN: 499-220-57

10. 8369- 85 Broadway APN: 499-220- 58

5- 


